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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present the Twenty-fourth Annual Report together with the audited financial 
statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The operating results and appropriations, as recommended by the Board, are given below:

   �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Profit for the year before tax 9,917,114
 Taxation ������������
 Profit for the year after tax 6,348,942
 Unappropriated profit brought forward  ���������
 Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets – net of tax 45,947
 Other comprehensive income ������
   5,631,494
 Profit available for appropriations ����������
 Appropriations:
           Transfer to Statutory Reserve ������������
           Cash dividend – 2013 ������������
           Issue of Bonus Shares – 2013 ������������

   ������������

 Unappropriated profit carried forward ���������

 Basic / Diluted earnings per share – after tax Rs.      5.71

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Directors propose a cash dividend of 30%. 

Performance Review

Alhamdolillah, the performance of your Bank continued to be satisfactory during the year. Deposits rose to 
Rs. 446,409 million against Rs. 386,161 million a year earlier, while advances increased to Rs. 181,357 
million from Rs. 167,579 million. Foreign Trade Business handled by the Bank during the year was
Rs. 661,478 million. Profit before tax for the year was Rs. 9,917 million as compared to Rs. 7,513 million 
last year, while profit after tax was Rs. 6,349 million against Rs. 5,155 million last year.

During the year, the Bank opened 31 branches and 12 sub-branches, bringing our network to 462. Your 
Bank now has a network of 351 branches (including 17 Islamic Banking Branches and 3 Overseas Branches, 
one each in Bahrain, Malaysia, and Seychelles), 108 sub-branches, and 3 Representative Offices, one each 
in Dubai, Istanbul, and Beijing. As before, the Bank will continue to expand its network in Pakistan and 
abroad. 
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Board Meetings

During the year, five meetings of the Board were held and the attendance of each Director was as follows: 

 Name of Director Meetings Held Meetings Attended

 Mr. Ali Raza D. Habib, Chairman  5 3

 Mr. Abbas D. Habib 5 5

 Mr. Anwar Haji Karim 5 5

 Mr. Murtaza H. Habib 5 5

 Mr. Qumail R.  Habib 5 5

 Mr. Shameem Ahmed 5 4

 Mr. S. Mazhar Abbas 5 5

 Mr. Safar Ali Lakhani 5 4

 Mr. S. Hasan Ali Bukhari* 5 3

 Mr. Shahid Ghaffar ** 5 2

 Mr. Manzoor Ahmed*** 5 2
 *Mr. S. Hasan Ali Bukhari assumed office as a Director during the year. He attended all three meetings 

of the Board held after his taking office.

 **Mr. Shahid Ghaffar assumed office as a Director (Nominee of NIT) in place of Mr. Manzoor Ahmed. 
He attended both meetings of the Board held after his taking office.

 ***Mr. Manzoor Ahmed resigned as a Director (Nominee of NIT) during the year. He had attended two 
out of three meetings of the Board held before his resignation.

We thank Mr. Imtiaz Alam Hanfi and Mr. Manzoor Ahmed, who resigned as Directors during the year under 
review, and would like to place on record our appreciation for their valuable guidance and support. We would 
like to welcome Mr. S. Hasan Ali Bukhari and Mr. Shahid Ghaffar as members of our Board of Directors, and 
look forward to benefitting from their input and advice.

Committee Meetings

Code of Corporate Governance requires formation of two committees of the Board, viz. Audit Committee 
and Human Resource & Remuneration Committee. During the year, seven meetings of the Audit Committee 
and four meetings of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR&RC) were held, and the 
attendance of members was as follows:
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 Audit Committee Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

 Name of Director Meetings  Meetings  Name of Director Meetings  Meetings  
  Held Attended  Held Attended
 Mr. Shameem Ahmed, 7 7 Mr. S. Mazhar Abbas,  4 4
  Chairman   Chairman

 Mr. S. Mazhar Abbas 7 7 Mr. Abbas D. Habib 4 4
 
 Mr. Anwar Haji Karim 7 7 Mr. Anwar Haji Karim 4 4
 
 Mr. S.Hasan Ali Bukhari* 7 2 Mr. Murtaza H. Habib 4 4

 Mr. Safar Ali Lakhani** 7 2 Mr. S. Hasan Ali Bukhari* 4 1

 Mr. Murtaza H. Habib*** 7 5

 *Mr. S. Hasan Ali Bukhari assumed office as a Director during the year. He attended all meetings of the 
 Audit Committee and HR&RC held after his nomination to these Committees.
 **Mr. Safar Ali Lakhani assumed office as a Director during the year. He attended all meetings of the 
 Audit Committee held after his nomination to the Committee.
 ***Mr. Murtaza H. Habib ceased to be member of Audit Committee during the year. He attended all meetings  
 of the Audit Committee while he was its member.

Directors Training Programme
7ZR�'LUHFWRUV�FRPSOHWHG�WKH�GLUHFWRUV·�WUDLQLQJ�SURJUDPPH�LQ������
Credit Rating
$OKDPGROOLODK��3DNLVWDQ�&UHGLW�5DWLQJ�$JHQF\�/LPLWHG��3$&5$��KDV�PDLQWDLQHG�WKH�%DQN·V�ORQJ�WHUP�DQG�
short term entity ratings at AA+ (Double A plus) and A1+ (A One plus), respectively. The ratings of our 
unsecured, subordinated TFCs have also been maintained at AA (Double A). These ratings denote a very 
low expectation of credit risk emanating from a very strong capacity for timely payment of financial commitments.
Future Outlook
Despite some prevailing adverse circumstances relating to energy shortages, trade deficit, and  law and 
order situation, we are overall optimistic on key aspects of the national economy. The fall in oil prices in the 
international market, the rise in inward remittances and foreign exchange reserves, and the substantial 
reduction in inflation, are highly encouraging factors. These have also contributed to the declining trend in 
interest rates, which will surely provide relief to the business community. But the decline in interest rates 
may also result in reduced earnings for banks. Thus, the future presents opportunities as well as challenges. 
We are, however, confident that as in the past the Bank will Inshallah continue to grow and progress.
Auditors 
The present auditors KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountant, retire and offer themselves for 
reappointment. As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has recommended their 
reappointment as auditors of the Bank for the year ending December 31, 2015, at a fee to be mutually 
agreed.



Risk Management Framework

The Bank always had a risk management framework commensurate with the size of the Bank and the nature 
of its business. This framework has developed over the years and continues to be refined and improved. Its 
salient features are summarised below:

 �  Credit risk is managed through the credit policies approved by the Board; a well-defined credit approval 
mechanism; use of internal risk ratings; prescribed documentation requirements; post-disbursement 
administration, review, and monitoring of credit facilities; and continuous assessment of credit worthiness 
of counterparties. The Bank has also established a mechanism for independent, post-disbursement 
review of large credit risk exposures. Decisions regarding the credit portfolio are taken mainly by the 
Central Credit Committee. Credit Risk Management Committee of the Board provides overall guidance 
LQ�PDQDJLQJ�WKH�%DQN·V�FUHGLW�ULVN�

 �  Market risk is managed through the market risk policy approved by the Board; approval of counterparty 
limits and dealer limits; senior management approval for investments; and regular review and monitoring 
RI�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�SRUWIROLR�E\�WKH�%DQN·V�$VVHW�/LDELOLW\�0DQDJHPHQW�&RPPLWWHH��$/&2���,Q�DGGLWLRQ��
the liquidity risk policy provides guidance in managing the liquidity position of the Bank, which is monitored 
on daily basis by the Treasury and the Middle Office. Risk Management Committee of the Board provides 
RYHUDOO�JXLGDQFH�LQ�PDQDJLQJ�WKH�%DQN·V�PDUNHW�DQG�OLTXLGLW\�ULVNV��FDSLWDO�DGHTXDF\��DQG�LQWHJUDWHG�
risk management (also known as enterprise risk management).

 �  Operational risk is managed through the audit policy and the operational risk policy approved by the 
Board, along with the fraud prevention policy; operational manuals and procedures issued from time to 
time; a system of internal controls and dual authorisation for important transactions and safe-keeping; 
a Business Continuity Plan, including a Disaster Recovery Plan for I.T.; and regular audit of the branches. 
$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH�RI�WKH�%RDUG�SURYLGHV�RYHUDOO�JXLGDQFH�LQ�PDQDJLQJ�WKH�%DQN·V�RSHUDWLRQDO�ULVN����

,Q�RUGHU�WR�FRPSO\�ZLWK�6%3·V�JXLGHOLQHV�RQ�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��WKH�%DQN�KDV�HVWDEOLVKHG�D�VHSDUDWH�5LVN�
Management Division, including a Middle Office that independently monitors and analyses the risks inherent 
in our Treasury operations. The steps taken by the Division include: sensitivity testing of Government 
Securities portfolio; computation of portfolio duration and modified duration; analysis of forward foreign 
exchange gap positions; more detailed reporting of TFCs and equities portfolios; development of improved 
procedures for trading in equities and settlements; monitoring of off-market foreign exchange rates and 
foreign exchange earnings; and establishment of a mechanism for independent, post-disbursement review 
of large credit risk exposures. Assessment of enterprise-wide integrated risk profile of the Bank is carried 
out, using the Basel Framework, Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process, and Stress Testing.
&RUSRUDWH�6RFLDO�5HVSRQVLELOLW\��&65�
Your Bank is fully committed to the concept of Corporate Social Responsibility and fulfills this responsibility 
by engaging in a wide range of activities which include:
� corporate philanthropy amounting to Rs. 48.8 million by way of donations during the year for social and 

educational development and welfare of under-privileged people;   
� energy conservation, environmental protection, and occupational safety and health by restricting 

unnecessary lighting, implementing tobacco control law and “No Smoking Zone”, and providing a safe 
and healthy work environment;   

�� EXVLQHVV�HWKLFV�DQG�DQWL�FRUUXSWLRQ�PHDVXUHV��UHTXLULQJ�DOO�VWDII�PHPEHUV�WR�FRPSO\�ZLWK� WKH�%DQN·V�
“Code of Conduct”;   

� consumer protection measures, requiring disclosure of the schedule of charges and terms and conditions 
WKDW�DSSO\�WR�WKH�%DQN·V�SURGXFWV�DQG�VHUYLFHV�

� amicable staff relations, recognition of merit and performance, and on-going opportunities for learning 
and growth of staff, both on-the-job and through formal training programmes;
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� employment through a transparent procedure, without discrimination on the basis of religion, caste, 
language, etc., including employment of special persons; 

�� H[SDQVLRQ�RI�WKH�%DQN·V�EUDQFK�QHWZRUN�WR�UXUDO�DUHDV��ZKLFK�KHOSV�LQ�UXUDO�GHYHORSPHQW�
� contribution to the national exchequer by the Bank by way of direct taxes of about Rs. 2.95 billion paid 

to the Government of Pakistan; during the year; furthermore, an additional amount of over Rs. 7.5 billion 
was deducted/collected by the Bank on account of withholding taxes, federal excise duties and sales tax 
on services, and paid to the Government of Pakistan/Provincial Governments. 

Statement on Corporate and Financial Reporting
1. The financial statements, prepared by the Bank, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 

cash flows and changes in equity.
2. Proper books of account have been maintained by the Bank.
3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements; 

changes, if any, have been adequately disclosed and accounting estimates are based on reasonable 
and prudent judgment.

4. International Financial Reporting Standards and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards, as applicable 
in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements and departure therefrom, if any, 
has been adequately disclosed.

5. The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored. 
7KH�%RDUG·V�HQGRUVHPHQW�RI� WKH�PDQDJHPHQW·V�HYDOXDWLRQ� UHODWHG� WR� ,QWHUQDO�&RQWURO�RYHU�)LQDQFLDO�
Reporting, along with endorsement of overall Internal Controls is given on page 11.

��� 7KHUH�DUH�QR�GRXEWV�XSRQ�WKH�%DQN·V�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�
7. Key operating and financial data for last six years are summarised below:
  �5XSHHV�LQ�PLOOLRQ�
   ���� ����� ����� ��1�� ����� ����
 Total customer deposits  446,409 386,161 340,393 302,099 249,774 189,280
 Total advances  181,357 167,579 147,869 114,872 125,773 105,985
 Profit before tax  9,917 7,513   8,878 7,155 5,656 4,512
 Profit after tax  6,349 5,155 5,455 4,533 3,602 2,856
 Shareholders' Equity  27,555 23,227  21,058 17,723 14,706 12,287
 Earnings per share * (Rs)  5.71 4.64      4.91 4.08 3.24 2.57
 Cash Dividend (%)  30 20 30 25 20 20
 Stock Dividend (%)  – 10 – 15 20 20
*Earnings per share from 2009 to 2013 have been recalculated based on the existing paid-up capital.

8. Value of investments of Provident Fund and Gratuity Fund Schemes based on latest audited financial 
statements as at December 31, 2013 was as follows:

   �5XSHHV�LQ�·����
  Provident Fund 2,180,838
  Gratuity Fund 791,494

9. The pattern of shareholding and additional information regarding pattern of shareholding is given on 
pages 106, 107 & 108.
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10. No trade in the shares of the Bank was carried out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Head of Internal 
Audit, and Company Secretary, and their spouses and minor children, except that during the year one 
Executive purchased 500 shares, another Executive sold 5,000 shares, and spouse of an Executive 
purchased and sold 30,000 shares. For the purpose of this disclosure, the definition of “Executive” 
includes Assistant General Managers and above, in addition to officials already mentioned in the listing 
regulations.

General

We wish to thank our customers for their continued support and confidence, the State Bank of Pakistan for 
their guidance, and local and foreign correspondents for their cooperation. We also thank all our staff members 
for their sincere and dedicated services, which enabled the Bank to achieve these satisfactory results. 

 On behalf of the Board of Directors

 ALI RAZA D. HABIB
Karachi: February 17, 2015 Chairman
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
)25�7+(�<($5�(1'('�'(&(0%(5���������

 This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (“the Code”) 
contained in listing regulations of the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges for the purpose 
of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance 
with the best practices of corporate governance.

 The Bank has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

1. The Bank encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors representing 
minority interest on its Board of Directors. At present the Board includes:

  Category Names
  Independent Directors Mr. Shameem Ahmed
   Syed Mazhar Abbas
   Syed Hasan Ali Bukhari
  Executive Directors Mr. Abbas D.Habib
   Mr. Qumail R. Habib
  Non-Executive Directors Mr. Ali Raza D. Habib
   Mr. Anwar Haji Karim
   Mr. Murtaza H. Habib
   Mr. Safar Ali Lakhani
   Mr. Shahid Ghaffar

 The independent directors meet the criteria of independence as per Prudential Regulations of the State 
Bank of Pakistan.

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven listed 
companies, including the Bank, except for the nominee director of National Investment Trust (NIT).       

3. All the directors of the Bank are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment 
of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a member of a stock exchange, has 
been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

4. Two casual vacancies occurred on the Board during the year and were filled by the directors within 
stipulated time.            

5. The Bank has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken 
to disseminate it throughout the Bank along with supporting policies and procedures.

6. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies 
of the Bank. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they 
were approved or amended has been maintained. 

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including 
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO 
and Executive Director, have been taken by the Board.

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 
elected by the Board for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices 
of Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before 
the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.
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9. The directors of the Bank are well conversant with their duties and responsibilities. Two directors 
attended training programmes during the year. 

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of 
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment. 

���� 7KH�'LUHFWRUV·�5HSRUW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�KDV�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RGH�
and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

12. The financial statements of the Bank were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the 
Board.

13. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Bank other than that 
disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

14. The Bank has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.
15. The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises five members, who are independent or 

non-executive directors. Chairman of the Committee is an independent director.
16. Meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once in every quarter prior to approval of interim 

and final results of the Bank and as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the Committee 
have been formed and advised to the Committee for compliance.

17. The Board has formed a Human Resource & Remuneration Committee. It comprises five members, 
of whom four are not executive directors, including the Chairman of the Committee.

18. The Bank has an effective internal audit division that is manned by suitably qualified and experienced 
personnel. The audit team is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Bank.

19. The statutory auditors of the Bank have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under 
the quality control review programme of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they 
or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Bank and 
that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) 
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they 
have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

���� 7KH�¶FORVHG�SHULRG·�SULRU�WR�WKH�DQQRXQFHPHQW�RI�LQWHULP�ILQDO�UHVXOWV��DQG�EXVLQHVV�GHFLVLRQV��ZKLFK�
PD\�PDWHULDOO\�DIIHFW�WKH�PDUNHW�SULFH�RI�%DQN·V�VHFXULWLHV��ZDV�GHWHUPLQHG�DQG�LQWLPDWHG�WR�GLUHFWRUV��
employees and stock exchange(s).

22. Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once 
through stock exchange(s).

23. We confirm that all the other material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.

   On behalf of the Board of Directors

 ALI RAZA D. HABIB
Karachi: February 17, 2015 Chairman
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH  
THE  CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code 
of Corporate Governance (“the Code”) prepared by the Board of Directors of Bank AL Habib Limited 
(“the Bank”) for the year ended 31 December 2014 to comply with the requirements of Listing Regulations 
of the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges where the Bank is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Bank. Our 
responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the 
6WDWHPHQW�RI�&RPSOLDQFH�UHIOHFWV�WKH�VWDWXV�RI�WKH�%DQN·V�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�&RGH�
and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review 
LV�OLPLWHG�SULPDULO\�WR�LQTXLULHV�RI�WKH�%DQN·V�SHUVRQQHO�DQG�UHYLHZ�RI�YDULRXV�GRFXPHQWV�SUHSDUHG�E\�WKH�
Bank to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting 
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are 
QRW�UHTXLUHG�WR�FRQVLGHU�ZKHWKHU�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV·�VWDWHPHQW�RQ�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�FRYHUV�DOO�ULVNV�DQG�
FRQWUROV� RU� WR� IRUP� DQ� RSLQLRQ� RQ� WKH� HIIHFWLYHQHVV� RI� VXFK� LQWHUQDO� FRQWUROV�� WKH� %DQN·V� FRUSRUDWH�
governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Bank to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party transactions 
GLVWLQJXLVKLQJ�EHWZHHQ�WUDQVDFWLRQV�FDUULHG�RXW�RQ�WHUPV�HTXLYDOHQW�WR�WKRVH�WKDW�SUHYDLO�LQ�DUP·V�OHQJWK�
WUDQVDFWLRQV�DQG�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZKLFK�DUH�QRW�H[HFXWHG�DW�DUP·V�OHQJWK�SULFH�DQG�UHFRUGLQJ�SURSHU�MXVWLILFDWLRQ 
for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this 
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether 
WKH�UHODWHG�SDUW\�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZHUH�XQGHUWDNHQ�DW�DUP·V�OHQJWK�SULFH�RU�QRW�

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement 
RI�&RPSOLDQFH�GRHV�QRW�DSSURSULDWHO\�UHIOHFW�WKH�%DQN·V�FRPSOLDQFH��LQ�DOO�PDWHULDO�UHVSHFWV��ZLWK�WKH�
best practices contained in the Code as applicable to the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2014.

 

 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
.DUDFKL��)HEUXDU\���������   Chartered Accountants
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M. SALEEM CHASHMAWALA
Head of Internal Audit

ASHAR HUSAIN
Chief Financial Officer

Karachi: February 17, 2015
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
We have audited the annexed unconsolidated statement of financial position of Bank AL Habib Limited 
(“the Bank”) as at 31 December 2014 and the related unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated 
statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash flow statement and unconsolidated statement of 
changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof (here-in-after referred to as the 'financial statements') 
for the year then ended, in which are incorporated the unaudited certified returns from the branches except for 
IRXUWHHQ�EUDQFKHV�ZKLFK�KDYH�EHHQ�DXGLWHG�E\�XV�DQG�WKUHH�EUDQFKHV�DXGLWHG�E\�WKH�DXGLWRUV·�DEURDG�DQG�ZH�
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
It is the responsibility of the Bank's Board of Directors to establish and maintain a system of internal control, 
and prepare and present the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and 
the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 (XLVII of 1984). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing as applicable in Pakistan. 
These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion 
and, after due verification, which in case of loans and advances covered more than sixty percent of the total 
loans and advances of the Bank, we report that:
(a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companies 

Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984), and the returns referred to above received from the branches have 
been found adequate for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion:
 i) the statement of financial position and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon 

have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962), 
and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984), and are in agreement with the books of 
account and are further in accordance with the accounting policies consistently applied;

 ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Bank's business; and 
 iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were 

in accordance with the objects of the Bank and the transactions of the Bank which have come to 
our notice have been within the powers of the Bank;

(c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated 
statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash flow statement and unconsolidated statement 
of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Banking Companies 
Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984), in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view of the state of the Bank's affairs as at 31 December 2014 and its 
true balance of profit, its cash flows and its changes in equity for the year then ended; and 

(d) in our opinion Zakat deductible at source, under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), 
was deducted by the Bank and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of that 
Ordinance.

The financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2013 were audited by another firm of 
chartered accountants who had expressed an unmodified opinion thereon dated 18 February 2014.

 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
.DUDFKL��)HEUXDU\����������  Chartered Accountants
 Muhammad Taufiq



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
$6�$7����'(&(0%(5����� 
   ���� 2013
 Note  �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
   

ASSETS
  
 Cash and balances with treasury banks 8   ����������  32,199,533
 Balances with other banks 9   ���������  2,662,874
 Lendings to financial institutions    –000  –000
 Investments - net 10   331,422,572  239,752,853
 Advances - net 11   181,356,817  167,579,360
 Operating fixed assets 12   13,898,321  11,795,334
 Deferred tax assets - net    –000  –000
 Other assets 13   13,694,264  6,736,964

       578,918,829  460,726,918
LIABILITIES 

 Bills payable 14   ���������  6,173,102
 Borrowings 15   78,455,452  29,480,026  
 Deposits and other accounts  16   �����������  386,160,762
 Sub-ordinated loans 17   ���������  6,485,900
 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease    –000  –000
 Deferred tax liabilities - net 18   ���������  1,651,438
 Other liabilities 19   6,916,978  5,493,639

       �����������  435,444,867

NET ASSETS    32,628,351  25,282,051

REPRESENTED BY :

 Share capital 20   11,114,254  10,103,868
 Reserves     ���������  7,569,407
 Unappropriated profit    ���������  5,554,207

       27,554,655  23,227,482
 Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 21   ���������  2,054,569

       32,628,351  25,282,051

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 22

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
)25�7+(�<($5�(1'('����'(&(0%(5�����
    ����          2013
   Note  �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
     
Mark-up / return / interest earned 24 ����������  37,255,749
Mark-up / return / interest expensed 25 ������������� (22,994,393 )
  Net mark-up / return / interest income  ����������� 14,261,356
Provision against non-performing loans and advances - net 11.6 ���������� (479,695 )
Provision for diminution in the value of investments  –��  –00
Bad debts written-off directly  –��� (96 )

    ���������� (479,791 )
  Net mark-up / return / interest income after provisions 18,511,322  13,781,565
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
 Fees, commission and brokerage income  ���������  1,894,163
 Dividend income  364,618  253,682
 Income from dealing in foreign currencies  854,437  675,489
 Gain on sale / redemption of securities - net 26 294  538,546 
 Unrealised gain / (loss) on revaluation of investments
   classified as held for trading  –��  –00
 Other income 27 637,546  546,088
  Total non mark-up / interest income  ���������  3,907,968
    ����������  17,689,533
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES
 Administrative expenses 28 (������������ (10,008,680 )
 Other provisions / write-offs 29 �������� (11,076 )
 Other charges 30 ���������� (156,802 )
  Total non mark-up / interest expenses  ������������� (10,176,558 )
 Extra-ordinary / unusual items  –��  –00
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  9,917,114  7,512,975
Taxation – Current  ������������ (2,450,671 ) 
   – Prior years     –��  190,885
  – Deferred  ��������� (98,640 )
    31 ������������ (2,358,426 )
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION   6,348,942   5,154,549

� � � � � �5XSHHV�
Basic and diluted earnings per share   32 5.71   4.64  

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

SYED HASAN ALI BUKHARI
Director
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
)25�7+(�<($5�(1'('����'(&(0%(5����� 
  ����  2013
 Note  �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
      

Profit after taxation for the year  6,348,942 5,154,549

Other comprehensive income

Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to
  profit or loss account

Exchange differences on translation of net
  investment in foreign branches  ��������� 72,171

Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss
  subsequently

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 35.6 48,215  (97,634)
Related tax charge  ��������� 34,172
    ������  (63,462 )
 
Comprehensive income transferred to equity  ��������� 5,163,258

Components of comprehensive income not reflected in equity

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of available for sale securities  2,796,294 (1,044,980 )
Related tax charge  ���������� 380,786 
    1,992,916  (664,194 )

Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets  ��������� –00 
Related tax charge  ���������� –00
    ���������� –00 

Total comprehensive income  ��������� 4,499,064

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

SYED HASAN ALI BUKHARI
Director

ALI RAZA D. HABIB
Chairman

ABBAS D. HABIB
Chief Executive and
Managing Director

SYED MAZHAR ABBAS
Director
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UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
)25�7+(�<($5�(1'('����'(&(0%(5�����
  ����          2013
 Note  �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
 Profit before taxation  9,917,114  7,512,975
 Less: Dividend income  (364,618 � (253,682 )
    9,552,496  7,259,293
 Adjustments for :   
  Depreciation  992,133  885,203
  Amortisation  ������  51,696
  Provision against non-performing loans and advances - net 552,989  479,695
  Gain on sale of operating fixed assets  ��������� (71,859 )
  Gain on sale / redemption of securities - net  ������ (538,546 )
  Charge for compensated absences  ������  42,673
  Provision against off-balance sheet items  9,249  11,076   
    1,592,818  859,938
    11,145,314  8,119,231
 �,QFUHDVH����GHFUHDVH�LQ�RSHUDWLQJ�DVVHWV
  Lendings to financial institutions  –00  993,981 
  Advances - net  ������������� (20,190,387 )
  Other assets - (excluding advance taxation)  ������������ (596,820 )
    (21,357,563 � (19,793,226 )
 ,QFUHDVH����GHFUHDVH��LQ�RSHUDWLQJ�OLDELOLWLHV
  Bills payable  ���������  915,911
  Borrowings  ����������  (40,142,029 )
  Deposits  ����������  45,767,891
  Other liabilities - (excluding provision for taxation)  894,535  (23,165 )
    �����������  6,518,608 
    ������������ (5,155,387 )
 Income tax paid  ������������ (2,560,982 )
 Net cash from / (used in) operating activities   ����������� (7,716,369 )
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 Net investments in securities  ������������� 9,156,878  
 Net investments in associates  –00  337,910 
 Dividend received  �������� 248,592 
 Investments in operating fixed assets  ������������ (1,538,179 )
 Sale proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets  98,158  79,629 
 Net cash (used in) / from investing activities  ������������� 8,284,830 
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 Repayments of sub-ordinated loans  ������������ (3,400 )
 Dividend paid  ������������ (2,983,881 )
 Net cash used in financing activities  ������������ (2,987,281 )
 Exchange differences on translation of net investment in foreign branches  ��������� 72,171
 Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  ���������� (2,346,649 )
 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  ����������  37,209,056
 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 33 37,879,971  34,862,407
The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

SYED HASAN ALI BUKHARI
Director

ALI RAZA D. HABIB
Chairman

ABBAS D. HABIB
Chief Executive and
Managing Director

SYED MAZHAR ABBAS
Director
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
)25�7+(�<($5�(1'('����'(&(0%(5�����

     Revenue Reserves
 Share Statutory Foreign Special General Unappro- Total
 Capital  Reserve Currency Reserve Reserve priated
   Translation   Profit
   Reserve  
 (Rupees in '����
Balance as at 01 January 2013 10,103,868  5,630,172  167,874  126,500  540,000  4,489,642  21,058,056

Total comprehensive income for the year
      ended 31 December 2013:  

Profit after tax –00  –00  –00  –00  –00  5,154,549  5,154,549

Other comprehensive income –00  –00  72,171  –00  –00  (63,462 ) 8,709
 
 –00  –00  72,171  –00  –00  5,091,087  5,163,258

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fixed
  assets - net of tax –00  –00  –00  –00  –00  37,328  37,328 

Transfer to statutory reserve –00  1,032,690  –00  –00  –00  (1,032,690 ) –00  
0
Transaction with owners, recorded
  directly in equity:

Cash dividend (Rs. 3 per share) –00  –00  –00  –00  –00  (3,031,160 ) (3,031,160 )

Balance as at 31 December 2013 10,103,868  6,662,862  240,045  126,500  540,000  5,554,207   23,227,482 

Total comprehensive income for the year
  ended 31 December 2014:

Profit after tax –00  –00  –00  –00  –00  6,348,942  6,348,942

Other comprehensive income –00  –00  (78,284 ) –00  –00  31,340  (46,944 )

 –00  –00  (78,284 ) –00  –00  6,380,282  6,301,998

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of
  fixed assets - net of tax –00  –00  –00  –00  –00  45,947  45,947

Transfer to statutory reserve –00  1,269,788  –00  –00  –00  (1,269,788 ) –00 

Transactions with owners, recorded
  directly in equity:

Cash divided (Rs. 2 per share) –00  –00  –00  –00  –00  (2,020,772 )  (2,020,772 ) 

Issue of bonus shares in the ratio of 10
  shares for 100 shares held 1,010,386  –00  –00  –00  –00  (1,010,386 )  –00 

Balance as at 31 December 2014 11,114,254  7,932,650  161,761  126,500  540,000  7,679,490  27,554,655

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

SYED HASAN ALI BUKHARI
Director

ALI RAZA D. HABIB
Chairman

ABBAS D. HABIB
Chief Executive and
Managing Director

SYED MAZHAR ABBAS
Director



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
)25�7+(�<($5�(1'('����'(&(0%(5�����

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
 Bank AL Habib Limited (the Bank) is a banking company incorporated in Pakistan on 15 October 

1991 as a public limited company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 having its registered office 
at 126-C, Old Bahawalpur Road, Multan with principal place of business in Karachi. Its shares are 
listed on all the Stock Exchanges in Pakistan. It is a scheduled bank principally engaged in the 
business of commercial banking with a network of 351 branches (2013: 320 branches), 108 
sub-branches (2013: 96 sub-branches) and 03 representative offices (2013: 03 representative 
offices).The branch network of the Bank includes 03 overseas branches (2013: 01 overseas branch) 
and 17 Islamic Banking branches (2013: 17 Islamic Banking branches).

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
2.1 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of 

financial statements prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 04, dated 
17 February 2006.

2.2 In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the banking 
system to Islamic modes, SBP has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of 
trade-related modes of financing includes purchase of goods by banks from customers and immediate 
resale to them at appropriate mark-up in price on deferred payment basis. The purchase and resale 
arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these unconsolidated financial statements as 
such, but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilised and the appropriate portion of mark-up 
thereon. However, murabaha financing arrangements undertaken by the Islamic Banking branches 
are accounted for as a purchase and sale transaction of the underlying goods in these unconsolidated 
financial statements in accordance with the accounting policies of the Bank.

2.3 The financial results of the Islamic Banking branches have been consolidated in these unconsolidated 
financial statements for reporting purposes, after eliminating material inter-branch transactions / 
balances. Key financial information of the Islamic Banking branches is disclosed in note 43.

2.4 These are separate financial statements of the Bank in which investments in subsidiaries and 
associates are reported on the basis of direct equity interest and are not consolidated or accounted 
for by using equity method of accounting.

3. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
3.1 These unconsolidated financial statements of the Bank have been prepared, in accordance with 

approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the requirements 
of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and regulations / directives 
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and SBP. Wherever the 
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or regulations 
/ directives issued by SECP and SBP differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS, the requirements of 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements of the 
said regulations / directives shall prevail.

3.2 SBP vide BSD Circular No. 10, dated 26 August 2002 has deferred the applicability of International 
Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement" and IAS 40, 
"Investment Property" for banking companies till further instructions. Further, according to the 
notification of SECP dated 28 April 2008, IFRS - 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures" has not been 
made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered 
in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements. However, investments have been 
classified and valued in accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by SBP.
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4. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 

except for certain investments, land and buildings and derivative financial instruments which are 
revalued as referred to in notes 5.4, 5.6 and 5.15 below.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
5.1 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are 

consistent with those of the previous financial year.
5.2 Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents as referred to in the cash flow statement comprises cash and balances 

with treasury banks and balances with other banks less overdrawn nostros accounts.
5.3 Repurchase / resale agreements
 The Bank enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified 

period of time. These are recorded as under:
 Sale under repurchase obligation
 Securities sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) 

continue to be recognised in the statement of financial position and are measured in accordance 
with accounting policies for investments. Amounts received under these agreements are recorded 
as repurchase agreement borrowings. The difference between sale and repurchase price is amortised 
as expense over the term of the repo agreement.

 Purchase under resale obligation
 Securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse 

repos) are not recognised in the statement of financial position. Amounts paid under these arrangements 
are included in reverse repurchase agreement lendings. The difference between purchase and resale 
price is accrued as income over the term of the reverse repo agreement.

5.4 Investments
 Investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment, if any. 

Other investments are classified as follows:
 Held for trading
 These are investments acquired principally for the purpose of generating profits from short-term 

IOXFWXDWLRQV�LQ�SULFH�RU�GHDOHU·V�PDUJLQ�RU�DUH�VHFXULWLHV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�D�SRUWIROLR�LQ�ZKLFK�D�SDWWHUQ�RI�
short - term trading exists.

 Held to maturity
 These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities which the Bank has 

the intention and ability to hold till maturity.
 Available for sale
 These are investments which do not fall under the held for trading and held to maturity categories.
 All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by 

regulations or market convention are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which 
the Bank commits to purchase or sell the investments.
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 Investments (other than held for trading) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction cost 
associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially measured at 
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. 

 After initial recognition, quoted securities, other than those classified as held to maturity, are carried 
at market value. Unquoted securities are valued at cost less impairment in value, if any. Held to 
maturity securities are carried at amortised cost.

 Surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of quoted securities which are classified as available for sale 
investments is taken to a separate account which is shown in the statement of financial position 
below equity. The surplus / (deficit) arising on these securities is taken to the profit and loss account 
when actually realised upon disposal or in case of impairment of securities. The unrealised surplus 
/ (deficit) arising on revaluation of quoted securities which are classified as held for trading is taken 
to the profit and loss account. 

 Provision for diminution in the values of securities (except for debt securities) is made after considering 
impairment, if any, in their value and is taken to profit and loss account. Impairment is booked when 
there is an objective evidence of significant or prolonged decline in the value of such securities. 
Provision for impairment against debt securities is made in accordance with the requirements of the 
Prudential Regulations of SBP.  In case of unquoted equity securities, the breakup value of the 
security should be considered to determine impairment amount.

 Premium or discount on debt securities classified as available for sale and held to maturity is amortised 
using effective interest method and taken to the profit and loss account.

5.5 Advances
 Loans and advances
 These are stated net of provisions for non-performing advances. Provision for non-performing 

advances is determined in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations and is 
charged to the profit and loss account. The Bank also maintains general provision in addition to the 
requirements of the Prudential Regulations on the basis of the management's risk assessment. 
Advances are written off when there are no realistic prospects of recovery.

 Finance lease receivables
 Leases where the Bank transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of 

an asset to the lessee are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount 
equal to the present value of the lease payments including any guaranteed residual value. 

 Ijarah finance
 In accordance with the requirements of IFAS 2 'Ijarah', assets leased out under ijarah arrangements 

on or after 01 January 2009 are stated at cost less depreciation and impairment, if any and included 
under "Advances". Such assets are depreciated over the terms of Ijarah contracts. Ijarah arrangements 
executed before the above referred date are accounted for as finance lease.

 Murabaha
 Funds disbursed under murabaha arrangements for purchase of goods are recorded as advance 

for murabaha. On culmination of murabaha i.e. sale of goods to customers, murabaha receivables 
are recorded at the sale price net of deferred income. Goods purchased but remaining unsold at the 
reporting date are recorded as inventories.

20
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5.6 Operating fixed assets
 Tangible operating assets - owned
 Land is measured at cost at the time of initial recognition and is subsequently carried at revalued 

amount. Buildings are initially measured at cost and upon revaluation, are carried at revalued amount 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. All other operating fixed assets are stated at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is charged to profit and loss 
account on straight line basis so as to charge the assets over their expected useful lives at the rates 
specified in note 12.2. The depreciation charge is calculated after taking into account residual value, 
if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed annually and adjusted, 
if appropriate. Depreciation is charged on prorata basis, i.e., full month charge in the month of 
purchase and no charge in the month of disposal.

 Land and buildings are revalued by independent professionally qualified valuers with sufficient 
regularity to ensure that the net carrying amount does not differ materially from the fair value. The 
surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the “surplus on revaluation of assets" 
account shown below equity. The Bank has adopted the following accounting treatment of depreciation 
on revalued assets, keeping in view the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and SECP's 
SRO 45(1)/2003 dated 13 January 2003:

 - depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned 
to such assets on revaluation and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and 
loss account; and

 - an amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred 
from surplus on revaluation of assets to unappropriated profit through statement of changes in 
equity to record realisation of surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for 
the year.

� 6XEVHTXHQW�FRVWV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�DVVHW·V�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RU�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�D�VHSDUDWH�DVVHW��
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement 
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

 Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets are included in income currently, except that the related 
surplus on revaluation of land and buildings (net of deferred tax) is transferred directly to unappropriated 
profit.

 Tangible operating assets - leased
 Leases where the Bank assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified 

as finance leases. Assets subject to finance lease are accounted for by recording the assets and 
related liability. These are stated at lower of fair value and the present value of minimum lease 
payments at the inception of lease less accumulated depreciation. Financial charges are allocated 
over the period of lease term so as to provide a constant periodic rate of financial charge on the 
outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged on the basis similar to the owned assets.

 Intangible assets
 Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and 

impairment, if any. Amortisation is based on straight line method by taking into consideration the 
estimated useful life of assets at the rates specified in note 12.3. Intangible assets are amortised on 
prorata basis i.e. full month amortisation in the month of purchase and no amortisation in the month 
of disposal.
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 Capital work in progress 
 Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any.
 Impairment
 The carrying values of fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 

circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists 
and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the fixed assets are 
written down to their recoverable amounts.

 The resulting impairment loss is taken to profit and loss account except for impairment loss on 
revalued assets which is adjusted against the related revaluation surplus to the extent that the 
impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on revaluation of assets.

5.7 Employees' benefits
 Defined benefit plan
 The Bank operates an approved gratuity fund for all its confirmed employees, which is administered 

by the Trustees. The Bank's costs and contributions are determined based on actuarial valuation 
carried out at each year end using Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Method. All actuarial gains and 
losses are recognised in 'other comprehensive income' as they occur  and are not reclassified to 
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

 Defined contribution plan
 The Bank operates an approved provident fund scheme for all its regular permanent employees, 

administered by the Trustees. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Bank and its 
employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of the basic salary in accordance with the terms of the 
scheme. 

 Compensated absences
 The Bank accounts for all accumulating compensated absences when employees render service 

that increases their entitlement to future compensated absences. The liability is determined based 
on actuarial valuation carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

5.8 Provisions against liabilities
 These are recognised when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 

it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimate.

5.9 Provisions against off-balance sheet obligations
 The Bank, in the ordinary course of business, issues letters of credit, acceptances, guarantees, bid 

bonds, performance bonds etc. The commission against such contracts is recognised in the profit 
and loss account under "fees, commission and brokerage income" over the period of contracts. The 
Bank's liability under such contracts is measured at the higher of the amount representing unearned 
commission income at the reporting date and the best estimate of the amount expected to settle any 
financial obligation arising under such contracts.

����� 6XERUGLQDWHG�ORDQV

 Subordinated loans are initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up accrued on 
subordinated loans is recognised separately as part of other liabilities and is charged to the profit 
and loss account over the period on an accrual basis.
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5.11 Revenue recognition
 (a) Mark-up / interest / return on advances and investments is recognised on accrual basis, except 

in case of advances classified under the Prudential Regulations on which mark-up is recognised 
on receipt basis. Mark-up / interest / return on rescheduled / restructured loans and advances 
and investments is recognised as permitted by the regulations of SBP. 

 (b) Financing method is used in accounting for income from lease financing. Under this method, 
the unrealised lease income is deferred and taken to income over the term of the lease period 
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding net investment in lease. 
Gain / loss on termination of lease contracts, front end fee and other lease income are recognised 
as income on receipt basis. 

 (c) The rentals from ijarah are recognised as income over the term of the contract net of depreciation 
expense relating to the ijarah assets.

 (d) Income from murabaha is accounted for on a time proportionate basis over the period of 
murabaha transaction.

 (e) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive is established.
 (f) Gain or loss on sale of investments are recognised in profit and loss account in the year in 

which they arise.
 (g) Fee, commission and brokerage income are recognised as services are performed.
5.12 Taxation
 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit 

and loss account except to the extent that it relates to the items recognised directly in equity or 
surplus on revaluation of assets, in which case it is recognised in equity or surplus on revaluation of 
assets.

 Current
 Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 

substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date and any adjustments to the tax 
payable in respect of previous years. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to taxation authorities.

 Deferred
 Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the statement of financial position date 

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilised. 

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except in respect of 
taxable temporary differences associated with investment in foreign operations, when the timing of 
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

 The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets are reviewed at each statement of financial 
position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit or 
taxable temporary differences will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset 
to be utilised. 
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 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.

5.13 Currency translation
 Functional and presentation currency
 These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Bank's functional currency 

and presentation currency.
 Transactions and balances in foreign currencies
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on 

the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak 
Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates 
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated using exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange gains 
or losses are included in income currently.

 Foreign operations
 The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to Pak Rupees at exchange rates 

prevailing at the reporting date. The income and expense of foreign operations are translated at rate 
of exchange prevailing during the year. Exchange gain or loss on such translation is taken to equity 
through statement of other comprehensive income under "foreign currency translation reserve".

 Commitments
 Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are translated at forward rates 

applicable to their respective maturities.
5.14 Financial instruments
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Bank becomes a party 

to the contractual provision of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual 
right to future cash flows from the asset expires or is transferred along with the risk and reward of 
ownership of the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when obligation is discharged, cancelled 
or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial asset and liability is recognised in the 
profit and loss account of the current period.

5.15 Derivative financial instruments
 Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at their fair value on the date on which the 

derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. All derivative 
financial instruments are carried as asset when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value 
is negative. Any change in the value of derivative financial instruments is taken to the profit and loss 
account.

5.16 Off-setting
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are only off - set and the net amount is reported in the financial 

statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Bank 
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
Income and expense items of such assets and liabilities are also off-set and the net amount is 
reported in the financial statements.

5.17 Dividends and appropriations to reserves
 Dividends and appropriations to reserves are recognised in the year in which these are approved, 

except appropriations required by the law which are recorded in the period to which they pertain.
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5.18 Segment reporting
 A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged in providing products and 

services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic 
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risk and rewards that are different from 
those of other segments. The segment reporting format has been determined and prepared in 
conformity with the format of financial statements and guidelines, prescribed by SBP vide BSD 
Circular No.04, dated, 17 February 2006. The Bank's primary format of reporting is based on business 
segments.

5.18.1 Business segments
 Retail banking
 It consists of retail lending, deposits and banking services to private individuals and small businesses. 

The retail banking activities include provision of banking and other financial services, such as current 
and savings accounts, credit cards, consumer banking products etc., to individual customers, small 
merchants and SMEs.

 Commercial banking
 Commercial banking represents provision of banking services including treasury and international 

trade related activities to large corporate customers, multinational companies, government and semi 
government departments and institutions and SMEs treated as corporate under the Prudential 
Regulations.

5.18.2 Geographical segments
 The Bank operates in four geographic regions, being:
 - Pakistan       
 - Middle East       
 - Asia Pacific       
 - Africa
5.19 Earnings per share
 The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 

the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding during the period / year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the 
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any. There were no 
convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue at 31 December 2014.

����� &OLHQWV
�DVVHWV
 The Bank provides services that result in the holding of assets on behalf of its clients. Such assets 

are not reported in the financial statements, as they are not the assets of the Bank.
6. ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
 The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of 
which forms the basis of making judgment about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not 
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, 
or in period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The 
estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements are in respect of 
the following:
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  Note

 Classification of investments and provision for diminution in the value of investments 5.4 & 10
 Provision against non - performing advances 5.5 & 11
 Useful lives of assets and methods of depreciation and amortisation 5.6 & 12
 Employees' benefits 5.7,19 & 35
 Provisions against off - balance sheet obligations 5.9 & 19
 Current and deferred taxation 5.12 & 18
7. STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED ACCOUNTING 

STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
 The following standards, amendments and interpretations of Approved Accounting Standards will 

be effective for accounting periods on or after 01 January 2015:
 - Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” Employee contributions – a practical approach 

(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014). The practical expedient addresses 
an issue that arose when amendments were made in 2011 to the previous pension accounting 
requirements. The amendments introduce a relief that will reduce the complexity and burden of 
accounting for certain contributions from employees or third parties. The amendments are relevant 
only to defined benefit plans that involve contributions from employees or third parties meeting 
certain criteria.

 - Amendments to IAS 38 Intangible Assets and IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016) introduce severe restrictions on the use 
of revenue-based amortization for intangible assets and explicitly state that revenue-based 
methods of depreciation cannot be used for property, plant and equipment. The rebuttable 
presumption that the use of revenue-based amortisation methods for intangible assets is 
inappropriate can be overcome only when revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits 
RI�WKH�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHW�DUH�¶KLJKO\�FRUUHODWHG·��RU�ZKHQ�WKH�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHW� LV�H[SUHVVHG�DV�D�
PHDVXUH�RI�UHYHQXH��7KH�DPHQGPHQWV�DUH�QRW�OLNHO\�WR�KDYH�DQ�LPSDFW�RQ�%DQN·V�XQFRQVROLGDWHG 
financial statements.

� �� ,)56����¶&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV·�²��HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU�
��-DQXDU\�������UHSODFHV�WKH�SDUW�RI�,$6����¶&RQVROLGDWHG�DQG�6HSDUDWH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��
IFRS 10 introduces a new approach to determining which investees should be consolidated. The 
single model to be applied in the control analysis requires that an investor controls an investee 
when the investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the 
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. IFRS 10 
KDV�PDGH�FRQVHTXHQWLDO�FKDQJHV�WR�,$6����ZKLFK�LV�QRZ�FDOOHG�¶6HSDUDWH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV·�
and will deal with only separate financial statements. Certain further amendments have been 
made to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 clarifying the requirements relating to accounting for 
investment entities and would be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2016. 

� �� ,)56����¶-RLQW�$UUDQJHPHQWV·��HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\�������
UHSODFHV�,$6����¶,QWHUHVWV�LQ�-RLQW�9HQWXUHV·��)LUVWO\��LW�FDUYHV�RXW��IURP�,$6����MRLQWO\�FRQWUROOHG�
entities, those cases in which although there is a separate vehicle, that separation is ineffective 
in certain ways. These arrangements are treated similarly to jointly controlled assets/operations 
under IAS 31 and are now ventures, are stripped of the free choice of using the equity method 
or proportionate consolidation; they must now always use the equity method. IFRS 11 has also 
PDGH�FRQVHTXHQWLDO�FKDQJHV�LQ�,$6����ZKLFK�KDV�QRZ�EHHQ�QDPHG�¶,QYHVWPHQW�LQ�$VVRFLDWHV�
DQG�-RLQW�9HQWXUHV·��7KH�DPHQGPHQWV�UHTXLULQJ�EXVLQHVV�FRPELQDWLRQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�WR�EH�DSSOLHG�
to acquisitions of interests in a joint operation that constitutes a business are effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.  The adoption of this standard is not like to have 
DQ�LPSDFW�RQ�%DQN·V�XQFRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
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� �� ,)56����¶'LVFORVXUH�RI�,QWHUHVW�LQ�2WKHU�(QWLWLHV·��HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�
after 1 January 2015) combines the disclosure requirements for entities that have interests in 
subsidiaries, joint arrangements (i.e. joint operations or joint ventures), associates and/or 
unconsolidated structured entities, into one place. The adoption of this standard is not like to 
KDYH�DQ�LPSDFW�RQ�%DQN·V�XQFRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

� �� ,)56����¶)DLU�9DOXH�0HDVXUHPHQW·�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\�
2015) defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and sets out disclosure 
requirements for fair value measurements. IFRS 13 explains how to measure fair value when it 
is required by other IFRSs. It does not introduce new fair value measurements, nor does it 
eliminate the practicability exceptions to fair value measurements that currently exist in certain 
VWDQGDUGV��7KH�DGRSWLRQ�RI�WKLV�VWDQGDUG�LV�QRW�OLNH�WR�KDYH�DQ�LPSDFW�RQ�%DQN·V�XQFRQVROLGDWHG�
financial statements.

� �� $PHQGPHQW�WR�,$6����¶6HSDUDWH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQW·��HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�
or after 1 January 2016). The amendments to IAS 27 will allow entities to use the equity method 
to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial 
statements.

 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments 
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) [effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016]. The 
main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction 
involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognised 
when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these assets are 
housed in a subsidiary. 

 - Annual Improvements 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 cycles (most amendments will apply prospectively 
for annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2014). The new cycle of improvements contain 
amendments to the following standards:

� �� ,)56���¶6KDUH�EDVHG�3D\PHQW·��,)56���KDV�EHHQ�DPHQGHG�WR�FODULI\�WKH�GHILQLWLRQ�RI�¶YHVWLQJ�
FRQGLWLRQ·�E\�VHSDUDWHO\�GHILQLQJ�¶SHUIRUPDQFH�FRQGLWLRQ·�DQG�¶VHUYLFH�FRQGLWLRQ·�

� �� ,)56���¶%XVLQHVV�&RPELQDWLRQV·��7KHVH�DPHQGPHQWV�FODULI\�WKH�FODVVLILFDWLRQ�DQG�PHDVXUHPHQW�
of contingent consideration in a business combination.

 - ,)56���¶2SHUDWLQJ�6HJPHQWV·�KDV�EHHQ�DPHQGHG�WR�H[SOLFLWO\�UHTXLUH�WKH�GLVFORVXUH�RI�MXGJPHQWV 
made by management in applying the aggregation criteria.

� �� $PHQGPHQWV� WR� ,$6���·3URSHUW\�� SODQW� DQG�HTXLSPHQW·� DQG� ,$6���� ¶,QWDQJLEOH�$VVHWV·��7KH�
amendments clarify the requirements of the revaluation model in IAS 16 and IAS 38, recognising 
that the restatement of accumulated depreciation (amortisation) is not always proportionate to 
the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset.

� �� ,$6���� ¶5HODWHG�3DUW\�'LVFORVXUH·��7KH�GHILQLWLRQ�RI� UHODWHG�SDUW\� LV� H[WHQGHG� WR� LQFOXGH�D�
management entity that provides key management personnel services to the reporting entity, 
either directly or through a group entity.

� �� ,$6����¶,QYHVWPHQW�3URSHUW\·��,$6����KDV�EHHQ�DPHQGHG�WR�FODULI\�WKDW�DQ�HQWLW\�VKRXOG��DVVHVV�
whether an acquired property is an investment property under IAS 40 and perform a separate 
assessment under IFRS 3 to determine whether the acquisition of the investment property.

 - Annual Improvements 2012-2014 cycles (amendments are effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2016). The new cycle of improvements contain amendments to the following 
standards:
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 - IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. IFRS 5 is amended to 
clarify that if an entity changes the method of disposal of an asset (or disposal group) i.e. reclassifies 
an asset from held for distribution to owners to held for sale or vice versa without any time lag, 
then such change in classification is considered as continuation of the original plan of disposal 
and if an entity determines that an asset (or disposal group) no longer meets the criteria to be 
classified as held for distribution, then it ceases held for distribution accounting in the same way 
as it would cease held for sale accounting.

� �� ,)56��� ¶)LQDQFLDO� ,QVWUXPHQWV��'LVFORVXUHV·�� ,)56��� LV� DPHQGHG� WR� FODULI\�ZKHQ� VHUYLFLQJ�
arrangements are in the scope of its disclosure requirements on continuing involvement in 
transferred financial assets in cases when they are derecognized in their entirety. IFRS 7 is also 
DPHQGHG�WR�FODULI\�WKDW�DGGLWLRQDO�GLVFORVXUHV�UHTXLUHG�E\�¶'LVFORVXUHV��2IIVHWWLQJ�)LQDQFLDO�$VVHWV 
DQG�)LQDQFLDO�/LDELOLWLHV��$PHQGPHQWV� WR� ,)56��·�DUH�QRW�VSHFLILFDOO\� UHTXLUHG� IRU� LQFOXVLRQ� LQ�
condensed interim financial statements for all interim periods. 

� �� ,$6����¶(PSOR\HH�%HQHILWV·��,$6����LV�DPHQGHG�WR�FODULI\�WKDW�KLJK�TXDOLW\�FRUSRUDWH�ERQGV�RU�
government bonds used in determining the discount rate should be issued in the same currency 
in which the benefits are to be paid.

� �� ,$6����¶,QWHULP�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ·��,$6����LV�DPHQGHG�WR�FODULI\�WKDW�FHUWDLQ�GLVFORVXUHV��LI�WKH\�
are not included in the notes to interim financial statements and disclosed elsewhere should be 
cross referred.   

  ����  2013
 Note  �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
8. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
 In hand
  Local currency   7,299,888 5,654,696
  Foreign currencies  915,477 1,921,134
  National prize bonds  ������ 28,242
     ��������� 7,604,072
 In transit 
  Local currency  ������ 27,120
  Foreign currencies  239,827 55,105
     252,327 82,225
 With SBP in: 
  Local currency current accounts 8.1 15,325,359 14,459,173
  Local currency current account-Islamic Banking 8.1 342,928 238,361
  Foreign currency deposit accounts   
   Cash reserve account 8.1 1,592,657 1,679,927
   Cash reserve / special cash reserve account
     -Islamic Banking   24,317 16,220
   Special cash reserve account 8.1 4,777,971 5,039,782
   Local US Dollar collection account 8.2 19,588 16,488
     ���������� 21,449,951
 With National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) in:
  Local currency current accounts  3,618,592 3,063,285
     ���������� 32,199,533
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8.1 These deposits and reserves are maintained by the Bank to comply with the statutory requirements.
 
8.2 This represents US Dollar collection account maintained with SBP.

  ����  2013
 Note  �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
9. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

 In Pakistan
  Current accounts  ��������� 893,649
  Deposit accounts 9.1 ������� –00
  Savings accounts 9.2 996,298 4,177

     ��������� 897,826

 Outside Pakistan
  Current accounts  ��������� 1,588,427
  Deposit accounts 9.3 ������� 176,621
     1,659,842 1,765,048

     ��������� 2,662,874

9.1 These carry expected profit rates of 8% to 8.50% (2013: Nil%) per annum. 

9.2 These carry expected profit rates of 5% to  7.39% (2013: 5%) per annum. 

9.3 These carry interest rates upto 0.05% to 0.35% (2013: 0.05% to 0.35%) per annum. 



1��� ,19(670(176

     ����   2013
      
    Held by Given as Total Held by Given as Total 
1��� Investments by type Bank Collateral  Bank Collateral
    Note   �5XSHHV�LQ�
�����
 Available for Sale Securities 10.5
  Market Treasury Bills    ������������� ������������ �����������  101,159,729  10,933,027  112,092,756
  Pakistan Investment Bonds    ������������ ²���� ����������  12,412,522  –00  12,412,522
  Foreign Currency Bonds    2,289,589  –��  2,289,589  1,782,395  –00  1,782,395
  Sukuk Bonds    4,833,911  –��  4,833,911  3,300,425  –00  3,300,425
  Fully paid-up ordinary shares - Listed    ����������� ²���� ���������  2,528,063  –00  2,528,063
  Fully paid-up ordinary shares - Unlisted    �������� ²���� ������  39,570  –00  39,570
  Term finance certificates - Listed    321,695  –00  321,695  544,625  –00  544,625
  Term finance certificates - Unlisted    ����������� ²���� ���������  2,532,720  –00  2,532,720
  Units of mutual funds    1,551,763  –��  1,551,763  1,175,000  –00  1,175,000

       ������������� ������������ ������������ 125,475,049  10,933,027  136,408,076

 Held to Maturity Securities 10.2
  Market Treasury Bills    –��� –��� –��� 83,858,220  –00  83,858,220
  Pakistan Investment Bonds    115,678,511  –��� 115,678,511  17,654,496  –00  17,654,496
    Sukuk Bonds    ��������� –���� �������  211,342  –00  211,342
  Term finance certificates - Listed    86,826  –00  86,826  95,177  –00  95,177
  Foreign Currency Bonds    ��������� ²���� �������� –00  –00  –��

       117,437,297  –��  117,437,297  101,819,235  –00  101,819,235

 Associates  10.12
    Habib Sugar Mills Limited    ��������� –���� �������  180,977  –00  180,977
  Habib Asset Management Limited    �������� –���� ������  60,000  –00  60,000
  First Habib Income Fund    ��������� –���� �������  250,000  –00  250,000
  First Habib Stock Fund    �������� –���� ������� 50,000  –00  50,000
  First Habib Cash Fund    ��������� –���� �������  300,000  –00  300,000
  First Habib Islamic Balanced Fund    �������� –���� ������  25,000  –00  25,000

       865,977  –��  865,977  865,977  –00  865,977

 Subsidiaries  10.13 
  AL Habib Capital Markets (Pvt.) Ltd.    ��������� –���� �������  200,000  –00  200,000
  AL Habib Credit & Finance
    (Hong Kong) Limited    127  –��� 127  –��� –00  –���

       ��������� –���� �������  200,000  –00  200,000

  Investments at cost    271,912,973  ����������  328,166,713  228,360,261  10,933,027  239,293,288
  Less: Provision for diminution in the
         value of investments  10.4   ��������� –���� �������� (5,700 ) –00  (5,700 )

  ,QYHVWPHQWV��QHW�RI�SURYLVLRQV�    ������������� ������������ ������������ 228,354,561  10,933,027  239,287,588

  Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of  
    available for sale investments - net 21.2   ����������� �������� ���������  474,019  (8,754 ) 465,265

  Total Investments    ������������� ������������ �����������  228,828,580  10,924,273  239,752,853

1��� The aggregate market value of held to maturity securities as at 31 December 2014 amounted to Rs. 125,053 million (2013: Rs. 101,709 million).
30
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  ����  2013
 Note  �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
1��� Investments by segment
 Federal Government Securities  
   Market Treasury Bills 10.6 158,228,667  195,950,976
   Pakistan Investment Bonds 10.7 152,181,587  30,067,018
   Foreign Currency Bonds  10.10 ���������  1,459,509
   Sukuk Bonds 10.8 3,219,971  1,000,000
    �����������  228,477,503
 
 Fully paid-up ordinary shares
   Listed companies  10.5.5 ���������  2,528,063    
   Unlisted companies 10.11 ������  39,570
     ���������  2,567,633
 
 Term finance certificates, sukuks and bonds

  Term Finance Certificates 
    Term finance certificates - Listed  �������  639,802
    Term finance certificates - Unlisted  ���������  2,532,720
 
    10.9 3,241,141  3,172,522
  Sukuk Bonds 10.8 2,314,987  2,511,767
  Foreign Currency Bonds 10.10 �������  322,886
 
    ���������  6,007,175

 Others
   Units of mutual funds 10.5.9 1,551,763  1,175,000
   Associates 10.12 865,977  865,977
   Subsidiaries 10.13 �������  200,000
 
    2,617,867  2,240,977

 Investments at cost  328,166,713  239,293,288

 Less: Provision for diminution in the
  value of investments 10.4 �������� (5,700 )
 
 ,QYHVWPHQWV��QHW�RI�SURYLVLRQV�  �����������  239,287,588
 Surplus on revaluation of available
  for sale securities - net 21.2 3,261,559  465,265
 Total Investments  331,422,572  239,752,853
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  ����  2013
 Note  �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
1��� Particulars of provision for diminution in the
  value of investments

 Available for sale investments: 10.4.1 �����  5,700

1����� Particulars of provision in respect of type and segment

 Available for sale investments:

 Unlisted company  �����  5,700

1��� Quality of available for sale securities    

 Name of security Face  ���� 2013 ���� 2013 ���� 2013
  value  Rating* Cost Carrying value
  Rs. / USD  �5XSHHV�LQ�
���� 
1����� Market Treasury Bills  –    Unrated Unrated 158,228,667  112,092,756  ����������� 111,850,735 
1����� Pakistan Investment Bonds  –    Unrated Unrated ���������� 12,412,522 ���������� 12,727,568 

1����� Foreign Currency Bonds
  Government of Pakistan Bonds   USD 100    B- B- 945,547 945,156   ��������� 1,028,969
  Government of Pakistan Bonds USD 100   B- B- ������� 514,353    613,176  542,241
  Government of Pakistan Bonds USD 100   B- _ 252,611 –00    256,453  –00
  Government of Sri Lanka Bonds USD 100   B+ B+ ������� 107,852    �������  109,450
  Bank of Ceylon USD 100 B+ BB- ������� 215,034  ������� 212,275
  Bank of Ceylon USD 100 B+ BB- ������� –00  ������� –00
     2,289,589 1,782,395 ���������  1,892,935

 1����� Sukuk Bonds           
 ���4 2013 Name of Security
 No. of certificates
 ������� 170,000 Engro Foods Limited  Rs.5,000  A+  A+ ������� 850,000 ������� 850,000 
 –00 10,000 Government of Pakistan Ijarah Sukuk  VIII Rs. 100,000  – Unrated –00 1,000,000 –00  1,005,400 
 ������ –00 Government of Pakistan Ijarah Sukuk  XII Rs. 5,000  Unrated _ ��������� –00 ���������  –00 
 ������� –00 Government of Pakistan Ijarah Sukuk  XV Rs. 5,000  Unrated _ ��������� –00 ��������� –00 
 ������ –00 Government of Pakistan Sukuk USD 100  B- _ ������� –00 496,558  –00 
 ��������� 1,087,849 Liberty Power Tech Limited Rs.1,000  A+  A+ �������� 950,425 �������  950,425 
 ������� 150,000 WAPDA Second Sukuk Company Limited Rs.5,000  Unrated Unrated ������� 500,000 �������  500,000 
        4,833,911 3,300,425 4,793,761 3,305,825 
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1����� Fully paid-up ordinary shares - Listed
  ���� 2013 Name of security )DFH�� ���� 2013 ���� 2013 ���� 2013
 No. of shares value  Rating* Cost Carrying value
  Rs.  �5XSHHV�LQ�
����

 ������� 661,000 Allied Bank Limited Rs.10 AA+ AA+ ������ 42,503 82,584 59,490 
 ������� 115,690 Attock Petroleum Limited Rs.10 Unrated Unrated  ������  47,653 79,421 57,809  
  ��������� 3,154,500 Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited Rs.10 Unrated Unrated 126,318 126,318 142,615 138,199 
 ��������� 3,224,800 Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited Rs.10 Unrated Unrated ������� 364,507 377,656  361,048 
 ������� 389,000 First Habib Modarba Rs.5 AA+ AA+ ����� 3,449 ����� 3,376 
 ���������� 10,102,415 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Rs.10 AA+ AA+ 197,587 197,587 ������� 253,267 
 ��������� 7,627,500 Hub Power Company Limited Rs.10 AA+ AA+ 466,114 466,114 597,691 463,142  
 52,862 52,862 International Industries Limited Rs.10 Unrated Unrated  357 357 3,295 2,451   
 5,623,556 5,623,556 International Steels Limited Rs.10 Unrated Unrated 89,228 89,228 �������  96,838 
  ��������� 3,960,000 Kot Addu Power Company Limited Rs.10 AA+ AA+  ������� 242,202 ������� 244,530   
 ��������� 1,594,500 Lalpir Power Limited Rs.10 AA AA 37,626 37,626 47,676 31,730 
 ������� 127,400 MCB Bank Limited Rs.10 AAA AAA ������ 34,079 ������� 35,821 
 ������� 119,067 Meezan Bank Limited Rs.10 AA AA-  ����� 3,028 5,596 4,689   
 ���������� 3,096,000 Nishat Chunian Power Limited Rs.10 A+ A+ 99,828  99,828 �������  107,679 
  ������ 17,500 Packages Limited Rs.10 AA AA 1,429 1,429 ������ 4,771   
 ��������� 4,407,500 Pakgen Power Limited Rs.10 AA AA ������� 108,544 119,135 95,687 
 ������� 305,075 Pakistan Oilfields Limited Rs.10 Unrated Unrated 297,555 148,116 222,713 151,839 
 ��������� 740,741 Pakistan Petroleum Limited Rs.10 Unrated Unrated  297,841 150,003 248,353 158,489   
 ������� 595,000 Pakistan State Oil Company Limited Rs.10 AA+ AA+ �������  195,527 ������� 197,671 
  ������ 18,000 Shell Pakistan Limited Rs.10 Unrated Unrated 2,189 2,189 5,825 3,428 
 ���������� 8,440,450 Soneri Bank Limited Rs.10 AA- AA-  ������� 64,709 142,787 92,255   
 ��������� 2,693,000 Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited Rs.10 AAA AAA ������  49,737 75,119  67,056 
  ������� 575,000 United Bank Limited Rs.10 AA+ AA+ ������ 53,330 ������� 76,216

� � � � � � � ��������� 2,528,063 ��������� 2,707,481

1����� Fully paid-up ordinary shares - Unlisted

  ���� 2013 Name of security
  No. of shares / certificates
 ��������� 3,000,000 Khushhali Bank Limited Rs.10  A  A   ������ 30,000 ������ 30,000 
   Pakistan Export Finance Guarantee 
 569,958 569,958   Agency Limited Rs.10 Unrated Unrated ����� 5,700 –00  –0   
 24 24 S.W.I.F.T  –    Unrated Unrated  ����� 3,870 ����� 3,870 
        ������ 39,570 ������ 33,870 

1����� Term finance certificates - Listed
  ���� 2013 Name of security
 No. of certificates
  –00 6,000 Allied Bank Limited Rs.5,000  –  AA   –00 14,964 –00 15,131
   ������ 33,800 Allied Bank Limited - II  Rs.5,000  AA  AA   168,662 168,730 165,515 170,248
  ������ 30,625 Bank Alfalah Limited - V Rs.5,000  AA– AA- ������� 153,094 ������� 156,446
   –00 40,000  Engro Fertilizers Limited - III Rs.5,000 – A –00 199,520 –00 199,500
   –00 5,000  United Bank Limited - III  Rs.5,000  –  AA  –00 8,317 –00 8,439
         321,695 544,625 317,716 549,764



1����� Term finance certificates - Unlisted
  ���� 2013 Name of security
  No. of certificates
  ��� 150 Askari Bank Limited - IV Rs.1,000,000   AA –  AA– ������� 149,880 ������� 149,880 
  ������ –00 Askari Bank Limited - V Rs.5,000   AA –  – ������� –00 ������� –00 
   ������ 20,000 Bank Alfalah Limited - IV Rs.5,000   AA –  AA– ������ 99,840 ������ 99,840 
      Standard Chartered Bank
  ������ 56,600   (Pakistan) Limited Rs.5,000  AAA AAA ������� 283,000 ������� 283,000
  ������� 40,000 WAPDA Rs.5,000 AAA AAA ��������� 2,000,000 ��������� 2,000,000
        ��������� 2,532,720 ��������� 2,532,720
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 * Rating in case of ordinary shares of listed and unlisted companies represents the rating of investee companies, in all other cases, 
rating represents the rating of underlying instruments.

1��� Market Treasury Bills

 These securities have a maturity period of one year (2013: three months to one year), with yield ranging between 9.48% to 9.99% 
(2013: 8.97% to 9.91%) per annum.

1��� Pakistan Investment Bonds

 These securities have a maturity period of 3, 5, 7 and 10 years (2013: 3, 5, 7 and 10 years) with interest rates ranging between 9.60% 
to 12% (2013: 9.60% to 12%) per annum. These include securities costing Rs. 5 million (2013: Rs. 5 million) pledged with the Controller 
of Military Accounts, Karachi as a security deposit for extending banking facilities on account of regimental funds vis-a-vis private 
fund accounts.

1����� Units of mutual funds

  ���� 2013 Name of Security 
 No. of units 
   64,217,346 59,779,954 NIT Government Bond Fund Rs.10 AA- AA ������� 600,000  698,948 622,500 
  ���������� 19,689,110 NIT Income Fund Rs.10 A+  A+ �������  200,000 232,623 208,114 
 ���������� 8,206,331 NIT Unit Trust Rs.10 4 Star 3 Star ������� 350,000 993,397 408,183 
   PIML Income Fund (Formerly Primus  
 ������ 279,322    Cash Fund) Rs.100 A+ AAA 1,763 25,000  2,221 27,946  

         1,551,763 1,175,000 1,927,189 1,266,743
         ����������� 136,408,076 212,919,171 136,867,641

  

     Face  ���� 2013 ���� 2013 ���� 2013
  value  Rating* Cost Carrying value
  Rs.   �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
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 Held to maturity
  ������ –00 10,055 Dec-19 Government of Pakistan Sukuk 6.750% per annum  ������� –00

         3,219,971 1,000,000

1��� Sukuk Bonds

 Federal Government Securities
      Available for sale
 –00  10,000  –00 May-14 Government of Pakistan Ijara Sukuk VIII Weighted average 6 months –00  1,000,000
        T-Bills rate
 ������  –00  101,345 Nov-15 Government of Pakistan Ijarah Sukuk XII Weighted average 6 months  ���������  –00
        T-BIlls rate
 ������� –00 10,000 Jun-17 Government of Pakistan Ijarah Sukuk XV Weighted average 6 months ��������� –00
        T-Bills rate
 ������ –00 10,075 Dec-19 Government of Pakistan Sukuk 6.750% per annum ������� –00
       ���������  1,000,000

   Redeemable 
   value per Maturity  
 ���� 2013 certificate  Date  Name of Security Rate ����  2013
 No. of certificates �5XSHHV� (Rupees in '����

      Available for sale
 �������  170,000  5,000� -DQ���� (QJUR�)RRGV�/LPLWHG� ��PRQWKV·�.,%25�SOXV����ESV� �������  850,000
 1,124,278  1,124,278  793 Mar-21 Liberty Power Tech Limited ��PRQWKV·�.,%25�SOXV�����ESV  �������  950,425
 ������� 150,000 2,500 Jul-17 WAPDA Second Sukuk Company Limited ��PRQWKV·�.,%25�OHVV����ESV ������� 500,000

       ���������  2,300,425
 Held to maturity
  ������� 250,000 793 Mar-21� /LEHUW\�3RZHU�7HFK�/LPLWHG� ��PRQWK·V�.,%25�SOXV�����ESV� �198,284 211,342

         2,314,987 2,511,767

        5,534,958 3,511,767

1����� These Sukuk Bonds have face value of Rs. 5,000 per certificate except for Liberty Power Tech Limited·s Sukuk Bonds which has face 
value of  Rs. 1,000 per certificate and Government of Pakistan Ijarah Sukuk Bonds which have face value of Rs. 100,000 per certificate. 

 Others

1��� Term Finance Certificates

 Listed - Available for sale
  –00 6,000 –00 Dec-14 Allied Bank Limited* 6 months' KIBOR plus 190 bps –��  14,964
  ������ 33,800 4,990 Aug-19 Allied Bank Limited - II* 6 months' KIBOR plus 85 bps 168,662 168,730
  ������ 30,625 4,997 Feb-21 Bank Alfalah Limited - V* 6 months' KIBOR plus 125 bps ������� 153,094
  –00 40,000 –00 Nov-15 Engro Fertilizers Limited - III 6 months' KIBOR plus 155 bps –�� 199,520  
  –00 5,000 –00 Sep-14 United Bank Limited-III* 6 months' KIBOR plus 170 bps –�� 8,317
        321,695 544,625

   Redeemable 
   value per Maturity  
 ���� 2013 certificate  Date  Name of Security Rate ����  2013
 No.�RI�FHUWLILFDWHV� �5XSHHV�� �5XSHHV�LQ�'����



 Unlisted - Available for sale
  ��� 150 998,800 Dec-21 Askari Bank Limited - IV* 6 months' KIBOR plus 175 bps �������  149,880
  ������ –00 5,000 Sep-24 Askari Bank Limited - V* 6 months' KIBOR plus 120 bps �������  –00
  ������ 20,000 4,990 Dec-17 Bank Alfalah Limited - IV* 15.00% per annum ������ 99,840
  ������ 56,600 5,000 Jun-22 Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited* 6 months' KIBOR plus 75 bps ������� 283,000
  ������� 400,000 5,000 Sep-21 WAPDA 6 months' KIBOR plus 100 bps ��������� 2,000,000 
        ��������� 2,532,720

   Redeemable 
   value per Maturity  
 ���� 2013 certificate  Date  Name of Security Rate ����  2013
 No.�RI�FHUWLILFDWHV� �5XSHHV�� �5XSHHV�LQ�'����
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 Listed - Held to maturity
   ������ 17,400 4,990 Aug-19 Allied Bank Limited - II* 6 months' KIBOR plus 85 bps 86,826 86,860
  –00 5,000 –00 Sep-14 United Bank Limited - III* 6 months' KIBOR plus 170 bps –00 8,317
        86,826 95,177
        3,241,141 3,172,522

 *These Term Finance Certificates are subordinated.

1����1 These Term Finance Certificates have face value of Rs. 5,000 per certificate except for Askari Bank Limited-IV which have 
face value of Rs 100,000 per certificate.

1���� Foreign Currency Bonds

   Redeemable 
   value per Maturity  
 ���� 2013 certificate  Date  Name of Security Rate ��14  2013
 No of certificates �5XSHHV�� � � � ��5XSHHV�LQ�'����
� RI�86�������HDFK

 Federal Government Securities 
  Available for sale

 �������  100,000  9,455  Jun-17  Government of Pakistan Bonds   6.875% p.a.  945,547   945,156
 ������   52,270   9,813 Mar-16 Government of Pakistan Bonds   7.125% p.a.   ��������  514,353
 ������   –00   10,104 Apr-19 Government of Pakistan Bonds   7.250% p.a.   252,611   –00
       1,784,667 1,459,509
 Held to maturity

 ������  –00  10,220  Apr-19  Government of Pakistan Bonds   7.250% p.a.  �������   –00
       ��������� 1,459,509
 Others 
 Available for sale

 ������  10,000   10,061  Jan-15  Government of Srilanka Bonds   7.400% p.a. �������  107,852
 ������  20,000   10,191  May-17  Bank of Ceylon   6.875% p.a.  �������  215,034
 ������  –00   10,025  Apr-18  Bank of Ceylon   5.325% p.a.  �������  –00
       ������� 322,886
       ��������� 1,782,395



1��11 Ordinary shares of unlisted companies 

 ��������� 3,000,000  Khushhali Bank Limited ������ 30,000
   Par value per share: Rs. 10    
   Break-up value per share: Rs. 16.12 (2013: Rs. 14.50) based on audited    
       financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013    
   Chief Executive: Mr. Ghalib Nishtar    

 569,958 569,958  Pakistan Export Finance Guarantee Agency Limited �����  5,700  
   Par value per share: Rs. 10    
   Break-up value per share: Rs. 0.16 (2013: Rs. 1.16) based on audited    
       financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011    
   Chief Executive: Mr. S. M. Zaeem

 24 24  Society for Worldwide Interbank Financial Telecommunication (S.W.I.F.T)  ����� 3,870  
       allocated shares based on the financial contribution from network based     
           serviced by the Bank.    

    ������  39,570

 ���� 2013 Name of companies  ���� 2013
 No. of ordinary shares/units Note (Rupees in '����
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  9,366,312 9,366,312  Habib Sugar Mills Limited 10.12.2 �������  180,977  
    % of holding: 6.24% (2013: 6.24%)     
    Par value per share: Rs. 5     
    Market value: Rs. 424.481 million (2013: Rs. 273.309 million)     
    Chief Executive: Mr. Raeesul Hasan 
   ����������  6,000,000  Habib Asset Management Limited 10.12.3 �������  60,000  
    % of holding: 30% (2013: 30%)     
    Par value per share: Rs. 10     
    Break-up value per share: Rs. 12.20 (2013: Rs. 11.56) based on audited     
       financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014     
    Chief Executive: Mr. Imran Azim
   ���������� 2,595,171  First Habib Income Fund  �������  250,000  
    Average cost per unit: Rs. 92.71 (2013: Rs. 96.33)     
    Net asset value: Rs. 105.59 (2013: Rs. 100.08)     
    Management Company: Habib Asset Management Limited     
    Chief Executive of the Management Company: Mr. Imran Azim

1���� Associates

 ���� 2013 Name of companies 
 No. of ordinary shares / units  
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1�.12.2 Due to common directorship in Habib Sugar Mills Limited, the Bank considers the investee company as an associate. 

������� Includes Rs. 24.750 million (2013: Rs. 24.750 million) invested in Habib Asset Management Limited categorised as strategic investment in accordance 
ZLWK�6%3·V�JXLGHOLQHV�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�%3'�&LUFXODU�/HWWHU�1R�����RI������GDWHG����$XJXVW������

1���� Subsidiaries
  ����������   20,000,000 AL Habib Capital Markets (Private) Limited
    % of holding: 66.67% (2013: 66.67%)
    Par value per share: Rs. 10     
    Break up value per share: Rs. 11.25 (2013: Rs. 11.15) based on audited     
       financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014     
    Chief Executive: Mr. Aftab Q. Munshi
      ������� 200,000

  10,000 –00 AL Habib Credit & Finance (Hong Kong) Limited  
    % of holding: 100% (2013: NIL)
    Par value per share: HK $ 1  127 –00
      ������� 200,000

������� The above associates are incorporated in Pakistan.
 Associates - Key Information Habib Sugar Habib Asset First Habib First Habib First Habib First Habib
 (Based on latest audited financial statements) Mills Limited Management Income Stock Cash Islaimic
      Limited Fund Fund Fund Balanced
          Fund
    �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
 Assets 6,980,891 252,135 526,453 174,840 3,737,672 336,955

 Liabilities 1,531,639 8,079 18,041 27,212 32,265 4,078

 Total income 9,050,916 83,013 60,599 40,309 406,101 51,900

 Profit before taxation 922,091 33,241 43,482 31,434 335,300 37,878

 Profit after taxation 797,091 27,814 43,482 31,434 335,300 37,878

  �������   500,000 First Habib Stock Fund  ������   50,000
    Average cost per unit: Rs. 100 (2013: Rs. 100)
    Net Asset Value: Rs. 111.75 (2013: Rs. 113.33)     
    Management Company: Habib Asset Management Limited     
    Chief Executive of the Management Company: Mr. Imran Azim
  3,254,839   3,126,169 First Habib Cash Fund  ������� 300,000
    Average cost per unit: Rs. 92.17 (2013: Rs. 99.96)
    Net Asset Value: Rs. 104.45 (2013: Rs. 100.10)     
    Management Company: Habib Asset Management Limited     
    Chief Executive of the Management Company: Mr. Imran Azim
  252,322   252,322 First Habib Islamic Balanced Fund  ������ 25,000
    Average cost per unit: Rs. 99.08 (2013: Rs. 99.08)
    Net Asset Value: Rs. 105.96 (2013: Rs. 107.54)     
    Management Company: Habib Asset Management Limited     
    Chief Executive of the Management Company: Mr. Imran Azim
      865,977 865,977

 ���� 2013 Name of companies  ���� 2013
 No. of ordinary shares / units  (Rupees in '����
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  ����  2013
 Note  �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
11. ADVANCES      
  
 Loans, cash credits, running finances, etc.      
  – In Pakistan  154,858,191   139,648,282
  – Outside Pakistan  ����������   7,812,380

    �����������   147,460,662

 Net investment in finance lease      
  – In Pakistan 11.2  2,471,578   985,898
  – Outside Pakistan  –00 –000   
   
    2,471,578   985,898

 Ijarah financing under IFAS 2 11.3 488,315  202,296

 Murabaha 11.4 ����������   4,723,489

 Bills discounted and purchased 
   (excluding market treasury bills)      
  – Payable in Pakistan  3,524,136   2,044,993   
  – Payable outside Pakistan  14,363,222   18,245,217

    17,887,358   20,290,210 

 Advances - gross  187,972,816   173,662,555   
 Provision against non-performing loans and advances      
    – Specific provision 11.5  �����������  (3,543,124 )  
    – General provision against small enterprises and 
        consumer advances (as per SBP regulations) 11.6.1  ��������  (40,071 )  
    – General provision 11.6.2  �����������  (2,500,000 )
 
     �����������  (6,083,195)
  
 Advances - net of provisions  181,356,817   167,579,360



  ����  2013
   �5XSHHV�LQ�
����  
11.1 Particulars of advances - gross      
11.1.1 In local currency   144,818,934   140,689,762  
 In foreign currencies   43,153,882   32,972,793    
     187,972,816   173,662,555 

11.1.2 Short term (for upto one year)   156,434,442   144,876,739    
 Long term (for over one year)   31,538,374   28,785,816   
     187,972,816   173,662,555 
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11.3 Ijarah financing under IFAS 2

      2013

 Equipment  432,787  7,250  375,302 141,824  113,265  196,810  178,492  
   (64,735 )   (58,279)
 Vehicles 27,603 21,904  35,039 11,393 10,055  11,235 23,804
   (14,468 )   (10,213 ) 
  460,390 29,154  410,341 153,217 123,320  208,045 202,296 33.33 
   (79,203 )   (68,492 )

      ����
   Cost   Accumulated Depreciation Book Value
  As at Additions / As at  As at Charge / As at   As at Rate of
� � ���-DQ�� �GHOHWLRQV�� ���'HF�� ���-DQ�� �GHOHWLRQV� 31 Dec. 31 Dec. depreciation
         %
    �5XSHHV�LQ�
����

 Equipment �������� ��������� ��������� �������� ��������� ��������� ��������  
   ���������� � � ��������
 Vehicles ������� �������� � �������� ������ 29,874  36,875 193,984
� � � ��������� � � ���������

� � �������� �������� � �������� �������� �������� � �������� �������� ������
� � � ���������� � � ���������

11.2 Net investment in finance lease
 ���� 2013
  Later than    Later than
  Not later  one and   Not later  one and   
 than one less than Over five   than one less than Over five   
 year five years years Total year five years years Total
    �5XSHHV�LQ�
����

 Lease rentals receivable ��������� ����������� ²�     2,394,949  384,903  586,330  –0     971,233   
 Residual value �������� ��������� ²������ �������   32,664  137,556   –0      170,220 
 Minimum lease payments ����������� ����������� ²������ ���������  417,567  723,886   –0     1,141,453   
 Financial charges for future periods  ����������� ����������� ²������ ����������  (77,690 ) (77,865 )  –0      (155,555)  
 Present value of minimum 
 lease payments ��������� ����������� ²�     2,471,578   339,877  646,021    –0      985,898
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11.5 Advances include Rs. 5,024.778 million (2013: Rs 3,699.903 million) which have been placed under 
non-performing status as detailed below:

  ����
 Classified advances Provision required Provision held
 Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total  
     �5XSHHV�LQ�
���� 

 Category of classification
 Other assets especially 
   mentioned  210   –00  210   –00   –00    –00  –00   –00    –00  
 Substandard  74,246   –00  74,246   18,405   –00    18,405 18,405   –00    18,405  
 Doubtful  746,226   753,623  1,499,849   373,113   222,574   595,687  373,113   222,574   595,687  
 Loss 3,041,824   408,649   3,450,473   3,010,076   408,649   3,418,725 3,010,076   408,649   3,418,725   
 
  3,862,506   1,162,272   5,024,778   3,401,594   631,223   4,032,817 3,401,594   631,223   4,032,817

  2013
 Classified advances Provision required Provision held
 Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total  
     (Rupees in '000) 

 Other assets especially 
   mentioned  16,121   –00  16,121   –00   –00    –00  –00   –00    –00  
 Substandard  56,807   –00  56,807   14,208   –00    14,208  14,208   –00    14,208  
 Doubtful  98,528   –00  98,528   49,264   –00   49,264   49,264   –00   49,264   
 Loss 3,099,517   428,930    3,528,447   3,050,722   428,930    3,479,652 3,050,722   428,930    3,479,652    
 
  3,270,973   428,930   3,699,903   3,114,194   428,930   3,543,124  3,114,194   428,930   3,543,124

11.5.1 For the purposes of determining provision against non-performing advances, the Bank has not taken into account the Forced 
Sales Value of pledged stock and mortgaged properties held as collateral against non-performing advances. 

11.3.1� )XWXUH�LMDUDK�SD\PHQWV�UHFHLYDEOH� ����� � 2013
   (Rupees in '����

 Not later than one year ������� 138,626  
 Later than one year and not later than five years ������� 70,087

  ������� 208,713

11.4 Murabaha - gross                         ���������  5,000,909
 Less: Deferred murabaha income ��������� (87,853 )
 Profit receivable shown in other assets ��������� (189,567 )

 Murabaha ����������� 4,723,489



11.6 Particulars of provision against non-performing loans and advances
   ����   2013
  Specific General Total Specific General Total 
 Note   �5XSHHV�LQ�
����

 Opening balance  ����������� ���������� � ���������  3,062,933  2,531,059  5,593,992
 Charge for the year
   – Specific provision   777,214  –��  777,214  860,762  –00  860,762
   – General provision for 
       small enterprises and
        consumer portfolio 11.6.1  –��  43,111  43,111  –00  9,012  9,012
   – General provision for
       loans and advances 11.6.2  –��  –��  –00  –00  –00  –00
 Reversals   ����������� �²��� � ����������  (390,079 )  –00  (390,079 )

   ��������� ������� � �������  470,683  9,012  479,695
 Exchange adjustment   ���������� �²��� � ������� )  9,540   –00  9,540   
 Amount written-off 11.7  ������� �²��� � ������  (32 )  –00  (32 )

 Closing balance   ����������� ���������� � ���������  3,543,124  2,540,071  6,083,195
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11.6.3 Particulars of provision against non-performing loans and advances
   ����   2013
  Specific General Total Specific General Total 
    (Rupees in '����

 In local currency ���������� ���������� ���������  3,114,194 2,540,071 5,654,265
 In foreign currency 631,223 –�� 631,223 428,930 –00 428,930
 ���������� ���������� ��������� 3,543,124 2,540,071 6,083,195

11.6.1 General provision represents provision amounting to Rs. 60.521 million (2013: Rs. 40.071 million) 
against consumer finance portfolio and Rs. 22.661 million (2013: Nil) against advances to small 
enterprises as required by the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP.

11.6.2 In line with its prudent policies, the Bank also makes general provision against its loans and advances 
portfolio. This general provision is in addition to the requirements of the Prudential Regulations and as 
of 31 December 2014 amounts to Rs. 2,500 million (2013: Rs.2,500 million).

11.7� 3DUWLFXODUV�RI�ZULWH�RIIV�� ����� � 2013
   (Rupees in '����

11.7.1 Against provision ��� 32  
 Directly charged to profit and loss account –�� 96

  ��� 128

11.7.2 Write-offs of Rs. 500,000 and above                         –�� –��
 Write-offs of below Rs. 500,000 ��� 128

  ���� 128



11.7.3 In terms of sub-section (3) of section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the statement 
in respect of written-off loans or any other financial relief of five hundred thousand rupees or above 
allowed to a person(s) during the year ended 31 December 2014 is given in Annexure 1.  

11.8 Particulars of Loans and Advances to Directors,   ����  2013
   Associated Companies, Subsidiaries etc. Note  �5XSHHV�LQ�
����

 (i) Debts due by directors, executives or officers
    of the Bank or any of them either severally
      or jointly with any other persons 
  Balance at beginning of the year  1,998,328  1,680,084
  Loans granted during the year  879,739  827,190  

  Repayments  ���������� (508,946 )

  Balance at end of the year  2,316,512  1,998,328

 (ii) Debts due by companies or firms in which
    the directors of the Bank are interested 
      as directors, partners or in the case
        of private companies as members
  Balance at beginning of the year  1,282,655  1,615,380
  Loans granted during the year  24,168,997  20,955,131
  Repayments  ������������� (21,287,856 )

  Balance at end of the year  1,517,483  1,282,655

 (iii) Debts due by subsidiary companies, controlled
    firms and other related parties
  Balance at beginning of the year  ������  7,166
  Loans granted during the year  ���������  9,123,600
  Repayments  ������������ (9,111,046 )

  Balance at end of the year  –���  19,720

12. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS
 Capital work-in-progress 12.1 �������  290,962
 Property and equipment 12.2 ����������  11,467,207
 Intangible assets 12.3 97,745  37,165

    13,898,321  11,795,334

12.1  Capital work-in-progress
 Civil works  48,554  195,439
 Advance payment towards suppliers, contractors and property  215,577  78,054
 Consultants· fee and other charges  ������� 17,469

    �������� 290,962
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12.2.1 Details of disposal of fixed assets during the year:
           

   Book Sale Mode of Particulars of   
 Particulars Cost value price disposal purchaser
   �5XSHHV�LQ�
����     
 Items having book value in aggregate more
� ��WKDQ�5V����������RU�FRVW�PRUH�WKDQ�5V�����������
 
 Leasehold land 8,533 8,533 3,212  Surrender Government of Pakistan
 Improvements to leasehold buildings 4,165 3,465 – Write off –
 Furniture and fixtures 7,895 314 680 Auction Karachi Auction Mart, Karachi.
 Furniture and fixtures 4,036 1,449 370 Auction M/s. Quick Disposal, Karachi.
 Electrical, office and computer equipments 27,050 240 1,910 Auction Karachi Auction Mart, Karachi.
 Electrical, office and computer equipments 4,948 2 3,250 Auction M/s. KASB Modarba, Karachi.
 Electrical, office and computer equipments 3,273 1 1,265 Auction M/s. Raja Power, Karachi.
 Electrical, office and computer equipments 28,110 245 1,388 Auction M/s. Quick Disposal, Karachi.
 Electrical, office and computer equipments 5,031 2 3,005 Auction Mr. Rajab Ali, Karachi.
 Electrical, office and computer equipments 8,359 71 1,186 Auction M/s. Rafiq Ali M. Trading, Karachi.
 Electrical, office and computer equipments 53,703 194 1,750 Auction M/s. Edwards & Robertson, Karachi.
 Vehicles 10,566 7,531 10,066 Insurance  Habib Insurance Company Limited
     claim   (a related party), Karachi.
 Vehicles 8,969 1 5,161 Auction Mr. Abdul Samad Khan, Karachi.
 Vehicles 1,998 – 1,202 Auction Mr. Muhammad Nadeem Ch., Karachi.
 Vehicles 1,942 – 1,449 Auction Mr. Zahid Qadri, Karachi.
 Vehicles 1,414 – 1,014 Auction Mr. Huzaifa Arif, Karachi.
 Vehicles 1,093 – 865 Auction Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed, Karachi.
 Vehicles 1,837 50 1,101 Auction Mr. Javed Muhammad Khan, Karachi.
 Vehicles 9,803 51 6,766 Auction Mr. Khalid Anwar, Karachi.
 Vehicles 2,573 – 1,403 Auction Mr. Mohsin Ahmed Khan, Karachi.
 Vehicles 2,132 – 1,876 Auction Mr. Muhammad Faizan Javaid, Karachi.
 Vehicles 6,531 143 4,243 Auction Mr. Muhammad Islam Khan, Karachi.
 Vehicles 3,716 – 2,421 Auction Mr. Muhammad Kaleem Iqbal, Karachi.
 Vehicles 1,066 – 927 Auction Mr. Najmus Saqib, Karachi.
 Vehicles 2,761 – 1,951 Auction Mr. Numeri Abrar, Karachi.
 Vehicles 7,059 194 4,375 Auction Mr. Wasim Mirza, Karachi.
 Vehicles 14,867 104 8,718 Auction Mrs. Fouzia Nadeem, Karachi.
 Vehicles 1,232 493 594 Auction Syed Adil Ali, Karachi. 
 Vehicles 5,146 1 4,631 Auction Syed Hassan Ali Warsi, Karachi.
 Vehicles 2,598 – 1,500 Auction Syed Muhammad Taufique, Karachi.
 Vehicles 4,002 1 2,448 Auction Syed Riaz Ahmed, Karachi.

 Items having book value in aggregate less than
� ��5V����������RU�FRVW�OHVV�WKDQ�5V�����������
 
 Furniture and fixtures 25 6 –
 Electrical, office and computer equipments 1,522 120 500
 Vehicles 21,512 292 16,931

   269,467 23,503 98,158
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12.2.2 In accordance with the Bank's accounting policy, the leasehold land and buildings have been revalued 
during the year. The revaluation was carried out by independent valuer, M/s. Iqbal A. Nanjee & Co. 
on the basis of professional assessment of present market values and resulted in a net surplus of 
Rs. 1,327.022 million over the book value of the respective properties. Had there been no revaluation, 
the net book value of leasehold land and buildings would have amounted to:

     ����  
  �5XSHHV�LQ�
���� 
   Leasehold land 2,915,512   
 Buildings on leasehold land 3,639,227   
   6,554,739    

  Had the Bank not made the above referred change in accounting estimate, profit before tax would 
have been increased by Rs. 10.735 million and the carrying value of operating fixed assets would 
have been increased by the same amount.

12.2.3 As at 31 December 2014, the gross carrying amount of fully depreciated assets still in use amounted 
to Rs. 1,749.819 million (2013: Rs. 1,506.926 million).   

  2013
 Cost Accumulated Amortisation Book Value 
 As at  As at  As at  As at   As at Rate of
 01 January  31 December 01 January  31 December 31 December Amortisation 
 2013 Additions 2013 2013 Charge 2013 2013 %
    (Rupees in '000)
Computer
  software  253,715 27,173   280,888   199,637  44,086   243,723   37,165  50

12.3 Intangible assets
  ����

 Cost Accumulated Amortisation Book Value 
 As at  As at  As at  As at   As at Rate of
� ���-DQXDU\� � ���'HFHPEHU� ���-DQXDU\� � ���'HFHPEHU� ���'HFHPEHU� $PRUWLVDWLRQ�
� ����� $GGLWLRQV� ����� ����� &KDUJH� ����� ����� �
    �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
Computer
  software  280,888 130,977   411,865   243,723  70,397   314,120   97,745  50 

12.3.1 As at 31 December 2014, the gross carrying amount of fully amortised intangible assets still in use amounted to Rs.255.016 
million (2013: Rs. 191.528 million).

   ���� 2013
  Note  �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
13. OTHER ASSETS 
   Mark-up / return / interest accrued in local currency 11,696,735  4,778,857
 Mark-up / return / interest accrued in foreign currencies 164,716  137,232
 Advances, deposits and prepayments ���������  1,157,059
 Advances, taxation (payments less provisions) –��  57,119
 Unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 112,121  182,835
 Stationery and stamps on hand 93,749  154,405
 Receivable from SBP on encashment of Government Securities 13.1 �������  9,633
 Non-refundable deposits   73,891  81,500
 ATM settlement account    174,558  115,175
 Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims  13.2 164,836  –00
 Others   ������  63,149 
    13,694,264  6,736,964



13.1 Represent deposits paid in relation to acquisition of some of the Bank's properties. These are being 
written-off over the periods ranging from 10 to 20 years (being estimated useful lives of related 
properties).

13.2 The market value of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims is Rs.165.44 million (2013: 
Nil).     
      
    
  ����  2013
 Note ��5XSHHV�LQ�
����

14. BILLS PAYABLE
  In Pakistan  ���������� 6,173,102

15. BORROWINGS
  In Pakistan  77,788,568  29,480,026
  Outside Pakistan  666,884  –��

     78,455,452  29,480,026
15.1 Particulars of borrowings with respect
   to currencies
  In local currency  77,788,568  29,480,026
  In foreign currencies  666,884  –��

     78,455,452  29,480,026

15.2 Details of borrowings

  Secured
  Borrowings from SBP
  Export refinance scheme 15.3 ����������� 15,065,898
  Long term financing for export  
    oriented projects 15.4 46,739  156,637
  Long term financing for imported  
    and locally manufactured plant  
   and machinery 15.5 ���������  3,225,277
  Financing facility for storage of 
    agricultural produce 15.6 58,126  120,727

     21,472,996  18,568,539

 Repurchase agreement borrowings 15.7 56,315,572  10,911,487

     77,788,568  29,480,026
 Unsecured
 Overdrawn nostros   666,884  –�� 

     78,455,452  29,480,026
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15.3 These carry mark-up rate of 6.50% (2013: 8.40%) per annum, payable quarterly at the time of partial 
payment or upon maturity of loan, whichever is earlier.

15.4 These carry mark-up rates ranging from 4% to 5% (2013: 4% to 5%) per annum having maturity 
periods upto 1 to 2 years. 

15.5 These carry mark-up rates of 9% (2013: 8.40% to 8.80%) per annum having maturity periods upto 
ten years.

15.6 These carries mark-up rate of 5.50% (2013: 5.50%) having maturity period upto 1 to 2 years.

15.7 These repurchase agreement borrowings are secured against market treasury bills, which carry 
mark-up rate of 9.45% to 10% (2013: 9.85% to 10%) per annum, having maturity periods upto one 
month.
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     2014  2013
    Note  (Rupees in '000)
16. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

 Customers
 Fixed deposits 104,806,779 82,536,366
 Savings deposits 130,915,789 124,273,324
 Current accounts - Remunerative 54,094,573 41,157,487
 Current accounts - Non-remunerative 146,835,524 124,061,833

    436,652,665 372,029,010

 Financial institutions
 Remunerative deposits 8,936,216 13,448,880
 Non-remunerative deposits 820,123 682,872

    9,756,339 14,131,752

    446,409,004 386,160,762

16.1 Particulars of deposits
   
 In local currency 397,421,618 339,427,211
 In foreign currencies 48,987,386 46,733,551

    446,409,004 386,160,762

17. SUB-ORDINATED LOANS - unsecured

 Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) - II - (Quoted) 17.1 747,900 1,496,100
 Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) - III - (Unquoted) 17.2 –00 1,992,800
 Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) - IV - (Unquoted) 17.3 2,995,800 2,997,000

     3,743,700 6,485,900
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17.1 Term Finance Certificates - II (Quoted)
  Total issue Rupees 1,500 million
  Rating AA
� � 5DWH� 3D\DEOH�VL[�PRQWKO\�DW�DYHUDJH�VL[�PRQWKV·�
      KIBOR plus 1.95% without any floor and cap
  Redemption 6-84th month: 0.28%; 90th and 96th month:  
      49.86% each
  Tenor 8 years
  Maturity February 2015

17.2 During the year, the Bank exercised the Call Option of Term Finance Certificates-III in accordance with the 
Trust Deed and Terms and Conditions for the TFC issue, after completing the regulatory requirements. 
Accordingly, the said TFCs were redeemed in full on 15 September 2014.

17.3 Term Finance Certificates - IV (Unquoted)

  Total issue Rupees 3,000 million
  Rating AA
  Rate Payable six monthly at 15.00% p.a. for first  
      5 years and 15.50% p.a. for next 5 years
  Redemption 6th - 108th month: 0.36%;  114th and 120th month: 
      49.82% each
  Tenor 10 years
  Maturity June 2021

  2014  2013
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
   
18. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
 Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:
 Accelerated depreciation  956,156  941,429
 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 21.1 826,092 595,969
 Surplus on revaluation of investments 21.2 936,986 133,608
    2,719,234 1,671,006

 Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

 Provision against non-performing loans and advances  (16,558 ) (18,998 )
 Remeasurment of defined benefit plan  78,430  –00
 Provision against diminution in the value of investments  (570 ) (570 )

     61,302  (19,568 )

     2,780,536  1,651,438
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18.1 Reconciliation of deferred tax 
  Balance  Recognised in Recognised Balance
  as at profit and in surplus on as at
  01 January loss revaluation 31 December
  2014 account of assets 2014
    (Rupees in '000)
 Taxable temporary differences
  arising in respect of: 
  Accelerated depreciation 941,429  14,727  –00  956,156
  Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 595,969  (24,741 ) 254,864  826,092
  Surplus on revaluation of investments 133,608  –00  803,378  936,986

      1,671,006  (10,014 ) 1,058,242  2,719,234
 Deductible temporary differences
  arising in respect of:
  Provision against non-performing
      loans and advances (18,998 ) 2,440  –00  (16,558 )
  Remeasurment of defined benefit plan –00  78,430  –00  78,430
  Provision against diminution in
       the value of investments (570 ) –00  –00  (570 )

      (19,568 ) 80,870  –00  61,302

      1,651,438  70,856  1,058,242  2,780,536

  Balance  Recognised in Recognised Balance
  as at profit and in deficit on as at
  01 January loss revaluation 31 December
  2013 account of assets 2013
    (Rupees in '000)
 Taxable temporary differences
  arising in respect of: 
  Accelerated depreciation 927,356  14,073  –00  941,429
  Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 616,069  (20,100 ) –00  595,969
  Surplus on revaluation of investments 514,394  –00  (380,786 ) 133,608

      2,057,819  (6,027 ) (380,786 ) 1,671,006
 Deductible temporary differences
  arising in respect of:
  Provision against non-performing
      loans and advances (123,665 ) 104,667  –00  (18,998 )
  Remeasurment of defined benefit plan –00  –00  –00  –00
  Provision against diminution in
       the value of investments (570 ) –00  –00  (570 )

      (124,235 ) 104,667  –00  (19,568 )

      1,933,584  98,640  (380,786 ) 1,651,438



  2014  2013
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
    
19. OTHER LIABILITIES
 Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency  2,299,578  2,131,645
 Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currencies  59,901 29,026
 Provision for compensated absences 19.1 312,972 277,896
 Taxation (Provision less payments)  507,175 –00
 Unclaimed dividends  185,750 160,673
 Branch adjustment account  256,389 159,204
� 6SHFLDO�H[SRUWHUV·�DFFRXQWV�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV� � 70,256 84,557
 Unearned commission income  89,968 58,343
 Security deposits against leases / ijarah  529,645 206,582
 Other security deposits  261,732 253,617
 Workers· welfare fund  811,804 610,042
 Accrued expenses  243,309 229,444
 Payable to defined benefit plan 35.4 224,085 272,300
 Provision against off-balance sheet items 19.2 105,507 96,258
 Payable to SBP / NBP  430,519 423,195
 Payable to supplier against murabaha  97,092 71,210
 Charity payable  2,625 4,147
 Others  428,671 425,500
   6,916,978 5,493,639

19.1 Provision for compensated absences has been determined on the basis of independent actuarial 
valuation. The significant assumptions used for actuarial valuation were as follows: 

  2014 2013
   (% per annum)
 Discount rate 11.75% 13.00%
 Expected rate of increase in salary in future years 10.75% 12.00%
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19.2 Provision against off-balance sheet items
 Opening balance   96,258 85,182
 Charge for the year   9,249 21,940
 Reversals    –00  (10,864 )
 Closing balance   105,507 96,258
20. SHARE CAPITAL
   2014 2013  
   (Number of shares)   
   Authorised Capital
   1,500,000,000 1,200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 15,000,000 12,000,000

  Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

   30,000,000 30,000,000 Issued for cash 300,000 300,000
   1,081,425,416 980,386,742 Issued as bonus shares 10,814,254 9,803,868

   1,111,425,416 1,010,386,742  11,114,254 10,103,868

20.1 As of statement of financial position date 196,826,601 (2013: 173,878,718) ordinary shares of 
  Rs. 10/- each were held by the related parties.

 2014  2013
  (Rupees in '000)



21.2 Available for sale investments
 Federal Government securities  2,243,759  190,125
 Fully paid-up ordinary shares  638,541  179,418 

Term finance certificates, sukuks bonds and foreign currency bonds 3,833  3,979
 Units of mutual funds  375,426  91,743
     3,261,559  465,265
 Related deferred tax liability  (936,986 ) (133,608 )
     2,324,573  331,657
22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
22.1 Direct credit substitutes
 Financial guarantees issued favouring
 - Financial institutions  212,894  297,527
 - Others   5,877,756  5,172,990
     6,090,650  5,470,517
22.2 Transaction-related contingent liabilities
 Guarantees issued favouring
 - Government  13,616,945  9,550,088
 - Financial institutions  366,643  238,651
 - Others   7,156,310  4,877,272
     21,139,898  14,666,011
22.3 Trade-related contingent liabilities
 Letters of credit  68,164,714  70,207,859
 Acceptances  9,974,513  6,895,498
 Bankers liability rediscount  1,465,595  –000
     79,604,822  77,103,357
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21. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX
   Operating fixed assets 21.1 2,749,123  1,722,912
 Available for sale investments 21.2 2,324,573  331,657
     5,073,696  2,054,569
21.1 Operating fixed assets     
 Balance at the beginning of the year  2,318,881  2,376,309
 Adjustment on revaluation of the Bank·s properties 
    during the year  1,327,022  –00
 Transfer to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental    
  depreciation charged during the year  (70,688 ) (57,428 )

     3,575,215  2,318,881
 Related deferred tax liability on:
 Balance at the beginning of the year  595,969  616,069
 Adjustment of Bank·s properties during the year    254,864  –00
 Transfer to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental
  depreciation charged during the year  (24,741 ) (20,100 )
     (826,092 ) (595,969 )
     2,749,123  1,722,912

  2014  2013
 Note  (Rupees in '000)



23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 The Bank deals in derivative financial instruments namely forward foreign exchange contracts and 

foreign currency swaps with the principal view of hedging the risks arising from its trade business. 
$V�SHU�WKH�%DQN·V�SROLF\��WKHVH�FRQWUDFWV�DUH�UHSRUWHG�RQ�WKHLU�IDLU�YDOXH�DW�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ILQDQFLDO�
position date. The gains and losses from revaluation of these contracts are included under “income 
from dealing in foreign currencies”. Unrealised gains and losses on these contracts are recorded in 
the statement of financial position under “other assets / other liabilities”. These products are offered 
WR�WKH�%DQN·V�FXVWRPHUV�WR�SURWHFW�IURP�XQIDYRXUDEOH�PRYHPHQWV�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV��7KH�%DQN�
hedges such exposures in the inter-bank foreign exchange market. 
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     2014  2013
      (Rupees in '000)
24. MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED
 On loans and advances to:
   Customers  15,090,903  13,206,116
   Financial institutions  288,104  238,918
   15,379,007  13,445,034
 On investments:
   Available for sale securities  16,446,465  17,816,864
   Held to maturity securities  11,964,172  5,816,162
   28,410,637  23,633,026

 On deposits with financial institutions  83,688  62,723
 On securities purchased under resale agreements  127,051  113,047
 On call money lendings  813  1,919
   44,001,196  37,255,749

25. MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED
 Deposits  20,778,047  18,093,546
 Sub-ordinated loans  812,680  929,644
 Repurchase agreement borrowings  1,611,068  2,243,930
 Borrowings from SBP  1,384,760  1,418,627
 Other borrowings  350,330  308,646
   24,936,885  22,994,393

     2014  2013
      (Rupees in '000)
22.4 Commitments in respect of forward lending
 Commitments to extend credit (excluding commitments 
  that are unilaterally cancellable)  4,582,095 1,130,970

22.5 Commitments in respect of forward exchange contracts
 Purchase   35,574,870 23,468,276
 Sale   33,584,498 20,363,924
 The maturities of above contracts are spread over the periods upto two years.
22.6 Commitments for the acquisition of operating 
  fixed assets  362,472 144,931
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  2014  2013
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
26. GAIN ON SALE / REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES - NET
 Listed shares  (8 ) 231,453 
 Government securities  (3,468 ) 546
 Mutual funds  3,770  306,547

   294  538,546

27. OTHER INCOME
 Gain on sale of operating fixed assets  74,655  71,859
 Recovery of expenses from customers 27.1 178,256  161,023
 Lockers rent  1,284  3,411
 Rent on property  2,100  3,260
 Cheque book issuance / cheque return charges  255,783  211,048
 Banking charges  63,856  55,865
 Others  61,612  39,622
   637,546  546,088

 27.1 Includes courier, SWIFT, postage and other charges recovered from customers.

28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
 Salaries, allowances, etc.  5,352,377 4,446,592
 Charge for defined benefit plan 35.6 167,033 120,978
 Contribution to defined contribution plan  221,068 183,827
 Charge for employees compensated absences  35,390 42,673
 Non-executive directors' fee, allowances
   and other expenses  4,700 3,675
 Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc.  1,902,698 1,570,510
 Legal and professional charges  111,128 89,589  
 Communications  227,212 239,710
 Repairs and maintenance  836,132 542,091  
 Security charges  573,960 511,230
 Stationery and printing  359,626 372,989
 Advertisement and publicity  132,655 110,859
 Donations   28.1 48,800 21,750
 Auditors' remuneration  28.2 2,975 2,885
 Depreciation  12.2 992,133 885,203
 Amortisation   78,006 51,696
 Travelling and conveyance  106,382 75,585
 Vehicle running expenses  414,896 201,330
 Commission and brokerage  53,018 84,736  
 Subscriptions and publications  64,299 50,430  
 Clearing charges (NIFT)  73,360 66,127
 Staff training   18,099 22,750
 Entertainment and staff refreshment  127,485 106,124
 Cleaning charges   55,232 43,180
 Charitable expenses   31,351 27,377
 CNIC verification charges   31,545 17,232
 Others     168,207 117,552

     12,189,767 10,008,680
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  2014  2013
  (Rupees in '000)
28.1 The details of donations in excess of Rupees One hundred 
   thousand are given below:
 Al-Sayyeda Benevolent Trust  1,500 1,500 
 GCU Endowment Fund Trust*  1,000 1,000
 Habib Education Trust  17,500 1,500
 Habib Medical Trust   1,500 1,500
 Habib Poor Fund  1,500 1,500
 Institute of Management Sciences, Bahauddin 
    Zakariya University, Multan  1,000 1,000
� 3DWLHQWV·�$LG�)RXQGDWLRQ� � 15,000 7,500
 Pakistan Bridge Federation  –00 250
 Rahmatbai Habib Food and Clothing Trust  1,500 1,500
 Rahmatbai Habib Widows and Orphans Trust  1,500 1,500
 Shaukat Khanum Memorial Cancer Hospital & Research Centre 1,000 –00
 Sindh Institute of Urology and Transplantation (SIUT), Karachi 2,500 –00
 The Citizens Foundation  3,300 3,000
     48,800 21,750

 * Mr. Shameem Ahmed, Director of Bank AL Habib Limited, is member of Executive Committee of 
GCU Endowment Fund Trust, GC University, Lahore.

28.2 Auditors' remuneration
 Audit fee  1,950  1,950
 Half yearly review   600  600
 Special certifications  50  –00
 Provident fund and gratuity fund  75  75
 Out of pocket expenses  300  260

    2,975  2,885

29. OTHER PROVISIONS / WRITE-OFFS
 Provision against off-balance sheet items  9,249  11,076
 

30. OTHER  CHARGES
 Workers· welfare fund  201,772  153,326
 Penalties imposed by SBP  1,112  3,476

    202,884  156,802

31. TAXATION
 For the year
   Current  3,497,316  2,450,671
   Prior years  –00  (190,885 )
   Deferred  70,856  98,640

    3,568,172  2,358,426
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31.1 Relationship between tax expense
  and accounting profit
 Profit before taxation  9,917,114  7,512,975 

 Tax at the applicable rate of 35% (2013: 35%)  3,470,990  2,629,541
 Tax effects of:
   Expenses that are not deductible in
     determining taxable income  189,182  67,979
   Tax effect of prior year provisions  –00  (190,885 )
  Dividend income taxed at reduced rate  (91,154 ) (63,023 )
   Capital gain taxed at reduced rate  (846 ) (92,887 )
  Others  –00  7,701

    3,568,172  2,358,426

32. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

 Profit after taxation 6,348,942  5,154,549

     (Number)

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,111,425,416 1,111,425,416

     (Rupees)

 Basic and diluted earnings per share 5.71  4.64

     2014  2013
    Note  (Rupees in '000)
33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Cash and balances with treasury banks 8 34,201,813   32,199,533
 Balances with other banks 9 4,345,042   2,662,874
 Overdrawn nostros 15 (666,884 )  –000  

     37,879,971   34,862,407
   
     (Numbers)
34. STAFF STRENGTH  

 Permanent  6,172  5,401
 Temporary / on contractual basis 249  227
 Bank·s own staff at end of the year 6,421  5,628
 Outsourced  1,679  1,557

 Total staff strength 8,100  7,185

 2014  2013
  (Rupees in '000)
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35. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

35.1 General description

 The Bank operates an approved gratuity fund for all its confirmed employees, which is administered 
by the Trustees. The benefits under the gratuity scheme are payable on retirement at the age of 60 
years or on earlier cessation of service as under:

 Number of years of eligible service completed: Amount of gratuity payable:

 Less than 5 years Nil
 5 years or more but less than 10 years 1/3rd of basic salary for each year served
 10 years or more but less than 15 years 2/3rd of basic salary for each year served
 15 years or more Full basic salary for each year served

35.2 Principal actuarial assumptions

 The latest actuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out on 31 December 2014 and the significant 
assumptions used for actuarial valuation were as follows:

     2014 2013
35.3 Significant Actuarial Assumptions
 Financial Assumptions
 Discount Rate    11.75% 13%
 Salary Increase Rate  10.75% 12%

 Demographic Assumptions
 Mortality rates (for death in service)  SLIC (2001-05) LIC (1975-79)
 Rates of employee turnover  Light Moderate

     2014  2013
      (Rupees in '000)
35.4 Statement of Financial Position
 Present value of defined benefit obligation  1,327,761  1,103,850
 Fair value of plan assets  (1,103,676 ) (831,550 )

 Deficit   224,085  272,300

35.5 Movement in Net defined benefit liability 
 Balance accrued as at the beginning of the year  272,300  174,666
 Net periodic benefit cost for the year ended  167,033  120,978
 Employer·s contribution during the year  (167,033 ) (120,978 )
 Amount of remeasurements (gain) / losses recognised 
   in Other Comprehensive Income during the year  (48,215 ) 97,634

 Balance accrued as at the end of the year  224,085  272,300
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     2014  2013
      (Rupees in '000)
35.6 Defined Benefit Cost for the Year
 Cost recognised in Profit and Loss Account for the year
 Service cost
  Current service cost  133,733  101,204

 Net Interest cost
  Interest cost on defined benefit obligation  149,723  107,240
  Interest Income on plan assets  (116,423 ) (87,466 )

  Net Interest cost   33,300  19,774

 Cost recognised in Profit and Loss for the year   167,033  120,978

 Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive
   Income during the year

 Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation  (27,300 ) 49,415
 Actuarial (gain) / loss on assets  (20,915 ) 48,219

 Remeasurement (gain) / loss recognised in Other 
  Comprehensive Income   (48,215)  97,634

 Total defined benefit cost recognised in Profit and Loss 
  Account and Other Comprehensive Income   118,818  218,612

35.7 Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation
 Present value of defined benefit obligation
   at the beginning of year  1,103,850  883,141
 Service cost  133,733  101,204
 Interest cost on defined benefit obligation  149,723  107,240
 Actual benefits paid during the year  (32,245 ) (37,149 )
 Actual (gain) / loss on obligation  (27,300 ) 49,414

 Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of year 1,327,761  1,103,850

35.8 Movement in the fair value of plan assets
 Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of year  831,550  708,474
 Interest income on plan assets  116,423  87,466
 Actual contribution by employer  167,033  120,978
 Actual benefits paid during the year  (32,245 ) (37,149 )
 Return on plan assets over interest
   income gain / (loss)    20,915  (48,219 )

 Fair value of plan assets at the end of year  1,103,676  831,550

35.9 Actual return on plan assets  149,805  78,025
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          2015
          (Rupees in '000)
35.10 Charge and contribution for the year ending 31 December 2015

 Service cost
 Current service cost 159,496

 Net interest cost

 Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 148,029
 Interest Income on plan assets (136,135 )

 Net Interest cost 11,894 

 Cost to be recognised in Profit and loss account for the year 2015 171,390 

35.11 Analysis of Present value of defined benefit obligation 2014
         �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Vested / Non-Vested

 Vested Benefits 1,218,396
 Non-Vested benefits 109,365
 Total      1,327,761

 Type of Benefits

 Accumulated Benefit Obligation 386,725
 Amounts attributed to future salary increases 941,036

 Total      1,327,761

35.12 Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive 
  Income during the year
 Actuarial gain on obligation
 Gain due to change in financial assumptions 9,502
 Gain due to change in experience adjustments 17,798

 Total actuarial gain on obligation 27,300

 Net return on plan assets over interest income
 Actual return on plan assets 149,805
 Opening difference in fair value of plan assets (after audit) (12,468 )
 Interest income on plan assets (116,422 )
 Net return on plan assets over interest income 20,915

 Remeasurements gain recognised in Other Comprehensive
  Income during the year 48,215
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      2014
      (Rupees in '000)

 35.13 Disaggregation of fair value of plan assets

  Cash and Cash equivalents (after adjusting current liabilities)   43,797

  Unquoted investments    

  Pakistan Investment Bonds    859,879
  SBP - Treasury Bills    200,000 
         1,059,879 

  Total fair value of plan assets  1,103,676

 35.14 Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation

  Distribution of timing of benefit payments
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)   58,415

  Between 2 and 5 years    236,781
  Between 5 and 10 years    865,717

       1,160,913
 

 35.15 Sensitivity Analysis on significant actuarial assumptions :
   Actuarial Liability
  The Weighted average duration of the PBO is 13.60 years   
 
  Discount Rate + 1%  1,612,985

  Discount Rate - 1%  1,526,994

  Long Term Salary Increases + 1%  1,533,873

  Long Term Salary Increases - 1%  1,155,007
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37. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
 
  Chief Executive Directors* Executives
  2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
    (Rupees in '000)

 Fee ** –00 –00 4,700 3,675 –00 –00
 Managerial remuneration 16,000 14,846 10,400 9,482 1,425,856 1,126,137
 Charge for defined benefit plan 1,333 9,494 867 7,344 174,240 107,366
 Contribution to defined 
  contribution plan 1,600 1,485 1,040 948 104,978 84,028
 Rent and house maintenance 6,400 5,938 4,160 3,793 489,119 396,930
 Utilities 3,488 3,631 1,066 978 122,280 99,232
 Medical 30 2 18 79 40,694 32,932
 Bonus 4,000 2,282 2,600 1,427 300,764 163,074
 Others –00 –00 –00 –00 38,547 28,653

   32,851 37,678 24,851 27,726 2,696,478 2,038,352

 Number of person(s) 1 1 11*** 10 1,207 967

 
 Executives, including the Chief Executive and Executive Director, are provided with Bank's maintained 

cars in accordance with the terms of their employment and are entitled to medical and life insurance 
benefits in accordance with the policy of the Bank. In addition, the Chief Executive and Executive 
Director are also provided with drivers, club memberships, security arrangements and payment of 
travel bills in accordance with their terms of employment. 

 * Directors include one executive director (2013: 01)

 ** This represents fee paid to non-executive directors for attending Board of Directors and its committees' 
meetings. 

 *** This includes two Directors who resigned during the year as well as two Directors who were 
appointed in their places.

36. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

 The general description of the plan is included in note 5.7.
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38. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 2014 2013
 Book value Fair value  Book value Fair value
   (Rupees in '000)
    
 On-balance sheet financial instruments
 Assets
 Cash and balances with treasury banks 34,201,813 34,201,813 32,199,533  32,199,533
 Balances with other banks 4,345,042 4,345,042 2,662,874  2,662,874
 Lendings to financial institutions –00 –00 –00  –00
 Investments - net 331,422,572 339,431,369 239,752,853  239,812,778
 Advances - net 181,356,817 181,356,817 167,579,360  167,579,360
 Other assets 12,350,536 12,350,536 5,286,881  5,286,881
   563,676,780 571,685,577 447,481,501  447,541,426
 Liabilities
 Bills payable 7,984,808 7,984,808 6,173,102  6,173,102
 Borrowings  78,455,452 78,455,452 29,480,026  29,480,026
 Deposits and other accounts 446,409,004 446,409,004 386,160,762  386,160,762
 Sub-ordinated loans 3,743,700 3,743,700 6,485,900  6,485,900
 Other liabilities 4,833,166 4,833,166 4,291,896  4,291,896
   541,426,130 541,426,130 432,591,686  432,591,686

 Off-balance sheet financial instruments
 Commitment to extend credit 4,582,095 4,582,095 1,130,970  1,130,970

 Forward purchase of foreign exchange contracts 35,574,870 35,135,311 23,468,276  23,245,731

 Forward sale of foreign exchange contracts 33,584,498 34,136,179 20,363,924  20,769,304

 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Fair value of financial instruments is 
based on:

 Federal Government Securities PKRV rates (Reuters page)
 Listed securities Market prices
 Mutual funds Net asset values
 Unlisted equity investments Break - up value as per latest available audited financial 
  statements.

 Fair value of fixed term advances of over one year, staff loans and fixed term deposits of over one 
year cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to non - availability of relevant active market 
for similar assets and liabilities. The provision for impairment of debt securities and loans and advances 
has been calculated in accordance with the Bank's accounting policies as stated in note 5.4 and 5.5.
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39. SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
 The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows: 
   2014
 Retail Commercial  Inter Segment Total
 Banking Banking  Elimination
   (Rupees in '000)

 Total income 24,369,362  42,538,117  (19,098,591 ) 47,808,888
 Total expenses (20,267,249 ) (36,723,116 ) 19,098,591  (37,891,774 )
 Net income  4,102,113  5,815,001  –00  9,917,114

 Segment assets (net of provisions) 427,239,886  554,283,153  (402,604,210 ) 578,918,829  
 Segment non performing loans 37,439  4,987,339  –00  5,024,778
 Segment provision required  35,835  3,996,982  –00  4,032,817
 Segment liabilities 425,480,100  523,414,588  (402,604,210 ) 546,290,478  
 Segment return on net assets (ROA) (%)* 5.70%  7.67%    
 Segment cost of funds (%)* 4.76%  7.02%    

   2013
 Retail Commercial  Inter Segment Total
 Banking Banking  Elimination
   (Rupees in '000)

 Total income 19,638,527  37,267,140  (15,741,950 ) 41,163,717
 Total expenses (16,522,874 ) (32,869,818 ) 15,741,950  (33,650,742 )
 Net income  3,115,653  4,397,322  –00  7,512,975

 Segment assets (net of provisions) 357,232,136  443,842,985  (340,348,203 ) 460,726,918  
 Segment non performing loans 42,776  3,657,127  –00  3,699,903
 Segment provision required  42,092  3,501,032  –00  3,543,124
 Segment liabilities 355,612,242  420,180,828  (340,348,203 ) 435,444,867  
 Segment return on net assets (ROA) (%)* 5.50%  8.40%    
 Segment cost of funds (%)* 4.65%  7.82%    

 *These percentages have been computed based on closing assets / liabilities figures.  

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 Related parties of the Bank comprise subsidiaries, associates (including entities having directors in common with the Bank), 

retirement benefit funds, major share holders, directors and key management personnel and their close family members.
 Transactions with related parties of the Bank are carried out on an arm's length basis in terms of the policy as approved by 

the Board of Directors. The transactions with employees of the Bank are carried out in accordance with the terms of their 
employment.   
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 Transactions with related parties, other than those disclosed in note 12.2.1 and 20.1, are summarised as follows:
 2014
    Non Key
  Subsidiaries Associates Executive Management Retirement Total
    Directors Personnel Benefit Funds
    (Rupees in '000) 
 Deposits
 At beginning of the year  61,957  1,813,814  142,104  368,941  174,811  2,561,627
 Placements during the year  880,090  108,541,729  1,005,151  2,097,406  8,091,171  120,615,547
 Withdrawals during the year  (843,989 ) (107,318,266 ) (961,646 ) (2,064,452 ) (8,216,541 ) (119,404,894 )
 At end of the year  98,058  3,037,277  185,609  401,895  49,441  3,772,280
 Advances     
 At beginning of the year  19,720  1,282,655  126  37,822  –00  1,340,323
 Given during the year  8,833,507  24,168,997  4,636  74,665  –00  33,081,805
 Repaid during the year  (8,853,227 ) (23,934,169 ) (4,468 ) (59,527 )  –00  (32,851,391 )
 At end of the year  –00  1,517,483  294  52,960  –00  1,570,737
 Investments     
 At beginning of the year  200,000  865,977  –00  –00  –00  1,065,977
 Investment made during the year 127  –00  –00  –00  –00  127
 Investments redeemed during the year –00  –00  –00  –00  –00  –00 
 At end of the year  200,127  865,977  –00  –00  –00  1,066,104
 Contingencies and commitments  –00  730,920  –00  –00  –00  730,920
 Forward purchase contracts –00  174,758  –00  –00  –00  174,758
 Forward sale contracts –00  –00  –00  –00  –00  –00
 Other receivable 10,089  –00  –00  –00  –00  10,089
 Other payable 130  –00  –00  –00  –00  130  
 Unrealised loss on forward contracts  –00  (2,117 ) –00  –00  –00  (2,117 )
 Purchase of fixed assets –00  –00  –00  –00  –00  –00
 Sale / redemption of securities 140,944  49,054  –00  –00  2,969,668  3,159,666
 Purchase of securities 127  –00  –00  –00  –00  127
 Mark-up earned  365  128,478  –00  2,631  –00  131,474  
 Mark-up expensed  3,719  207,292  11,450  33,514  16,580  272,555
 Bank charges and commission  4  4,244  26  171  –00  4,445
 Gain / (loss) on sale of securities  –00  80  –00  –00  (2,865 ) (2,785 ) 
 Salaries and allowances –00  –00  –00  256,043  –00  256,043
 Bonus –00  –00  –00  36,102  –00  36,102
 Contribution to defined contribution plan –00  –00  –00  12,709  –00  12,709
 Contribution to defined benefit plan –00  –00  –00  17,675  –00  17,675
 Staff provident fund –00  –00  –00  –00  221,068  221,068
 Staff gratuity fund –00  –00  –00  –00  167,033  167,033
 Directors' fee –00  –00  4,400  –00  –00  4,400
 Insurance claim received  –00  12,266  –00  –00  –00  12,266
 Insurance premium paid  –00  112,337  –00  –00  –00  112,337
 Dividend income  –00  39,191  –00  –00  –00  39,191
 Rental paid –00  1,118  –00  –00  –00  1,118
 Rental income 2,100  –00  –00  –00  –00  2,100
 Commission expensed 94  –00  –00  –00  –00  94
 Other expensed 103  12,221  –00  –00  –00  12,324  
 Other income 534  180  –00  –00  130  844 
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 2013
    Non Key
  Subsidiaries Associates Executive Management Retirement Total
    Directors Personnel Benefit Funds
    (Rupees in '000) 
 Deposits
 At beginning of the year  6,320  1,691,582  146,594  294,767  151,603  2,290,866
 Placements during the year  1,950,871  76,167,530  767,897  1,186,282  4,538,194  84,610,774
 Withdrawals during the year  (1,895,234 ) (76,045,298 ) (772,387 ) (1,112,108 ) (4,514,986 ) (84,340,013 )
 At end of the year  61,957  1,813,814  142,104  368,941  174,811  2,561,627
 Advances     
 At beginning of the year  7,166  1,615,380  351  28,605  –00  1,651,502
 Given during the year  9,123,600  20,955,131  3,025  45,862  –00  30,127,618
 Repaid during the year  (9,111,046 ) (21,287,856 ) (3,250 ) (36,645 )  –00  (30,438,797 )
 At end of the year  19,720  1,282,655  126  37,822  –00  1,340,323
 Investments     
 At beginning of the year  200,000  1,139,727  –00  –00  –00  1,339,727
 Investment made during the year –00  647,501  –00  –00  –00  647,501
 Investments redeemed during the year –00  (921,251 ) –00  –00  –00  (921,251 )
 At end of the year  200,000  865,977  –00  –00  –00  1,065,977
 Contingencies and commitments  –00  721,649  –00  –00  –00  721,649
 Forward purchase contracts –00  –00  –00  –00  –00  –00
 Forward sale contracts –00  238,943  –00  –00  –00  238,943
 Other receivable –00  –00  –00  –00  –00  –00
 Other payable –00  –00  –00  –00  –00  –00  
 Unrealised gain on forward contracts  –00  5,548  –00  –00  –00  5,548
 Purchase of fixed assets –00  1,430  –00  –00  –00  1,430
 Sale / redemption of securities –00  1,042,566  –00  –00  2,2,074,617  3,117,183
 Purchase of securities –00  647,501  –00  –00  –00  647,501
 Mark-up earned  1,013  135,635  5  1,910  –00  138,563  
 Mark-up expensed  578  90,984  8,363  26,751  22,500  149,176
 Bank charges and commission  3  4,671  13  102  –00  4,789
 Gain on sale of securities  –00  64,706  –00  –00  –00  64,706  
 Salaries and allowances –00  –00  –00  198,553  –00  198,553
 Bonus –00  –00  –00  18,247  –00  18,247
 Contribution to defined contribution plan –00  –00  –00  9,098  –00  9,098
 Contribution to defined benefit plan –00  –00  –00  25,874  –00  25,874
 Staff provident fund –00  –00  –00  –00  183,827  183,827
 Staff gratuity fund –00  –00  –00  –00  120,978  120,978
 Directors' fee –00  –00  3,400  –00  –00  3,400
 Insurance claim received  –00  11,717  –00  –00  –00  11,717
 Insurance premium paid  –00  135,670  –00  –00  –00  135,670
 Dividend income  –00  46,815  –00  –00  –00  46,815
 Rental paid –00  769  –00  –00  –00  769
 Rental income 3,260  –00  –00  –00  –00  3,260
 Commission expensed 1,053  –00  –00  –00  –00  1,053
 Other expensed 778  2,125  –00  –00  –00  2,903  
 Other income 540  –00  –00  –00  –00  540 
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41. CAPITAL ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY
41.1 Capital adequacy

 As per requirements of SBP, the Bank is required to comply with the capital adequacy framework 
which comprises the following capital standards :

 i) Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):
  The MCR standard sets the paid-up capital that the Bank is required to hold at all times.

  As of the statement of financial position date, the Bank's paid-up capital stands at Rs.11.114 
billion as against the required MCR of Rs. 10 billion. 

 ii) Capital Adequacy Ratio:
  The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) assesses the capital requirement based on the risks faced 

by the banks. The banks are required to comply with the CAR as specified by the State Bank 
of Pakistan on standalone as well as consolidated basis.

  During the year 2013, SBP issued revised instructions on the computation of CAR based on 
Basel III Capital Reform as issued by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision. These 
instructions became effective from 31 December 2013 with full implementation intended by 31 
December 2019. These instructions also specify the transitional arrangements from 2013 to 
2019. 

  Accordingly, the Bank has assessed and reported its Capital Adequacy Ratio in the financial 
statements on the basis of Basel III requirements as prescribed by SBP.

  The CAR on the basis of above framework works out to be as follows:
   2014
  Required CAR 10%

  CAR on stand-alone basis 14.89%

  CAR on consolidated basis 14.97%

 It is the Bank's policy that the level of capital maintained by it should be such that it maximises the 
return to shareholders while providing sufficient buffer to absorb risks, including those from any 
unexpected events. Therefore, the Bank carefully monitors its capital adequacy ratio with a view to 
ensuring that growth in risk assets is accompanied by commensurate growth in capital, and 
endeavours to maintain the capital adequacy ratio at a level sufficiently higher than the minimum 
regulatory requirement. Stress testing of capital adequacy is carried out periodically.

 Based on its experience over the years, the Bank expects to be able to raise the required capital 
internally through its operations as well as in the capital markets.

 The Bank has a risk management framework commensurate with its size and the nature of its 
business. The Board of Directors has approved risk management policies covering key areas of 
activities, including a Risk Tolerance Statement, for the guidance of management and staff of the 
Bank.

 The Bank calculates capital requirement as per Basel III regulatory framework, using the following 
approaches: 

  Credit Risk Standardised Approach
  Market Risk  Standardised Approach
  Operational Risk Basic Indicator Approach



41.2 Scope of application
 The Basel III Framework for capital adequacy is applicable to the Bank both at the consolidated 

level (including subsidiaries) and also on stand-alone basis. Bank AL Habib Limited is the only bank 
in the Group to which Basel III capital adequacy framework applies. The Bank has ownership in the 
following subsidiaries, where the Bank holds more than 50% of voting shares as at December 31, 
2014:

 Name Type of entity Country of incorporation

 AL Habib Capital Markets (Private) Limited Financial Pakistan
 AL Habib Credit & Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Financial Hong Kong
 The assets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows of above subsidiaries are included in the 

consolidated financial statements and also consolidated for regulatory capital adequacy purposes.
41.3 Capital structure
� 7KH�%DQN·V�7LHU� �� FDSLWDO� FRPSULVHV�SDLG�XS� FDSLWDO�� VWDWXWRU\� UHVHUYH�� VSHFLDO� UHVHUYH�� JHQHUDO�

reserve, and unappropriated profit and is adjusted for deductions in respect of intangible assets, 
shortfall in provision against classified assets, deficit on revaluation of investments, deferred tax 
asset, direct or indirect investment in own shares and is adjusted for reciprocal cross holdings in 
Tier 1 instruments.

� 7KH�%DQN·V�7LHU���FDSLWDO� LQFOXGHV�VXERUGLQDWHG� ORDQV��JHQHUDO�SURYLVLRQV�� UHYDOXDWLRQ� UHVHUYHV��
and exchange translation reserve and is adjusted for reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments.

68

   2014  2013
     (Restated)
    (Rupees in '000) 

41.3.1 Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves

 Fully Paid-up Capital   11,114,254  10,103,868 
 Balance in Share Premium Account   –00  –00 
 Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares   –00  –00 
 Discount on Issue of shares   –00  –00 
 General / Statutory Reserves   8,599,150  7,329,362 
 Gains / (losses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge   –00  –00 
 Unappropriated/unremitted profits / (losses)   7,679,490  5,554,207 
 Minority interests arising from CET1 capital instruments issued to third
    parties by consolidated bank subsidiaries (amount allowed in
       CET1capital of the consolidation group)   –00  –00 
 CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments   27,392,894  22,987,437 
 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 (Note 41.3.2)   (503,993)  (422,639)
 Common Equity Tier 1 (a)  26,888,901  22,564,798 
 Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital
 Qualifying Additional Tier-1 capital instruments plus any related share premium 
     of which: Classified as equity   –00  –00 
     of which: Classified as liabilities   –00  –00 
 Additional Tier-1 capital instruments issued to third parties by consolidated   
  subsidiaries (amount allowed in group AT 1)   
     of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out   –00  –00 
 AT1 before regulatory adjustments   –00  –00 
 Total regulatory adjustments applied to AT1 capital (Note 41.3.3)   –00  –00 
 Additional Tier 1 capital after regulatory adjustments   –00  –00 
 Additional Tier 1 capital recognised for capital adequacy (b) –00  –00 
 Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1) (c=a+b)  26,888,901  22,564,798 



   2014  2013
     (Restated)
    (Rupees in '000) 

 Tier 2 Capital    
 Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel III plus any 
  related share premium   –00  –00 
 Tier 2 capital instruments subject to phaseout arrangement issued   
  under pre-Basel 3 rules   2,393,760  3,724,217 
 Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third parties by consolidated subsidiaries 0 
  (amount allowed in group tier 2)   –00  –00 
 General provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to
  maximum of 1.25% of Credit Risk Weighted Assets   2,583,182  2,168,423 
 Revaluation Reserves (net of taxes)   5,073,696  2,054,569 
      of which: Revaluation reserves on fixed assets   2,749,123  1,722,912 
      of which: Unrealised gains/(losses) on AFS   2,324,573  331,657 
 Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves   161,761  240,045 
 Undisclosed / Other Reserves (if any)   –00  –00 
 T2 before regulatory adjustments   10,212,399  8,187,254
 Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital (Note 41.3.4)   (504,342 ) (695,160 )
 Tier 2 capital (T2) after regulatory adjustments   9,708,057  7,492,094
 Tier 2 capital recognised for capital adequacy   9,708,057  7,492,094
 Portion of Additional Tier 1 capital recognised in Tier 2 capital   –00  –00
 Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy (d) 9,708,057  7,492,094
 TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2) (e=c+d) 36,596,958  30,056,892
 Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) (Note 41.6) (f) 245,757,561  209,708,458

 Capital Ratios and buffers (in percentage of risk weighted assets)

 CET1 to total RWA (a/f) 10.94%  10.76%
 Tier-1 capital to total RWA (c/f) 10.94%  10.76%
 Total capital to total RWA (e/f) 14.89%  14.33%

 Bank specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 requirement plus capital 
   conservation buffer plus any other buffer requirement)
  of which: capital conservation buffer requirement  –00  –00 
      of which: countercyclical buffer requirement  –00  –00 
      of which: D-SIB or G-SIB buffer requirement  –00  –00 
 CET1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage of risk weighted assets)  –00  –0

 National minimum capital requirements prescribed by SBP
 CET1 minimum ratio  5.50%  5.00%
 Tier 1 minimum ratio  7.00%  6.50%
 Total capital minimum ratio  10.00%  10.00%
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   2014  2013
     (Restated)
    (Rupees in '000) 

41.3.2 Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments

 Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability)   –00   –   
 All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax liability)  (97,745 ) (37,165 )
 Shortfall in provisions against classified assets  –00  –   
 Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from  
  temporary differences (net of related tax liability)  –00  –   
 Defined-benefit pension fund net assets  –00  –   
 Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments of banking, financial 
  and insurance entities  (406,248 ) (385,474 )
 Cash flow hedge reserve  –00  –   
 Investment in own shares/ CET1 instruments  –00  –   
 Securitisation gain on sale  –00  –   
 Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries  –00  –   
 Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's holdings of fixed assets/ AFS  –00  –   
 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities  
  that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does 
    not own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)  –00  –00
 Significant investments in the common stocks of banking, financial and insurance entities 
  that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount above 10% threshold)  –00  –   
 Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold,  
  net of related tax liability)  –00  –00
 Amount exceeding 15% threshold  
     of which: significant investments in the common stocks of financial entities  –00  –   
     of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences  –00  –   
 National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 capital  
  investments in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit   –00  –   
 Any other deduction specified by SBP   –00  –   
 Adjustment to CET1 due to insufficient AT1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions  –00  –   
 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1  (503,993 ) (422,639 )

41.3.3 Additional Tier-1 & Tier-1 Capital: regulatory adjustments       
   Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit [SBP specific adjustment]  –00  –0 
 Investment in own AT1 capital instruments  –00  –0 
 Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments of banking,  
  financial and insurance entities  –00  –0 
 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that  
  are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more  
    than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)  –00  –0 
 Significant investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance  
  entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation  –00  –0 
 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital based on pre-Basel III treatment
  which, during transitional period, remain subject to deduction from additional Tier-1 capital  –00  –0 
 Adjustments to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions  –00  –0 
 Total regulatory adjustment applied to AT1 capital  –00  –0
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   2014  2013
     (Restated)
    (Rupees in '000) 

41.3.4 Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments

 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital based on pre-Basel III   
    treatment which, during transitional period, remain subject to deduction from tier-2 capital  –00  –00 
 Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities  (504,342 ) (695,160 )
 Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument   –00  –00 
 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that  
    are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more  
      than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)  –00  –00 
 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and  
    insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation  –00  –00 
 Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital  (504,342 ) (695,160 )
41.3.5 Risk Weighted Assets subject to pre-Basel III treatment
 Risk weighted assets in respect of deduction items (which during the transitional period
    will be risk weighted subject to Pre-Basel III Treatment)
  of which: Deferred tax assets  –00  –00 
  of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets  –00  –00 
  of which: Recognised portion of investment in capital of banking, financial and insurance
     entities where holding is less than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity –00   –00 
  of which: Recognised portion of investment in capital of banking, financial and insurance
    entities where holding is more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity  –00   –00 
 Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)  
 Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial entities  –00   –00 
 Significant investments in the common stock of financial entities  –00   –00 
 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability)  –00   –00 
 Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2  
 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to standardised 
   approach (prior to application of cap)  2,583,182   2,540,071 
 Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardised approach  2,583,182   2,168,423 
 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to internal 
   ratings-based approach (prior to application of cap)  –00  –00 
 Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings-based approach  –00  –00 
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   2014 2014
   As per Under
   published regulatory
   financial scope for
   statements capital
    adequacy
   (Rupees in '000)

41.4 Capital Structure Reconciliation       
  
41.4.1 Reconciliation of accounting and regulatory scope of consolidation

 Assets
 Cash and balances with treasury banks  34,201,813  34,201,813
 Balances with other banks  4,345,042  4,345,042
 Lendings to financial institutions  –00  –00
 Investments   331,422,572  331,422,572   
 Advances   181,356,817  181,356,817   
 Operating fixed assets  13,898,321  13,898,321
 Deferred tax assets   –00  –00
 Other assets  13,694,264  13,694,264
 Total assets  578,918,829  578,918,829

 Liabilities & Equity
 Bills payable  7,984,808  7,984,808
 Borrowings  78,455,452  78,455,452
 Deposits and other accounts  446,409,004  446,409,004
 Sub-ordinated loans  3,743,700  3,743,700
 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  –00  –00
 Deferred tax liabilities   2,780,536  2,780,536
 Other liabilities  6,916,978  6,916,978
 Total liabilities  546,290,478  546,290,478

 Share capital/Head office capital account  11,114,254  11,114,254
 Reserves  8,760,911  8,760,911
 Unappropriated/Unremitted profits/(losses)  7,679,490  7,679,490
 Minority Interest  –00  –00
 Surplus on revaluation of assets  5,073,696  5,073,696
 Total equity  32,628,351  32,628,351

 Total liabilities & equity  578,918,829  578,918,829



   2014 2014
    As per Under
    published regulatory
   Reference financial scope for 
    statements capital
     adequacy
   
   (Rupees in '000)
     
41.4.2 Reconciliation for balance sheet items that require
  capital adjustments
 Assets 
 Cash and balances with treasury banks  34,201,813  34,201,813 
 Balances with other banks  4,345,042  4,345,042 
 Lendings to financial institutions  –00 –00 
 Investments  331,422,572  331,422,572 
  of which: Non-significant capital investments in capital instruments of 
     banking, financial and insurance entities exceeding 10% threshold (a) –00  –00 
  of which: significant investments in the capital instruments issued by
    banking, financial and insurance entities exceeding regulatory threshold (b) –00  –00 
  of which: Mutual Funds exceeding regulatory threshold (c) –00 –00 
  of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument of CET1 (d) 406,248 406,248 
  of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument of T2 (e) 504,342 504,342
 Advances  181,356,817  181,356,817
  Shortfall in provisions/ excess of total EL amount
     over eligible provisions under IRB (f) –00  –00
  General provisions reflected in Tier 2 capital (g) 2,583,182  2,583,182
 Fixed Assets   13,898,321  13,898,321
  of which: Intangibles (h) 97,745  97,745
 Deferred Tax Assets   –00  –00
  of which: DTAs that rely on future profitability excluding those arising   –00  –00
     from temporary differences (i) –00  –00
    of which: DTAs arising from temporary differences   –00  –00
     exceeding regulatory threshold (j) –00  –00
 Other assets   13,694,264  13,694,264
  of which: Goodwill (k)  –00  –00
   of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets (l) –00  –00
 Total assets   578,918,829  578,918,829

 Liabilities & Equity 
 Bills payable  7,984,808 7,984,808 
 Borrowings  78,455,452 78,455,452 
 Deposits and other accounts  446,409,004 446,409,004 
 Sub-ordinated loans  3,743,700 3,743,700 
  of which: eligible for inclusion in AT1 (m) –00 –00   
  of which: eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 (n) –00 –00  
 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  –00 –00   
 Deferred tax liabilities  2,780,536 2,780,536 
  of which: DTLs related to goodwill (o) –00 –00   
  of which: DTLs related to intangible assets (p) –00 –00   
  of which: DTLs related to defined pension fund net assets (q) –00 –00   
  of which: other deferred tax liabilities (r) –00 –00   
 Other liabilities  6,916,978 6,916,978
 Total liabilities  546,290,478 546,290,478
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   2014 2014
    As per Under
    published regulatory
   Reference financial scope for 
    statements capital
     adequacy
   
   (Rupees in '000)

 Share capital   11,114,254 11,114,254  
  of which: amount eligible for CET1 (s) 11,114,254 11,114,254
   of which: amount eligible for AT1 (t) –00 –00
 Reserves  8,760,911 8,760,911
  of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET1 (u) 8,599,150 8,599,150
   of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 (v) 161,761 161,761
 Unappropriated profits / (losses) (w)  7,679,490 7,679,490
 Minority Interest  –00 –00
  of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET1 (x)  –00  –00
  of which: portion eligible for inclusion in AT1 (y)  –00 –00
  of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 (z) –00 –00
 Surplus on revaluation of assets  5,073,696 5,073,696
  of which: Revaluation reserves on Properties (aa) 2,749,123 2,749,123
  of which: Unrealised Gains/(Losses) on AFS  2,324,573 2,324,573
 In case of Deficit on revaluation (deduction from CET1) (ab) –00 –00
 Total Equity  32,628,351 32,628,351

 Total liabilities & equity  578,918,829 578,918,829
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 41.4.3 Reconciliation of computation of capital with balance sheet of the Bank 
     2014
    Source based on Component of
    reference number regulatory capital 
    from Note 41.4.2 reported by bank
    �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves     
   Fully Paid-up Capital / Capital deposited with SBP  11,114,254
Balance in Share Premium Account (s) –00   
Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares  –00   
General / Statutory Reserves (u) 8,599,150  
Gains / (Losses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge  –00   
Unappropriated/unremitted profits / (losses) (w) 7,679,490  
Minority interests arising from CET1 capital instruments
  issued to third party by consolidated bank subsidiaries     
    (amount allowed in CET1 capital of the consolidation group) (x) –00   
CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments  27,392,894

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments
Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability) (k)-(o) –00   
All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax liability) (h)-(p) (97,745)
Shortfall of provisions against classified assets (f) –00   
Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those  –00   
  arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability) (i-r) * x % –00   
Defined-benefit pension fund net assets (l-q) * x % –00   
Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments (d) (406,248)
Cash flow hedge reserve  –00   
Investment in own shares/ CET1 instruments  –00   
Securitisation gain on sale  –00   
Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries  –00   
Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's holdings of properties/ AFS (ab) –00   
Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and
  insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
    consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10%
       of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold) (a) - (ac) - (ae) –00
Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by
  banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the
    scope of regulatory consolidation (amount above 10% threshold) (b) - (ad) - (af) –00   
Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount 
  above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability) (i) –00   
Amount exceeding 15% threshold   –00   
 of which: significant investments in the common stocks  –00   
 of financial entities
 of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences  –00   
National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 capital  –00   
 of which: Investment in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit  –00   
 of which: Any other deduction specified by SBP 
Regulatory adjustment applied to CET1 due to insufficient AT1
  and Tier 2 to cover deductions  –00   
Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1  (503,993)
Common Equity Tier 1  26,888,901 
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      2014
    Source based on Component of
    reference number regulatory capital 
    from Note 41.4.2 reported by bank
    �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
 Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital
 
 Qualifying Additional Tier-1 instruments plus any related share premium
  of which: Classified as equity  (t) –00 
    of which: Classified as liabilities (m) –00 
 Additional Tier-1 capital instruments issued by consolidated subsidiaries and
  held by third parties (amount allowed in group AT 1)
    of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out (y) –00
 AT1 before regulatory adjustments
 Additional Tier 1 Capital: regulatory adjustments
 Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit (SBP specific adjustment)  –00
 Investment in own AT1 capital instruments  –00
 Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments  –00
 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities
  that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not
    own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)  (ac) –00
 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and
  insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (ad) –00
 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital
  based on pre-Basel III treatment which, during transitional period, remain
    subject to deduction from tier-1 capital  –00
 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient
 Tier 2 to cover deductions  –00
 Total of Regulatory Adjustment applied to AT1 capital   –00
 Additional Tier 1 capital   –00
 Additional Tier 1 capital recognised for capital adequacy  –00

 Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1)  26,888,901
 
 Tier 2 Capital 
 Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel III plus any related share premium  –00
 Capital instruments subject to phase out arrangement from 
  tier 2 (Pre-Basel III instruments) (n) 2,393,760 
 Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third party by consolidated  –00 
   subsidiaries (amount allowed in group tier 2) (z)   
    of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out  –00
 General Provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to
  maximum of 1.25% of Credit Risk Weighted Assets (g) 2,583,182 
 Revaluation Reserves eligible for Tier 2  5,073,696 
      of which: portion pertaining to Property portion of (aa) 2,749,123 
      of which: portion pertaining to AFS securities  2,324,573 
 Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves (v) 161,761 
 Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any)  –00 
 T2 before regulatory adjustments  10,212,399 
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     2014
    Source based on Component of
    reference number regulatory capital 
    from Note 41.4.2 reported by bank
    �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments
Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary
   capital based on pre-Basel III treatment which, during transitional 
     period, remain subject to deduction  –00
Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments  (504,342 )  
Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument   –00
Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that
   are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more
     than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold) (ae) –00
Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by
  banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the
    scope of regulatory consolidation (af) –00
Amount of Regulatory Adjustment applied to T2 capital  (504,342)
Tier 2 capital (T2)  9,708,057 
Tier 2 capital recognised for capital adequacy  9,708,057 
Excess Additional Tier 1 capital recognised in Tier 2 capital   –00   
Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy   9,708,057 
TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2)  36,596,958 



41.5 Main Features of Regulatory Capital Instruments

   Main Features  Common Shares Instrument 1 Instrument 2

 1 Issuer  Bank AL Habib  Bank AL Habib  Bank AL Habib  
    Limited Limited Limited
 2 Unique identifier (eg KSE Symbol or Bloomberg identifier etc.)  BAHL BAHL TFC2 BAHL TFC4
 3 Governing law(s) of the instrument (Regulatory Authorities) 
  Reguatory treatment  SBP & SECP SBP & SECP SBP & SECP
 4 Transitional BaseI III rules  CET-1 Tier 2 Tier 2
 5 Post-transitional BaseI III rules  CET-1 Ineligible Ineligible
 6 Eligible at solo/group/group & solo  Group & Group & Group & 
    Standalone  Standalone  Standalone
 7 Instrument type  Ordinary Shares Subordinated  Subordinated
     Debt Debt
 8 Amount recognised in regulatory capital (Currency in PKR thousands, as of reporting date) 11,114,254 –00 2,393,760
 9 Par value of instrument  Rs. 10 Rs. 5,000 Rs. 5,000
� ��� $FFRXQWLQJ�FODVVLILFDWLRQ� � 6KDUHKROGHUV·�(TXLW\� /LDELOLW\��� /LDELOLW\�
     Subordinated Subordinated
     Loans Loans
 11 Original date of issuance  January, 1992 7-Feb-2007 30-Jun-2011
 12 Perpetual or dated  Perpetual Dated Dated
 13 Original maturity date  N/A 7-Feb-2015 30-Jun-2021
 14 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval  No No Yes
 15 Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount  N/A N/A 30-Jun-2016
 16 Subsequent call dates, if applicable  N/A N/A On each coupon
      payment date after
      60 months from
      the date of issue
  Coupons / dividends
 17 Fixed or floating dividend / coupon  N/A Floating Fixed
 18 Coupon rate and any related index / benchmark  N/A 6 Months Kibor 15.00% p.a for years 
      plus 1.95% 1 to 5 and 15.50% 
       p.a for years 6 to 10
 19 Existence of a dividend stopper  No No No
 20 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory  Fully discretionary Mandatory Mandatory
 21 Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem  N/A No Yes
 22 Noncumulative or cumulative  Non-Cumulative Shares Non-Cumulative Non-Cumulative
 23 Convertible or non-convertible  Non-Convertible Non-Convertible Non-Convertible
 24 If convertible, conversion trigger (s)  N/A N/A N/A
 25 If convertible, fully or partially  N/A N/A N/A
 26 If convertible, conversion rate  N/A N/A N/A
 27 If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion  N/A N/A N/A
 28 If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into  N/A N/A N/A
 29 If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into   N/A N/A N/A
 30 Write-down feature  N/A No No
 31 If write-down, write-down trigger (s)  N/A N/A N/A
 32 If write-down, full or partial  N/A N/A N/A
 33 If write-down, permanent or temporary  N/A N/A N/A
 34 If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism  N/A N/A N/A
 35 Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation (specify  Subordinated All TFCs are All TFCs are
  instrument type immediately senior to instrument)  Loans subordinate to all subordinate to all
     other debts including other debts including
     deposits deposits
 36 Non-compliant transitioned features  No Yes Yes
 37 If yes, specify non-compliant features  N/A No loss absorbency No loss absorbency
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    Capital Requirements Risk Weighted Assets
 2014 2013  2014 2013

   (Restated)   (Restated)
   (Rupees in '000)

41.6 Credit Risk
 On-Balance sheet
 Portfolios subject to standardised approach (Comprehensive)            

  Sovereign 633,898  271,667   6,338,981   2,716,669
  Public sector enterprises 400,836  50,535   4,008,362   505,352
  Banks  422,701  472,699   4,227,010   4,726,986 
  Corporate 12,416,861  11,353,601   124,168,612   113,536,014
  Retail 796,238  603,020   7,962,380   6,030,203
  Residential mortgages 78,319  68,714  783,194   687,136
  Past due loans 87,167  23,766  871,672   237,664 
  Equity porfolio 595,303  394,497   5,953,031   3,944,972
  Operating fixed assets 1,380,058  1,175,817  13,800,578   11,758,169
  Other assets 177,048  233,351   1,770,480   2,333,513
   16,988,429  14,647,667   169,884,300   146,476,678
 Off-Balance sheet
  Non-market related
   Direct Credit Substitutes / Acceptances / 
       Standby LCs 1,534,465  1,127,434  15,344,650  11,274,340
   Transaction Realated Contingent Liabilities 662,803  484,799  6,628,025  4,847,993
   Trade Related Contingent Liabilities 1,055,911  1,181,960  10,559,106  11,819,600
   Other Commitments 498,067  127,590  4,980,665  1,275,901
    3,751,246  2,921,783  37,512,446  29,217,834
 Market related
  Outstanding Foreign Exchange Contracts 69,751  52,539  697,514  525,390
    3,820,997  2,974,322  38,209,960  29,743,224
 Market Risk     

  Capital Requirement for portfolios subject to
      Standardised Approach
  Interest rate risk 
   General market risk 59,305  33,784  741,309  422,300 
   Specific market risk 3,733  2,404  46,663  30,050
   Foreign exchange risk  13,296   13,546   166,203  169,325
    76,334  49,734  954,175  621,675
 Operational Risk

 Capital Requirement for operational risks 2,936,730  2,630,364  36,709,126  32,866,881

    23,822,490  20,302,087  245,757,561  209,708,458

 Capital Adequacy Ratios Required Actual
    2014  2013  2014  2013

 CET1 to total RWA 5.50%  5.00%  10.94%  10.76%
 Tier-1 capital to total RWA 7.00%  6.50%  10.94%  10.76%
 Total capital to total RWA 10.00%  10.00%  14.89%  14.33%
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42. RISK MANAGEMENT
 The Bank has a risk management framework commensurate with its size and the nature of its business. 

The Board of Directors has approved risk management policies covering key areas of activities for 
the guidance of management and committees of the Board, management committees, and Divisions / 
Departments of the Bank.

� 7KLV�VHFWLRQ�SUHVHQWV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�WKH�%DQN·V�H[SRVXUH�WR�DQG�LWV�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�FRQWURO�RI�
risks, in particular the primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments. 

42.1 Credit risk
 Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from failure by a client or counterparty to meet its contractual 

obligation. It emanates from loans and advances, commitments to lend, contingent liabilities such as 
letters of credit and guarantees, and other similar transactions both on and off balance sheet. These 
exclude investments and treasury-related exposures, which are covered under market risk.

 ,W�LV�WKH�%DQN·V�SROLF\�WKDW�DOO�FUHGLW�H[SRVXUHV�VKDOO�EH�DGHTXDWHO\�FROODWHUDOLVHG��H[FHSW�ZKHQ�VSHFLDOO\ 
exempted by SBP as in case of personal loans and credit cards, and those at overseas branch where 
the accepted local banking practice is followed.

 The objective of credit risk management is to keep credit risk exposure within permissible level, 
UHOHYDQW� WR� WKH�%DQN·V� ULVN� FDSLWDO�� WR�PDLQWDLQ� WKH� VRXQGQHVV�RI� DVVHWV� DQG� WR� HQVXUH� UHWXUQV�
commensurate with risk.

 Credit risk of the Bank is managed through the credit policy approved by the Board, a well defined 
credit approval mechanism, prescribed documentation requirement, post disbursement administration, 
review and monitoring of all credit facilities; and continuous assessment of credit worthiness of 
counterparties. Decisions regarding the credit portfolio are taken mainly by the Central Credit Committee. 
Credit Risk Management Committee of the Board provides overall guidance in managing the Bank's 
credit risk.

 Counterparty exposure limits are approved in line with the Prudential Regulations and the Bank's own 
policies, by taking into account both qualitative and quantitative criteria. There is an established system 
for continuous monitoring of credit exposures and follow-up of any past due loans with the respective 
business units. All past due loans, including trade bills, are reviewed on fortnightly basis and pursued 
for recovery. Any non-performing loans are classified and provided for as per Prudential Regulations. 
The Bank has also established a mechanism for independent post-disbursement review of large credit 
risk exposures. 

 Credit facilities, both fund based and non-fund based, extended to large customer groups and industrial 
sectors are regularly monitored. The Bank has concentration of credit in textile which is the largest 
sector of Pakistan's economy. Concentration risk is managed by diversification within sub-sectors like 
spinning, weaving and composites, credit worthiness of counterparties, and adequate collateralisation 
of exposures.

 Credit administration function has been placed under a centralised set-up. Its main focus is on 
FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WHUPV�RI�VDQFWLRQ�RI�FUHGLW�IDFLOLWLHV�DQG�WKH�%DQN·V�LQWHUQDO�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHGXUHV��
VFUXWLQ\�RI�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ��PRQLWRULQJ�RI�FROODWHUDO��DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI�ERUURZHUV·� OLPLWV��PDUN�XS�
rates, and security details.

 The Bank has implemented its own internal risk rating system for the credit portfolio, as per guidelines 
of SBP. Credit ratings by external rating agencies, if available, are also considered.

 The Bank lends primarily against the cash flow of the business with recourse to the assets being 
financed as primary security. Collaterals in the form of liquid securities, tangible securities, and other 
acceptable securities are obtained to hedge the risk, as deemed appropriate. Main types of collaterals 
taken by the Bank include charge on stock-in-trade, receivables, machinery, mortgage of properties, 
pledge of goods, shares and other marketable securities, government securities, government guarantees, 
bank guarantees and cash margins and bank deposits.

 Specific provisions on credit portfolio are determined in accordance with the Prudential Regulations. 
General provision on the consumer portfolio is also determined as per Prudential Regulations. The 
Bank maintains additional general provision in line with its prudent policies. Particulars of provisions 
against advances are given in note 11.6.

 The Bank uses the Standardised Approach to calculate capital charge for credit risk as per Basel 
regulatory framework, with comprehensive approach for credit risk mitigation.
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  Stress testing for credit risk is carried out regularly to estimate the impact of increase in non- 
performing loans and downward shift in these categories. 

 42.1.1 Credit risk: Disclosures on portfolio subject to Standardised Approach - Basel Specific
   The Bank uses the ratings issued by The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) and 

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS) for its local currency exposures and ratings 
issued by Moody·s, S&P, and Fitch for its foreign currency exposures. These External Credit 
Assessments Institutions (ECAIs) have been approved by SBP.

  For foreign currency claims on sovereigns, the Bank also uses risk scores of Export Credit Agencies 
(ECAs).

     Moody·s,
 JCR-VIS PACRA S&P, and Fitch ECA Score
 (local (local (foreign (foreign
  currency) currency) currency) currency)
 Types of exposures 
 Corporates ✓ ✓ – –
 Banks ✓ ✓ ✓ –
 Sovereigns – – ✓ ✓
 Small and Medium Enterprises – – – –
 Securitisations – – – –
 Others (public sector enterprises) ✓ ✓ – –

 The Bank has not transferred public issue ratings onto comparable assets in the banking book 
 in its calculations. ECAI ratings and ECA scores are aligned with risk buckets as determined by 
 SBP.
 Credit exposures subject to Standardised Approach

  Amount Credit Risk 
 outstanding/ Mitigation 
 credit equivalent (CRM)
 Risk buckets (rated and unrated) deduction Net amount
  (Rupees in '000)

 0% 379,627,021 18,792,055 360,834,966
 20% 19,948,560 3,394,695 16,553,865
 35% 2,237,698 –00 2,237,698
 50% 44,253,815 26,152,168 18,101,647
 75% 20,287,302 7,272,130 13,015,172
 100% 203,902,406 44,062,254 159,840,152
 115% 17,977,598 2,421,737 15,555,861
 150% 4,073,911 –00 4,073,911
250% 260,127 –00 260,127
  692,568,438 102,095,039 590,473,399

42.1.2 Credit risk: Disclosures on CRM for Standardised Approach – Basel Specific 
 Eligible collaterals used by the Bank for credit risk mitigation are cash margins and cash deposits, 

government securities, financial guarantees, listed shares, and other listed, quoted or rated securities. 
The Bank requires perfection of collaterals by marking lien on cash margins and deposits, pledging 
of shares and other securities and verifying the authenticity of guarantees received. Shares and 
securities including marketable government securities are taken at market value and other government 
securities are taken at encashment value. Appropriate hair - cuts are applied as per Basel regulatory 
framework. Among the mitigants used by the Bank, there is concentration in cash margins, cash 
deposits, and sovereign guarantees.
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42.1.3 Segment by class of business  2014
       Contingencies and
     Gross Advances Deposits Commitments

 (Rupees % (Rupees % (Rupees %
 in '000)  in '000)  in '000)

  Agriculture / agri business 4,069,347  2.16  1,066,899  0.24  1,530,837   1.43
  Automobiles and transportation 
       equipment  967,027  0.51  1,373,112  0.31  6,073,012   5.69
  Cement  466,995  0.25  293,865  0.07  1,114,047   1.04
  Chemicals / pharmaceuticals  3,310,146  1.76  1,436,443  0.32  2,898,134   2.71
  Commerce and trade  12,927,855  6.88  21,986,638  4.93  11,444,779   10.71
  Electronics and electrical appliances  761,377  0.41  698,151  0.16  980,085   0.92 
  Fertilizers  2,542,613  1.35  5,486,411  1.23  753,813   0.71
  Financial  2,200,683  1.17  9,756,339  2.19  9,113,733   8.53 
  Food and allied  30,980,355  16.48  3,716,977  0.83  2,893,386   2.71  

 Ghee and edible oil  9,554,825  5.08  1,067,997  0.24  4,929,807   4.61 
  Individuals  5,931,452  3.16  305,690,244  68.48  8,778   0.01
  Iron and steel  11,196,411  5.96  830,412  0.19  8,164,987   7.64
  Oil refinery / marketing  3,608,421  1.92  21,820,829  4.89  11,738,514   10.99
  Paper and board  2,158,615  1.15  226,931  0.05  662,861   0.62 
  Plastic products  2,404,197  1.28  348,395  0.07  3,108,171   2.91  

  Production and transmission of energy  7,930,767  4.22  4,291,215  0.96  4,252,274   3.98 
  Real estate / construction  1,134,853  0.60  6,179,808  1.38  4,028,983   3.77 
  Services (other than financial) 1,395,975  0.74  11,420,621  2.56  1,366,727   1.28 
  Shoes and leather garments 1,430,703  0.76  1,105,858  0.25  527,256   0.49
  Sugar  6,085,499  3.24  2,514,596  0.56  363,537   0.34
  Surgical equipments and
    metal products  1,007,046  0.54  1,142,069  0.25  1,019,162   0.95
  Textile         
    Spinning  25,999,120  13.83  1,544,087  0.35  6,127,999   5.74  

   Weaving  11,163,257  5.94  976,726  0.22  5,494,499   5.14
    Composite  21,074,133  11.21  2,218,383  0.49  5,347,167   5.01
    Ready made garments 6,607,279  3.52  1,384,527  0.31  3,133,534   2.93
     64,843,789  34.50  6,123,723  1.37  20,103,199   18.82
  Others 11,063,865  5.88  37,831,471  8.47  9,759,288   9.14
     187,972,816  100.00  446,409,004  100.00  106,835,370   100.00
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       2013
        Contingencies and
      Gross Advances Deposits Commitments

  (Rupees % (Rupees % (Rupees %
  in '000)  in '000)  in '000)

 Agriculture / agri business 3,369,732 1.94 779,247 0.20  2,159,391  2.22
 Automobiles and transportation 
    equipment  633,370  0.36 1,474,348   0.38  2,511,656 2.58
 Cement   242,437  0.14  68,984  0.02  908,183   0.93
 Chemicals / pharmaceuticals  3,197,661  1.84  2,132,190  0.55 2,595,773  2.67
 Commerce and trade  12,287,970  7.08  17,054,478  4.42  12,083,703   12.43
 Electronics and electrical appliances  893,044 0.51  539,135  0.14  1,169,347   1.20 

Fertilizers   –00 –00  3,177,932  0.82  100,298   0.10
 Financial   3,496,710 2.01  14,131,752 3.66  13,905,286   14.30 

Food and allied  26,046,335 15.00  3,045,928 0.79  2,727,433   2.80 
Ghee and edible oil  5,588,241 3.22  1,035,950  0.27  5,431,248   5.59 
Individuals  4,272,674 2.46  271,728,509 70.37  11,699   0.01 
Iron and steel  8,515,451 4.90  860,449 0.22  3,289,616  3.38

 Oil refinery / marketing  437,547  0.25  16,209,588  4.20  4,856,770  4.99
 Paper and board  2,106,048  1.21  104,635  0.03  838,057  0.86 

Plastic products  3,654,070  2.10  397,213  0.10  3,479,424  3.58  
Production and transmission of energy  8,667,112  4.99  2,402,463  0.62  1,819,731  1.87  
Real estate / construction  1,266,357  0.73  2,974,402  0.77  3,041,855  3.13 
Services (other than financial) 1,518,124  0.87  10,204,001  2.64  1,496,818  1.54 
Shoes and leather garments 1,497,637  0.86  867,611  0.22  312,047  0.32

 Sugar    5,518,898  3.18  1,085,943 0.28  425,998  0.44
 Surgical equipments and
   metal products  857,007  0.49  538,855  0.14  906,211   0.93 

Textile         
  Spinning  29,237,736  16.84  1,659,050   0.43  10,127,901  10.42  

 Weaving  11,746,000  6.76  776,016   0.20  4,616,472   4.75
  Composite  23,570,275  13.57  1,752,223  0.45  5,183,115  5.33
  Ready made garments 4,796,906  2.76  1,298,900   0.34  3,216,443  3.31
    69,350,917 39.93 5,486,189 1.42 23,143,931 23.81
 Others   10,245,213 5.93 29,860,960 7.74 10,025,410 10.32
   173,662,555 100.00 386,160,762 100.00 97,239,885 100.00
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42.1.4 Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by class of business segment 

    2014 2013
   Specific   Specific
 Classified Provision  Classified Provision
 Advances held  Advances held
   (Rupees in '000)

 Agriculture / agri business 95,883 83,677  90,277 74,156
 Automobiles and transportation equipment 7,015 7,015 7,196 7,196
 Commerce and trade 619,660 559,520  492,139 474,421
 Electronics and electrical appliances 4,058 4,058 4,058 4,058
 Financial   101,949 70,957  101,949 70,832
 Ghee and edible oil 3,138 3,138  3,838 2,516 
 Individuals  42,544 40,929  48,370 47,520
 Iron and steel 753,623 222,574  –00 –00
 Oil refinery / marketing 3,983 3,983  11,948 11,948
 Plastic products 61,003 61,003  91,400 91,400
 Real estate / construction 256,504 256,504 263,006 260,867
 Services (other than financial) –00 –00 207 207
 Shoes and leather garments 572 572 1,715 1,715 
 Textile     
   Spinning   795,214 781,646  809,456 792,873
   Weaving   881,829 540,807 267,028 244,037
   Composite  971,108 969,739  992,173 950,564
   Ready - made garments  415,317 415,317 492,462 492,462
     3,063,468 2,707,509 2,561,119 2,479,936
 Others   11,378 11,378 22,681 16,352
     5,024,778 4,032,817 3,699,903 3,543,124

42.1.5 Segment by sector   
      2014
     Gross  Contingencies and
     Advances Deposits Commitments
  (Rupees % (Rupees % (Rupees %
  in '000)  in '000)  in '000)

 Public / Government 34,203,270 18.20 40,763,122 9.13 17,348,123 16.24
 Private 153,769,546 81.80 405,645,882 90.87 89,487,247 83.76

  187,972,816 100.00 446,409,004 100.00 106,835,370 100.00
      
      2013
     Gross  Contingencies and
     Advances Deposits Commitments
  (Rupees % (Rupees % (Rupees %
  in '000)  in '000)  in '000)

 Public / Government 28,422,641 16.37 29,004,153 7.51 10,208,682 10.50
 Private 145,239,914 83.63 357,156,609 92.49 87,031,203 89.50

  173,662,555 100.00 386,160,762 100.00 97,239,885 100.00
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42.2 Market risk

 Market risk is the risk of loss arising from movements in market rates or prices, such as interest rates, 
foreign exchange rates, and equity prices.

 The Bank takes positions in securities for the purpose of investment and not to run a trading book. As 
regards foreign exchange positions, the purpose is to serve the needs of clients. The Bank does not 
engage in trading or market making activities.

42.1.7 Geographical segment analysis
      2014 
    Profit  Total   Contingencies
    before assets  Net assets and
    taxation employed  employed Commitments
      (Rupees in '000)

 Pakistan  9,615,048  560,664,971  30,388,269  104,109,281
 Middle East  364,991  16,416,728  1,605,870  2,726,089
 Asia Pacific  (39,158 ) 1,218,721  458,234  –00
 Africa   (23,767 ) 618,409  175,978  –00

    9,917,114 578,918,829 32,628,351 106,835,370

      2013 
    Profit  Total   Contingencies
    before assets  Net assets and
    taxation employed  employed Commitments
      (Rupees in '000)

 Pakistan  7,125,238  447,704,183  23,854,100  94,802,805
 Middle East  387,737  13,022,735  1,427,951  2,437,080
 Asia Pacific  –00  –00  –00  –00 
 Africa   –00  –00  –00  –00 

    7,512,975 460,726,918 25,282,051 97,239,885

42.1.6 Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by sector
    2014 2013
   Specific   Specific
 Classified Provision  Classified Provision
 Advances held  Advances held
   (Rupees in '000)

 Public / Government –00 –00 –00 –00
 Private  5,024,778 4,032,817 3,699,903 3,543,124

   5,024,778 4,032,817 3,699,903 3,543,124
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 Market risk is managed through the market risk policy approved by the Board, approval of counterparty 
and dealer limits, specific senior management approval for each investment and regular review and 
monitoring of the investment portfolio by the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO). A key 
HOHPHQW�RI�WKH�%DQN·V�PDUNHW�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�LV�WR�EDODQFH�VDIHW\��OLTXLGLW\��DQG�LQFRPH�LQ�WKDW�RUGHU�
of priority. Another key element is separation of functions and reporting lines for the Treasury Division 
which undertakes dealing activities within the limits and parameters set by ALCO, Settlements 
Department which confirms and settles the aforesaid deals and Middle Office which independently 
monitors and analyses the risks inherent in treasury operations. Risk Management Committee of the 
%RDUG�SURYLGHV�RYHUDOO�JXLGDQFH�LQ�PDQDJLQJ�WKH�%DQN·V�PDUNHW�ULVN�

 Dealing activities of the Bank include investment in government securities, term finance certificates, 
sukuks / bonds, shares and mutual funds, money market transactions and foreign exchange transactions 
catering to the needs of its customers. All such activities are carried out within the prescribed limits. 
Any excess over limits noted by the Settlements Department and / or the Middle Office is reported to 
senior management and ALCO. Stress testing is performed as per guidelines of SBP as well as Bank's 
internal policy.

 The Bank uses the Standardised Approach to calculate capital charge for market risk as per Basel 
regulatory framework. Details of capital charge for market risk are given in note 41.4.

42.2.1 Interest rate / yield risk

 Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from adverse movements in interest rates. ALCO monitors and 
manages the interest rate risk with the objective of limiting the potential adverse effects on the profitability 
of the Bank arising from fluctuation in the market interest rates and mismatching or gaps in the amount 
of financial assets and financial liabilities in different maturity time bands.

 The Bank's interest rate exposure is calculated by categorising its interest sensitive assets and liabilities 
into various time bands based on the earlier of their contractual repricing or maturity dates.

 Interest rate risk exposures of the Bank are controlled through dealer limits, counter-party exposure 
limits and (when necessary) type-of-instrument limits. Duration and modified duration of various types 
of debt securities as well as their entire portfolio are also calculated, and the impact of adverse change 
in interest rates on the market value of the securities is estimated. Stress testing for interest rate risk 
is carried out regularly to estimate the impact of adverse changes in the interest rates.

 Interest rate / yield risk in the banking book – Basel Specific

 The Bank holds financial assets and financial liabilities with different maturities or repricing dates and 
linked to different benchmark rates, thus creating exposure to unexpected changes in the level of 
interest rates. Interest rate risk in the banking book refers to the risk associated with interest-bearing 
financial instruments that are not held in the trading book of the Bank.

� 5HSULFLQJ�JDS�DQDO\VLV� SUHVHQWV� WKH�%DQN·V� LQWHUHVW� VHQVLWLYH�DVVHWV� �,6$�� DQG� LQWHUHVW� VHQVLWLYH�
liabilities (ISL), categorised into various time bands based on the earlier of their contractual repricing 
or maturity dates (or settlement dates  for off-balance sheet instruments). Deposits with no fixed 
PDWXULW\�GDWHV��IRU�H[DPSOH��VDYLQJ�GHSRVLWV�DQG�WUHDVXUHU·V�FDOO�GHSRVLWV��DUH�LQFOXGHG��LQ�WKH�ORZHVW��
one-month time band, but these are not expected to be payable within a one-month period. The 
difference between ISA and ISL for each time band signifies the gap in that time band, and provides 
a workable framework for determining the impact on net interest income.

 The Bank reviews the repricing gap analysis periodically to monitor and manage interest rate risk in 
the banking book.           
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42.2.3 Foreign exchange risk

 Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in currency exchange rates. The 
%DQN·V�IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�H[SRVXUH�FRPSULVHV�IRUZDUG�FRQWUDFWV��SXUFKDVH�RI�IRUHLJQ�ELOOV��IRUHLJQ�
currency loans and investments, foreign currency cash in hand, balances with banks abroad, foreign 
FXUUHQF\�GHSRVLWV�DQG�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�SODFHPHQWV�ZLWK�6%3�DQG�RWKHU�EDQNV��)RFXV�RI�WKH�%DQN·V�
foreign exchange activities is on catering to the needs of its customers, both in spot and forward 
markets.

 Foreign exchange risk exposures of the Bank are controlled through dealer limits, open foreign 
exchange position limits, counterparty exposure limits, and country limits. The Bank manages its 
foreign exchange exposure by matching foreign currency assets and liabilities within strict limits. 
The net open position in any single currency and the overall foreign exchange exposure are both 
managed within the statutory limits as prescribed by SBP as well as the internal limits set by the 
Bank itself. Stress testing for foreign exchange risk is carried out regularly to estimate the impact of 
adverse changes in foreign exchange rates. 

    2014
      Net
    Off-balance currency
 Assets Liabilities  sheet items exposure
   (Rupees in '000)

 Pakistan Rupee 528,544,018  496,188,083  (1,990,371 ) 30,365,564  
 United States Dollar 47,613,038  39,218,122  (6,516,659 ) 1,878,257
 Great Britain Pound 973,959  6,988,949  6,129,289  114,299  
 Japanese Yen 22,521  6,688  (15,973 ) (140 )
 Euro 1,389,311  3,250,171  1,902,253  41,393 
 Other currencies  375,982  638,465  491,461  228,978
   578,918,829  546,290,478  –00  32,628,351

    2013
      Net
    Off-balance currency
 Assets Liabilities  sheet items exposure
   (Rupees in '000)
 Pakistan Rupee 415,649,012  388,472,753  (3,103,429 ) 24,072,830  
 United States Dollar 42,473,592  37,968,071  (3,270,077 ) 1,235,444
 Great Britain Pound 762,922  5,789,941  5,033,460  6,441  
 Japanese Yen 39,243  4,288  (49,851 ) (14,896 )
 Euro 1,445,134  2,596,707  1,120,142  (31,431 )
 Other currencies  357,015  613,107  269,755  13,663
   460,726,918  435,444,867  –00  25,282,051 
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42.3 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk of loss to a bank arising from its inability to meet obligations as they fall due 
or to fund growth in assets, without incurring unacceptable losses.    
       Liquidity risk is managed through the liquidity risk policy approved by the Board, careful monitoring 
of daily liquidity position by the Treasury Division and the Middle Office and regular review and 
monitoring of the liquidity position by  ALCO. Risk Management Committee of the Board provides 
RYHUDOO�JXLGDQFH�LQ�PDQDJLQJ�WKH�%DQN·V�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�

� .H\�HOHPHQWV�RI�WKH�%DQN·V�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�DUH�DV�IROORZV�

 - To maintain a comfortable margin of excess liquidity in the form of cash and readily marketable  
�DVVHWV�WR�PHHW�WKH�%DQN·V�IXQGLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DW�DQ\�WLPH�� � � � �
     - To keep a strong focus on mobilisation of low-cost core deposits from customers.  
        - To maintain a realistic balance between the behavioural maturity profiles of assets and liabilities. 
         - To maintain excellent credit rating (as borrowing costs and ability to raise funds are directly 
affected by credit rating).         

 - To have a written contingency funding plan to address any hypothetical situations when access 
to normal sources of funding is constrained.

 7KH�%DQN·V�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�DGGUHVVHV�WKH�JRDO�RI�SURWHFWLQJ�VROYHQF\�DQG�WKH�DELOLW\�WR�
withstand stressful events in the market place. Stress testing for liquidity risk is carried out regularly 
to estimate the impact of decline in liquidity on the ratio of liquid assets to deposits plus borrowings.
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42.4 Equity position risk in the banking book – Basel Specific

 The Bank's policy is to take equity positions for investment purposes and not to run a trading book 
for buying and selling of equities. Equity holdings include direct investment in shares and in 
equity-based mutual funds, both closed-end and open-end. Policies covering their valuation and 
accounting are disclosed in note 5.4.

 Equity position risk        
         
� (TXLW\�SRVLWLRQ�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�RI�ORVV�IURP�DGYHUVH�PRYHPHQWV�LQ�HTXLW\�SULFHV��7KH�%DQN·V�SROLF\�

is to take equity positions for investment purposes and not to run a trading book for buying and 
selling of shares.

 Equity position risk of the Bank is controlled through equity portfolio limits, sector limits, scrip limits, 
and future contracts limits. Direct investment in equities and mutual funds is managed within the 
statutory limits as prescribed by SBP as well as the internal limits set by the Bank itself. Stress 
testing for equity price risk is carried out regularly to estimate the impact of decline in stock prices. 
    

42.5 Operational risk        
         
 Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, 

and systems or from external events. This definition includes legal risks but excludes strategic and 
reputational risks.

 Operational risk is managed through the operational risk policy and audit policy approved by the 
Board, along with the policies on prevention of frauds and forgeries and compliance with “Know 
Your Customer” / "Customer Due Diligence" and “Anti Money Laundering / Combating Financing of 
Terrorism” requirements; operational manuals and procedures issued from time to time; a system 
of internal controls and dual authorisation for important transactions and safe-keeping; a Business 
Continuity Plan, including a Disaster Recovery Plan for I.T., to prevent interruption of business 
services in the event of a major incident or disaster; an I.T. Security Policy to ensure security and 
integrity of I.T. systems; and regular audit of the branches. Audit Committee of the Board provides 
RYHUDOO�JXLGDQFH�LQ�PDQDJLQJ�WKH�%DQN·V�RSHUDWLRQDO�ULVN��

� 7KH�%DQN·V�RSHUDWLRQDO�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�IUDPHZRUN��DV�ODLG�GRZQ�LQ�WKH�RSHUDWLRQDO�ULVN�SROLF\��
permits the overall risk management approach to evolve in the light of organisational learning and 
the future needs of the Bank.

 The Bank places a high priority on conducting all business dealings with integrity and fairness, as 
laid down in the Code of Conduct, which is required to be complied with by all employees. 

 Internal controls are an essential feature of risk reduction in operational risk management and the 
Bank continues to improve its internal controls.

 Operational risk disclosures – Basel Specific

 The Bank uses Basic Indicator Approach to calculate capital charge for operational risk as per Basel 
regulatory framework. This approach is considered to be most suitable in view of the business model 
of the Bank which relies on an extensive network of branches to offer one-stop, full-service banking 
to its clients. The Bank has developed and implemented an Operational Loss Database. Operational 
loss and "near miss" events are reviewed and appropriate corrective actions taken on an ongoing 
basis, including measures to improve security and control procedures.

95



43. ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

43.1 The Bank is operating 17 (2013: 17) Islamic banking branches in Pakistan. The statement of financial 
position and profit and loss account of these branches as at 31 December 2014 and for the year are 
as follows:

43.1.1 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

     2014  2013
    Note  (Rupees in '000)
 ASSETS
  Cash and balance with treasury banks   484,073 363,446
  Balances with and due from financial institutions   1,638,371 35,677
  Investments    2,798,926 1,493,818
  Islamic financing and related assets 43.1.1.1 7,974,727 10,647,906
  Operating fixed assets   62,860 62,567
  Other assets   214,790 359,340
     13,173,747 12,962,754
 LIABILITIES
  Bills payable  142,421 112,276
  Due to financial institutions  1,336,648 1,643,761
  Deposits and other accounts  9,859,014 8,617,703
  – Current accounts  3,267,028 2,198,218
  – Saving accounts  2,085,041 1,420,729
  – Term deposits  4,449,048 3,380,965
  – Others   40,532 11,348  

 – Deposits from financial institutions - remunerative  16,439 1,605,680
  – Deposits from financial institutions - non-remunerative 926 763

  Due to Head Office  –00 990,000
  Other liabilities  462,701 293,351
     (11,800,784 ) (11,657,091 )

 NET ASSETS   1,372,963  1,305,663

 REPRESENTED BY:
  Islamic banking fund  1,100,000  1,000,000
  Unremitted profit  305,917  301,343

     1,405,917  1,301,343
  (Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of assets  (32,954 ) 4,320

     1,372,963  1,305,663
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43.1.1.1 Islamic financing and related assets
     2014  2013
      (Rupees in '000)
 Murabaha   1,988,650  4,684,555
 Net book value of assets / investment in ijarah under IFAS 2 488,316  202,296
 Diminishing musharika  3,106,668  3,056,660
 Export refinance murabaha  86,274  38,934
 Export refinance istisna  1,257,788  1,517,077
 Istisna    667,453  651,646
 Gross financings  7,595,149  10,151,168
 Less: general provisioning against consumer financing (688 ) (523 )
 Net financing   7,594,461  10,150,645
 Advance against murabaha  360,910  449,831
 Advance against ijarah  19,356  47,430
 Islamic financing and related assets - net off provision 7,974,727  10,647,906

43.1.1.2 Islamic mode of financing

 Financings / inventory / receivables  7,595,149  10,151,168
 Advances   380,266  497,261
 Less: general provision against consumer financing  (688 ) (523 )
     7,974,727  10,647,906 

43.2 PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

 Profit / return on financing and placements earned  1,111,230  1,046,170
 Profit / return on deposits and other dues expensed  (561,964 ) (568,622 )
     549,266  477,548
 Provision against non performing loans and advances (164 ) (292 )

 Net spread earned  549,102  477,256

 OTHER INCOME
  Fee, commission and brokerage income  37,169  27,776
  Income from dealing in foreign currencies  9,232  8,795
  Other income  10,792  8,796

     57,193  45,367

     606,295  522,623
 OTHER EXPENSES
  Administrative expenses  (300,378 ) (221,280 )

 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  305,917  301,343
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     2014  2013
      (Rupees in '000)

43.3 Remuneration to Shariah Advisor / Board  2,250  1,890

43.4 CHARITY FUND

 Opening balance  4,144  9,779
 Additions during the year  2,621  4,144
 Payments / utilisation during the year  
  Health   (2,500 ) (6,804 )
  Social welfare  (1,644 ) (2,975 )
     (4,144 ) (9,779 )
 Closing balance  2,621  4,144

43.5 PROFIT AND LOSS DISTRIBUTION AND POOL MANAGEMENT

43.5.1 The number and nature of pools maintained by the Islamic Banking Branches along with 
their key features and risk & reward characteristics:

 We have a single pool mechanism with the depositors. The pool operates on Mudarba basis. Since 
we are operating in a single pool structure the risk and reward are proportionately shared by the 
depositor.

 Parameters associated with risk and rewards:

 Following are the key considerations attached with risk and reward of the pool: 

 - Period, return, safety, security and liquidity of investment.
 - Maturities of funds obtained from Principal Office, Islamic Banking Institutions and   
    Shariah compliant organisations as regulated in Pakistan.
 - Element of risk attached to various types of investments.
 - SBP rules & Shariah clearance.

43.5.2 Avenues / sectors of economy / business where Mudaraba based deposits have been deployed: 

 The Mudarba based funds have been deployed in the following avenues / sectors / business :

 - Chemical & Pharmaceuticals
 - Agribusiness
 - Textile        
 - Sugar        
 - Shoes & Leather garments
 - Investment in Sukuk
 - Production and transmission of energy
 - Food and allied except sugar
 - Wheat        
 - Individuals        
 - Others (Domestic wholes sale, plastic product etc.)



43.5.3 Parameters used for allocation of profit, charging expenses and provisions etc. along with a brief 
description of their major components:

� 7KH�%DQN·V�,VODPLF�%DQNLQJ�'LYLVLRQ��,%'��LV�FXUUHQWO\�DFFHSWLQJ�3DN�5XSHHV�7HUP�'HSRVLWV�DQG�
Saving Deposits under Modaraba arrangements, wherein the Bank is Mudarib and depositors are 
Rab-Ul-Maal. The Bank also commingles its funds with those of depositors.

 The funds so generated are invested by the Bank in Shariah compliant modes of financing such as 
Murabaha, Ijarah, Istisna, Diminishing Musharaka and Ijarah Sukuk.

 The Bank calculates the profit of the pool after every quarter. Profit is distributed at the Net income 
level. Net income is calculated after deducting costs and expenses such as cost of Murabaha, cost 
of Takaful, Depreciation and loss of investments, directly incurred in deriving that Income.

 The Net income / loss is being allocated between the Bank's equity and the depositors' fund in 
proportion to their respective share in pool.

 TKH�%DQN·V�SURILW�VKDULQJ�UDWLR�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZDV�����������������RI�1HW�,QFRPH�DQG�WKH�GHSRVLWRUV· 
profit sharing ratio was 50% (2013: 50%) of Net Income.

 After the allocation of Income between the equity holder and depositors the profit is distributed among 
the account holders on the basis of predetermined weightages, announced by the Bank at the 
beginning of the quarter based on their respective category / tiers. In case of loss, Rab-Ul-Maal  has 
to bear the loss in the ratio of its investment.

 In case of provisioning, the general and specific provisions created against non - performing financing 
and diminution in the value of investments as under prudential regulations and other SBP directives 
shall be borne by the IBIs as Mudarib. However, write-offs of financings and loss on sale of investments 
shall be charged to the pool along with other direct expenses.

43.5.4 Mudarib share (in amount and percentage of Distributable Income) 

  2014 2013
   (Rupees in million)

 Distributable Income 739 698
 Mudarib Share 368 349
 Mudarib Share (%) 50% 50%

43.5.5 Amount and percentage of Mudarib share transferred to the 
   depositors through Hiba

 Mudarib Share 368 349
 Hiba 110 104
 Hiba percentage of Mudarib Share 30% 30%

43.5.6 Profit rate earned vs. profit rate distributed to the depositors
   during the year

 Profit Rate Earned  10.24% 10.35%
 Profit Rate Distributed 5.29% 5.57%
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44. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

 Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 3 (2013: 
Rs. 2) per share and issue of bonus shares of in the ratio of NIL (2013:10) shares for every 100 
shares held.

45. GENERAL

45.1 Comparative information has been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these 
unconsolidated financial statements, wherever necessary to facilitate comparative and to conform 
with changes in presentation in the current year.

45.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

46. DATE OF AUTHORISATION

 These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in the Board of Directors' 
meeting held on February 17, 2015.        
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SYED HASAN ALI BUKHARI
Director

ALI RAZA D. HABIB
Chairman

ABBAS D. HABIB
Chief Executive and
Managing Director

SYED MAZHAR ABBAS
Director
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Annexure-1

Statement showing written-off loans or any other financial relief
of five hundred thousand rupees or above provided

during the year ended 31 December 2014
(Rupees in '000)

 1. Whito International (Pvt) Ltd Mr. Muhammad Faryad Malik Mr. Malik Abdul Majeed – 1,401 – 1,401 – 853 – 853 
  87-Ahmed Block,  (CNIC:  34601-4949170-5)
  New Garden Town, Lahore
   Mrs. Khatoon Faryad Mr. Muhammad Faryad Malik
   (CNIC: 34601-2772028-4)

 2. Muhammad Shafi Mr. Muhammad Shafi Mr. Jamal Ud Din – 1,478 – 1,478 – 1,478 – 1,478
  Room No. 309, (CNIC: 42201-0603648-9)
  Cotton Exchange Building
  I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

 3. Rasheed Y. Chinoy Mr. Rasheed Yousuf Chinoy Mr. Yousuf Noor Muhammad – 918 – 918 – 918 – 918
  Uzma Arcade, 2nd Floor, (CNIC: 42000-9065661-9) Chinoy
  Main Clifton Road, Karachi. 

 4. Inter Continental Furnishing Co. Mr. Rasheed Yousuf Chinoy Mr. Yousuf Noor Muhammad 859 771 – 1,630 – 786 – 786
  KPT Gate No. 11, T.P.X Yard, (CNIC: 42000-9065661-9) Chinoy
  Off Moulvi Tamizuddin Khan 
  Road, Karachi.

 5. Continental Furnishing Co.  Mr. Rasheed Yousuf Chinoy Mr. Yousuf Noor Muhammad – 881 – 881 – 881 – 881
  (Pvt.) Limited (CNIC: 42000-9065661-9) Chinoy 
  KPT Gate No. 11, T.P.X Yard,  
  Off Moulvi Tamizuddin Khan Mr. Saeed Yousuf Chinoy Mr. Yousuf Noor Muhammad
  Road, Karachi. (CNIC: 42301-1127151-7) Chinoy

 6. Switch Securities (Pvt) Ltd Mr. Ali Raza Jaffery Mr. Muhammad Razi Jaffery – 87,633 – 87,633 – 87,633 – 87,633
  179-B, Abu Bakar Block, (CNIC: 35202-2679170-1) 
  New Garden Town, Lahore. 
   Mr. Sami Ullah Butt Mr. Fateh Muhammad
   (CNIC: 35200-1572395-9)

   Mr. Abdul Maalik Khan Mr. Abdul Qadeer Khan
   (CNIC: 35202-2931016-3)

 7. First Pakistan Securities Ltd Mr. Sami Ullah Butt Mr. Fateh Muhammad – 16,435 – 16,435 – 16,435 – 16,435
  179-B, Abu Bakar Block, (CNIC: 35200-1572395-9) 
  New Garden Town, Lahore.

   Mr. Abdul Maalik Khan Mr. Abdul Qadeer Khan
   (CNIC: 35202-2931016-3)

   Mr. Azeem-ul-Hassan Mr. Bakhtiar-ul-Hassan
   (CNIC: 35201-0622729-5)

 8. Salman Impex Mr. Salman Mr. Muhammad Jaffer 2,230 1,639 – 3,869 480 1,639 – 2,119
  Suite # 1007,  (CNIC: 42301-1771152-7) 
  Jilani Tower M.W. Tower, 
  M.A. Jinnah Road, Karachi.

 9. Abdul Rehman Pasha Mr. Abdul Rehman Mr. Habib Ullah 27,481 10,347 – 37,828 – 4,828 – 4,828
  60-P, Block 2, P.E.C.H.S, (CNIC: 42201-3223326-3) 
  Karachi.

    Total 30,570 121,503 – 152,073 480 115,451 – 115,931

Note: 1 The amount of principal written off was against the specific provision held by the Bank.
Note: 2 Interest / mark-up written off was against suspended mark-up.  

Name of
individuals /
partners /

directors (with
CNIC No.)

S.
No.

Name and
address

of the borrowers

Father's /
Husband's

Name

Outstanding Liabilities
at beginning of year

Principal Interest /
Mark-up Others Total

Principal
written-

off

Interest /
Mark-up
written-

off

Other
financial

relief
provided

Total
(9+10+11)

(3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12)(2)(1)
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Report of Shariah Advisor
We have examined, on test check basis, each class of transaction, the relevant documentation and procedures 
adopted by Islamic Banking Branches / Division of Bank AL Habib Limited (IBB-BAHL), and we hereby report, 
for the year ended December 31, 2014, that in our opinion;

 (a) The affairs of IBB-BAHL have been carried out in accordance with rules and principles of Shariah, 
SBP regulations and guidelines related to Shariah compliance and other rules as well as with specific 
fatawa and rulings issued by the Shariah Advisor from time to time; 

 (b) The allocation of funds, weightages, profit sharing ratios, profits and charging of losses, if any, relating 
to PLS accounts conform to the basis vetted by the Shariah Advisor in accordance with Shariah rules 
and principles and;

 (c) Any earnings that have been realised from sources or by means prohibited by Shariah rules and 
principles have been credited to charity account.

 ISMATULLAH
 Shariah Advisor
Karachi: February 17, 2015 Islamic Banking Division



Notice of Annual General Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the Twenty-fourth Annual General Meeting of Bank AL Habib Limited will be 
held at the Registered Office of the Bank located at 126-C, Old Bahawalpur Road, Multan, on Wednesday, 
March 18, 2015 at 10:30 a.m. to transact the following business:

1. To receive and adopt the Audited Annual Accounts and Consolidated Accounts of the Bank for the 
year ended December 31, 2014 together with the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To consider and approve payment of cash dividend @ 30%, i.e., Rs. 3 per share of Rs.10/- each for 
the year ended December 31, 2014 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

3. To appoint auditors for the year 2015 and to fix their remuneration. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered 
Accountants, being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

4. To consider any other business of the Bank with the permission of the Chair.

Special Business

5. To consider and approve the remuneration payable to Directors for attending Board Meeting and 
Sub-Committee Meeting of Board.

 For Item No.5, a statement under Section 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 is annexed.

 By order of the Board

 MOHAMMAD TAQI LAKHANI
Karachi: February 25, 2015 Company Secretary 

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 
on his/her behalf. A proxy (except for a corporation) must be a member of the Bank. Proxy form, in 
order to be effective, must be received at the Registered Office of the Bank located at 126-C, Old 
Bahawalpur Road, Multan, duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

2. The CDC account / sub account holders are requested to bring with them their Computerized 
National Identity Cards along with participant(s) ID Number and their account numbers at the time of 
attending the Annual General Meeting in order to facilitate identification of the respective shareholers. 
,Q�FDVH�RI�D�FRUSRUDWH�HQWLW\�� WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV·�5HVROXWLRQ�3RZHU�RI�$WWRUQH\�ZLWK�VSHFLPHQ�
signatures be produced at the time of meeting.

3. The share transfer book of the Bank will remain closed from March 9, 2015 to March 18, 2015 (both 
days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of our Share Registrar, Noble Computer 
Services (Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor, House of Habib Building (Siddiqsons Tower), 3-Jinnah Cooperative 
Housing Society, Main Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi, by the close of business on March 6, 2015 will be 
treated in time for payment of dividend (subject to approval of the members). Members are also 
requested to promptly communicate any change in their address to our above-mentioned Share 
Registrar.

4. Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its S.R.O. 779 (I)/2011 dated August 18, 
2011 has directed all listed companies to ensure that Dividend Warrants should bear the Computerised 
National Identity Card (CNIC) Numbers of the registered members. Members who have not yet 
provided attested copies of their valid CNICs/NTNs (in case of corporate entities) are requested to 
send the same directly to the aforesaid Share Registrar of the Bank at the earliest.
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5. The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2014 has made certain amendments in Section 
150 of the Income Tax ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of 
withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies/banks. These tax rates are as 
follows:

 (a) For filers of income tax returns 10%
 (b) For non-filers of income tax returns 15%

 To enable the Bank to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 10% instead of 15% all 
shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on the 
website of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are 
entered into ATL before the date of payment of the cash dividend, otherwise tax on their cash 
dividend will be deducted @15% instead of 10%. 

6.  Audited Financial Statements through e-mail:

 SECP through its Notification SRO 787 (I)/2014 dated September 8, 2014 has allowed the circulation 
of Audited Financial Statements along with Notice of Annual General Meeting to the members 
through e-mail. Therefore, all members of the Bank who wish to receive soft copy of Annual Report 
are requested to send their e-mail addresses. The consent form for electronic transmission could be 
GRZQORDGHG�IURP�WKH�%DQN·V�ZHEVLWH��ZZZ��EDQNDOKDELE�FRP�

7. Consent for video conference facility

 For this AGM, under following conditions, Members can also avail video conference facility at Karachi.

 If the Bank receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10 % or more share  holding residing 
at a geographical location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior 
to date of meeting, the Bank will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of 
such facility in that city.

 The Bank will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility 5 days before the date 
of general meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

 In this regard, members who wish to participate through video conference facility at Karachi should 
send a duly signed request as per following format to the registered address of the Bank at least 10 
days before the date of general meeting.

 

 I/We, ________________________ of __________________________ being a member of      

 Bank AL Habib LIMITED, holder of ______________ ordinary share(s) as per register Folio 

 No./ CDC Sub-Account No.:___________ hereby opt for video conference facility at Karachi.
    

                     __________________
          Signature of Member
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Statement Under Section 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984
The statement is annexed to the Notice of the 24th Annual General Meeting of Bank AL Habib Limited at 
which certain special business is to be transacted. The purpose of this statement is to set forth the material 
facts concerning such special business.    

Item No. 5 of the Agenda

It is proposed that the remuneration payable to Directors for attending Board Meeting and Sub-Committee 
Meeting of the Board be increased from Rs. 50,000/- to Rs.75,000/- per meeting and to pass the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED that the remuneration payable to Directors for attending Board Meeting and Sub-Committee 
Meeting of the Board be and is hereby increased from Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand) to Rs. 75,000/- 
(Rupees Seventy Five Thousand).

“FURTHER RESOLVED that the figure “Rs. 50,000” (Rupees Fifty Thousand) appearing in Article 106 of 
Articles of Association be and is hereby substituted by the figure “Rs. 75,000” (Rupees Seventy Five
Thousand).”
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 Categories of Number of Number of
 Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

 Individuals 6,999 626,510,740 56.37%
 Investment Companies 3 24,335 0.00%
 Insurance Companies 12 102,022,662 9.18%
 Joint Stock Companies 101 79,348,002 7.14%
 Financial Institutions 17 52,620,103 4.73%
 Modaraba Companies 1 12 0.00%
 Mutual Funds 22 97,764,265 8.80%
 Foreign Companies 17 46,488,148 4.18%
 Pension Funds 24 15,216,472 1.37%
 Others 74 91,430,677 8.23%
 
 TOTAL 7,270 1,111,425,416 100.00%

Number of    Total Shares
 Shareholders Size of Shareholding Held

 399 From 1 To 100 14,336
 710 From 101 To 500 204,344
 543 From 501 To 1,000 420,744
 2,105 From 1,001 To 5,000 5,580,907
 605 From 5,001 To 10,000 4,471,101
 380 From 10,001 To 15,000 4,691,345
 1,328 From 15,001 To 20,000 24,300,977
 108 From 20,001 To 25,000 2,435,080
 71 From 25,001 To 30,000 1,953,630
 67 From 30,001 To 35,000 2,171,411
 102 From 35,001 To 40,000 3,780,107
 60 From 40,001 To 50,000 2,718,819
 72 From 50,001 To 60,000 3,985,328
 97 From 60,001 To 80,000 6,847,934
 72 From 80,001 To 100,000 6,458,758
 81 From 100,001 To 150,000 9,786,592
 75 From 150,001 To 200,000 13,058,337
 37 From 200,001 To 250,000 8,293,670
 29 From 250,001 To 300,000 7,988,963
 23 From 300,001 To 350,000 7,587,583
 98 From 350,001 To 600,000 43,834,338
 50 From 600,001 To 1,000,000 40,076,172
 158 From 1,000,001 To 100,000,000 910,764,940

 7,270     1,111,425,416

Pattern of Shareholding as at December 31, 2014

106



Pattern of Shareholding as at December 31, 2014
Additional Information

Shareholders' Category Number of Number of
 Shareholders Shares Held
Associated Companies
Habib Insurance Co., Ltd. 1 3,998,000
Habib Sugar Mills Ltd. 1 18,486,691

Mutual Funds
Atlas Income Fund - MT 1 1,500
JS Global Capital Ltd - MF 1 1,500
Tri-Star Mutual Fund Limited 1 1,940
Safeway Mutual Fund 1 5,001
CDC Trustee NAFA Savings Plus Fund - MT 1 20,500
NAFA Income Opportunity Fund 1 21,000
KASB Asset Allocation Fund 1 22,500
PIML Strategic Multi Asset Fund 1 25,000
JS-KSE 30 Index Fund 1 27,601
NIT Equity Market Opportunity Fund 1 48,489
First Capital Mutual Fund 1 100,300
Crosby Dragon Fund 1 119,412
AKD Index Tracker Fund 1 154,147
Pakistan Stock Market Fund 1 155,818
Pakistan Strategic Allocation Fund 1 234,614
ABL Stock Fund 1 368,450
NAFA Multi Asset Fund 1 504,400
NAFA Asset Allocation Fund 1 1,040,150
NAFA Stock Fund 1 1,868,650
Atlas Stock Mkt Fund 1 2,190,000
UBL Stock Advantage Fund 1 5,097,500
National Investment (Unit) Trust
 National Bank of Pakistan, Trustee Department 1 85,755,829

Directors
Ali Raza D. Habib 1 10,406,595
Qumail R. Habib 1 15,978,656
Anwar Haji Karim 1 12,349,159
Shahid Ghaffar (NIT Nominee) 1 1,100
Murtaza H. Habib 1 13,698,691
Syed Mazhar Abbas 1 18,474
Syed Hasan Ali Bukhari 1 15,092
Shameem Ahmed 1 2,112
Safar Ali Lakhani 1 116,840
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Shareholders' Category Number of Number of
 Shareholders Shares Held

Chief Executive Officer
Abbas D. Habib 1 41,524,108

Directors' Spouses and Minor Children 

Mrs. Razia A. Raza Habib
W/o Mr. Ali Raza D. Habib 1 4,630,917

Mrs. Niamet Fatima
W/o Mr. Abbas D. Habib 1 4,818,197

Qasim Abbas Habib 
S/o Mr. Abbas D. Habib (Joint A/c) 1 926,149

Executives 59 4,386,737
Joint Stock Companies and Corporations 100 60,861,311

Banks, Development Financial Institutions,
Non-Banking Finance Companies, Insurance 
Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds 55 92,450,430 

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting rights  
State Life Insurance Corporation 1 73,435,154
National Investment (Unit) Trust (included in the list above
under Mutual Funds)

Individuals 6,927 517,637,913
Others (Including foreign companies) 91 137,918,825
     
  7,270 1,111,425,416
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BANK AL HABIB LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES COMPANIES  
DIRECTORS· REPORT ON AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Directors are pleased to present the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Bank AL Habib 
/LPLWHG�DQG� WKH�%DQN·V�6XEVLGLDULHV�$/�+DELE�&DSLWDO�0DUNHWV� �3ULYDWH��/LPLWHG�DQG�$/�+DELE�&UHGLW�	�
)LQDQFH��+RQJ�.RQJ��/LPLWHG�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU����������

     (Rupees in '000)

� 3URILW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�EHIRUH�WD[� 10,003,239
� 7D[DWLRQ� � (3,566,869 )
� 3URILW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�DIWHU�WD[� 6,436,370 
� 6KDUH�RI�SURILW�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�1RQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVW� (4,225 ) 
� 3URILW�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�VKDUHKROGHUV� 6,432,145  
� 8Q�DSSURSULDWHG�SURILW�EURXJKW�IRUZDUG� 5,703,859 
� 7UDQVIHU�IURP�VXUSOXV�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�IL[HG�DVVHWV���QHW�RI�WD[� 45,947
� 2WKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH� 31,340 

� 3URILW�DYDLODEOH�IRU�DSSURSULDWLRQ� 12,213,291
 Appropriations:
� � 7UDQVIHU�WR�6WDWXWRU\�5HVHUYH� (1,269,788 )
��������� � &DVK�GLYLGHQG�²������ (2,020,772 )
��������� � ,VVXH�RI�%RQXV�6KDUHV�²������ (1,010,386 )

    (4,300,946 )

� 8Q�DSSURSULDWHG�SURILW�FDUULHG�IRUZDUG� 7,912,345
                                                         
� (DUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH��DIWHU�WD[��²�+ROGLQJ�FRPSDQ\� Rs.     5.79

Pattern of Shareholding

7KH�SDWWHUQ�RI�VKDUHKROGLQJ�DV�DW�'HFHPEHU����������LV�DQQH[HG�ZLWK�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�%DQN�$/�
+DELE�/LPLWHG�

 On behalf of the Board of Directors

 ALI RAZA�'��+$%,%
.DUDFKL��)HEUXDU\���������� Chairman
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

WH�KDYH�DXGLWHG�WKH�DQQH[HG�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�FRPSULVLQJ�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ILQDQFLDO�
position of Bank AL Habib Limited�DQG�LWV�VXEVLGLDU\�FRPSDQLHV��WKH�*URXS��DV�DW����'HFHPEHU������DQG�
WKH�UHODWHG�FRQVROLGDWHG�SURILW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW��FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH��FRQVROLGDWHG 
FDVK�IORZ�VWDWHPHQW�DQG�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�HTXLW\�WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�WKH�QRWHV�IRUPLQJ�SDUW�
WKHUHRI��IRU�WKH�\HDU�WKHQ�HQGHG��WH�KDYH�DOVR�H[SUHVVHG�VHSDUDWH�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�%DQN�
$/�+DELE�/LPLWHG�DQG�KDYH�UHYLHZHG�LWV�VXEVLGLDU\�FRPSDQ\��QDPHO\�$/�+DELE�&DSLWDO�0DUNHWV��3ULYDWH��/LPLWHG 
IRU�WKH�VL[�PRQWKV�SHULRG�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������H[FHSW�IRU�$/�+DELE�&UHGLW�	�)LQDQFH��+RQJ�.RQJ��/LPLWHG�
ZKLFK�ZHUH�DXGLWHG�E\�RWKHU�ILUP�RI�DXGLWRUV�ZKRVH�UHSRUW�KDV�EHHQ�IXUQLVKHG�WR�XV�DQG�RXU�RSLQLRQ��LQ�VR�IDU�
DV�LW�UHODWHV�WR�WKH�DPRXQWV�LQFOXGHG�IRU�VXFK�FRPSDQ\��LV�EDVHG�VROHO\�RQ�WKH�UHSRUW�RI�VXFK�RWKHU�DXGLWRUV��
7KHVH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�RI�WKH�+ROGLQJ�&RPSDQ\·V�PDQDJHPHQW��2XU�UHVSRQVLELOLW\ is to 
H[SUHVV�DQ�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKHVH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�EDVHG�RQ�RXU�DXGLW�
 
2XU�DXGLW�ZDV�FRQGXFWHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�6WDQGDUGV�RQ $XGLWLQJ�DQG�DFFRUGLQJO\�LQFOXGHG�
VXFK� WHVWV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ� UHFRUGV�DQG�VXFK�RWKHU�DXGLWLQJ�SURFHGXUHV�DV�ZH�FRQVLGHUHG�QHFHVVDU\� LQ� WKH�
FLUFXPVWDQFHV�

,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ��WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�SUHVHQW�IDLUO\�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�RI�%DQN�$/�+DELE�
/LPLWHG�DQG�LWV�VXEVLGLDU\�FRPSDQLHV�DV�DW����'HFHPEHU������DQG�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKHLU�RSHUDWLRQV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�
WKHQ�HQGHG�

7KH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�*URXS�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������ZHUH�DXGLWHG�E\�
DQRWKHU�ILUP�RI�FKDUWHUHG�DFFRXQWDQWV�ZKR�KDG�H[SUHVVHG�DQ�XQPRGLILHG�RSLQLRQ�WKHUHRQ��GDWHG����)HEUXDU\ 
����� 

  KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
 Karachi: February 17, 2015   Chartered Accountants
  Muhammad Taufiq
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 
   2014� ����
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
   

ASSETS
  
� &DVK�DQG�EDODQFHV�ZLWK�WUHDVXU\�EDQNV� ��   34,201,844�� ����������
� %DODQFHV�ZLWK�RWKHU�EDQNV� ��   4,352,769�� ���������
� /HQGLQJV�WR�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV� � � –000�� ²000
� ,QYHVWPHQWV���QHW� 10   331,737,516�� �����������
� $GYDQFHV���QHW� ���   181,357,100�� �����������
� 2SHUDWLQJ�IL[HG�DVVHWV� ���   13,917,781�� ����������
� 'HIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV���QHW� �   –000 � ²000
 2WKHU�DVVHWV� ���   13,743,430�� ���������

       579,310,440�� �����������
LIABILITIES 

� %LOOV�SD\DEOH� ���   7,984,808�� ���������
� %RUURZLQJV� ���   78,455,452�� ������������
� 'HSRVLWV�DQG�RWKHU�DFFRXQWV�� ���   446,311,464�� �����������
� 6XE�RUGLQDWHG�ORDQV� ���   3,743,700�� ���������
� /LDELOLWLHV�DJDLQVW�DVVHWV�VXEMHFW�WR�ILQDQFH�OHDVH� �   –000  ²000
� 'HIHUUHG�WD[�OLDELOLWies - net� ���   2,769,852�� ���������
 Other liabilities 19   7,018,601�� ���������

       546,283,877�� �����������

NET ASSETS    33,026,563�� ����������

REPRESENTED BY :

� 6KDUH�FDSLWDO� ���   11,114,254�� ����������
� 5HVHUYHV�� �   8,760,911�� ���������
 Unappropriated profit    7,912,345�� ���������
Equity attributable to the shareholders of Holding company   27,787,510�� ����������
� 1RQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVW� �   113,969�� �������
Total equity    27,901,479�� ����������
 6XUSOXV�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�DVVHWV���QHW�RI�WD[� �� 5,125,084�� ���������

     33,026,563�� ����������

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS� ��
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
    2014� ��������� ����
   Note  (Rupees in '000)
     
0DUN�XS���UHWXUQ���LQWHUHVW�HDUQHG� ��� 44,007,124�� ����������
0DUN�XS���UHWXUQ���LQWHUHVW�H[SHQVHG� ��� (24,933,172 )� �������������
� � 1HW�PDUN�XS���UHWXUQ���LQWHUHVW�LQFRPH� � 19,073,952 � ����������
3URYLVLRQ�DJDLQVW�QRQ�SHUIRUPLQJ�ORDQV�DQG�DGYDQFHV���QHW� ����� (552,989 )� ����������
3URYLVLRQ�IRU�GLPLQXWLRQ�LQ�WKH�YDOXH�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV� � (5,463 ) ²00
%DG�GHEWV�ZULWWHQ�Rff directly  –00 � �����
    (558,452 )� ����������
� � 1HW�PDUN�XS���UHWXUQ���LQWHUHVW�LQFRPH�DIWHU�SURYLVLRQV� 18,515,500�� ����������
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
� )HHV��FRPPLVVLRQ�DQG�EURNHUDJH�LQFRPH� � 1,984,114�� ���������
� 'LYLGHQG�LQFRPH� � 328,596�� �������
� ,QFRPH�IURP�GHDOLQJ�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV� � 854,437�� �������
� *DLQ�RQ�VDOH���UHGHPSWLRQ�RI�VHFXULWLHV���QHW� ��� 22,560�� ��������
� 8QUHDOLVHG�JDLQ����ORVV��RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV
� ��FODVVLILHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�WUDGLQJ� � –00�� ²00
 Share of profit from associates  124,033�� �������
� 2WKHU�LQFRPH� ��� 636,131�� �������
  TRWDO�QRQ�PDUN�XS���LQWHUHVW�LQFRPH� � 3,949,871�� ���������
    22,465,371�� ����������
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES
� $GPLQLVWUDWLYH�H[SHQVHV� ��� (12,249,905 )� �������������
� 2WKHU�SURYLVLRQV���ZULWH�RfIV� ��� (9,249 )� ���������
� 2WKHU�FKDUJHV� ��� (202,978 )� ����������
  Total non PDUN�XS���LQWHUHVW�H[SHQVHV� � (12,462,132 )� �������������
([WUD�RUGLQDU\���XQXVXDO�LWHPV� � –00�� ²00
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  10,003,239�� ���������
TD[DWLRQ� ²�&XUUHQW� � (3,498,182 )� �������������
�� � ²�3ULRU�\HDUV� ���� –00�� �������
� � ²�'HIHUUHG� � (68,687 )� ���������
� � � � ��� (3,566,869 )� ������������
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION   6,436,370�� � ���������

 Attributable to :
� � 6KDUHKROGHUV�RI�WKH�+ROGLQJ�FRPSDQ\  6,432,145 � ����������
� � 1RQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVW� � 4,225�� �����
    6,436,370�� ���������

     (Rupees)
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
 equity holders of the Holding company � � ��� 5.79�� � ������
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 
  2014� � ����
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
      

Profit after taxation for the year  6,436,370� ���������

Other comprehensive income

Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to
  profit or loss account

([FKDQJH�GLIIHUHQFHV�RQ�WUDQVODWLRQ�RI�QHW
��LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�IRUHLJQ�RSHUDWLRQV� � (78,284 )� ������

Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss
  subsequently

5HPHDVXUHPHQW�RI�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�SODQ� ����� 48,215�� ��������
5HODWHG�WD[�FKDUJH� � (16,875 )� ������
    31,340�� ���������
 
Comprehensive income transferred to equity  6,389,426� ���������

Components of comprehensive income not reflected in equity

6XUSOXV����GHILFLW��RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�VHFXULWLHV�� 2,807,895� ������������
5HODWHG�WD[�FKDUJH� � (803,378 )� ��������
    2,004,517�� ����������

6XUSOXV�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�RSHUDWLQJ�IL[HG�DVVHWV� � 1,327,022 ²00 
5HODWHG�WD[�FKDUJH� � (254,864 ) ²00
    1,072,158  ²00 

Total comprehensive income  9,466,101� ���������

Attributable to :
� 6KDUHKROGHU�RI�WKH�+ROGLQJ�FRPSDQ\� � 9,466,250� ���������
� 1RQ���FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVW� � (149 )� �����
    9,466,101�� ���������
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
  2014� ��������� ����
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
� 3URILW�EHIRUH�WD[DWLRQ� � 10,003,239�� ���������
� /HVV��'LYLGHQG�LQFRPH� � (328,596 )� ����������
    9,674,643�� ���������
 Adjustments for :   
  Depreciation  993,871�� �������
  Amortisation  78,381�� ������
� � 3URYLVLRQ�DJDLQVW�QRQ�SHUIRUPLQJ�ORDQV�DQG�DGYDQFHV���QHW� 552,989�� �������
� � 3URYLVLRQ�IRU�GLPLQXWLRQ�LQ�WKH�YDOXH�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV� � 5,463�� ²00
� � *DLQ�RQ�VDOH�RI�RSHUDWLQJ�IL[HG�DVVHWV� � (75,610 )� ���������
  Share of profit from associates  (124,033 )� ����������
� � *DLQ�RQ�VDOH���UHGHPSWLRQ�RI�VHFXULWLHV���QHW� � (22,560 )� ����������
� � &KDUJH�IRU�FRPSHQVDWHG�DEVHQFHV� � 35,390�� ������
� � 3URYLVLRQ�DJDLQVW�Rff-balance sheet items  9,249�� ������   
    1,453,140 � �������
    11,127,783�� ���������
 (Increase) / decrease in operating assets
� � /HQGLQJV�WR�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV� � –00 � ��������
� � $GYDQFHV���QHW� � (14,341,019 )� �������������
� � 2WKHU�DVVHWV����H[FOXGLQJ�DGYDQFH�WD[DWLRQ�� � (7,042,014 )� ����������
    (21,383,033 )� ������������
 Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
  Bills payable  1,811,706�� �������
� � %RUURZLQJV� � 48,308,542 � �������������
  Deposits  60,212,636�� ����������
� � 2WKHU�OLDELOLWLHV����H[FOXGLQJ�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�WD[DWLRQ�� � 948,823 � ���������
    111,281,707�� ��������� 
    101,026,457 � ������������
� ,QFRPH�WD[�SDLG� � (2,953,852 )� ������������
� 1HW�FDVK�IURP����XVHG�LQ��RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV��  98,072,605 � ������������
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
� 1HW�LQYHVWPHQWV in securities  (88,841,640 )� �����������
� 1HW�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�DVVRFLDWHV� � 39,191 � ��������
� 'LYLGHQG�UHFHLYHG� � 333,686 � ��������
� ,QYHVWPHQWV�LQ�RSHUDWLQJ�IL[HG�DVVHWV� � (1,863,328 )� ������������
� 6DOH�SURFHHGV�IURP�GLVSRVDO�RI�RSHUDWLQJ�IL[HG�DVVHWV� � 99,113 � �������
� 1HW�FDVK��XVHG�LQ����IURP�LQYHVWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� � (90,232,978 )� ����������
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 Repayments of sub-ordinated loans  (2,742,200 )� ��������
� 'LYLGHQG�SDLG� � (1,995,695 )� ������������
� 1HW�FDVK�XVHG�LQ�ILQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� � (4,737,895 )� ������������
� ([FKDQJH�GLIIHUHQFHV�RQ�WUDQVODWLRQ�RI�QHW�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�IRUHLJQ�EUDQFKHV�� (78,284 )� ������
� ,QFUHDVH����GHFUHDVH��LQ�FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV� � 3,023,448 � �����������
� &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�\HDU� � 34,864,281�� ����������
� &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU� ��� 37,887,729�� ����������

7KH�DQQH[HG�QRWHV���WR����IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKHVH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

6<('�+$6$1�$/,�%8.+$5,
Director

ALI RAZA�'��+$%,%
Chairman

$%%$6�'��+$%,%
Chief Executive and
Managing Director

6<('�0$=+$5 ABBAS
Director



���

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

  Attributable to shareholders of the Holding Company
 Foreign Revenue Reserves
    Currency   Unappro-  Non-
  Share Statutory Translation Special  General priated Sub Total controlling Total
  Capital Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Profit  Interest 
  
 (Rupees in '000)
 
%DODQFH�DV�DW����-DQXDU\���1�� � � ����������� � ����������� �������� � �������  �������� � ����������� ������������ ������� � ����������

7RWDO�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU
���HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������

3URILW�DIWHU�WD[� � � ²00  ²00  ²00  ²00  ²00� � ����������� ����������� ������ � ���������

2WKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH� � � ²00  ²00  �������  ²00  ²00  ���������� �����  ²00  ������

   ²00  ²00  ������� � ²00  ²00  ����������� ����������� ������ � ���������

7UDQVIHU�IURP�VXUSOXV�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI
��IL[HG�DVVHWV���QHW�RI�WD[� � � ²00  ²00  ²00  ²00  ²00  �������� �������� ²00� � �������

7UDQVIHU�WR�VWDWXWRU\�UHVHUYH� � � ²00  ���������  ²00  ²00  ²00� � ������������� ²00  ²00  ²00

7UDQVDFWLRQ�ZLWK�RZQHUV��UHFRUGHG
��GLUHFWO\�LQ�HTXLW\�

&DVK�GLYLGHQG��5V����SHU�VKDUH�� � � ²00  ²00�� ²00� � ²00� � ²00 � ������������� ������������� ²00� � ������������

%DODQFH�DV�DW����'HFHPEHU������ � � �����������  ��������� � �������� � ������� � �������� � ����������� ������������ �������� � �����������

7RWDO�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU
��HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������

3URILW�DIWHU�WD[� � � ²00  ²00  ²00  ²00  ²00  ����������� ���������  �����  ��������� 

2WKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH� � � ²00  ²00  ��������� ²00  ²00� � �������� ���������� ²00� � ����������

   ²00  ²00  ���������� ²00  ²00  ����������� ����������� ������ � ���������

7UDQVIHU�IURP�VXUSOXV�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ
��IL[HG�DVVHWV���QHW�RI�WD[� � � ²00  ²00  ²00  ²00  ²00  �������� �������� ²00� � ������

7UDQVIHU�WR�VWDWXWRU\�UHVHUYH� � � ²00  ���������� ²00  ²00  ²00� � ������������� ²00  ²00  ²00

7UDQVDFWLRQ�ZLWK�RZQHUV��UHFRUGHG
��GLUHFWO\�LQ�HTXLW\�

&DVK�GLYLGHQG��5V����SHU�VKDUH�� � � ²00  ²00  ²00  ²00  ²00  ������������� ������������ ²00  ������������

Issue of bonus shares in the ratio of 10
  shares for 100 shares held   ���������  ²00  ²00  ²00  ²00  ������������� ²00  ²00  ²00 

%DODQFH�DV�DW����'HFHPEHU������ � � ����������� � ����������� �������� � �������� � �������� � ����������� ������������ �������� � ����������
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
1.1� 7KH�*URXS�FRPSULVHV�RI�

 Holding company        
 - Bank AL Habib Limited 
 Subsidiaries        
� ��$/�+DELE�&DSLWDO�0DUNHWV��3ULYDWH��/LPLWHG
� ��$/�+DELE�&UHGLW�	�)LQDQFH��+RQJ�.RQJ��/LPLWHG

1.2� %DQN�$/�+DELE�/LPLWHG��WKH�%DQN��LV�D�EDQNLQJ�FRPSDQ\�LQFRUSRUDWHG�LQ�3DNLVWDQ�RQ����2FWREHU�
�����DV�D�SXEOLF�OLPLWHG�FRPSDQ\�XQGHU�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�2UGLQDQFH�������KDYLQJ�LWV�UHJLVWHUHG�RIILFH�
DW�����&��2OG�%DKDZDOSXU�5RDG��0XOWDQ�ZLWK�SULQFLSDO�SODFH�RI�EXVLQHVV�LQ�.DUDFKL��,WV�VKDUHV�DUH�
OLVWHG�RQ�DOO� WKH�6WRFN�([FKDQJHV� LQ�3DNLVWDQ�� ,W� LV�D�VFKHGXOHG�EDQN�SULQFLSDOO\�HQJDJHG� LQ� WKH�
EXVLQHVV�RI� FRPPHUFLDO� EDQNLQJ�ZLWK� D� QHWZRUN�RI� ����EUDQFKHV� ������� ����EUDQFKHV��� ����
VXE�EUDQFKHV� ������� ��� VXE�EUDQFKHV�� DQG���� UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�RIILFHV� ������� ��� UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�
RIILFHV��7KH�EUDQFK�QHWZRUN�RI�WKH�%DQN�LQFOXGHV����RYHUVHDV�EUDQFKHV����������RYHUVHDV�EUDQFK��
DQG����,VODPLF�%DQNLQJ�EUDQFKHV�����������,VODPLF�%DQNLQJ�EUDQFKHV��

1.3 7KH�%DQN�KDV�LQYHVWHG�LQ��������VKDUHV�RI�$/�+DELE�&DSLWDO�0DUNHWV��3ULYDWH��/LPLWHG��7KH�&RPSDQ\ 
ZDV�LQFRUSRUDWHG�LQ�3DNLVWDQ�RQ����$XJXVW������DV�D�SULYDWH�OLPLWHG�FRPSDQ\�XQGHU�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�
2UGLQDQFH������7KH�FRPSDQ\�LV�D�FRUSRUDWH�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�.DUDFKL�6WRFN�([FKDQJH�/LPLWHG�DQG�
LV�HQJDJHG� LQ�HTXLW\��PRQH\�PDUNHW�DQG� IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�EURNHUDJH�VHUYLFHV��HTXLW\� UHVHDUFK��
FRUSRUDWH�ILQDQFLDO�DGYLVRU\�DQG�FRQVXOWDQF\�VHUYLFHV�

1.4� $/�+DELE�&UHGLW�	�)LQDQFH��+RQJ�.RQJ��/LPLWHG�LV�D�ZKROO\�RZQHG�VXEVLGLDU\�RI�WKH�%DQN��,W�LV�D�
OLPLWHG�OLDELOLW\�FRPSDQ\�LQFRUSRUDWHG�DQG�GRPLFLOHG�LQ�+RQJ�.RQJ��7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�QRW�FRPPHQFHG 
RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�LV�LQ�WKH�SURFHVV�RI�REWDLQLQJ�D�'HSRVLW�7DNLQJ�&RPSDQLHV�OLFHQVH�IURP�WKH�+RQJ�
.RQJ�0RQHWDU\�$XWKRULW\�

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION                 
2.1 7KHVH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�FRQIRUPLW\�ZLWK�WKH�IRUPDW�RI�ILQDQFLDO 

VWDWHPHQWV�SUHVFULEHG�E\�6%3�YLGH�%6'�&LUFXODU�1R������GDWHG����)HEUXDU\������

2.2� ,Q�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�GLUHFWLYHV�RI�WKH�)HGHUDO�*RYHUQPHQW�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�VKLIWLQJ�RI�WKH�EDQNLQJ�
V\VWHP�WR�,VODPLF�PRGHV��6%3�KDV�LVVXHG�YDULRXV�FLUFXODUV�IURP�WLPH�WR�WLPH��3HUPLVVLEOH�IRUPV�RI�
WUDGH�UHODWHG�PRGHV�RI�ILQDQFLQJ�LQFOXGHV�SXUFKDVH�RI�JRRGV�E\�EDQNV�IURP�FXVWRPHUV�DQG�LPPHGLDWH 
UHVDOH�WR�WKHP�DW�DSSURSULDWH�PDUN�XS�LQ�SULFH�RQ�GHIHUUHG�SD\PHQW�EDVLV��7KH�SXUFKDVH�DQG�UHVDOH�
DULVLQJ�XQGHU�WKHVH�DUUDQJHPHQWV�DUH�QRW�UHIOHFWHG�LQ�WKHVH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DV�
VXFK��EXW�DUH�UHVWULFWHG�WR�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�IDFLOLW\�DFWXDOO\�XWLOLVHG�DQG�WKH�DSSURSULDWH�SRUWLRQ�RI�PDUN�XS 
WKHUHRQ��+RZHYHU��PXUDEDKD�ILQDQFLQJ�DUUDQJHPHQWV�XQGHUWDNHQ�E\�WKH�,VODPLF�%DQNLQJ�EUDQFKHV�
DUH�DFFRXQWHG�IRU�DV�D�SXUFKDVH�DQG�VDOH�WUDQVDFWLRQ�RI�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�JRRGV�LQ�WKHVH�FRQVROLGDWHG�
ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�RI�WKH�*URXS�         

2.3� 7KH�ILQDQFLDO�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�,VODPLF�%DQNLQJ�EUDQFKHV�KDYH�EHHQ�FRQVROLGDWHG�LQ�WKHVH�FRQVROLGDWHG�
ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� IRU� UHSRUWLQJ�SXUSRVHV��DIWHU�HOLPLQDWLQJ�PDWHULDO� LQWHU�EUDQFK� WUDQVDFWLRQV� � 
EDODQFHV��.H\�ILQDQFLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�RI�WKH�,VODPLF�%DQNLQJ�EUDQFKHV�LV�GLVFORVHG�LQ�QRWH����

���



3. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
3.1� 7KHVH� FRQVROLGDWHG� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�RI� WKH�*URXS�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�

DSSURYHG�DFFRXQWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�DV�DSSOLFDEOH�LQ�3DNLVWDQ��$SSURYHG�DFFRXQWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�FRPSULVH�
,QWHUQDWLRQDO�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��,)56��LVVXHG�E\�WKH�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV 
%RDUG��,$6%��DQG�,VODPLF�)LQDQFLDO�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��,)$6��LVVXHG�E\�WKH�,QVWLWXWH�RI�&KDUWHUHG 
$FFRXQWDQWV� RI�3DNLVWDQ� �,&$3��DV�DUH�QRWLILHG�XQGHU� WKH�&RPSDQLHV�2UGLQDQFH�� ������ WKH�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�2UGLQDQFH��������WKH�%DQNLQJ�&RPSDQLHV�2UGLQDQFH�������DQG�
UHJXODWLRQV���GLUHFWLYHV�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�DQG�([FKDQJH�&RPPLVVLRQ�RI�3DNLVWDQ��6(&3��DQG�
6%3��:KHUHYHU� WKH� UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI� WKH�&RPSDQLHV�2UGLQDQFH�� ������ WKH�%DQNLQJ�&RPSDQLHV�
2UGLQDQFH�������RU�UHJXODWLRQV���GLUHFWLYHV�LVVXHG�E\�6(&3�DQG�6%3�GLIIHU�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�
,)56�RU� ,)$6�� WKH� UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI� WKH�&RPSDQLHV�2UGLQDQFH�� ������ WKH�%DQNLQJ�&RPSDQLHV�
2UGLQDQFH�������RU�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�VDLG�UHJXODWLRQV���GLUHFWLYHV�VKDOO�SUHYDLO�

3.2� 6%3�YLGH�%6'�&LUFXODU�1R������GDWHG����$XJXVW������KDV�GHIHUUHG�WKH�DSSOLFDELOLW\�RI�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�
$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUG��,$6�������)LQDQFLDO�,QVWUXPHQWV��5HFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�0HDVXUHPHQW��DQG�,$6�����
�,QYHVWPHQW�3URSHUW\�� IRU� EDQNLQJ� FRPSDQLHV� WLOO� IXUWKHU� LQVWUXFWLRQV��)XUWKHU�� DFFRUGLQJ� WR� WKH�
QRWLILFDWLRQ�RI�6(&3�GDWHG����$SULO�������,)56������)LQDQFLDO�,QVWUXPHQWV��'LVFORVXUHV��KDV�QRW�EHHQ�
PDGH�DSSOLFDEOH�IRU�EDQNV��$FFRUGLQJO\��WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKHVH�VWDQGDUGV�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�FRQVLGHUHG 
LQ� WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI� WKHVH�FRQVROLGDWHG� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV��+RZHYHU�� LQYHVWPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�
FODVVLILHG�DQG�YDOXHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�YDULRXV�FLUFXODUV�LVVXHG�E\�6%3�

4. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
� 7KHVH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�XQGHU�WKH�KLVWRULFDO�FRVW�FRQYHQWLRQ�

H[FHSW�IRU�FHUWDLQ�LQYHVWPHQWV�� ODQG�DQG�EXLOGLQJV�DQG�GHULYDWLYH�ILQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV�ZKLFK�DUH�
UHYDOXHG�DV�UHIHUUHG�WR�LQ�QRWHV����������DQG������EHORZ�

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
5.1� 7KH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DGRSWHG�LQ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKHVH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�

FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKRVH�RI�WKH�SUHYLRXV�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU�

5.2 Basis of consolidation
� 7KHVH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQFOXGH�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�+ROGLQJ�&RPSDQ\�

DQG�LWV�VXEVLGLDULHV�

 The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements 
IURP�WKH�GDWH�WKH�FRQWURO�FRPPHQFHV�XQWLO�WKH�GDWH�WKH�FRQWURO�FHDVHV��,Q�SUHSDULQJ�FRQVROLGDWHG�
ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�+ROGLQJ�FRPSDQ\�DQG�VXEVLGLDULHV�DUH�FRQVROLGDWHG 
RQ�D� OLQH�E\� OLQH�EDVLV�E\�DGGLQJ� WRJHWKHU� OLNH� LWHPV�RI�DVVHWV�� OLDELOLWLHV�� LQFRPH�DQG�H[SHQVHV��
6LJQLILFDQW�LQWHUFRPSDQ\�WUDQVDFWLRQ�KDYH�EHHQ�HOLPLQDWHG�

� 1RQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVW�DUH�SDUW�RI�UHVXOWV�RI�RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�QHW�DVVHWV�RI�WKH�VXEVLGLDU\�FRPSDQ\�
DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�LQWHUHVWV�ZKLFK�DUH�QRW�RZQHG�E\�WKH�*URXS��,QWHUHVW�LQ�WKH�HTXLW\�RI�WKH�VXEVLGLDU\�
QRW�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�WKH�+ROGLQJ�&RPSDQ\�LV�UHSRUWHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�
HTXLW\�DV�QRQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVW��3URILW�RU�ORVV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�QRQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVW�LV�UHSRUWHG�LQ�
WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�SURILW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�DV�SURILW�RU�ORVV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�QRQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVW�

5.3 Cash and cash equivalents
� &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DV�UHIHUUHG�WR�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�FDVK�IORZ�VWDWHPHQW�FRPSULVHV�FDVK�

DQG�EDODQFHV�ZLWK�WUHDVXU\�EDQNV�DQG�EDODQFHV�ZLWK�RWKHU�EDQNV�OHVV�RYHUGUDZQ�QRVWURV�DFFRXQWV�

5.4 Repurchase / resale agreements
� 7KH�%DQN�HQWHUV�LQWR�WUDQVDFWLRQV�RI�UHSRV�DQG�UHYHUVH�UHSRV�DW�FRQWUDFWHG�UDWHV�IRU�D�VSHFLILHG�

SHULRG�RI�WLPH��7KHVH�DUH�UHFRUGHG�DV�XQGHU�
���



 Sale under repurchase obligation
� 6HFXULWLHV�VROG�ZLWK�D�VLPXOWDQHRXV�FRPPLWPHQW�WR�UHSXUFKDVH�DW�D�VSHFLILHG�IXWXUH�GDWH��UHSRV��

FRQWLQXH�WR�EH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�DUH�PHDVXUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�
ZLWK�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�IRU�LQYHVWPHQWV��$PRXQWV�UHFHLYHG�XQGHU�WKHVH�DJUHHPHQWV�DUH�UHFRUGHG�
DV�UHSXUFKDVH�DJUHHPHQW�ERUURZLQJV��7KH�GLIIHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�VDOH�DQG�UHSXUFKDVH�SULFH�LV�DPRUWLVHG 
DV�H[SHQVH�RYHU�WKH�WHUP�RI�WKH�UHSR�DJUHHPHQW�

 Purchase under resale obligation
� 6HFXULWLHV�SXUFKDVHG�ZLWK�D�FRUUHVSRQGLQJ�FRPPLWPHQW�WR�UHVHOO�DW�D�VSHFLILHG�IXWXUH�GDWH��UHYHUVH�

UHSRV��DUH�QRW�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��$PRXQWV�SDLG�XQGHU�WKHVH�DUUDQJHPHQWV 
DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�UHYHUVH�UHSXUFKDVH�DJUHHPHQW�OHQGLQJV��7KH�GLIIHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�SXUFKDVH�DQG�UHVDOH 
SULFH�LV�DFFUXHG�DV�LQFRPH�RYHU�WKH�WHUP�RI�WKH�UHYHUVH�UHSR�DJUHHPHQW�

5.5 Investments
� ,QYHVWPHQWV��RWKHU�WKDQ�DVVRFLDWHV��DUH�FODVVLILHG�DV�IROORZV�

 Held for trading
� 7KHVH�DUH�LQYHVWPHQWV�DFTXLUHG�SULQFLSDOO\�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�JHQHUDWLQJ�SURILWV�IURP�VKRUW���WHUP�

IOXFWXDWLRQV�LQ�SULFH�RU�GHDOHU·V�PDUJLQ�RU�DUH�VHFXULWLHV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�D�SRUWIROLR�LQ�ZKLFK�D�SDWWHUQ�RI�
VKRUW���WHUP�WUDGLQJ�H[LVWV�

 Held to maturity
� 7KHVH�DUH�LQYHVWPHQWV�ZLWK�IL[HG�RU�GHWHUPLQDEOH�SD\PHQWV�DQG�IL[HG�PDWXULWLHV�ZKLFK�WKH�*URXS�

KDV�WKH�LQWHQWLRQ�DQG�DELOLW\�WR�KROG�WLOO�PDWXULW\�

 Available for sale
 7KHVH�DUH�LQYHVWPHQWV�ZKLFK�GR�QRW�IDOO�XQGHU�WKH�KHOG�IRU�WUDGLQJ�DQG�KHOG�WR�PDWXULW\�FDWHJRULHV�

� $OO�SXUFKDVHV�DQG�VDOHV�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV�WKDW�UHTXLUH�GHOLYHU\�ZLWKLQ�WKH�WLPH�IUDPH�HVWDEOLVKHG�E\�
UHJXODWLRQV�RU�PDUNHW�FRQYHQWLRQ�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DW�WKH�WUDGH�GDWH��7UDGH�GDWH�LV�WKH�GDWH�RQ�ZKLFK�
WKH�*URXS�FRPPLWV�WR�SXUFKDVH�RU�VHOO�WKH�LQYHVWPHQWV�

� ,QYHVWPHQWV��RWKHU�WKDQ�KHOG�IRU�WUDGLQJ��DUH�LQLWLDOO\�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�SOXV�WUDQVDFWLRQ�FRVW�
DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW��,QYHVWPHQWV�FODVVLILHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�WUDGLQJ�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�PHDVXUHG�DW�
IDLU�YDOXH��DQG�WUDQVDFWLRQ�FRVWV�DUH�H[SHQVHG�LQ�WKH�SURILW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�

� $IWHU�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ��TXRWHG�VHFXULWLHV��RWKHU�WKDQ�WKRVH�FODVVLILHG�DV�KHOG�WR�PDWXULW\��DUH�FDUULHG�
DW�PDUNHW�YDOXH��8QTXRWHG�VHFXULWLHV�DUH�YDOXHG�DW�FRVW� OHVV�LPSDLUPHQW� LQ�YDOXH�� LI�DQ\��+HOG�WR�
PDWXULW\�VHFXULWLHV�DUH�FDUULHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�

� 6XUSOXV����GHILFLW��DULVLQJ�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�TXRWHG�VHFXULWLHV�ZKLFK�DUH�FODVVLILHG�DV�DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�
LQYHVWPHQWV�LV�WDNHQ�WR�D�VHSDUDWH�DFFRXQW�ZKLFK�LV�VKRZQ�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�
EHORZ�HTXLW\��7KH�VXUSOXV����GHILFLW��DULVLQJ�RQ�WKHVH�VHFXULWLHV�LV�WDNHQ�WR�WKH�SURILW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�
ZKHQ�DFWXDOO\�UHDOLVHG�XSRQ�GLVSRVDO�RU�LQ�FDVH�RI�LPSDLUPHQW�RI�VHFXULWLHV��7KH�XQUHDOLVHG�VXUSOXV�
���GHILFLW��DULVLQJ�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�TXRWHG�VHFXULWLHV�ZKLFK�DUH�FODVVLILHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�WUDGLQJ�LV�WDNHQ�
WR�WKH�SURILW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�

 3URYLVLRQ�IRU�GLPLQXWLRQ�LQ�WKH�YDOXHV�RI�VHFXULWLHV��H[FHSW�IRU�GHEW�VHFXULWLHV��LV�PDGH�DIWHU�FRQVLGHULQJ 
LPSDLUPHQW��LI�DQ\��LQ�WKHLU�YDOXH�DQG�LV�WDNHQ�WR�SURILW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW��,PSDLUPHQW�LV�ERRNHG�ZKHQ�
WKHUH�LV�DQ�REMHFWLYH�HYLGHQFH�RI�VLJQLILFDQW�RU�SURORQJHG�GHFOLQH� LQ�WKH�YDOXH�RI�VXFK�VHFXULWLHV��
3URYLVLRQ�IRU�LPSDLUPHQW�DJDLQVW�GHEW�VHFXULWLHV�LV�PDGH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�
3UXGHQWLDO�5HJXODWLRQV�RI�6%3�� � ,Q�FDVH�RI�XQTXRWHG�HTXLW\�VHFXULWLHV�� WKH�EUHDNXS�YDOXH�RI� WKH�
VHFXULW\�VKRXOG�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�WR�GHWHUPLQH�LPSDLUPHQW�DPRXQW�
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 3UHPLXP�RU�GLVFRXQW�RQ�GHEW�VHFXULWLHV�FODVVLILHG�DV�DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�DQG�KHOG�WR�PDWXULW\�LV�DPRUWLVHG 
XVLQJ�HIIHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG�DQG�WDNHQ�WR�WKH�SURILW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�

 Investments in associates
� ,QYHVWPHQW�LQ�DVVRFLDWHV�DUH�DFFRXQWHG�E\�XVLQJ�HTXLW\�PHWKRG�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�

5.6 Advances
 Loans and advances
� 7KHVH�DUH� VWDWHG�QHW� RI� SURYLVLRQV� IRU� QRQ�SHUIRUPLQJ�DGYDQFHV��3URYLVLRQ� IRU� QRQ�SHUIRUPLQJ�

DGYDQFHV�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�3UXGHQWLDO�5HJXODWLRQV�DQG�LV�
FKDUJHG�WR�WKH�SURILW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW��7KH�%DQN�DOVR�PDLQWDLQV�JHQHUDO�SURYLVLRQ�LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI� WKH�3UXGHQWLDO�5HJXODWLRQV�RQ� WKH�EDVLV�RI� WKH�PDQDJHPHQW
V� ULVN�DVVHVVPHQW��
$GYDQFHV�DUH�ZULWWHQ�RII�ZKHQ�WKHUH�DUH�QR�UHDOLVWLF�SURVSHFWV�RI�UHFRYHU\�

 Finance lease receivables
� /HDVHV�ZKHUH�WKH�*URXS�WUDQVIHUV�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�DOO�WKH�ULVNV�DQG�UHZDUGV�LQFLGHQWDO�WR�RZQHUVKLS�RI�

DQ�DVVHW�WR�WKH�OHVVHH�DUH�FODVVLILHG�DV�ILQDQFH�OHDVHV��$�UHFHLYDEOH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�DW�DQ�DPRXQW�
HTXDO�WR�WKH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�WKH�OHDVH�SD\PHQWV�LQFOXGLQJ�DQ\�JXDUDQWHHG�UHVLGXDO�YDOXH��

 Ijarah finance
� ,Q�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�,)$6���
,MDUDK
��DVVHWV�OHDVHG�RXW�XQGHU�LMDUDK�DUUDQJHPHQWV�

RQ�RU�DIWHU����-DQXDU\������DUH�VWDWHG�DW�FRVW�OHVV�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�LPSDLUPHQW��LI�DQ\�DQG�LQFOXGHG�
XQGHU��$GYDQFHV���6XFK�DVVHWV�DUH�GHSUHFLDWHG�RYHU�WKH�WHUPV�RI�,MDUDK�FRQWUDFWV��,MDUDK�DUUDQJHPHQWV 
H[HFXWHG�EHIRUH�WKH�DERYH�UHIHUUHG�GDWH�DUH�DFFRXQWHG�IRU�DV�ILQDQFH�OHDVH�

 Murabaha
� )XQGV�GLVEXUVHG�XQGHU�PXUDEDKD�DUUDQJHPHQWV�IRU�SXUFKDVH�RI�JRRGV�DUH�UHFRUGHG�DV�DGYDQFH�

IRU�PXUDEDKD��2Q�FXOPLQDWLRQ�RI�PXUDEDKD�L�H��VDOH�RI�JRRGV�WR�FXVWRPHUV��PXUDEDKD�UHFHLYDEOHV�
DUH�UHFRUGHG�DW�WKH�VDOH�SULFH�QHW�RI�GHIHUUHG�LQFRPH��*RRGV�SXUFKDVHG�EXW�UHPDLQLQJ�XQVROG�DW�WKH�
UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�DUH�UHFRUGHG�DV�LQYHQWRULHV�

5.7 Operating fixed assets
 Tangible operating assets - owned
� /DQG�LV�PHDVXUHG�DW�FRVW�DW�WKH�WLPH�RI�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�LV�VXEVHTXHQWO\�FDUULHG�DW�UHYDOXHG�

DPRXQW��%XLOGLQJV�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�PHDVXUHG�DW�FRVW�DQG�XSRQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ��DUH�FDUULHG�DW�UHYDOXHG�DPRXQW 
OHVV�DFFXPXODWHG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�LPSDLUPHQW��LI�DQ\��$OO�RWKHU�RSHUDWLQJ�IL[HG�DVVHWV�DUH�VWDWHG�DW�
FRVW�OHVV�DFFXPXODWHG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�LPSDLUPHQW��LI�DQ\��'HSUHFLDWLRQ�LV�FKDUJHG�WR�SURILW�DQG�ORVV�
DFFRXQW�RQ�VWUDLJKW�OLQH�EDVLV�VR�DV�WR�FKDUJH�WKH�DVVHWV�RYHU�WKHLU�H[SHFWHG�XVHIXO�OLYHV�DW�WKH�UDWHV�
VSHFLILHG�LQ�QRWH�������7KH�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�FKDUJH�LV�FDOFXODWHG�DIWHU�WDNLQJ�LQWR�DFFRXQW�UHVLGXDO�YDOXH��
LI�DQ\��7KH�UHVLGXDO�YDOXHV��XVHIXO�OLYHV�DQG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�PHWKRG�DUH�UHYLHZHG�DQQXDOO\�DQG�DGMXVWHG� 
LI� DSSURSULDWH��'HSUHFLDWLRQ� LV� FKDUJHG�RQ�SURUDWD�EDVLV�� L�H��� IXOO�PRQWK� FKDUJH� LQ� WKH�PRQWK�RI�
SXUFKDVH�DQG�QR�FKDUJH�LQ�WKH�PRQWK�RI�GLVSRVDO�

� /DQG�DQG�EXLOGLQJV�DUH� UHYDOXHG�E\� LQGHSHQGHQW� SURIHVVLRQDOO\� TXDOLILHG� YDOXHUV�ZLWK� VXIILFLHQW�
UHJXODULW\�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�QHW�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�GRHV�QRW�GLIIHU�PDWHULDOO\�IURP�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH��7KH�
VXUSOXV�DULVLQJ�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�IL[HG�DVVHWV�LV�FUHGLWHG�WR�WKH�´VXUSOXV�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�DVVHWV��
DFFRXQW�VKRZQ�EHORZ�HTXLW\��7KH�*URXS�KDV�DGRSWHG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�DFFRXQWLQJ�WUHDWPHQW�RI�GHSUHFLDWLRQ 
RQ�UHYDOXHG�DVVHWV��NHHSLQJ�LQ�YLHZ�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�2UGLQDQFH�������DQG�6(&3
V 
652������������GDWHG����-DQXDU\�������

���



� �� GHSUHFLDWLRQ�RQ�DVVHWV�ZKLFK�DUH�UHYDOXHG�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�ZLWK�UHIHUHQFH�WR�WKH�YDOXH�DVVLJQHG�
WR�VXFK�DVVHWV�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�DQG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�FKDUJH�IRU�WKH�\HDU�LV�WDNHQ�WR�WKH�SURILW�DQG�
loss account; and

� �� DQ�DPRXQW�HTXDO�WR�LQFUHPHQWDO�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�\HDU�QHW�RI�GHIHUUHG�WD[DWLRQ�LV�WUDQVIHUUHG�
IURP�VXUSOXV�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�DVVHWV�WR�XQDSSURSULDWHG�SURILW�WKURXJK�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�
HTXLW\�WR�UHFRUG�UHDOLVDWLRQ�RI�VXUSOXV�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�RI�WKH�LQFUHPHQWDO�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�FKDUJH�IRU�
WKH�\HDU�

� 6XEVHTXHQW�FRVWV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�DVVHW·V�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RU�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�D�VHSDUDWH�DVVHW��
DV�DSSURSULDWH��RQO\�ZKHQ�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHILWV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�LWHP�ZLOO�
IORZ�WR�WKH�*URXS�DQG�WKH�FRVW�RI�WKH�LWHP�FDQ�EH�PHDVXUHG�UHOLDEO\��7KH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�
UHSODFHG�SDUW�LV�GHUHFRJQLVHG��$OO�RWKHU�UHSDLUV�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�DUH�FKDUJHG�WR�WKH�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW 
GXULQJ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�SHULRG�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH\�DUH�LQFXUUHG�

 *DLQV�DQG�ORVVHV�RQ�GLVSRVDO�RI�IL[HG�DVVHWV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�LQFRPH�FXUUHQWO\��H[FHSW�WKDW�WKH�UHODWHG 
VXUSOXV�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�ODQG�DQG�EXLOGLQJV��QHW�RI�'HIHUUHG�WD[��LV�WUDQVIHUUHG�GLUHFWO\�WR�XQDSSURSULDWHG 
SURILW�

 Tangible operating assets - leased
� /HDVHV�ZKHUH�WKH�*URXS�DVVXPHV�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�DOO�WKH�ULVNV�DQG�UHZDUGV�RI�RZQHUVKLS�DUH�FODVVLILHG�

DV�ILQDQFH�OHDVHV��$VVHWV�VXEMHFW�WR�ILQDQFH�OHDVH�DUH�DFFRXQWHG�IRU�E\�UHFRUGLQJ�WKH�DVVHWV�DQG�
UHODWHG� OLDELOLW\��7KHVH�DUH�VWDWHG�DW� ORZHU�RI� IDLU�YDOXH�DQG� WKH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�PLQLPXP� OHDVH�
SD\PHQWV�DW�WKH�LQFHSWLRQ�RI�OHDVH�OHVV�DFFXPXODWHG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ��)LQDQFLDO�FKDUJHV�DUH�DOORFDWHG�
RYHU�WKH�SHULRG�RI�OHDVH�WHUP�VR�DV�WR�SURYLGH�D�FRQVWDQW�SHULRGLF�UDWH�RI�ILQDQFLDO�FKDUJH�RQ�WKH�
RXWVWDQGLQJ�OLDELOLW\��'HSUHFLDWLRQ�LV�FKDUJHG�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�VLPLODU�WR�WKH�RZQHG�DVVHWV�

 Intangible assets
� ,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�KDYLQJ�D�ILQLWH�XVHIXO� OLIH�DUH�VWDWHG�DW�FRVW� OHVV�DFFXPXODWHG�DPRUWLVDWLRQ�DQG�

LPSDLUPHQW��LI�DQ\��$PRUWLVDWLRQ�LV�EDVHG�RQ�VWUDLJKW�OLQH�PHWKRG�E\�WDNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�
HVWLPDWHG�XVHIXO�OLIH�RI�DVVHWV�DW�WKH�UDWHV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�QRWH�������,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�DUH�DPRUWLVHG�RQ�
SURUDWD�EDVLV�L�H��IXOO�PRQWK�DPRUWLVDWLRQ�LQ�WKH�PRQWK�RI�SXUFKDVH�DQG�QR�DPRUWLVDWLRQ�LQ�WKH�PRQWK�
RI�GLVSRVDO��,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�ZLWK�LQGHILQLWH�XVHIXO�OLIH�DUH�QRW�DPRUWLVHG�LQVWHDG�WKH\�DUH�V\VWHPDWLFDOO\ 
WHVWHG�IRU�LPSDLUPHQW�DQQXDOO\�

 Capital work in progress 
� &DSLWDO�ZRUN�LQ�SURJUHVV�LV�VWDWHG�DW�FRVW�OHVV�LPSDLUPHQW��LI�DQ\�
 Impairment
� 7KH� FDUU\LQJ� YDOXHV�RI� IL[HG�DVVHWV� DUH� UHYLHZHG� IRU� LPSDLUPHQW�ZKHQ�HYHQWV� RU� FKDQJHV� LQ�

FLUFXPVWDQFHV�LQGLFDWH�WKDW�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXHV�PD\�QRW�EH�UHFRYHUDEOH��,I�DQ\�VXFK�LQGLFDWLRQ�H[LVWV�
DQG�ZKHUH� WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXHV�H[FHHG� WKH�HVWLPDWHG�UHFRYHUDEOH�DPRXQWV�� WKH� IL[HG�DVVHWV�DUH�
ZULWWHQ�GRZQ�WR�WKHLU�UHFRYHUDEOH�DPRXQWV�

� 7KH� UHVXOWLQJ� LPSDLUPHQW� ORVV� LV� WDNHQ� WR�SURILW�DQG� ORVV�DFFRXQW�H[FHSW� IRU� LPSDLUPHQW� ORVV�RQ�
UHYDOXHG�DVVHWV�ZKLFK� LV�DGMXVWHG�DJDLQVW� WKH� UHODWHG� UHYDOXDWLRQ�VXUSOXV� WR� WKH�H[WHQW� WKDW� WKH�
LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV�GRHV�QRW�H[FHHG�WKH�VXUSOXV�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�DVVHWV�

5.8 Employees' benefits
 Defined benefit plan
� 7KH�%DQN�RSHUDWHV�DQ�DSSURYHG�JUDWXLW\�IXQG�IRU�DOO�LWV�FRQILUPHG�HPSOR\HHV��ZKLFK�LV�DGPLQLVWHUHG�

E\�WKH�7UXVWHHV��7KH�%DQN
V�FRVWV�DQG�FRQWULEXWLRQV�DUH�GHWHUPLQHG�EDVHG�RQ�DFWXDULDO�YDOXDWLRQ�
FDUULHG�RXW�DW�HDFK�\HDU�HQG�XVLQJ�3URMHFWHG�8QLW�&UHGLW�$FWXDULDO�0HWKRG��$OO�DFWXDULDO�JDLQV�DQG�
ORVVHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�
RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH
�DV�WKH\�RFFXU��DQG�DUH�QRW�UHFODVVLILHG�WR�
SURILW�RU�ORVV�LQ�VXEVHTXHQW�SHULRGV�

���



 Defined contribution plan
� 7KH�%DQN�RSHUDWHV�DQ�DSSURYHG�SURYLGHQW�IXQG�VFKHPH�IRU�DOO�LWV�UHJXODU�SHUPDQHQW�HPSOR\HHV��

DGPLQLVWHUHG�E\� WKH�7UXVWHHV��(TXDO�PRQWKO\� FRQWULEXWLRQV�DUH�PDGH�ERWK�E\� WKH�%DQN�DQG� LWV�
HPSOR\HHV�WR�WKH�IXQG�DW�WKH�UDWH�RI�����RI�WKH�EDVLF�VDODU\�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�
VFKHPH�

� $/�+DELE�&DSLWDO�0DUNHWV� �3ULYDWH�� /LPLWHG�RSHUDWHV�XQDSSURYHG�SURYLGHQW� IXQG� VFKHPH� IRU� LWV�
FRQILUPHG�HPSOR\HHV��&RQWULEXWLRQV�DUH�PDGH�E\�WKH�FRPSDQ\�DQG�WKH�HPSOR\HHV�DW�WKH�UDWH�RI�
����RI�WKH�EDVLF�VDODU\�ZLWK�WKH�WHUPV�RI�VFKHPH�

 Compensated absences
� 7KH�%DQN�DFFRXQWV�IRU�DOO�DFFXPXODWLQJ�FRPSHQVDWHG�DEVHQFHV�ZKHQ�HPSOR\HHV�UHQGHU�VHUYLFH�

WKDW�LQFUHDVHV�WKHLU�HQWLWOHPHQW�WR�IXWXUH�FRPSHQVDWHG�DEVHQFHV��7KH�OLDELOLW\�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�EDVHG�
RQ�DFWXDULDO�YDOXDWLRQ�FDUULHG�RXW�XVLQJ�WKH�3URMHFWHG�8QLW�&UHGLW�0HWKRG�

5.9 Provisions against liabilities
� 7KHVH�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ� WKH�*URXS�KDV�D� OHJDO�RU�FRQVWUXFWLYH�REOLJDWLRQ�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�SDVW�

HYHQWV��LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�DQ�RXWIORZ�RI�UHVRXUFHV�ZLOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�VHWWOH�WKH�REOLJDWLRQ�DQG�D�UHOLDEOH 
HVWLPDWH�RI�WKH�DPRXQW�FDQ�EH�PDGH��3URYLVLRQV�DUH�UHYLHZHG�DW�HDFK�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�DQG�DUH�DGMXVWHG 
WR�UHIOHFW�WKH�FXUUHQW�EHVW�HVWLPDWH�

5.10 Provisions against off-balance sheet obligations
� 7KH�*URXS��LQ�WKH�RUGLQDU\�FRXUVH�RI�EXVLQHVV��LVVXHV�OHWWHUV�RI�FUHGLW��DFFHSWDQFHV��JXDUDQWHHV��ELG�

ERQGV��SHUIRUPDQFH�ERQGV�HWF��7KH�FRPPLVVLRQ�DJDLQVW�VXFK�FRQWUDFWV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�SURILW�
DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�XQGHU��IHHV��FRPPLVVLRQ�DQG�EURNHUDJH�LQFRPH��RYHU�WKH�SHULRG�RI�FRQWUDFWV��7KH�
*URXS�OLDELOLW\�XQGHU�VXFK�FRQWUDFWV�LV�PHDVXUHG�DW�WKH�KLJKHU�RI�WKH�DPRXQW�UHSUHVHQWLQJ�XQHDUQHG�
FRPPLVVLRQ�LQFRPH�DW�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�DQG�WKH�EHVW�HVWLPDWH�RI�WKH�DPRXQW�H[SHFWHG�WR�VHWWOH�DQ\�
ILQDQFLDO�REOLJDWLRQ�DULVLQJ�XQGHU�VXFK�FRQWUDFWV��

5.11 Subordinated loans
� 6XERUGLQDWHG�ORDQV�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�UHFRUGHG�DW�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�SURFHHGV�UHFHLYHG��0DUN�XS�DFFUXHG�RQ�

VXERUGLQDWHG�ORDQV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�VHSDUDWHO\�DV�SDUW�RI�RWKHU�OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�LV�FKDUJHG�WR�WKH�SURILW�
DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�RYHU�WKH�SHULRG�RQ�DQ�DFFUXDO�EDVLV�

5.12 Revenue recognition
� �D�� 0DUN�XS���LQWHUHVW���UHWXUQ�RQ�DGYDQFHV�DQG�LQYHVWPHQWV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�RQ�DFFUXDO�EDVLV��H[FHSW�

LQ�FDVH�RI�DGYDQFHV�FODVVLILHG�XQGHU�WKH�3UXGHQWLDO�5HJXODWLRQV�RQ�ZKLFK�PDUN�XS�LV�UHFRJQLVHG 
RQ�UHFHLSW�EDVLV��0DUNXS���LQWHUHVW���UHWXUQ�RQ�UHVFKHGXOHG���UHVWUXFWXUHG�ORDQV�DQG�DGYDQFHV�
DQG�LQYHVWPHQWV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�SHUPLWWHG�E\�WKH�UHJXODWLRQV�RI�6%3��

� �E�� )LQDQFLQJ�PHWKRG�LV�XVHG�LQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�IRU�LQFRPH�IURP�OHDVH�ILQDQFLQJ��8QGHU�WKLV�PHWKRG��
WKH�XQUHDOLVHG�OHDVH�LQFRPH�LV�GHIHUUHG�DQG�WDNHQ�WR�LQFRPH�RYHU�WKH�WHUP�RI�WKH�OHDVH�SHULRG�
VR�DV�WR�SURGXFH�D�FRQVWDQW�SHULRGLF�UDWH�RI�UHWXUQ�RQ�WKH�RXWVWDQGLQJ�QHW�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�OHDVH��
*DLQ���ORVV�RQ�WHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�OHDVH�FRQWUDFWV��IURQW�HQG�IHH�DQG�RWKHU�OHDVH�LQFRPH�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG 
DV�LQFRPH�RQ�UHFHLSW�EDVLV��

� �F�� 7KH�UHQWDOV�IURP�LMDUDK�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�LQFRPH�RYHU�WKH�WHUP�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW�QHW�RI�GHSUHFLDWLRQ 
H[SHQVH�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�LMDUDK�DVVHWV�

� �G�� ,QFRPH� IURP�PXUDEDKD� LV� DFFRXQWHG� IRU� RQ�D� WLPH�SURSRUWLRQDWH�EDVLV� RYHU� WKH�SHULRG�RI�
PXUDEDKD�WUDQVDFWLRQ�

� �H�� 'LYLGHQG�LQFRPH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�ULJKW�WR�UHFHLYH�LV�HVWDEOLVKHG�
� �I�� *DLQ�RU�ORVV�RQ�VDOH�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURILW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�LQ�WKH�\HDU�LQ�

ZKLFK�WKH\�DULVH�

���



� �J�� )HH��FRPPLVVLRQ�DQG�EURNHUDJH�LQFRPH�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�VHUYLFHV�DUH�SHUIRUPHG�
5.13 Taxation 
� ,QFRPH�WD[�H[SHQVH�FRPSULVHV�FXUUHQW�DQG�GHIHUUHG�WD[��,QFRPH�WD[�H[SHQVH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURILW�

DQG� ORVV�DFFRXQW�H[FHSW� WR�WKH�H[WHQW� WKDW� LW� UHODWHV�WR�WKH� LWHPV�UHFRJQLVHG�GLUHFWO\� LQ�HTXLW\�RU�
VXUSOXV�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�DVVHWV��LQ�ZKLFK�FDVH�LW�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�HTXLW\�RU�VXUSOXV�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�
RI�DVVHWV�

 Current
� 3URYLVLRQ�IRU�FXUUHQW�WD[�LV�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�WD[DEOH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU��XVLQJ�WD[�UDWHV�HQDFWHG�RU�

VXEVWDQWLYHO\�HQDFWHG�DW� WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI� ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�GDWH�DQG�DQ\�DGMXVWPHQWV� WR� WKH�WD[�
SD\DEOH�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�SUHYLRXV�\HDUV��&XUUHQW�WD[�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�WKH�DPRXQW�
H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�UHFRYHUHG�IURP�RU�SDLG�WR�WD[DWLRQ�DXWKRULWLHV�

 Deferred
� 'HIHUUHG� WD[� LV�SURYLGHG�RQ�DOO� WHPSRUDU\�GLIIHUHQFHV�DW� WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI� ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�GDWH�

EHWZHHQ�WKH�WD[�EDVHV�RI�DVVHWV�DQG� OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�WKHLU�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�IRU� ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�
SXUSRVHV�

� 'HIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�IRU�DOO�GHGXFWLEOH�WHPSRUDU\�GLIIHUHQFHV�DQG�XQXVHG�WD[�ORVVHV��
WR�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW� LW� LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WD[DEOH�SURILWV�ZLOO�EH�DYDLODEOH�DJDLQVW�ZKLFK�WKH�GHGXFWLEOH�
WHPSRUDU\�GLIIHUHQFHV�DQG�XQXVHG�WD[�ORVVHV�FDQ�EH�XWLOLVHG�

� 'HIHUUHG� WD[� OLDELOLWLHV�DUH� UHFRJQLVHG� IRU�DOO� WD[DEOH� WHPSRUDU\�GLIIHUHQFHV��H[FHSW� LQ� UHVSHFW�RI�
WD[DEOH�WHPSRUDU\�GLIIHUHQFHV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�IRUHLJQ�RSHUDWLRQV��ZKHQ�WKH�WLPLQJ�RI�
WKH�UHYHUVDO�RI�WKH�WHPSRUDU\�GLIIHUHQFHV�FDQ�EH�FRQWUROOHG�DQG�LW� LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WKH�WHPSRUDU\�
GLIIHUHQFHV�ZLOO�QRW�UHYHUVH�LQ�WKH�IRUHVHHDEOH�IXWXUH�

� 7KH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�GHIHUUHG� LQFRPH� WD[�DVVHWV�DUH� UHYLHZHG�DW�HDFK�VWDWHPHQW�RI� ILQDQFLDO�
SRVLWLRQ�GDWH�DQG�UHGXFHG�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�LW�LV�QR�ORQJHU�SUREDEOH�WKDW�VXIILFLHQW�WD[DEOH�SURILW�RU�
WD[DEOH�WHPSRUDU\�GLIIHUHQFHV�ZLOO�EH�DYDLODEOH�WR�DOORZ�DOO�RU�SDUW�RI�WKH�GHIHUUHG�LQFRPH�WD[�DVVHW�
WR�EH�XWLOLVHG��

� 'HIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�WKH�WD[�UDWHV�WKDW�DUH�H[SHFWHG�WR�DSSO\�WR�WKH�
SHULRG�ZKHQ�WKH�DVVHW�LV�UHDOLVHG�RU�WKH�OLDELOLW\�LV�VHWWOHG��EDVHG�RQ�WD[�UDWHV��DQG�WD[�ODZV��WKDW�
KDYH�EHHQ�HQDFWHG�RU�VXEVWDQWLYHO\�HQDFWHG�DW�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�GDWH�

5.14 Currency translation
 Functional and presentation currency
� 7KHVH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�3DN�5XSHHV�ZKLFK�LV�WKH�*URXS�IXQFWLRQDO�

FXUUHQF\�DQG�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�FXUUHQF\�
 Transactions and balances in foreign currencies
� )RUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�WUDQVDFWLRQV�DUH�WUDQVODWHG�LQWR�3DN�5XSHHV�DW�WKH�H[FKDQJH�UDWHV�SUHYDLOLQJ�RQ�

WKH�GDWH�RI�WUDQVDFWLRQ��0RQHWDU\�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV�DUH�WUDQVODWHG�LQWR�3DN�
5XSHHV�DW�WKH�H[FKDQJH�UDWHV�SUHYDLOLQJ�DW�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH��1RQ�PRQHWDU\�LWHPV�WKDW�DUH�PHDVXUHG 
LQ�WHUPV�RI�KLVWRULFDO�FRVW�LQ�D�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�DUH�WUDQVODWHG�XVLQJ�WKH�H[FKDQJH�UDWHV�DW�WKH�GDWHV�
RI� WKH� LQLWLDO� WUDQVDFWLRQV��1RQ�PRQHWDU\� LWHPV�PHDVXUHG�DW� IDLU� YDOXH� LQ�D� IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�DUH�
WUDQVODWHG�XVLQJ�H[FKDQJH�UDWHV�DW�WKH�GDWH�ZKHQ�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�ZDV�GHWHUPLQHG��([FKDQJH�JDLQV�
RU�ORVVHV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�LQFRPH�FXUUHQWO\�

 Foreign operations
� 7KH�DVVHWV�DQG� OLDELOLWLHV�RI� IRUHLJQ�RSHUDWLRQV�DUH� WUDQVODWHG� WR�3DN�5XSHHV�DW�H[FKDQJH� UDWHV�

SUHYDLOLQJ�DW�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH��7KH�LQFRPH�DQG�H[SHQVH�RI�IRUHLJQ�RSHUDWLRQV�DUH�WUDQVODWHG�DW�UDWH�
RI�H[FKDQJH�SUHYDLOLQJ�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��([FKDQJH�JDLQ�RU�ORVV�RQ�VXFK�WUDQVODWLRQ�LV�WDNHQ�WR�HTXLW\�
WKURXJK�VWDWHPHQW�RI�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�XQGHU��IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�WUDQVODWLRQ�UHVHUYH��
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 Commitments
� &RPPLWPHQWV�IRU�RXWVWDQGLQJ�IRUZDUG�IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�FRQWUDFWV�DUH�WUDQVODWHG�DW�IRUZDUG�UDWHV�

DSSOLFDEOH�WR�WKHLU�UHVSHFWLYH�PDWXULWLHV�
5.15 Financial instruments
� )LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�ILQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DW�WKH�WLPH�ZKHQ�WKH�*URXS�EHFRPHV�D�SDUW\�

WR�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�SURYLVLRQ�RI�WKH�LQVWUXPHQW��)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�GH�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO 
ULJKW�WR�IXWXUH�FDVK�IORZV�IURP�WKH�DVVHW�H[SLUHV�RU�LV�WUDQVIHUUHG�DORQJ�ZLWK�WKH�ULVN�DQG�UHZDUG�RI�
RZQHUVKLS�RI�WKH�DVVHW��)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�GH�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�REOLJDWLRQ�LV�GLVFKDUJHG��FDQFHOOHG 
RU�H[SLUHG��$Q\�JDLQ�RU�ORVV�RQ�GH�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHW�DQG�OLDELOLW\�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�
SURILW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�SHULRG�

5.16 Derivative financial instruments
� 'HULYDWLYH�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�UHFRJQLVHG�DW�WKHLU�IDLU�YDOXH�RQ�WKH�GDWH�RQ�ZKLFK�WKH�

GHULYDWLYH�FRQWUDFW� LV�HQWHUHG� LQWR�DQG�DUH�VXEVHTXHQWO\� UHPHDVXUHG�DW� IDLU� YDOXH��$OO� GHULYDWLYH�
ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�FDUULHG�DV�DVVHW�ZKHQ�IDLU�YDOXH�LV�SRVLWLYH�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�ZKHQ�IDLU�YDOXH�LV�
QHJDWLYH��$Q\�FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�YDOXH�RI�GHULYDWLYH�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�LV�WDNHQ�WR�WKH�SURILW�DQG�ORVV�
DFFRXQW�

5.17 Off - setting
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are only off - set and the net amount is reported in the financial 

VWDWHPHQWV�ZKHQ�WKHUH�LV�D�OHJDOO\�HQIRUFHDEOH�ULJKW�WR�VHW���RII�WKH�UHFRJQLVHG�DPRXQW�DQG�WKH�*URXS 
LQWHQGV�HLWKHU�WR�VHWWOH�RQ�D�QHW�EDVLV��RU�WR�UHDOLVH�WKH�DVVHWV�DQG�WR�VHWWOH�WKH�OLDELOLWLHV�VLPXOWDQHRXVO\� 
,QFRPH�DQG�H[SHQVH�LWHPV�RI�VXFK�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�DOVR�RII���VHW�DQG�WKH�QHW�DPRXQW�LV�
UHSRUWHG�LQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

5.18 Dividends and appropriations to reserves
� 'LYLGHQGV�DQG�DSSURSULDWLRQV�WR�UHVHUYHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�\HDU�LQ�ZKLFK�WKHVH�DUH�DSSURYHG��

H[FHSW�DSSURSULDWLRQV�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�ODZ�ZKLFK�DUH�UHFRUGHG�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�WR�ZKLFK�WKH\�SHUWDLQ�
5.19 Segment reporting
� $�VHJPHQW�LV�D�GLVWLQJXLVKDEOH�FRPSRQHQW�RI�WKH�*URXS�WKDW�LV�HQJDJHG�LQ�SURYLGLQJ�SURGXFWV�DQG�

VHUYLFHV� �EXVLQHVV� VHJPHQW��� RU� LQ� SURYLGLQJ�SURGXFWV� RU� VHUYLFHV�ZLWKLQ� D� SDUWLFXODU� HFRQRPLF�
HQYLURQPHQW��JHRJUDSKLFDO�VHJPHQW���ZKLFK�LV�VXEMHFW�WR�ULVN�DQG�UHZDUGV�WKDW�DUH�GLIIHUHQW�IURP�
WKRVH�RI� RWKHU� VHJPHQWV��7KH� VHJPHQW� UHSRUWLQJ� IRUPDW� KDV�EHHQ�GHWHUPLQHG�DQG�SUHSDUHG� LQ�
FRQIRUPLW\�ZLWK� WKH� IRUPDW�RI� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�JXLGHOLQHV��SUHVFULEHG�E\�6%3�YLGH�%6'�
&LUFXODU�1R����� GDWHG�� ���)HEUXDU\� ������7KH�*URXS
V� SULPDU\� IRUPDW� RI� UHSRUWLQJ� LV� EDVHG�RQ�
EXVLQHVV�VHJPHQWV�

5.19.1 Business segments
 Retail banking
 ,W�FRQVLVWV�RI�UHWDLO�OHQGLQJ��GHSRVLWV�DQG�EDQNLQJ�VHUYLFHV�WR�SULYDWH�LQGLYLGXDOV�DQG�VPDOO�EXVLQHVVHV� 

7KH�UHWDLO�EDQNLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�LQFOXGH�SURYLVLRQ�RI�EDQNLQJ�DQG�RWKHU�ILQDQFLDO�VHUYLFHV��VXFK�DV�FXUUHQW 
DQG�VDYLQJV�DFFRXQWV��FUHGLW�FDUGV��FRQVXPHU�EDQNLQJ�SURGXFWV�HWF���WR�LQGLYLGXDO�FXVWRPHUV��VPDOO�
PHUFKDQWV�DQG�60(V�

 Commercial banking
� &RPPHUFLDO�EDQNLQJ�UHSUHVHQWV�SURYLVLRQ�RI�EDQNLQJ�VHUYLFHV�LQFOXGLQJ�WUHDVXU\�DQG�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�

WUDGH�UHODWHG�DFWLYLWLHV�WR�ODUJH�FRUSRUDWH�FXVWRPHUV��PXOWLQDWLRQDO�FRPSDQLHV��JRYHUQPHQW�DQG�VHPL�
JRYHUQPHQW� GHSDUWPHQWV�DQG� LQVWLWXWLRQV�DQG�60(V� WUHDWHG�DV� FRUSRUDWH�XQGHU� WKH�3UXGHQWLDO�
5HJXODWLRQV�
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 Retail brokerage
� 5HWDLO� EURNHUDJH�DFWLYLWLHV� LQFOXGH� WKH�EXVLQHVV�RI� HTXLW\��PRQH\�PDUNHW� DQG� IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�

EURNHUDJH��HTXLW\�UHVHDUFK�DQG�FRUSRUDWH�ILQDQFLDO�DGYLVRU\�DQG�FRQVXOWDQF\�VHUYLFHV�
5.19.2 Geographical segments
� 7KH�*URXS�RSHUDWHV�LQ�IRXU�JHRJUDSKLF�UHJLRQV��EHLQJ�
� �� 3DNLVWDQ� � � � � � �
� �� 0LGGOH�(DVW� � � � � � �
� �� $VLD�3DFLILF� � � � � � �
 - Africa
5.20 Earnings per share
� 7KH�*URXS�SUHVHQWV�EDVLF�DQG�GLOXWHG�HDUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH��(36���%DVLF�(36�LV�FDOFXODWHG�E\�GLYLGLQJ�

WKH�SURILW�RU�ORVV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�RUGLQDU\�VKDUHKROGHUV�RI�WKH�%DQN�E\�WKH�ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH�QXPEHU�
RI�RUGLQDU\�VKDUHV�RXWVWDQGLQJ�GXULQJ�WKH�SHULRG���\HDU��'LOXWHG�(36�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�DGMXVWLQJ�WKH�
SURILW�RU� ORVV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�RUGLQDU\�VKDUHKROGHUV�DQG�WKH�ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH�QXPEHU�RI�RUGLQDU\�
VKDUHV�RXWVWDQGLQJ� IRU� WKH�HIIHFWV�RI�DOO�GLOXWLYH�SRWHQWLDO�RUGLQDU\�VKDUHV�� LI�DQ\��7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�
FRQYHUWLEOH�GLOXWLYH�SRWHQWLDO�RUGLQDU\�VKDUHV�LQ�LVVXH�DW����'HFHPEHU������

5.21 Clients' assets
� 7KH�*URXS�SURYLGHV�VHUYLFHV�WKDW�UHVXOW�LQ�WKH�KROGLQJ�RI�DVVHWV�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�LWV�FOLHQWV��6XFK�DVVHWV�

DUH�QRW�UHSRUWHG�LQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��DV�WKH\�DUH�QRW�WKH�DVVHWV�RI�WKH�*URXS�
6. ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 
� 7KH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�FRQVROLGDWHG� ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV� UHTXLUHV�PDQDJHPHQW� WR�PDNH� MXGJPHQWV��

estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets 
DQG� OLDELOLWLHV�� LQFRPH�DQG�H[SHQVHV��7KH�HVWLPDWHV�DQG�DVVRFLDWHG�DVVXPSWLRQV�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�
KLVWRULFDO� H[SHULHQFH�DQG� YDULRXV�RWKHU� IDFWRUV� WKDW� DUH�EHOLHYHG� WR� EH� UHDVRQDEOH�XQGHU� WKH�
FLUFXPVWDQFHV�� WKH�UHVXOW�RI�ZKLFK�IRUPV�WKH�EDVLV�RI�PDNLQJ� MXGJPHQW�DERXW�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXHV�RI�
DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�UHDGLO\�DSSDUHQW�IURP�RWKHU�VRXUFHV��$FWXDO�UHVXOWV�PD\�GLIIHU�IURP�
WKHVH�HVWLPDWHV��7KH�HVWLPDWHV�DQG�XQGHUO\LQJ�DVVXPSWLRQV�DUH�UHYLHZHG�RQ�DQ�RQJRLQJ�EDVLV��
5HYLVLRQ�WR�DFFRXQWLQJ�HVWLPDWHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�HVWLPDWH�LV�UHYLVHG�LI�WKH�
UHYLVLRQ�DIIHFWV�RQO\�WKDW�SHULRG��RU�LQ�SHULRG�RI�UHYLVLRQ�DQG�IXWXUH�SHULRGV�LI�WKH�UHYLVLRQ�DIIHFWV�ERWK�
FXUUHQW�DQG�IXWXUH�SHULRGV��7KH�HVWLPDWHV�DQG�MXGJPHQWV�WKDW�KDYH�D�VLJQLILFDQW�HIIHFW�RQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO 
VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�

   Note
� &ODVVLILFDWLRQ�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV�DQG�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�GLPLQXWLRQ�LQ�WKH�YDOXH�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV� ����	���
� 3URYLVLRQ�DJDLQVW�QRQ���SHUIRUPLQJ�DGYDQFHV� ����	���
� 8VHIXO�OLYHV�RI�DVVHWV�DQG�PHWKRGV�RI�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�DPRUWLVDWLRQ� ����	���
� (PSOR\HHV
�EHQHILW� ��������	���
� 3URYLVLRQV�DJDLQVW�RII���EDODQFH�VKHHW�REOLJDWLRQV� �����	���
� &XUUHQW�DQG�GHIHUUHG�WD[DWLRQ� �����	���
7. STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED ACCOUNTING 

STANDARDS  THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
� 7KH�IROORZLQJ�VWDQGDUGV��DPHQGPHQWV�DQG�LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV�RI�DSSURYHG�DFFRXQWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�ZLOO�EH�

HIIHFWHG�IRU�IROORZLQJ�SHULRGV�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\������
� �� $PHQGPHQWV�WR�,$6����´(PSOR\HH�%HQHILWVµ�(PSOR\HH�FRQWULEXWLRQV�²�D�SUDFWLFDO�DSSURDFK�

�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-XO\��������7KH�SUDFWLFDO�H[SHGLHQW�DGGUHVVHV 
DQ�LVVXH�WKDW�DURVH�ZKHQ�DPHQGPHQWV�ZHUH�PDGH�LQ������WR�WKH�SUHYLRXV�SHQVLRQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�
UHTXLUHPHQWV��7KH�DPHQGPHQWV�LQWURGXFH�D�UHOLHI�WKDW�ZLOO�UHGXFH�WKH�FRPSOH[LW\�DQG�EXUGHQ�
RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�IRU�FHUWDLQ�FRQWULEXWLRQV�IURP�HPSOR\HHV�RU�WKLUG�SDUWLHV��7KH�DPHQGPHQWV�DUH�
UHOHYDQW�RQO\�WR�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�SODQV�WKDW�LQYROYH�FRQWULEXWLRQV�IURP�HPSOR\HHV�RU�WKLUG�SDUWLHV�
PHHWLQJ�FHUWDLQ�FULWHULD�� �

���



� �� $PHQGPHQWV�WR�,$6����,QWDQJLEOH�$VVHWV�DQG�,$6����3URSHUW\��3ODQW�DQG�(TXLSPHQW��HIIHFWLYH�
IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\�������LQWURGXFH�VHYHUH�UHVWULFWLRQV�RQ�WKH�XVH�
RI� UHYHQXH�EDVHG�DPRUWLVDWLRQ� IRU� LQWDQJLEOH� DVVHWV� DQG�H[SOLFLWO\� VWDWH� WKDW� UHYHQXH�EDVHG�
PHWKRGV�RI� GHSUHFLDWLRQ� FDQQRW� EH�XVHG� IRU� SURSHUW\�� SODQW� DQG�HTXLSPHQW��7KH� UHEXWWDEOH�
SUHVXPSWLRQ� WKDW� WKH�XVH�RI� UHYHQXH�EDVHG�DPRUWLVDWLRQ�PHWKRGV� IRU� LQWDQJLEOH� DVVHWV� LV�
LQDSSURSULDWH�FDQ�EH�RYHUFRPH�RQO\�ZKHQ�UHYHQXH�DQG�WKH�FRQVXPSWLRQ�RI�WKH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHILWV 
RI�WKH�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHW�DUH�¶KLJKO\�FRUUHODWHG·��RU�ZKHQ�WKH�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHW�LV�H[SUHVVHG�DV�D�
PHDVXUH�RI�UHYHQXH��7KH�DPHQGPHQWV�DUH�QRW�OLNHO\�WR�KDYH�DQ�LPSDFW�RQ�*URXS
V�FRQVROLGDWHG�
ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

� �� ,)56����¶&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV·�²��HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU�
��-DQXDU\�������UHSODFHV�WKH�SDUW�RI�,$6����¶&RQVROLGDWHG�DQG�6HSDUDWH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��
,)56����LQWURGXFHV�D�QHZ�DSSURDFK�WR�GHWHUPLQLQJ�ZKLFK�LQYHVWHHV�VKRXOG�EH�FRQVROLGDWHG��7KH�
VLQJOH�PRGHO�WR�EH�DSSOLHG�LQ�WKH�FRQWURO�DQDO\VLV�UHTXLUHV�WKDW�DQ�LQYHVWRU�FRQWUROV�DQ�LQYHVWHH�
ZKHQ�WKH�LQYHVWRU� LV�H[SRVHG��RU�KDV�ULJKWV�� WR�YDULDEOH�UHWXUQV�IURP�LWV� LQYROYHPHQW�ZLWK�WKH�
LQYHVWHH�DQG�KDV�WKH�DELOLW\�WR�DIIHFW�WKRVH�UHWXUQV�WKURXJK�LWV�SRZHU�RYHU�WKH�LQYHVWHH��,)56����
KDV�PDGH�FRQVHTXHQWLDO�FKDQJHV�WR�,$6����ZKLFK�LV�QRZ�FDOOHG�¶6HSDUDWH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV·�
DQG�ZLOO�GHDO�ZLWK�RQO\�VHSDUDWH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��&HUWDLQ�IXUWKHU�DPHQGPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�
PDGH�WR� ,)56����� ,)56����DQG� ,$6����FODULI\LQJ� WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�UHODWLQJ� WR�DFFRXQWLQJ� IRU�
LQYHVWPHQW�HQWLWLHV�DQG�ZRXOG�EH�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\�
������7KHVH�DPHQGPHQWV�PD\�KDYH�DQ�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�
*URXS�

� �� ,)56����¶-RLQW�$UUDQJHPHQWV·��HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\�������
UHSODFHV�,$6����¶,QWHUHVWV�LQ�-RLQW�9HQWXUHV·��)LUVWO\��LW�FDUYHV�RXW��IURP�,$6����MRLQWO\�FRQWUROOHG�
HQWLWLHV��WKRVH�FDVHV�LQ�ZKLFK�DOWKRXJK�WKHUH�LV�D�VHSDUDWH�YHKLFOH��WKDW�VHSDUDWLRQ�LV�LQHIIHFWLYH�
LQ�FHUWDLQ�ZD\V��7KHVH�DUUDQJHPHQWV�DUH�WUHDWHG�VLPLODUO\�WR�MRLQWO\�FRQWUROOHG�DVVHWV�RSHUDWLRQV�
XQGHU�,$6����DQG�DUH�QRZ�YHQWXUHV��DUH�VWULSSHG�RI�WKH�IUHH�FKRLFH�RI�XVLQJ�WKH�HTXLW\�PHWKRG�
RU�SURSRUWLRQDWH�FRQVROLGDWLRQ��WKH\�PXVW�QRZ�DOZD\V�XVH�WKH�HTXLW\�PHWKRG��,)56����KDV�DOVR�
PDGH�FRQVHTXHQWLDO�FKDQJHV�LQ�,$6����ZKLFK�KDV�QRZ�EHHQ�QDPHG�¶,QYHVWPHQW�LQ�$VVRFLDWHV�
DQG�-RLQW�9HQWXUHV·��7KH�DPHQGPHQWV�UHTXLULQJ�EXVLQHVV�FRPELQDWLRQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�WR�EH�DSSOLHG�
WR�DFTXLVLWLRQV�RI�LQWHUHVWV�LQ�D�MRLQW�RSHUDWLRQ�WKDW�FRQVWLWXWHV�D�EXVLQHVV�DUH�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�
SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\��������7KH�DGRSWLRQ�RI�WKLV�VWDQGDUG�LV�QRW�OLNH�WR�KDYH�
DQ�LPSDFW�RQ�*URXS
V�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

� �� ,)56����¶'LVFORVXUH�RI�,QWHUHVW�LQ�2WKHU�(QWLWLHV·��HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�
DIWHU���-DQXDU\�������FRPELQHV�WKH�GLVFORVXUH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�HQWLWLHV�WKDW�KDYH�LQWHUHVWV�LQ�
VXEVLGLDULHV�� MRLQW� DUUDQJHPHQWV� �L�H�� MRLQW� RSHUDWLRQV�RU� MRLQW� YHQWXUHV��� DVVRFLDWHV�DQG�RU�
XQFRQVROLGDWHG�VWUXFWXUHG�HQWLWLHV��LQWR�RQH�SODFH��7KH�DGRSWLRQ�RI�WKLV�VWDQGDUG�LV�QRW�OLNH�WR�
KDYH�DQ�LPSDFW�RQ�*URXS
V�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��7KH�DGDSWLRQ�RI�WKLV�VWDQGDUG�LV�
OLNHO\�WR�UHVXOW�LQ�DGGLWLRQDO�GLVFORVXUH�LQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

� �� ,)56����¶)DLU�9DOXH�0HDVXUHPHQW·�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\�
������GHILQHV�IDLU�YDOXH��HVWDEOLVKHV�D�IUDPHZRUN�IRU�PHDVXULQJ�IDLU�YDOXH�DQG�VHWV�RXW�GLVFORVXUH 
UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQWV��,)56����H[SODLQV�KRZ�WR�PHDVXUH�IDLU�YDOXH�ZKHQ�LW�
LV� UHTXLUHG�E\�RWKHU� ,)56V�� ,W� GRHV�QRW� LQWURGXFH�QHZ� IDLU� YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQWV�� QRU�GRHV� LW�
HOLPLQDWH�WKH�SUDFWLFDELOLW\�H[FHSWLRQV�WR�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQWV�WKDW�FXUUHQWO\�H[LVW�LQ�FHUWDLQ�
VWDQGDUGV��7KH�DGRSWLRQ�RI�WKLV�VWDQGDUG�LV�QRW�OLNH�WR�KDYH�DQ�LPSDFW�RQ�*URXS
V�FRQVROLGDWHG�
ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

� �� $PHQGPHQW�WR�,$6����¶6HSDUDWH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQW·��HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�
RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\��������7KH�DPHQGPHQWV�WR�,$6����ZLOO�DOORZ�HQWLWLHV�WR�XVH�WKH�HTXLW\�PHWKRG�
WR�DFFRXQW�IRU�LQYHVWPHQWV�LQ�VXEVLGLDULHV��MRLQW�YHQWXUHV�DQG�DVVRFLDWHV�LQ�WKHLU�VHSDUDWH�ILQDQFLDO 
VWDWHPHQWV�

���



 - 6DOH�RU�&RQWULEXWLRQ�RI�$VVHWV�EHWZHHQ�DQ�,QYHVWRU�DQG�LWV�$VVRFLDWH�RU�-RLQW�9HQWXUH��$PHQGPHQWV 
WR�,)56����DQG�,$6�����>HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\�����@��7KH�
PDLQ�FRQVHTXHQFH�RI�WKH�DPHQGPHQWV�LV�WKDW�D�IXOO�JDLQ�RU�ORVV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�D�WUDQVDFWLRQ�
LQYROYHV�D�EXVLQHVV��ZKHWKHU�LW�LV�KRXVHG�LQ�D�VXEVLGLDU\�RU�QRW���$�SDUWLDO�JDLQ�RU�ORVV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG 
ZKHQ�D�WUDQVDFWLRQ�LQYROYHV�DVVHWV�WKDW�GR�QRW�FRQVWLWXWH�D�EXVLQHVV��HYHQ�LI�WKHVH�DVVHWV�DUH�
KRXVHG�LQ�D�VXEVLGLDU\��

 - $QQXDO�,PSURYHPHQWV�����������DQG�����������F\FOHV��PRVW�DPHQGPHQWV�ZLOO�DSSO\�SURVSHFWLYHO\ 
IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRG�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-XO\��������7KH�QHZ�F\FOH�RI�LPSURYHPHQWV�FRQWDLQ�
DPHQGPHQWV�WR�WKH�IROORZLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�

� �� ,)56���¶6KDUH�EDVHG�3D\PHQW·��,)56���KDV�EHHQ�DPHQGHG�WR�FODULI\�WKH�GHILQLWLRQ�RI�¶YHVWLQJ�
FRQGLWLRQ·�E\�VHSDUDWHO\�GHILQLQJ�¶SHUIRUPDQFH�FRQGLWLRQ·�DQG�¶VHUYLFH�FRQGLWLRQ·�

� �� ,)56���¶%XVLQHVV�&RPELQDWLRQV·��7KHVH�DPHQGPHQWV�FODULI\�WKH�FODVVLILFDWLRQ�DQG�PHDVXUHPHQW�
RI�FRQWLQJHQW�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�LQ�D�EXVLQHVV�FRPELQDWLRQ�

� �� ,)56���¶2SHUDWLQJ�6HJPHQWV·�KDV�EHHQ�DPHQGHG�WR�H[SOLFLWO\�UHTXLUH�WKH�GLVFORVXUH�RI�MXGJPHQWV�
PDGH�E\�PDQDJHPHQW�LQ�DSSO\LQJ�WKH�DJJUHJDWLRQ�FULWHULD�

� �� $PHQGPHQWV� WR� ,$6���� ·3URSHUW\�� SODQW� DQG�HTXLSPHQW·� DQG� ,$6���� ¶,QWDQJLEOH�$VVHWV·��7KH�
DPHQGPHQWV�FODULI\�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�UHYDOXDWLRQ�PRGHO�LQ�,$6����DQG�,$6�����UHFRJQLVLQJ�
WKDW�WKH�UHVWDWHPHQW�RI�DFFXPXODWHG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ��DPRUWLVDWLRQ��LV�QRW�DOZD\V�SURSRUWLRQDWH�WR�
WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�JURVV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�DVVHW�

� �� ,$6���� ¶5HODWHG�3DUW\�'LVFORVXUH·��7KH�GHILQLWLRQ�RI� UHODWHG�SDUW\� LV� H[WHQGHG� WR� LQFOXGH�D�
PDQDJHPHQW�HQWLW\�WKDW�SURYLGHV�NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�VHUYLFHV�WR�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�HQWLW\��
HLWKHU�GLUHFWO\�RU�WKURXJK�D�JURXS�HQWLW\�

� �� ,$6����¶,QYHVWPHQW�3URSHUW\·��,$6����KDV�EHHQ�DPHQGHG�WR�FODULI\�WKDW�DQ�HQWLW\�VKRXOG��DVVHVV�
ZKHWKHU�DQ�DFTXLUHG�SURSHUW\�LV�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�XQGHU�,$6����DQG�SHUIRUP�D�VHSDUDWH�
DVVHVVPHQW�XQGHU�,)56���WR�GHWHUPLQH�ZKHWKHU�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\��

  $QQXDO�,PSURYHPHQWV�����������F\FOHV��DPHQGPHQWV�DUH�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�
RQ�RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\��������7KH�QHZ�F\FOH�RI�LPSURYHPHQWV�FRQWDLQ�DPHQGPHQWV�WR�WKH�IROORZLQJ 
standards:

� �� ,)56���1RQ�FXUUHQW�$VVHWV�+HOG�IRU�6DOH�DQG�'LVFRQWLQXHG�2SHUDWLRQV��,)56���LV�DPHQGHG�WR�
FODULI\�WKDW�LI�DQ�HQWLW\�FKDQJHV�WKH�PHWKRG�RI�GLVSRVDO�RI�DQ�DVVHW��RU�GLVSRVDO�JURXS��L�H��UHFODVVLILHV 
DQ�DVVHW�IURP�KHOG�IRU�GLVWULEXWLRQ�WR�RZQHUV�WR�KHOG�IRU�VDOH�RU�YLFH�YHUVD�ZLWKRXW�DQ\�WLPH�ODJ��
WKHQ�VXFK�FKDQJH�LQ�FODVVLILFDWLRQ�LV�FRQVLGHUHG�DV�FRQWLQXDWLRQ�RI�WKH�RULJLQDO�SODQ�RI�GLVSRVDO�
DQG�LI�DQ�HQWLW\�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�DQ�DVVHW��RU�GLVSRVDO�JURXS��QR�ORQJHU�PHHWV�WKH�FULWHULD�WR�EH�
FODVVLILHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�GLVWULEXWLRQ��WKHQ�LW�FHDVHV�KHOG�IRU�GLVWULEXWLRQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�LQ�WKH�VDPH�ZD\�
DV�LW�ZRXOG�FHDVH�KHOG�IRU�VDOH�DFFRXQWLQJ�

� �� ,)56��� ¶)LQDQFLDO� ,QVWUXPHQWV��'LVFORVXUHV·�� ,)56��� LV� DPHQGHG� WR� FODULI\�ZKHQ� VHUYLFLQJ�
DUUDQJHPHQWV�DUH� LQ� WKH� VFRSH�RI� LWV� GLVFORVXUH� UHTXLUHPHQWV�RQ� FRQWLQXLQJ� LQYROYHPHQW� LQ�
WUDQVIHUUHG�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LQ�FDVHV�ZKHQ�WKH\�DUH�GHUHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKHLU�HQWLUHW\��,)56���LV�DOVR�
DPHQGHG�WR�FODULI\�WKDW�DGGLWLRQDO�GLVFORVXUHV�UHTXLUHG�E\�¶'LVFORVXUHV��2IIVHWWLQJ�)LQDQFLDO�$VVHWV 
DQG�)LQDQFLDO�/LDELOLWLHV��$PHQGPHQWV� WR� ,)56��·�DUH�QRW�VSHFLILFDOO\� UHTXLUHG� IRU� LQFOXVLRQ� LQ�
FRQGHQVHG�LQWHULP�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�DOO�LQWHULP�SHULRGV�

� �� ,$6����¶(PSOR\HH�%HQHILWV·��,$6����LV�DPHQGHG�WR�FODULI\�WKDW�KLJK�TXDOLW\�FRUSRUDWH�ERQGV�RU�
JRYHUQPHQW�ERQGV�XVHG�LQ�GHWHUPLQLQJ�WKH�GLVFRXQW�UDWH�VKRXOG�EH�LVVXHG�LQ�WKH�VDPH�FXUUHQF\�
LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�EHQHILWV�DUH�WR�EH�SDLG�

���



  2014� � ����
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
8. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
 In hand
  Local currency   7,299,919� ���������
� � )RUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV� � 915,477� ���������
  National prize bonds  32,709� ������
     8,248,105� ���������
 In transit 
  Local currency  12,500� ������
� � )RUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV� � 239,827� ������
     252,327� ������
� :LWK�6%3�LQ��
� � /RFDO�FXUUHQF\�FXUUHQW�DFFRXQWV� ���� 15,325,359� ����������
 � /RFDO�FXUUHQF\�FXUUHQW�DFFRXQW�,VODPLF�%DQNLQJ� ���� 342,928� �������
� � )RUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�GHSRVLW�DFFRXQWV� � �
  � &DVK�UHVHUYH�DFFRXQW� ���� 1,592,657� ���������
  � &DVK�UHVHUYH���VSHFLDO�FDVK�UHVHUYH�DFFRXQW
� � � ���,VODPLF�%DQNLQJ�� � 24,317� ������
� � � 6SHFLDO�FDVK�UHVHUYH�DFFRXQW� ���� 4,777,971� ���������
   /RFDO�86�'ROODU�FROOHFWLRQ�DFFRXQW� ���� 19,588� ������
     22,082,820� ����������
� :LWK�1DWLRQDO�%DQN�RI�3DNLVWDQ��1%3��LQ�
  Local currency current accounts  3,618,592� ���������
     34,201,844� ����������

8.1� 7KHVH�GHSRVLWV�DQG�UHVHUYHV�DUH�PDLQWDLQHG�E\�WKH�%DQN�WR�FRPSO\�ZLWK�WKH�VWDWXWRU\�UHTXLUHPHQWV� 
8.2� 7KLV�UHSUHVHQWV�86�'ROODU�FROOHFWLRQ�DFFRXQW�PDLQWDLQHG�ZLWK�6%3�

  2014� � ����
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
9. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

� ,Q�3DNLVWDQ
  Current accounts  1,093,739� �������
� � 'HSRVLW�DFFRXQWV� ���� 600,000� ²00
� � 6DYLQJV�DFFRXQWV� ���� 999,188� �����
     2,692,927� �������

� 2XWVLGH�3DNLVWDQ
  Current accounts  1,027,760� ���������
� � 'HSRVLW�DFFRXQWV� ���� 632,082� �������
     1,659,842� ���������
     4,352,769� ���������

9.1� 7KHVH�FDUU\�H[SHFWHG�SURILW�UDWHV�RI����WR��������������1LO���SHU�DQQXP��

9.2� 7KHVH�FDUU\�H[SHFWHG�SURILW�UDWHV�RI����WR�������������������SHU�DQQXP��

9.3� 7KHVH�FDUU\�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�XSWR�������WR��������������������WR��������SHU�DQQXP��
���



10. INVESTMENTS

     2014� � � ����
      
    Held by Given as Total� +HOG�E\� *LYHQ�DV� Total 
10.1 Investments by type Group Collateral � *URXS� &ROODWHUDO
    Note   (Rupees in '000) 

 Available for Sale Securities 1���
� � 0DUNHW Treasury Bills    101,974,927  56,253,740  158,228,667  ������������� ������������ �����������
� � 3DNLVWDQ�,QYHVWPHQW�%RQGV� ��� 36,503,076  –00  36,503,076  ������������ ²00�� ����������
� � )RUHLJQ�&XUUHQF\�%RQGV� ��� 2,289,589  –00  2,289,589  ����������� ²00�� ���������
  Sukuk Bonds    4,833,911  –00  4,833,911  ����������� ²00�� ���������
  Fully paid-up ordinary shares - Listed    3,096,913  –00  3,096,913  ����������� ²00�� ���������
  Fully paid-up ordinary shares - Unlisted    64,855  –00  64,855  �������� ²00  ������
  Term finance certificates - Listed    321,695  –00  321,695  �������  ²00  �������
  Term finance certificates - Unlisted    2,832,620  –00  2,832,620  ����������� ²00�� ���������
  Units of mutual funds    1,576,763  –00  1,576,763  ����������� ²00�� ���������

       153,494,349  56,253,740  209,748,089  ������������� ������������ �����������

 Held to Maturity Securities 1���
� � 0DUNHW Treasury Bills    –00  –00  –00  ������������ ²00 � ����������
  3DNLVWDQ�,QYHVWPHQW�%RQGV� ��� 115,819,871  –00  115,819,871  ������������ ²00 � ����������
    Sukuk Bonds    701,047  –00  701,047  ��������� ²00�� �������
  Term finance certificates - Listed    86,826  –00  86,826  ������  ²00  ������
� � )RUHLJQ�&XUUHQF\�%RQGV� ��� 970,913  –00  970,913  ²00  ²00  ²00

       117,578,657  –00  117,578,657  ������������� ²00�� �����������

 Associates  1����
� ��� +DELE�6XJDU�0LOOV�/LPLWHG� ��� 368,997  –00  368,997�� ��������� ²00 � �������
  Habib $VVHW�0DQDJHPHQW�/LPLWHG� ��� 82,304  –00  82,304  �������� ²00 � ������
  First Habib Income Fund    284,734  –00  284,734  ��������� ²00�� �������
  First Habib Stock Fund    55,875  –00  55,875 � ������ � ²00 � ������
  First Habib Cash Fund    339,968  –00  339,968�� ������� � ²00 � �������
  First Habib Islamic Balanced Fund    26,736  –00  26,736�� ������ � ²00 � ������

       1,158,614  –00  1,158,614  ����������� ²00�� ���������

  Investments at cost    272,231,620  56,253,740  328,485,360  ������������� ������������ �����������

� � /HVV��3URYLVLRQ�IRU�GLPLQXWLRQ�LQ�WKH
� ��������YDOXH�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV�� 1����� (11,163 ) –00  (11,163 ) ��������� ²00 � ��������

  Investments (net of provisions)    272,220,457  56,253,740  328,474,197  ������������� ������������ �����������

� � 6XUSOXV����GHILFLW��RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI��
� � ��DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�LQYHVWPHQWV���QHW� ��� 3,193,076  70,243  3,263,319  ��������� ��������� �������

  Total Investments    275,413,533  56,323,983  331,737,516  ������������� ������������ �����������

10.2� 7KH�DJJUHJDWH�PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�KHOG�WR�PDWXULW\�VHFXULWLHV�DV�DW����'HFHPEHU������DPRXQWHG�WR�5V����������PLOOLRQ��������5V����������PLOOLRQ��

���



���

  2014� � ����
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
10.3 Investments by segment
 Federal Government Securities  
� �� 0DUNHW Treasury Bills 1���� 158,228,667 � �����������
� �� 3DNLVWDQ�,QYHVWPHQW�%RQGV� 1���� 152,322,947�� ����������
� �� )RUHLJQ�&XUUHQF\�%RQGV�� 1����� 2,755,580�� ���������
   Sukuk Bonds 1���� 3,219,971�� ���������
    316,527,165�� �����������
 
 Fully paid-up ordinary shares
   Listed companies  1������ 3,096,913�� ����������� ��
   Unlisted companies 1��11 64,855�� ������
     3,161,768�� ���������
 
 Term finance certificates, sukuks and bonds

  Term Finance Certificates 
    Term finance certificates - Listed  408,521�� �������
    Term finance certificates - Unlisted  2,832,620�� ���������
 
    1���� 3,241,141�� ���������
  Sukuks Bonds 1���� 2,314,987�� ���������
� � )RUHLJQ�&XUUHQF\�%RQGV� 1����� 504,922�� �������
 
    6,061,050�� ���������

 Others
   Units of mutual funds 1������ 1,576,763�� ���������
   Associates 1����� 1,158,614 � ���������
 
    2,735,377�� ���������

 Investments at cost  328,485,360 � �����������

� /HVV��3URYLVLRQ�IRU�GLPLQXWLRQ�LQ�WKH
� � YDOXH�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV� 1���� (11,163 )� ��������
 
 Investments (net of provisions)  328,474,197�� �����������

� 6XUSOXV�RQ�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�DYDLODEOH
  for sale securities - net  3,263,319�� �������

 Total Investments  331,737,516�� �����������



���

  2014� � ����
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
10.4 Particulars of provision for diminution in the
  value of investments
 AYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�LQYHVWPHQWV��
� 2SHQLQJ�EDODQFH� � 6,586�� �����
� &KDUJH�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU� � 5,463�� ²00
� 5HYHUVDO�RI�SURYLVLRQ�XSRQ�GLVSRVDO�RI�LQYHVWPHQW� � (886 )� ²00
� &ORVLQJ�EDODQFH� 1������ 11,163�� �����

10.4.1 Particulars of provision in respect of type and segment

 AYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�LQYHVWPHQWV�

 Listed companies  –00�� ���
 Unlisted companies  11,163�� �����

    11,163�� �����

10.5 Quality of available for sale securities    

 Name of Security Face  2014� ����� 2014� ����� 2014� ����
  value  Rating* Cost Carrying value
  Rs. / USD  (Rupees in '000) 
10.5.1� 0DUNHW TUHDVXU\�%LOOV� �²���� Unrated Unrated 158,228,667 ������������� �158,462,190� ������������
10.5.2� 3DNLVWDQ�,QYHVWPHQW�%RQGV� �²���� Unrated Unrated 36,503,076� ����������� 38,443,902� �����������

10.5.3� )RUHLJQ�&XUUHQF\�%RQGV
� � *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�%RQGV   USD 100    B- B- 945,547� ���������� 1,024,596� ���������
  *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�%RQGV USD 100   B- B- 586,509� ����������� 613,176� ��������
  *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�%RQGV USD 100   B- _ 252,611 ²00    256,453  ²00
  *RYHUQPHQW�RI�6UL�/DQND�%RQGV USD 100   B+ B+ 100,606� ����������� 100,726� ��������
  Bank of Ceylon USD 100 B+ BB- 203,811� �������  210,050� �������
  Bank of Ceylon USD 100 B+ BB- 200,505� ²00  201,959� ²00
     2,289,589� ���������� 2,406,960� ����������

10.5.4 Sukuk Bonds           
 2014� ����� Name of Security
 No. of certificates
 170,000� �������� (QJUR�)RRGV�/LPLWHG� �5V�������� A+  A+ 850,000� �������� 850,000� ��������
 –00 ������� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�,MDUDK�6XNXN�9,,,� 5V����������� – Unrated –00� ���������� –00  ��������� 
 10,000 ²00� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�,MDUDK�6XNXN�;,,� 5V��������� Unrated _ 1,013,454 ²00 1,002,100  ²00 
 120,000 ²00� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�,MDUDK�6XNXN�;9� 5V��������� Unrated _ 1,200,000 ²00 1,178,400 ²00 
 50,000 ²00� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�6XNXN� 86'������ B- _ 503,754 ²00 496,558  ²00 
 1,087,849� ���������� /LEHUW\�3RZHU THFK�/LPLWHG� 5V�������� A+  A+  891,703� �������� 891,703� ���������
 150,000� �������� W$3'A�6HFRQG�6XNXN�&RPSDQ\�/LPLWHG� 5V�������� Unrated Unrated 375,000� �������� 375,000� ���������
        4,833,911� ���������� 4,793,761� ����������



���

10.5.5 Fully paid-up ordinary shares - Listed
  2014� ����� Name of security Face  2014� ����� 2014� ����� 2014� ����
 No. of shares value  Rating* Cost Carrying value
  Rs.   (Rupees in '000)
  –00� ������ $LVKD�6WHHO�/LPLWHG� 5V���� –  Unrated –00 ²00  –00� �� 
  727,100� �������� $OOLHG�%DQN�/LPLWHG� 5V���� AA+ AA+  42,503� �������� 82,584� ��������
   –00� ������� $ULI�+DELE�&RUSRUDWLRQ�/LPLWHG� 5V���� –  AA –00� ����� –00� ��� 
  147,190� �������� $WWRFN�3HWUROHXP�/LPLWHG� 5V���� Unrated Unrated 64,850� ������ 79,421� ������� 
  –00� ������ )DWLPD�)HUWLOL]HU�&RPSDQ\�/LPLWHG� 5V���� –  A+ –00� ��� –00� ��� 
  3,224,800� ���������� )DXML�)HUWLOL]HU�&RPSDQ\�/LPLWHG� 5V���� Unrated Unrated 364,507� ��������� 377,656� ��������
  3,154,500� ���������� )DXML�)HUWLOL]HU�%LQ�4DVLP�/LPLWHG� 5V���� Unrated Unrated 126,318� ������� 142,615� �������  
  294,000� �������� )LUVW�+DELE�0RGDUED� 5V��� AA+ AA+  2,607� ������ 2,690� ������� �
 10,102,415� ����������� +DELE�0HWURSROLWDQ�%DQN�/LPLWHG� 5V���� AA+ AA+ 197,587� �������� 376,820� ���������
  7,877,500 � ���������� +XE�3RZHU�&RPSDQ\�/LPLWHG� 5V���� AA+ AA+  480,896� ������� 617,281� �������   
  52,862� ������� ,QWHUQDWLRQDO�,QGXVWULHV�/LPLWHG� 5V���� Unrated Unrated 357� ��� 3,295� ����� 
  5,623,556� ���������� ,QWHUQDWLRQDO�6WHHOV�/LPLWHG� 5V���� Unrated Unrated 89,228� ������ 143,120� ������ 
  –00� ������ -DKDQJLU�6LGGLTXL�	�&RPSDQ\�/LPLWHG� 5V���� –  AA –00� ���  –00� �� 
  –00� ���� -6�,QYHVWPHQWV�/LPLWHG� 5V���� –  A+  –00� ��� –00� ��� �
  3,960,000� ���������� .RW�$GGX�3RZHU�&RPSDQ\�/LPLWHG� 5V���� AA+ AA+ 242,202� �������� 312,602� �������� 
   1,594,500� ���������� /DOSLU�3RZHU�/LPLWHG� 5V���� AA AA 37,626� ������� 47,676� �������� �
  396,110� �������� 0&%�%DQN�/LPLWHG� 5V���� AAA AAA 99,902� ������ 121,071� ������ 
  119,067� �������� 0HH]DQ�%DQN�/LPLWHG� 5V���� AA AA 3,028� ������� 5,596� ������
  3,096,000� ���������� 1LVKDW�&KXQLDQ�3RZHU�/LPLWHG� 5V���� A+ A+  99,828� ������� 153,407� ��������� �
  17,500� ������� 3DFNDJHV�/LPLWHG� 5V���� AA AA 1,429� ������ 11,870� ����� 
   4,407,500� ���������� 3DNJHQ�3RZHU�/LPLWHG� 5V���� AA AA 108,544� �������� 119,135� �������
  587,075� �������� 3DNLVWDQ�2LOILHOGV�/LPLWHG� 5V���� Unrated Unrated  297,555� ������� 222,713� �������   
  1,496,941� �������� 3DNLVWDQ�3HWUROHXP�/LPLWHG� 5V���� Unrated Unrated 317,551� �������� 264,240� �������� 
   914,500� �������� 3DNLVWDQ�6WDWH�2LO�&RPSDQ\�/LPLWHG� 5V���� AA+ AA+ 295,077� ������� 327,309� ������� 
  22,500� ������� 6KHOO�3DNLVWDQ�/LPLWHG� 5V���� Unrated Unrated  2,189� ����� 5,825� �����   
 11,580,450� ���������� 6RQHUL�%DQN�/LPLWHG� 5V���� AA- AA- 108,098� ������� 142,787� ������� 
 3,183,000 � ���������� 6WDQGDUG�&KDUWHUHG�%DQN��3DNLVWDQ��/LPLWHG�5V���� AAA AAA  61,701� ������ 75,119� ������   
  575,000� �������� 8QLWHG�%DQN�/LPLWHG� 5V���� AA+ AA+ 53,330� ������� 101,608� ������� 

        3,096,913� ���������� 3,736,440� ���������
10.5.6 Fully paid-up ordinary shares - Unlisted

  2014� ����� Name of security
  No. of shares / certificates
 3,000,000� ���������� .KXVKKDOL�%DQN�/LPLWHG� 5V����� A  A   30,000� ������� 30,000� �������
� � � 3DNLVWDQ�([SRUW�)LQDQFH�*XDUDQWHH�
 569,958� �������� � $JHQF\�/LPLWHG� 5V���� Unrated Unrated 5,700� ������ –00�� ²0   
 24� ��� 6�W�,�F�T�� ²���� Unrated Unrated  3,870� ������ 3,870� �����
 4,007,383� ���������� .DUDFKL�6WRFN�([FKDQJH�/LPLWHG� 5V��� Unrated Unrated  25,285� ������� 25,285� ������

        64,855� ������� 59,155� �������
10.5.7 Term finance certificates - Listed
  2014� ����� Name of security
 No. of certificates
  –00� ������ $OOLHG�%DQN�/LPLWHG� 5V�������� –  AA   –00� ������� –00� ������
   33,800� ������� $OOLHG�%DQN�/LPLWHG���,,�� 5V�������� AA  AA   168,662� �������� 165,515� �������
  30,625 ������� %DQN�$OIDODK�/LPLWHG���9� 5V�������� AA– AA- 153,033 ������� 152,201 �������
   –00� �������� (QJUR�)HUWLOL]HUV�/LPLWHG���,,,� 5V������� – A –00� �������� –00� �������
   –00� ������� 8QLWHG�%DQN�/LPLWHG���,,,�� 5V�������� –  AA  –00� ������ –00� �����
         321,695� �������� 317,716� �������



10.5.8 Term finance certificates - Unlisted
  2014� ����� Name of security
  No. of certificates
  150� ���� $VNDUL�%DQN�/LPLWHG���,9� 5V������������� AA –�� $$²� 149,820� �������� 149,820� ��������
  60,000 ²00� $VNDUL�%DQN�/LPLWHG���9� 5V��������� AA –�� ²� 300,000 ²00 300,000 ²00 
   20,000� ������� %DQN $OIDODK�/LPLWHG���,9� 5V��������� AA – � $$²� 99,800� ������� 99,800� �������
      Standard Chartered Bank
  56,600 ������� ���3DNLVWDQ��/LPLWHG� 5V�������� AAA AAA 283,000� �������� 283,000 �������
  400,000 ������ :$3'$� 5V������ AAA AAA 2,000,000� ��������� 2,000,000� ���������
        2,832,620� ���������� 2,832,620� ���������

���

� 
�5DWLQJ�LQ�FDVH�RI�RUGLQDU\�VKDUHV�RI�OLVWHG�DQG�XQOLVWHG�FRPSDQLHV�UHSUHVHQWV�WKH�UDWLQJ�RI�LQYHVWHH�FRPSDQLHV��LQ�DOO�RWKHU�FDVHV��
UDWLQJ�UHSUHVHQWV�WKH�UDWLQJ�RI�XQGHUO\LQJ�LQVWUXPHQWV�

10.6 Market Treasury Bills

� 7KHVH�VHFXULWLHV�KDYH�D�PDWXULW\�SHULRG�RI�RQH�\HDU��������WKUHH�PRQWKV�WR�RQH�\HDU���ZLWK�\LHOG�UDQJLQJ�EHWZHHQ�������WR�������
�������������WR��������SHU�DQQXP�

10.7 Pakistan Investment Bonds

� 7KHVH�VHFXULWLHV�KDYH�D�PDWXULW\�SHULRG�RI���������DQG����\HDUV����������������DQG����\HDUV��ZLWK�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�UDQJLQJ�EHWZHHQ�������
WR������������������WR������SHU�DQQXP� 7KHVH�LQFOXGH�VHFXULWLHV�FRVWLQJ�5V����PLOOLRQ��������5V����PLOOLRQ��SOHGJHG�ZLWK�WKH�&RQWUROOHU 
RI�0LOLWDU\ $FFRXQWV��.DUDFKL�DV�D�VHFXULW\�GHSRVLW�IRU�H[WHQGLQJ�EDQNLQJ�IDFLOLWLHV�RQ�DFFRXQW�RI�UHJLPHQWDO�IXQGV�YLV�D�YLV�SULYDWH�
IXQG�DFFRXQWV�

10.5.9 Units of mutual funds

  2014� ����� Name of Security 
 No. of units 
   –00� �������� $%/�&DVK�)XQG� 5V���� –   AA –00� ������ �–00� ������
  –00� ���� $VNDUL�6RYHUHLJQ�&DVK�)XQG� 5V����� –   AAA –00� ���� –00� ���
 49,140� ������� $WODV�0RQH\�0DUNHW�)XQG� 5V������ AA+ AA 25,000� ������ 25,775� ������ 
 –00� �������� +%/�0RQH\�0DUNHW�)XQG� 5V����� –   AA  –00 ������� –00 ������
 –00� �������� 0&%�&DVK�0DQDJHPHQW�2SWLPL]HU�)XQG� 5V����� –   AA –00� ������ –00� ������ 
 64,217,346� ����������� 1,7�*RYHUQPHQW�%RQG�)XQG� 5V���� AA- AA 600,000� ������� 698,948� ������� 
 21,076,617� ����������� 1,7�,QFRPH�)XQG� 5V���� A+ A+ 200,000� ������� 232,623� ������� 
 15,044,628� ���������� 1,7�8QLW�7UXVW� 5V���� 4 Star� ��6WDU� 750,000� ������� 993,397� ������� 
 –00� ������� 3DNLVWDQ�&DVK�0DQDJHPHQW�)XQG� 5V���� –   AAA –00� ��� –00� ��� 
  � 3,0/�,QFRPH�)XQG��)RUPHUO\
 20,523� �������� ��3ULPXV�&DVK�)XQG�� 5V����� A+ AAA 1,763� ������ 2,221� ������ 
 –00� �������� 8%/�/LTXLGLW\�3OXV�)XQG� 5V����� –   AA+ –00� ������ –00� ������ 
 

         1,576,763� ���������� 1,952,964� ���������
         209,748,089� ������������ 213,005,708� �����������

  

     Face  2014� ����� 2014� ����� 2014� ����
  value  Rating* Cost Carrying value
  Rs.   (Rupees in '000)



���

 Held to maturity
  50,000 ²00 ������ Dec-19� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�6XNXN� �������SHU�DQQXP� �502,763 ²00

         3,219,971� ���������

10.8 Sukuk Bonds

 Federal Government Securities
      Available for sale
 ²00  ������  ²00� 0D\���� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�,MDUD�6XNXN�9,,,� :HLJKWHG�DYHUDJH���PRQWKV� ²00� ����������
         T-Bills rate
 10,000  ²00  �������� 1RY���� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�,MDUDK�6XNXN�;,,� :HLJKWHG�DYHUDJH���PRQWKV  1,013,454  ²00
        T-BIlls rate
 120,000 ²00 ������� -XQ���� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�,MDUDK�6XNXN�;9� :HLJKWHG�DYHUDJH���PRQWKV 1,200,000 ²00
        T-Bills rate
 50,000 ²00 ������� 'HF���� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�6XNXN� �������SHU�DQQXP� 503,754 ²00
       2,717,208� ����������

   Redeemable 
   value per Maturity  
 2014� ����� certificate  Date  Name of Security Rate 2014� � ����
 No. of certificates (Rupees) (Rupees in '000)

      Available for sale
 170,000  �������  ������ -DQ���� (QJUR�)RRGV�/LPLWHG� ��PRQWKV·�.,%25�SOXV����ESV� 850,000� ��������
 1,124,278  ���������  ���� 0DU���� /LEHUW\�3RZHU�7HFK�/LPLWHG� ��PRQWKV·�.,%25�SOXV�����ESV  891,703  �������
 150,000 ������� ������ -XO���� :$3'$�6HFRQG�6XNXN�&RPSDQ\�/LPLWHG� ��PRQWKV·�.,%25�OHVV����ESV 375,000 �������

       2,116,703� ����������
 Held to maturity
  250,000 ������� ��� 0DU���� /LEHUW\�3RZHU�7HFK�/LPLWHG� ��PRQWK·V�.,%25�SOXV�����ESV� �198,284 �������

         2,314,987� ���������

        5,534,958� ���������

10.8.1� 7KHVH�6XNXN�%RQGV�KDYH�IDFH�YDOXH�RI�5V��������SHU�FHUWLILFDWH�H[FHSW�IRU�/LEHUW\�3RZHU Tech Limited·V�6XNXN�%RQGV�ZKLFK�KDV�IDFH�
YDOXH�RI�5V��������SHU�FHUWLILFDWH�DQG�*RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�,MDUDK�6XNXN�%RQGV�ZKLFK�KDYH�IDFH�YDOXH�RI�5V����������SHU�FHUWLILFDWH� 

 Others

10.9 Term Finance Certificates

 Listed - Available for sale
  –00� ������ ²00� 'HF���� $OOLHG�%DQN�/LPLWHG
� ��PRQWKV
�.,%25�SOXV�����ESV –00� �������
  33,800� ������� ������ $XJ���� $OOLHG�%DQN�/LPLWHG���,,
� ��PRQWKV
�.,%25�SOXV����ESV� 168,662� �������
  30,625� ������� ������ )HE���� %DQN�$OIDODK�/LPLWHG���9
 ��PRQWKV
�.,%25�SOXV�����ESV 153,033� �������
  –00� ������ ²00� 1RY���� (QJUR�)HUWLOL]HUV�/LPLWHG���,,, ��PRQWKV
�.,%25�SOXV�����ESV� –00 �������  
  –00� ������ ²00� 6HS���� 8QLWHG�%DQN�/LPLWHG�,,,
� ��PRQWKV
�.,%25�SOXV�����ESV� –00� �����

        321,695� �������

   Redeemable 
   value per Maturity  
 2014� ����� certificate  Date  Name of Security Rate 2014� � ����
 No. of certificates (Rupees) (Rupees in '000)



 Unlisted - Available for sale
  150� ���� �������� 'HF���� $VNDUL�%DQN�/LPLWHG���,9
� ��PRQWKV
�.,%25�SOXV�����ESV 149,820� ��������
  60,000 ²00� ������ 6HS���� $VNDUL�%DQN�/LPLWHG���9
� ��PRQWKV
�.,%25�SOXV�����ESV 300,000  ²00
  20,000� ������� ������ 'HF���� %DQN�$OIDODK�/LPLWHG���,9
� �������SHU�DQQXP� 99,800� ������
  56,600� ������� ������ -XQ���� 6WDQGDUG�&KDUWHUHG�%DQN��3DNLVWDQ��/LPLWHG
� ��PRQWKV
�.,%25�SOXV����ESV 283,000� �������
  400,000� �������� ������ 6HS���� :$3'$� ��PRQWKV
�.,%25�SOXV�����ESV� 2,000,000 ��������� 
        2,832,620� ���������

   Redeemable 
   value per Maturity  
 2014� ����� certificate  Date  Name of Security Rate 2014� � ����
 No. of certificates (Rupees) (Rupees in '000)

���

 Listed - Held to maturity
   17,400� ������� ������ $XJ���� $OOLHG�%DQN�/LPLWHG���,,
� ��PRQWKV
�.,%25�SOXV����ESV� 86,826� ������
  –00� ������ ²00� 6HS���� 8QLWHG�%DQN�/LPLWHG���,,,
� ��PRQWKV
�.,%25�SOXV�����ESV� –00� �����

        86,826� ������

        3,241,141� ���������

 *These THUP�)LQDQFH�&HUWLILFDWHV�DUH�VXERUGLQDWHG�

10.9.1 These THUP�)LQDQFH�&HUWLILFDWHV�KDYH�IDFH�YDOXH�RI�5V��������SHU�FHUWLILFDWH�H[FHSW�IRU�$VNDUL�%DQN�/LPLWHG�,9�ZKLFK�KDYH�
IDFH�YDOXH�RI�5V���������SHU�FHUWLILFDWH�

10.10 Foreign Currency Bonds

   Redeemable 
   value per Maturity  
 2014� ����� certificate  Date  Name of Security Rate 2014� � ����
 No of certificates (Rupees)     (Rupees in '000)
 of US $ 100 each
 Federal Government Securities
 Available for sale

 100,000�� ��������� ������ �-XQ����� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�%RQGV�� ��������S�D�� �945,547�� ��������
 59,770�� ��������� ������� 0DU���� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�%RQGV�� ��������S�D��� �586,509 � ��������
 25,000   ²00   ������� $SU���� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�%RQGV�� ��������S�D��� �252,611   ²00

       1,784,667� ���������

 Held to maturity

 95,000  ²00�� ������� �$SU����� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ�%RQGV�� ��������S�D�� �970,913   ²00

       2,755,580� ���������

 Others
 Available for sale

 10,000�� �������� �������� �-DQ����� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�6ULODQND�%RQGV�� ��������S�D�� 100,606� ��������
 20,000  ������   ������� �0D\����� %DQN�RI�&H\ORQ�� ��������S�D�� �203,811  �������
 20,000  ²00    ������� �$SU����� %DQN�RI�&H\ORQ�� ��������S�D�� �200,505  ²00

       504,922� �������

       3,260,502� ���������



10.11 Ordinary shares of unlisted companies 

 3,000,000� ����������� .KXVKKDOL�%DQN�/LPLWHG� 30,000� ������
� � � 3DU�YDOXH�SHU�VKDUH��5V����� � � �
   Break-XS�YDOXH�SHU�VKDUH��5V���������������5V���������EDVHG�RQ�DXGLWHG� � � �
� � ��� ��ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������ � � �
� � � &KLHI�([HFXWLYH��0r��*KDOLE�1LVKWDU�� � �

 569,958� ��������� 3DNLVWDQ�([SRUW�)LQDQFH�*XDUDQWHH $JHQF\�/LPLWHG� 5,700� ������� �
� � � 3DU�YDOXH�SHU�VKDUH��5V����� � � �
   Break-XS�YDOXH�SHU�VKDUH��5V��������������5V��������EDVHG�RQ�DXGLWHG� � � �
� � ��� ��ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������ � � �
� � � &KLHI�([HFXWLYH��0r��6��0��=DHHP

 24� ���� 6RFLHW\�IRU�WRUOGZLGH�,QWHUEDQN�)LQDQFLDO THOHFRPPXQLFDWLRQ��6�W�,�F�7��� 3,870� ������ �
� � ��� ��DOORFDWHG�VKDUHV�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�FRQWULEXWLRQ�IURP�QHWZRUN�EDVHG�� � � �
� � ����� ����VHUYLFHG�E\�WKH�%DQN�� � � �

 4,007,383� ����������� .DUDFKL�6WRFN�([FKDQJH�/LPLWHG� 25,285� �������� �
� � � 3DU�YDOXH�SHU�VKDUH��5V����� � � �
   Break-XS�YDOXH�SHU�VKDUH��5V���������������5V���������EDVHG�RQ�DXGLWHG� � � �
� � ��� ��ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����-XQH������ � � �
� � � &KLHI�([HFXWLYH��0r��1DGHHP�1DTYL

    64,855� �������

 2014� ��1�� Name of companies  2014� ����
 No. of ordinary shares/units  Note (Rupees in '000)

���

  9,366,312� ����������� +DELE�6XJDU�0LOOV�/LPLWHG� 1������� 368,997�� �������� �
� � � � ��RI�KROGLQJ���������������������� � � � �
� � � � 3DU�YDOXH�SHU�VKDUH��5V���� � � � �
� � � � 0DUNHW�YDOXH��5V����������PLOOLRQ��������5V����������PLOOLRQ�� � � � �
� � � � &KLHI�([HFXWLYH��0r��5DHHVXO�+DVDQ�
   6,900,000 � ������������ +DELE $VVHW�0DQDJHPHQW�/LPLWHG� 1������� 82,304 � �������� �
� � � � ��RI�KROGLQJ���������1�������� � � � �
� � � � 3DU�YDOXH�SHU�VKDUH��5V����� � � � �
� � � � %UHDN�XS�YDOXH�SHU�VKDUH��5V���������������5V���������EDVHG�RQ�DXGLWHG� � � � �
� � � �� ��ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����-XQH������ � � � �
� � � � &KLHI�([HFXWLYH��0r��,PUDQ Azim
   2,696,602 � ����������� )LUVW�+DELE�,QFRPH�)XQG� � 284,734�� �������� �
    AYHUDJH�FRVW�SHU�XQLW��5V���������������5V��������� � � � �
� � � � 1HW�DVVHW�YDOXH��5V����������������5V���������� � � � �
� � � � 0DQDJHPHQW�&RPSDQ\��+DELE $VVHW�0DQDJHPHQW�/LPLWHG� � � � �
� � � � &KLHI�([HFXWLYH�RI�WKH�0DQDJHPHQW�&RPSDQ\��0r��,PUDQ Azim

10.12 Associates

 2014� ����� Name of companies 
 No. of ordinary shares / units  



���

10.12.1� 'XH�WR�FRPPRQ�GLUHFWRUVKLS�LQ�+DELE�6XJDU�0LOOV�/LPLWHG��WKH�%DQN�FRQVLGHUV�WKH�LQYHVWHH�FRPSDQ\�DV�DQ�DVVRFLDWH��

10.12.2� ,QFOXGHV�5V���������PLOOLRQ��������5V���������PLOOLRQ��LQYHVWHG�LQ�+DELE�$VVHW�0DQDJHPHQW�/LPLWHG�FDWHJRULVHG�DV�VWUDWHJLF�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�
ZLWK�6%3·V�JXLGHOLQHV�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�%3'�&LUFXODU�/HWWHU�1R�����RI������GDWHG����$XJXVW������

  500,000�� ��������� )LUVW�+DELE�6WRFN�)XQG� � 55,875�� �������
    AYHUDJH�FRVW�SHU�XQLW��5V�������������5V������
    Net Asset 9DOXH��5V��1�������������5V���������� � � � �
� � � � 0DQDJHPHQW�&RPSDQ\��+DELE $VVHW�0DQDJHPHQW�/LPLWHG� � � � �
� � � � &KLHI�([HFXWLYH�RI�WKH�0DQDJHPHQW�&RPSDQ\��0r��,PUDQ Azim
  3,254,839 � ����������� )LUVW�+DELE�&DVK�)XQG� � 339,968� �������
    AYHUDJH�FRVW�SHU�XQLW��5V���������������5V��������
    Net Asset 9DOXH��5V����������������5V���������� � � � �
� � � � 0DQDJHPHQW�&RPSDQ\��+DELE $VVHW�0DQDJHPHQW�/LPLWHG� � � � �
� � � � &KLHI�([HFXWLYH�RI�WKH�0DQDJHPHQW�&RPSDQ\��0r��,PUDQ Azim
  252,322�� ��������� )LUVW�+DELE�,VODPLF�%DODQFHG�)XQG� � 26,736� ������
    AYHUDJH�FRVW�SHU�XQLW��5V���������������5V��������
    Net Asset 9DOXH��5V����������������5V���������� � � � �
� � � � 0DQDJHPHQW�&RPSDQ\��+DELE $VVHW�0DQDJHPHQW�/LPLWHG� � � � �
� � � � &KLHI�([HFXWLYH�RI�WKH�0DQDJHPHQW�&RPSDQ\��0r��,PUDQ Azim
      1,158,614� ���������

 2014� ����� Name of companies  2014� ����
 No. of ordinary shares / units  (Rupees in '000)

  2014� � ����
   (Rupees in '000)
10.13 Movement of Investments in associates      
  
� 2SHQLQJ�EDODQFH� � 1,049,048� ���������� ��
� 6KDUH�RI�3URILW� � 124,033� ��������
� ,QYHVWPHQW�QHW� � 24,724 � �����������
� 'LYLGHQG�UHFHLYHG� � (39,191 )� ���������

� &ORVLQJ�EDODQFH� � 1,158,614�� ����������

10.14 Summary of audited financial information of associates
     2014   
 Name of associates Based on the financial Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit 
  information for the year ended
     (Rupees in '000)

�� )LUVW�+DELE�&DVK�)XQG� -XQH���������� ���������� � ������� � ���������� � �������� � ��������
�� )LUVW�+DELE�,QFRPH�)XQG� -XQH���������� �������� � ������� � �������� � ������� � ������
�� )LUVW�+DELE�6WRFN�)XQG� -XQH���������� �������� � ������� � �������� � ������� � ������
  Habib $VVHW�0DQDJHPHQW�/LPLWHG� -XQH���������� �������� � ������ � �������� � ������� � ������
�� +DELE�6XJDU�0LOOV�/LPLWHG� 6HSWHPEHU���������� ���������� � ���������� � ���������� � ���������� � �������
�� )LUVW�+DELE�,VODPLF�%DODQFHG�)XQG� -XQH���������� ��������� ������� �������� � ������� � ������



���

  2014� � ����
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
11. ADVANCES      
  
� /RDQV��FDVK�FUHGLWV��UXQQLQJ�ILQDQFHV��HWF�� � � � ��
� � ²�,Q�3DNLVWDQ� � 154,858,474�� ������������
� � ²�2XWVLGH�3DNLVWDQ� � 10,192,449�� ����������

    165,050,923�� ������������

� 1HW�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�ILQDQFH�OHDVH� � � � ��
� � ²�,Q�3DNLVWDQ� ����� �2,471,578�� ��������
� � ²�2XWVLGH�3DNLVWDQ� � –00� ²000   
   
    2,471,578�� ��������

� ,MDUDK�ILQDQFLQJ�XQGHU�,)$6��� ����� 488,315�� �������

� 0XUDEDKD� �����  2,074,925�� ����������

 Bills discounted and purchased 
� ���H[FOXGLQJ�PDUNHW�WUHDVXU\�ELOOV�� � � ���
� � ��3D\DEOH�LQ�3DNLVWDQ� � 3,524,136�� �������������
� � ��3D\DEOH�RXWVLGH�3DNLVWDQ� � 14,363,222�� �����������

    17,887,358�� ������������

� $GYDQFHV���JURVV� � 187,973,099�� �������������� �
� 3URYLVLRQ�DJDLQVW�QRQ�SHUIRUPLQJ�ORDQV�DQG�DGYDQFHV� � � �� �
��� � ��6SHFLILF�SURYLVLRQ� ����� �(4,032,817)� ���������������
��� � ��*HQHUDO�SURYLVLRQ�DJDLQVW�VPDOO�HQWHUSULVHV�DQG
        FRQVXPHU�DGYDQFHV��DV�SHU�6%3�UHJXODWLRQV�� ������� �(83,182)� ������������
��� � ��*HQHUDO�SURYLVLRQ� ������� �(2,500,000)� �������������
 
     (6,615,999)� ������������
  
� $GYDQFHV���QHW�RI�SURYLVLRQV� � 181,357,100�� ������������

� � � � � ����� � �
� 1DPH�RI�DVVRFLDWHV� %DVHG�RQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO� $VVHWV� /LDELOLWLHV� (TXLW\� 5HYHQXH� 3URILW�
  information for the year ended
� � � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�
����

�� )LUVW�+DELE�&DVK�)XQG� -XQH���������� ���������� � ������� � ���������� � �������� � ��������
�� )LUVW�+DELE�,QFRPH�)XQG� -XQH���������� �������� � ������� � �������� � �������� � ������
�� )LUVW�+DELE�6WRFN�)XQG� -XQH���������� �������� � ������ � �������� � ������� � ������
  Habib $VVHW�0DQDJHPHQW�/LPLWHG� -XQH���������� �������� � ������ � �������� � ������� � ������
�� +DELE�6XJDU�0LOOV�/LPLWHG� 6HSWHPEHU���������� ���������� � ���������� � ���������� � ���������� � �������
�� )LUVW�+DELE�,VODPLF�%DODQFHG�)XQG� -XQH���������� ��������� ������� �������� � ������� � ������



  2014� � ����
   (Rupees in '000)  
11.1 Particulars of advances - gross      
11.1.1 In local currency   144,819,217�� ��������������
� ,Q�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV� � �43,153,882�� ���������������
     187,973,099�� �������������

11.1.2� 6KRUW�WHUP��IRU�XSWR�RQH�\HDU�� � �156,434,725 � ����������������
� /RQJ�WHUP��IRU�RYHU�RQH�\HDU�� � �31,538,374�� ������������� 
     187,973,099�� �������������

���

11.3 Ijarah financing under IFAS 2

� � � � � � ����

 (TXLSPHQW� ��������� ������� ��������� �������� ��������� ��������� ��������� �
� � � ���������� � � ��������
 9HKLFOHV� ������� ������� � ������� ������ ������� � ������� ������
   ���������� � � ��������� 
  �������� ������� � �������� �������� �������� � �������� �������� ����� 
   ���������� � � ���������

      2014
   Cost   Accumulated Depreciation Book Value
  As at Additions / As at  As at Charge / As at   As at Rate of
  01 Jan. (deletions) 31 Dec. 01 Jan. (deletions) 31 Dec. 31 Dec. depreciation
         %
    (Rupees in '000)

 (TXLSPHQW� 375,302  277,696  632,993 196,810  158,794  338,662  294,331  
   (20,005 )   (16,942)
 9ehicles 35,039 201,634  230,859 11,235 29,874  36,875 193,984
   (5,814 )   (4,234 ) 
  410,341 479,330  863,852 208,045 188,668  375,537 488,315 33.33 
   (25,819 )   (21,176 )

11.2 Net investment in finance lease
 2014� ����
  Later than    Later than
  Not later  one and   Not later  one and   
 than one less than Over five�� � WKDQ�RQH� OHVV�WKDQ� 2YHU�ILYH�� �
 year five years years Total� \HDU� ILYH�\HDUV� \HDUV� Total
    (Rupees in '000)

� )LQDQFH�OHDVH�UHFHLYDEOH� 970,367  1,424,582  –0     2,394,949 � ��������� ��������� ²0����� ����������
� 5HVLGXDO�YDOXH� 31,247  420,855  –0     452,102��� �������� ���������� ²0������ ��������
� 0LQLPXP�OHDVH�SD\PHQWV� 1,001,614  1,845,437  –0     2,847,051�� ��������� ���������� ²0����� ������������
� )LQDQFLDO�FKDUJHV�IRU�IXWXUH�SHULRGV� �(193,986 ) (181,487 ) –0     (375,473 )� ����������� ���������� �²0������ �����������
� 3UHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�PLQLPXP�
   lease payments 807,628  1,663,950  –0     2,471,578�� ���������� ���������� �²0������ �������



���

11.5 $GYDQFHV�LQFOXGH�5V������������PLOOLRQ��������5V�����������PLOOLRQ��ZKLFK�KDYH�EHHQ�SODFHG�XQGHU�
QRQ�SHUIRUPLQJ�VWDWXV�DV�GHWDLOHG�EHORZ�

  2014
 Classified advances Provision required Provision held
 Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total  
     (Rupees in '000) 

� &DWHJRU\�RI�FODVVLILFDWLRQ
 Other assets especially 
� ��PHQWLRQHG� ������ �²00�� ����� �²00�� �²00��� �²00�� ²00�� �²00���� ²00  
� 6XEVWDQGDUG� ��������� �²00�� �������� ��������� �²00��� �������� �������� �²00���� ��������
� 'RXEWIXO� ���������� ���������� ����������� ���������� ���������� ��������� ���������� ���������� ����������
� /RVV� ����������� ���������� ������������ ������������ ���������� ����������� ����������� ���������� �������������
 
� � ����������� ������������ ������������ ������������ ���������� ����������� ����������� ���������� ����������

� � ����
� &ODVVLILHG�DGYDQFHV� 3URYLVLRQ�UHTXLUHG� 3URYLVLRQ�KHOG
� 'RPHVWLF� 2YHUVHDV� TRWDO� 'RPHVWLF� 2YHUVHDV� TRWDO� 'RPHVWLF� 2YHUVHDV� Total  
� � � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�
���� 

 Other assets especially 
� ��PHQWLRQHG� ��������� �²00�� �������� �²00�� �²00��� �²00�� ²00�� �²00���� ²00  
� 6XEVWDQGDUG� ��������� �²00�� �������� ��������� �²00��� ��������� �������� �²00���� ��������
� 'RXEWIXO� ��������� �²00�� �������� ��������� �²00�� ��������� ��������� �²00�� ����������
� /RVV� ����������� ����������� ������������ ������������ ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� ��������������
 
� � ����������� ���������� ������������ ������������ ���������� ������������ ����������� ���������� ����������

11.5.1 )RU�WKH�SXUSRVHV�RI�GHWHUPLQLQJ�SURYLVLRQ�DJDLQVW�QRQ�SHUIRUPLQJ�DGYDQFHV��WKH�%DQN�KDV�QRW�WDNHQ�LQWR�DFFRXQW�WKH�)RUFHG�
Sales 9DOXH�RI�SOHGJHG�VWRFN�DQG�PRUWJDJHG�SURSHUWLHV�KHOG�DV�FROODWHUDO�DJDLQVW�QRQ�SHUIRUPLQJ�DGYDQFHV��

11.3.1 Future ijarah payments receivable 2014  ����
   (Rupees in '000)

 Not later than one year 208,254� �������� �
� /DWHU�WKDQ�RQH�\HDU�DQG�QRW�ODWHU�WKDQ�ILYH�\HDUV� 300,953 ������

  509,207 �������

11.4� 0XUDEDKD���JURVV������������������������� 2,164,480�� ���������
 Less: Deferred murabaha income (34,321 ) ���������
� 3URILW�UHFHLYDEOH�VKRZQ�LQ�RWKHU�DVVHWV� (55,234 )� ����������

� 0XUDEDKD� 2,074,925  ���������



11.6 Particulars of provision against non-performing loans and advances
   2014� � � ����
  Specific General Total� 6SHFLILF� *HQHUDO� Total 
 Note   (Rupees in '000)

� 2SHQLQJ�EDODQFH� � 3,543,124  2,540,071  6,083,195�� ���������� � ���������� � ���������
� &KDUJH�IRU�WKH�\HDU
� ����6SHFLILF�SURYLVLRQ� � �777,214  –00  777,214�� �������� � ²00� � �������
� ����*HQHUDO�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�
       small enterprises and 
� �������FRQVXPHU�SRUWIROLR� ������� �–00  43,111  43,111�� ²00� � ������ � �����
� ����*HQHUDO�SURYLVLRQ�IRU
� ������ORDQV�DQG�DGYDQFHV� ������� �–00  –00  –00�� ²00� � ²00� � ²00
� 5HYHUVDOV� � �(267,336 )  –00  (267,336 )� ������������ �²00 � ����������

   509,878  43,111  552,989�� �������� � ������ � �������
� ([FKDQJH�DGMXVWPHQW� � �(19,705 )  –00  (19,705 )� ������� � �²00 � ������� �
� $PRXQW�ZULWWHQ�RfI� ����� �(480 )  –00  (480 )� ������� �²00 � �����

� &ORVLQJ�EDODQFH� � �4,032,817  2,583,182  6,615,999�� ���������� � ���������� � ���������

���

11.6.3 Particulars of provision against non-performing loans and advances
   2014� � � ����
  Specific General Total� 6SHFLILF� *HQHUDO� Total 
    (Rupees in '000)

 In local currency 3,401,594 2,583,182 5,984,776� ����������� ���������� ���������
 ,Q�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\ 631,223 –00 631,223� �������� ²00� �������

 4,032,817 2,583,182 6,615,999� ���������� ���������� ���������

11.6.1� *HQHUDO�SURYLVLRQ�UHSUHVHQWV�SURYLVLRQ�DPRXQWLQJ� WR�5V���������PLOOLRQ��������5V���������PLOOLRQ��
DJDLQVW� FRQVXPHU� ILQDQFH�SRUWIROLR�DQG�5V���������PLOOLRQ� �������1LO��DJDLQVW�DGYDQFHV� WR�VPDOO�
HQWHUSULVHV�DV�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�3UXGHQWLDO�5HJXODWLRQV�LVVXHG�E\�6%3�

11.6.2� ,Q�OLQH�ZLWK�LWV�SUXGHQW�SROLFLHV��WKH�%DQN�DOVR�PDNHV�JHQHUDO�SURYLVLRQ�DJDLQVW�LWV�ORDQV�DQG�DGYDQFHV�
SRUWIROLR��7KLV�JHQHUDO�SURYLVLRQ�LV�LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�3UXGHQWLDO�5HJXODWLRQV�DQG�DV�
RI����'HFHPEHU������DPRXQWV�WR�5V��������PLOOLRQ��������5V�������PLOOLRQ��

11.7 Particulars of write-offs: 2014  ����
   (Rupees in '000)

11.7.1�$JDLQVW�SURYLVLRQ� 480� ��� �
� 'LUHFWO\�FKDUJHG�WR�SURILW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW� –00 ��

  480 ���

11.7.2 Write-ofIV�RI�5V����������DQG�DERYH������������������������� –00� ²00
 Write-ofIV�RI�EHORZ�5V���������� 480 ���

  480 ���



11.7.3� ,Q�WHUPV�RI�VXE�VHFWLRQ�����RI�VHFWLRQ���$�RI�WKH�%DQNLQJ�&RPSDQLHV�2UGLQDQFH��������WKH�VWDWHPHQW�
LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�ZULWWHQ�RII�ORDQV�RU�DQ\�RWKHU�ILQDQFLDO�UHOLHI�RI�ILYH�KXQGUHG�WKRXVDQG�UXSHHV�RU�DERYH�
DOORZHG�WR�D�SHUVRQ�V��GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������LV�JLYHQ�LQ�$QQH[XUH�����

11.8 Particulars of loans and advances to directors,   2014� � ����
   associated companies etc. Note  (Rupees in '000)

� �L�� 'HEWV�GXH�E\�GLUHFWRUV��H[HFXWLYHV�RU�Rfficers
� � ��RI�WKH�*URXS�RU�DQ\�RI�WKHP�HLWKHU�VHYHUDOO\
� � ����RU�MRLQWO\�ZLWK�DQ\�RWKHU�SHUVRQV�
� � %DODQFH�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�\HDU� � 1,998,632�� ���������
� � /RDQV�JUDQWHG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU� � 880,137�� ���������

  Repayments  (561,974 )� ����������

  Balance at end of the year  2,316,795�� ���������

� �LL�� 'HEWV�GXH�E\�FRPSDQLHV�RU�ILUPV�LQ�ZKLFK
� � ��WKH�GLUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�*URXS�DUH�LQWHUHVWHG�
� � ����DV�GLUHFWRUV��SDUWQHUV�RU�LQ�WKH�FDVH
� � ������RI�SULYDWH�FRPSDQLHV�DV�PHPEHUV
� � %DODQFH�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�\HDU� � 1,282,655�� ���������
� � /RDQV�JUDQWHG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU� � 24,168,997�� ����������
  Repayments  (23,934,169 )� �������������

  Balance at end of the year  1,517,483�� ���������

12. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS
� &DSLWDO�ZRUN�LQ�SURJUHVV� ����� 298,001�� �������
� 3URSHUW\�DQG�HTXLSPHQW� ����� 13,512,157�� ����������
� ,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV� ����� 107,623�� ������

    13,917,781�� ����������

12.1  Capital work-in-progress
� &LYLO�ZRUNV� � 48,554 � �������
� $GYDQFH�SD\PHQW�WRZDUGV�VXSSOLHUV��FRQWUDFWRUV�DQG�SURSHUW\� � 215,577 � ������
 Consultants·�IHH�DQG�RWKHU�FKDUJHV� � 33,870 � ������

    298,001 � �������

���
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12.2.1� 'HWDLOV�RI�GLVSRVDO�RI�IL[HG�DVVHWV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�
          

   Book Sale Mode of Particulars of   
 Particulars Cost value price disposal purchaser
   (Rupees in '000)     
 Items having book value in aggregate more
   than Rs. 250,000 or cost more than Rs. 1,000,000
� /HDVHKROG�ODQG� ������ ������ ������� 6XUUHQGHU� *RYHUQPHQW�RI�3DNLVWDQ
� ,PSURYHPHQWV�WR�OHDVHKROG�EXLOGLQJV� ������ ������ ²� :ULWH�RII� ²
� )XUQLWXUH�DQG�IL[WXUHV� ������ ���� ���� $XFWLRQ� .DUDFKL�$XFWLRQ�0DUW��.DUDFKL�
� )XUQLWXUH�DQG�IL[WXUHV� ������ ������ ���� $XFWLRQ� 0�V��4XLFN�'LVSRVDO��.DUDFKL�
� (OHFWULFDO��RIILFH�DQG�FRPSXWHU�HTXLSPHQWV� ������� ���� ������ $XFWLRQ� .DUDFKL�$XFWLRQ�0DUW��.DUDFKL�
� (OHFWULFDO��RIILFH�DQG�FRPSXWHU�HTXLSPHQWV� ������ �� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0�V��.$6%�0RGDUED��.DUDFKL�
� (OHFWULFDO��RIILFH�DQG�FRPSXWHU�HTXLSPHQWV� ������ �� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0�V��5DMD�3RZHU��.DUDFKL�
� (OHFWULFDO��RIILFH�DQG�FRPSXWHU�HTXLSPHQWV� ������� ���� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0�V��4XLFN�'LVSRVDO��.DUDFKL�
� (OHFWULFDO��RIILFH�DQG�FRPSXWHU�HTXLSPHQWV� ������ �� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0U��5DMDE�$OL��.DUDFKL�
� (OHFWULFDO��RIILFH�DQG�FRPSXWHU�HTXLSPHQWV� ������ ��� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0�V��5DILT�$OL�0��7UDGLQJ��.DUDFKL�
� (OHFWULFDO��RIILFH�DQG�FRPSXWHU�HTXLSPHQWV� ������� ���� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0�V��(GZDUGV�	�5REHUWVRQ��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������� ������ ������� ,QVXUDQFH�� +DELE�,QVXUDQFH�&RPSDQ\�/LPLWHG
� � � � � FODLP� ���D�UHODWHG�SDUW\���.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ �� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0U��$EGXO�6DPDG�.KDQ��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ²� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0U��0XKDPPDG�1DGHHP�&K����.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ²� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0U��=DKLG�4DGUL��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ²� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0U��+X]DLID�$ULI��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ²� ���� $XFWLRQ� 0U��,IWLNKDU�$KPHG��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ��� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0U��-DYHG�0XKDPPDG�.KDQ��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ��� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0U��.KDOLG�$QZDU��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ²� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0U��0RKVLQ�$KPHG�.KDQ��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ²� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0U��0XKDPPDG�)DL]DQ�-DYDLG��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ���� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0U��0XKDPPDG�,VODP�.KDQ���.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ²� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0U��0XKDPPDG�.DOHHP�,TEDO���.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ²� ���� $XFWLRQ� 0U��1DMPXV�6DTLE��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ²� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0U��1XPHUL�$EUDU��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ���� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0U��:DVLP�0LU]D��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������� ���� ������ $XFWLRQ� 0UV��)RX]LD�1DGHHP��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ���� ���� $XFWLRQ� 6\HG�$GLO�$OL��.DUDFKL��
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ �� ������ $XFWLRQ� 6\HG�+DVVDQ�$OL�:DUVL��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ²� ������ $XFWLRQ� 6\HG�0XKDPPDG�7DXILTXH��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ �� ������ $XFWLRQ� 6\HG�5LD]�$KPHG��.DUDFKL�
� 9HKLFOHV� ������ ²� ���� 1HJRWLDWLRQ� 0U��0XKDPPDG�:DOHHG��.DUDFKL�

 Items having book value in aggregate less than
   Rs. 250,000 or cost less than Rs. 1,000,000 
� )XUQLWXUH�DQG�IL[WXUHV� ��� �� ²
� (OHFWULFDO��RIILFH�DQG�FRPSXWHU�HTXLSPHQWV� ������ ���� ���
� 9HKLFOHV� ������� ���� ������

� � ��������� ������� ������



���

12.2.2 ,Q�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�%DQN
V�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLF\��WKH�OHDVHKROG�ODQG�DQG�EXLOGLQJV�KDYH�EHHQ�UHYDOXHG 
GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��7KH�UHYDOXDWLRQ�ZDV�FDUULHG�RXW�E\�LQGHSHQGHQW�YDOXHU��0�V��,TEDO�$��1DQMHH�	�&R��
RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�SURIHVVLRQDO�DVVHVVPHQW�RI�SUHVHQW�PDUNHW�YDOXHV�DQG�UHVXOWHG�LQ�D�QHW�VXUSOXV�RI�
5V������������PLOOLRQ�RYHU�WKH�ERRN�YDOXH�RI�WKH�UHVSHFWLYH�SURSHUWLHV��+DG�WKHUH�EHHQ�QR�UHYDOXDWLRQ� 
WKH�QHW�ERRN�YDOXH�RI�OHDVHKROG�ODQG�DQG�EXLOGLQJV�ZRXOG�KDYH�DPRXQWHG�WR�

     2014  
  (Rupees in '000) 
   Leasehold land 2,915,512   
�%XLOGLQJV�RQ�OHDVHKROG�ODQG� 3,647,202   
   6,562,714     

  +DG�WKH�%DQN�QRW�PDGH�WKH�DERYH�UHIHUUHG�FKDQJH�LQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�HVWLPDWH��SURILW�EHIRUH�WD[�ZRXOG�
KDYH�EHHQ�LQFUHDVHG�E\�5V���������PLOOLRQ�DQG�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�RSHUDWLQJ�IL[HG�DVVHWV�ZRXOG�
KDYH�EHHQ�LQFUHDVHG�E\�WKH�VDPH�DPRXQW�

12.2.3� $V�DW����'HFHPEHU�������WKH�JURVV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�IXOO\�GHSUHFLDWHG�DVVHWV�VWLOO�LQ�XVH�DPRXQWHG�
WR�5V����������PLOOLRQ��������5V������������PLOOLRQ��   

12.3 Intangible assets
  2014
 Cost Accumulated Amortisation Book Value 
 As at  As at  As at  As at   As at Rate of
 01 January  31 December 01 January  31 December 31 December Amortisation 
 2014 Additions 2014 2014 Charge 2014 2014 %
    (Rupees in '000)
Computer VRIWZDUH� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� �������� ��������� �������� ��
7UDGLQJ�5LJKWV
   Entitlement
�����&HUWLILFDWH� �������� ��� �������� �������� �²�� �������� ������ 
� �������� �������� �������� �������� ������� �������� �������

� � ����

 Cost Accumulated Amortisation Book 9alue 
 As at  As at  As at  As at   As at Rate of
� ���-DQXDU\� � ���'HFHPEHU� ���-DQXDU\� � ���'HFHPEHU� ���'HFHPEHU� $PRUWLVDWLRQ�
� ����� $GGLWLRQV� ����� ����� &KDUJH� ����� ����� �
� � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�
����
Computer VRIWZDUH� ��������� �������� ��������� ��������� �������� ��������� �������� ��
7UDGLQJ�5LJKWV
   Entitlement
����&HUWLILFDWH� �������� ²�� �������� �²� �������� �������� ������
� �������� ������� �������� �������� ������� �������� ������

12.3.1 $V�DW����'HFHPEHU�������WKH�JURVV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�IXOO\�DPRUWLVHG�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�VWLOO�LQ�XVH�DPRXQWHG�WR�5V���������
PLOOLRQ��������5V����������PLOOLRQ��



   2014� ����
  Note  (Rupees in '000)
13. OTHER ASSETS 
  � 0DUN�XS���UHWXUQ���LQWHUHVW�DFFUXHG�LQ�ORFDO�FXUUHQF\� 11,704,206� ����������
� 0DUN�XS���UHWXUQ���LQWHUHVW�DFFUXHG�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV� 164,716� ��������
� $GYDQFHV��GHSRVLWV�DQG�SUHSD\PHQWV� 1,013,761� ����������
� $GYDQFH��WD[DWLRQ��SD\PHQWV�OHVV�SURYLVLRQV�� –00� �������
� 8QUHDOLVHG�JDLQ�RQ�IRUZDUG�IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�FRQWUDFWV� 112,121� ��������
 Stationery and stamps on hand 93,749� ��������
� 5HFHLYDEOH�IURP�6%3�RQ�HQFDVKPHQW�RI�*RYHUQPHQW�6HFXULWLHV� 108,699� ������
� 1RQ�UHIXQGDEOH�GHSRVLWV� � ����� 73,891� �������
� $70�VHWWOHPHQW�DFFRXQW� � � �174,558� ��������
� 1RQ�EDQNLQJ�DVVHWV�DFTXLUHG�LQ�VDWLVIDFWLRQ�RI�FODLPV� � ����� 164,836� �²00
 Others   132,893� ������� 
    13,743,430� ����������

13.1� 5HSUHVHQW�GHSRVLWV�SDLG�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�VRPH�RI�WKH�%DQN
V�SURSHUWLHV��7KHVH�DUH�EHLQJ�
ZULWWHQ�RII�RYHU� WKH�SHULRGV� UDQJLQJ� IURP���� WR����\HDUV� �EHLQJ�HVWLPDWHG�XVHIXO� OLYHV�RI� UHODWHG�
SURSHUWLHV��

13.2 7KH�PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�QRQ�EDQNLQJ�DVVHWV�DFTXLUHG�LQ�VDWLVIDFWLRQ�RI�FODLPV�LV�5V��������PLOOLRQ������� 
1LO��� � � � �
      
      2014� � ����
 Note  (Rupees in '000)

14. BILLS PAYABLE
� � ,Q�3DNLVWDQ� � 7,984,808 � ���������

15. BORROWINGS
� � ,Q�3DNLVWDQ� � 77,788,568 � ����������
  2XWVLGH�3DNLVWDQ  666,884  ²00
     78,455,452 � ����������
15.1 Particulars of borrowings with respect
   to currencies
  In local currency  77,788,568 � ����������
  ,Q�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV  666,884  ²00
     78,455,452 � ����������
15.2 Details of borrowings
  Secured
� � %RUURZLQJV�IURP�6%3
� � ([SRUW�UHILQDQFH�VFKHPH� ����� 17,800,781 � ����������
  /RQJ�WHUP�ILQDQFLQJ�IRU�H[SRUW��
� � ��RULHQWHG�SURMHFWV� ����� 46,739�� �������
  /RQJ�WHUP�ILQDQFLQJ�IRU�LPSRUWHG��
    and locally manufactured plant  
� � � DQG�PDFKLQHU\� ����� 3,567,350�� ���������
� � )LQDQFLQJ�IDFLOLW\�IRU�VWRUDJH�RI�
� � ��DJULFXOWXUDO�SURGXFH� ����� 58,126 � �������
     21,472,996�� ����������
� 5HSXUFKDVH�DJUHHPHQW�ERUURZLQJV� ����� 56,315,572 � ����������

     77,788,568  ����������
 Unsecured
� 2YHUGUDZQ�QRVWURV�� � 666,884 � ²00 

     78,455,452 � ����������

���



15.3 These carry mark-up rate of 6.50% (2013: 8.40%) per annum, payable quarterly at the time of partial 
payment or upon maturity of loan, whichever is earlier.

15.4 These carry mark-up rates ranging from 4% to 5% (2013: 4% to 5%) per annum having maturity 
periods upto 1 to 2 years. 

15.5 These carry mark-up rates of 9% (2013: 8.40% to 8.80%) per annum having maturity periods upto 
ten years.

15.6 These carries mark-up rate of 5.50% (2013: 5.50%) having maturity period upto 1 to 2 years.

15.7 These repurchase agreement borrowings are secured against market treasury bills, which carry 
mark-up rate of 9.45% to 10% (2013: 9.85% to 10%) per annum, having maturity periods upto one 
month.
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     2014  2013
    Note  (Rupees in '000)
16. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

 Customers
 Fixed deposits 104,806,779 82,536,366
 Savings deposits 130,915,789 124,273,324
 Current accounts - Remunerative 54,094,573 41,157,487
 Current accounts - Non-remunerative 146,835,524 124,061,833

    436,652,665 372,029,010

 Financial institutions
 Remunerative deposits 8,851,161 13,448,617
 Non-remunerative deposits 807,638 621,201

    9,658,799 14,069,818

    446,311,464 386,098,828

16.1 Particulars of deposits
   
 In local currency 397,324,078 339,365,277
 In foreign currencies 48,987,386 46,733,551

    446,311,464 386,098,828

17. SUB-ORDINATED LOANS - unsecured

 Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) - II - (Quoted) 17.1 747,900 1,496,100
 Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) - III - (Unquoted) 17.2 –00 1,992,800
 Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) - IV - (Unquoted) 17.3 2,995,800 2,997,000

     3,743,700 6,485,900
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17.1 Term Finance Certificates - II (Quoted)
  Total issue Rupees 1,500 million
  Rating AA
� � 5DWH� 3D\DEOH�VL[�PRQWKO\�DW�DYHUDJH�VL[�PRQWKV·�
      KIBOR plus 1.95% without any floor and cap
  Redemption 6-84th month: 0.28%; 90th and 96th month:  
      49.86% each
  Tenor 8 years
  Maturity February 2015

17.2 During the year, the Bank exercised the Call Option of Term Finance Certificates-III in accordance with the 
Trust Deed and Terms and Conditions for the TFC issue, after completing the regulatory requirements. 
Accordingly, the said TFCs were redeemed in full on 15 September 2014.

17.3 Term Finance Certificates - IV (Unquoted)

  Total issue Rupees 3,000 million
  Rating AA
  Rate Payable six monthly at 15.00% p.a. for first  
      5 years and 15.50% p.a. for next 5 years
  Redemption 6th - 108th month: 0.36%;  114th and 120th month: 
      49.82% each
  Tenor 10 years
  Maturity June 2021

  2014  2013
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
   
18. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
 Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:
 Accelerated depreciation  957,579  943,084
 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 21.1 826,092 595,969
 Surplus on revaluation of investments 21.2 936,986 133,608
    2,720,657 1,672,661

 Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

 Provision against non-performing loans and advances  (16,558 ) (18,998 )
 Provision for compensated absences  (653 ) (263 )
 Recognised tax losses  (10,861 ) (9,907 )
 Provision against diminution in the value of investments  (570 ) (570 )
 Intangible assets  (593 ) –00
 Remeasurment of defined benefit plan  78,430  –00

     49,195  (29,738 )

     2,769,852  1,642,923
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18.1 Reconciliation of deferred tax 
  Balance  Recognised in Recognised Balance
  as at profit and in surplus on as at
  01 January loss revaluation 31 December
  2014 account of assets 2014
    (Rupees in '000)
 Taxable temporary differences
  arising in respect of: 
  Accelerated depreciation 943,084  14,495  –00  957,579
  Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 595,969  (24,741 ) 254,864  826,092
  Surplus on revaluation of investments 133,608  –00  803,378  936,986
      1,672,661  (10,246 ) 1,058,242  2,720,657
 Deductible temporary differences
  arising in respect of:
  Provision against non-performing
         loans and advances (18,998 ) 2,440   –00 (16,558 )
  Provision for compensated absences (263 ) (390 )  –00 (653 ) 
  Recognised tax losses (9,907 ) (954 )  –00 (10,861 ) 
  Provision against diminution in the 
         value of investments (570 ) –00   –00 (570 )
  Intangible assets –00  (593 )  –00 (593 )
  Remeasurment of defined benefit plan –00  78,430   –00 78,430
       (29,738 ) 78,933  –00  49,195
       1,642,923  68,687  1,058,242  2,769,852

  Balance  Recognised in Recognised Balance
  as at profit and in deficit on as at
  01 January loss revaluation 31 December
  2013 account of assets 2013
    (Rupees in '000)
 Taxable temporary differences
  arising in respect of: 
  Accelerated depreciation 929,371  13,713  –00  943,084
  Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 616,069  (20,100 ) –00  595,969
  Surplus on revaluation of investments 514,394  –00  (380,786 ) 133,608
      2,059,834  (6,387 ) (380,786 ) 1,672,661
 Deductible temporary differences
  arising in respect of:
 Provision against non-performing
         loans and advances (123,665 ) 104,667  –00  (18,998 )
 Provision for compensated absences (197 ) (66 ) –00  (263 ) 
 Recognised tax losses (5,961 ) (3,946 ) –00  (9,907 ) 
 Provision against diminution in the 
         value of investments (570 ) –00  –00  (570 )

      (130,393 ) 100,655  –0000  (29,738 )
      1,929,441  94,268  (380,786 ) 1,642,923



  2014  2013
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
19. OTHER LIABILITIES
 Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency  2,299,480  2,131,618
 Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currencies  59,901 29,026
 Provision for compensated absences 19.1 312,972 277,896
 Taxation (Provision less payments)  488,377 –00
 Unclaimed dividends  185,750 160,673
 Branch adjustment account  256,389 159,204
� 6SHFLDO�H[SRUWHUV·�DFFRXQWV�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV� � 70,256 84,557
 Unearned commission income  89,968 58,343
 Security deposits against leases / ijarah  529,645 206,582
 Other security deposits  261,732 253,617
 Workers· welfare fund  811,898 610,042
 Accrued expenses  245,288 231,003
 Payable to defined benefit plan 35.4 224,085 272,300
 Provision against off-balance sheet items 19.2 105,507 96,258
 Payable to SBP / NBP  431,601 423,195
 Payable to supplier against murabaha  97,092 71,210
 Charity payable  2,625 4,147
 Payable against sale of marketable securities on 
   behalf of customers  116,667 63,992
 Others  429,368 426,237
   7,018,601 5,559,900

19.1 Provision for compensated absences has been determined on the basis of independent actuarial 
valuation. The significant assumptions used for actuarial valuation were as follows: 

  2014 2013
   (% per annum)
 Discount rate 11.75% 13.00%
 Expected rate of increase in salary in future years 10.75% 12.00%
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19.2 Provision against off-balance sheet items
 Opening balance   96,258 85,182
 Charge for the year   9,249 21,940
 Reversals    –00  (10,864 )
 Closing balance   105,507 96,258
20. SHARE CAPITAL
   2014 2013  
   (Number of shares)   
   Authorised Capital
   1,500,000,000 1,200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 15,000,000 12,000,000

  Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

   30,000,000 30,000,000 Issued for cash 300,000 300,000
   1,081,425,416 980,386,742 Issued as bonus shares 10,814,254 9,803,868

   1,111,425,416 1,010,386,742  11,114,254 10,103,868

20.1 As of statement of financial position date 196,826,601 (2013: 173,878,718) ordinary shares of 
  Rs. 10/- each were held by the related parties.

 2014  2013
  (Rupees in '000)



21.2 Available for sale investments
 Federal Government securities  2,243,759  190,125
 Fully paid-up ordinary shares  639,526  179,418 

Term finance certificates, sukuk bonds, foreign currency bonds
    and others  53,461  31,667
 Units of mutual funds  376,201  103,842
     3,312,947  505,052
 Related deferred tax liability  (936,986 ) (133,608 )
     2,375,961  371,444
22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
22.1 Direct Credit Substitutes
 Financial guarantees issued favouring:
 – Financial institutions  212,894  297,527
 – Others   5,877,756  5,172,990
     6,090,650  5,470,517
22.2 Transaction-related contingent liabilities
 Guarantees issued favouring:
 – Government  13,616,945  9,550,088
 – Financial institutions  366,643  238,651
 – Others   7,156,310  4,877,272
     21,139,898  14,666,011
22.3 Trade-related Contingent Liabilities
 Letters of credit  68,164,714  70,207,859
 Acceptances  9,974,513  6,895,498
 Bankers liability rediscount  1,465,595  –000
     79,604,822  77,103,357
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21. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX
   Operating fixed assets 21.1 2,749,123  1,722,912
 Available for sale investments 21.2 2,375,961  371,444
     5,125,084  2,094,356
21.1 Operating fixed assets     
 Balance at the beginning of the year  2,318,881  2,376,309
 Adjustment on revaluation of the Bank·s properties 
    during the year  1,327,022  –00
 Transfer to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental    
  depreciation charged during the year  (70,688 ) (57,428 )
     3,575,215  2,318,881
 Related deferred tax liability on:
 Balance at the beginning of the year  595,969  616,069
 Adjustment of Bank·s properties during the year    254,864  –00
 Transfer to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental
  depreciation charged during the year  (24,741 ) (20,100 )
     (826,092 ) (595,969 )
     2,749,123  1,722,912

  2014  2013
 Note  (Rupees in '000)



23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 The Group deals in derivative financial instruments namely forward foreign exchange contracts and 

foreign currency swaps with the principal view of hedging the risks arising from its trade business. 
$V�SHU�WKH�*URXS·V�SROLF\��WKHVH�FRQWUDFWV�DUH�UHSRUWHG�RQ�WKHLU�IDLU�YDOXH�DW�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ILQDQFLDO�
position date. The gains and losses from revaluation of these contracts are included under “income 
from dealing in foreign currencies”. Unrealised gains and losses on these contracts are recorded in 
the statement of financial position under “other assets / other liabilities”. These products are offered 
WR�WKH�*URXS·V�FXVWRPHUV�WR�SURWHFW�IURP�XQIDYRXUDEOH�PRYHPHQWV�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV��7KH�*URXS�
hedges such exposures in the inter-bank foreign exchange market. 

153

     2014  2013
      (Rupees in '000)
24. MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED
 On loans and advances to:
   Customers  15,090,563  13,205,128
   Financial institutions  288,104  238,918
   15,378,667  13,444,046
 On investments:
   Available for sale securities  16,446,465  17,816,864
   Held to maturity securities  11,970,285  5,816,162
   28,416,750  23,633,026

 On deposits with financial institutions  83,843  62,824
 On securities purchased under resale agreements  127,051  113,047
 On call money lendings  813  1,919
   44,007,124  37,254,862

25. MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED
 Deposits  20,774,334  18,092,970
 Sub-ordinated loans  812,680  929,644
 Repurchase agreement borrowings  1,611,068  2,243,930
 Borrowings from SBP  1,384,760  1,418,627
 Other borrowings  350,330  308,646
   24,933,172  22,993,817

     2014  2013
      (Rupees in '000)
22.4 Commitments in respect of forward lending
 Commitments to extend credit (excluding commitments 
  that are unilaterally cancellable)  4,582,095 1,130,970

22.5 Commitments in respect of forward exchange contracts
 Purchase   35,574,870 23,468,276
 Sale   33,584,498 20,363,924
 The maturities of above contracts are spread over the periods upto two years.   
22.6 Commitments for the acquisition of operating 
  fixed assets  367,825 154,299
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  2014  2013
 Note  (Rupees in '000)
26. GAIN ON SALE / REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES - NET
 Listed shares  2,196  254,374 
 Government securities  (3,468 ) 546
 Mutual funds  23,832  242,387

   22,560  497,307

27. OTHER INCOME
 Gain on sale of operating fixed assets  75,610  76,240
 Recovery of expenses from customers 27.1 178,256  161,023
 Lockers rent  1,284  3,411
 Cheque book issuance / cheque return charges  255,783  211,048
 Banking charges  63,856  54,935
 Others  61,342  41,009
   636,131  547,666

 27.1 Includes courier, SWIFT, postage and other charges recovered from customers.

28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
 Salaries, allowances, etc.  5,380,017 4,470,929
 Charge for defined benefit plan 35.6 167,033 120,978
 Contribution to defined contribution plan  222,664 185,323
 Charge for employees compensated absences  35,390 42,673
 Non-executive directors' fee, allowances
   and other expenses  4,700 3,675
 Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc.  1,906,146 1,573,340
 Legal and professional charges  121,570 89,867  
 Communications  227,866 240,381
 Repairs and maintenance  837,738 544,287  
 Security charges  574,695 512,062
 Stationery and printing  359,996 373,553
 Advertisement and publicity  132,863 110,995
 Donations   28.1 48,800 21,750
 Auditors' remuneration  28.2 4,063 3,478
 Depreciation  12.2 993,871 887,068
 Amortisation   78,381 51,696
 Travelling and conveyance  106,430 62,834
 Vehicle running expenses  416,637 203,311
 Commission and brokerage  52,949 83,652  
 Subscriptions and publications  65,536 51,635  
 Clearing charges (NIFT)  76,547 67,478
 Staff training   18,099 22,750
 Entertainment and staff refreshment  127,581 91,304
 Cleaning charges   55,232 43,180
 Charitable expenses   31,351 27,377
 CNIC verification charges   31,545 17,232
 Others     172,205 147,599

     12,249,905 10,050,407
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  2014  2013
  (Rupees in '000)
28.1 The details of donations in excess of Rupees One hundred 
   thousand are given below:
 Al-Sayyeda Benevolent Trust  1,500 1,500 
 GCU Endowment Fund Trust*  1,000 1,000
 Habib Education Trust  17,500 1,500
 Habib Medical Trust   1,500 1,500
 Habib Poor Fund  1,500 1,500
 Institute of Management Sciences, Bahauddin 
    Zakariya University, Multan  1,000 1,000
� 3DWLHQWV·�$LG�)RXQGDWLRQ� � 15,000 7,500
 Pakistan Bridge Federation  –00 250
 Rahmatbai Habib Food and Clothing Trust  1,500 1,500
 Rahmatbai Habib Widows and Orphans Trust  1,500 1,500
 Shaukat Khanum Memorial Cancer Hospital & Research Centre 1,000 –00
 Sindh Institute of Urology and Transplantation (SIUT), Karachi 2,500 –00
 The Citizens Foundation  3,300 3,000
     48,800 21,750

 * Mr. Shameem Ahmed, Director of Bank AL Habib Limited, is member of Executive Committee of 
GCU Endowment Fund Trust, GC University, Lahore.

28.2 Auditors' remuneration
 Audit fee - standalone financial statements  2,618  2,100
 Audit fee - consoildated financial statements  300  300
 Half yearly review   650  650
 Special certifications  50  –00
 Provident fund and gratuity fund  75  75
 Out of pocket expenses  370  353

    4,063  3,478

29. OTHER PROVISIONS / WRITE-OFFS
 Provision against off-balance sheet items  9,249  11,076
 

30. OTHER  CHARGES
 Workers· welfare fund  201,866  153,396
 Penalties imposed by SBP  1,112  3,476

    202,978  156,872

31. TAXATION
 For the year
   Current  3,498,182  2,451,216
   Prior years  –00  (190,885 )
   Deferred  68,687  94,268

    3,566,869  2,354,599
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31.1 Relationship between tax expense
  and accounting profit
 Profit before taxation  10,003,239  7,552,856 

 Tax at the applicable rate of 35% (2013: 35%)  3,501,134  2,643,500
 Tax effects of:
   Expenses that are not deductible in
     determining taxable income  158,027  64,208
   Tax effect of prior year provisions  –00  (190,885 )
  Dividend income taxed at reduced rate  (91,446 ) (63,484 )
   Capital gain taxed at reduced rate  (846 ) (93,035 )
  Others  –00  (5,705 )

    3,566,869  2,354,599

32. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
  ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
   HOLDING COMPANY
 Profit after taxation - attributable to equity holders of the 
   Holding company 6,432,145  5,195,266

     (Number)

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,111,425,416 1,111,425,416

     (Rupees)

 Basic and diluted earnings per share 5.79  4.67

     2014  2013
    Note  (Rupees in '000)
33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Cash and balances with treasury banks 8 34,201,844   32,199,552
 Balances with other banks 9 4,352,769   2,664,729
 Overdrawn nostros 15 (666,884 )  –000  

     37,887,729   34,864,281
   
     (Numbers)
34. STAFF STRENGTH  

 Permanent  6,193  5,424
 Temporary / on contractual basis 250  228
 Group·s own staff at end of the year 6,443  5,652
 Outsourced  1,679  1,557

 Total staff strength 8,122  7,209

 2014  2013
  (Rupees in '000)
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35. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

35.1 General description

 The Bank operates an approved gratuity fund for all its confirmed employees, which is administered 
by the Trustees. The benefits under the gratuity scheme are payable on retirement at the age of 60 
years or on earlier cessation of service as under:

 Number of years of eligible service completed: Amount of gratuity payable:

 Less than 5 years Nil
 5 years or more but less than 10 years 1/3rd of basic salary for each year served
 10 years or more but less than 15 years 2/3rd of basic salary for each year served
 15 years or more Full basic salary for each year served

35.2 Principal actuarial assumptions

 The latest actuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out on 31 December 2014 and the significant 
assumptions used for actuarial valuation were as follows:

     2014 2013
35.3 Significant Actuarial Assumptions
 Financial Assumptions
 Discount Rate    11.75% 13%
 Salary Increase Rate  10.75% 12%

 Demographic Assumptions
 Mortality rates (for death in service)  SLIC (2001-05) LIC (1975-79)
 Rates of employee turnover  Light Moderate

     2014  2013
      (Rupees in '000)
35.4 Statement of Financial Position
 Present value of defined benefit obligation  1,327,761  1,103,850
 Fair value of plan assets  (1,103,676 ) (831,550 )

 Deficit   224,085  272,300

35.5 Movement in Net defined benefit liability 
 Balance accrued as at the beginning of the year  272,300  174,666
 Net periodic benefit cost for the year ended  167,033  120,978
 Employer·s contribution during the year  (167,033 ) (120,978 )
 Amount of remeasurements (gains) / losses recognised 
   in Other Comprehensive Income during the year  (48,215 ) 97,634

 Balance accrued as at the end of the year  224,085  272,300
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     2014  2013
      (Rupees in '000)
35.6 Defined Benefit Cost for the Year
 Cost recognised in Profit and Loss Account for the year
 Service cost
  Current service cost  133,733  101,204

 Net Interest cost
  Interest cost on defined benefit obligation  149,723  107,240
  Interest Income on plan assets  (116,423 ) (87,466 )

  Net Interest cost   33,300  19,774

 Cost recognised in Profit and Loss for the year   167,033  120,978

 Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive
   Income during the year

 Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation  (27,300 ) 49,415
 Actuarial (gain) / loss on assets  (20,915 ) 48,219

 Remeasurements (gain) / loss recognised in Other 
  Comprehensive Income   (48,215)  97,634

 Total defined benefit cost recognised in Profit and Loss 
  Account and Other Comprehensive Income   118,818  218,612

35.7 Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation
 Present value of defined benefit obligation
   at the beginning of year  1,103,850  883,141
 Service cost  133,733  101,204
 Interest cost on defined benefit obligation  149,723  107,240
 Actual benefits paid during the year  (32,245 ) (37,149 )
 Actual (gain) / loss on obligation  (27,300 ) 49,414

 Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of year 1,327,761  1,103,850

35.8 Movement in the fair value of plan assets
 Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of year  831,550  708,475
 Interest income on plan assets  116,423  87,466
 Actual contribution by employer  167,033  120,978
 Actual benefits paid during the year  (32,245 ) (37,149 )
 Return on plan assets over interest
   income gain / (loss)    20,915  (48,220 )

 Fair value of plan assets at the end of year  1,103,676  831,550

35.9 Actual return on plan assets  149,805  78,025



159

          2015
          (Rupees in '000)
35.10 Charge and contribution for the year ending 31 December 2015

 Service cost
 Current service cost 159,496

 Net interest cost

 Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 148,029
 Interest Income on plan assets (136,135 )

 Net Interest cost 11,894 

 Cost to be recognised in Profit and loss account for the year 2015 171,390 

35.11 Analysis of Present value of defined benefit obligation 2014
         �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Vested / Non-Vested

 Vested Benefits 1,218,396
 Non-Vested benefits 109,365
 Total      1,327,761

 Type of Benefits

 Accumulated Benefit Obligation 386,725
 Amounts attributed to future salary increases 941,036

 Total      1,327,761

35.12 Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive
  Income during the year
 Actuarial gain on obligation
 Gain due to change in financial assumptions 9,502
 Gain due to change in experience adjustments 17,798

 Total actuarial gain on obligation 27,300

 Net return on plan assets over interest income
 Actual return on plan assets 149,805
 Opening difference in fair value of plan assets (after audit) (12,468 )
 Interest income on plan assets (116,422 )
 Net return on plan assets over interest income 20,915

 Remeasurements gain recognised in Other Comprehensive
  Income during the year 48,215
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      2014
      (Rupees in '000)

 35.13 Disaggregation of fair value of plan assets

  Cash and Cash equivalents (after adjusting current liabilities)   43,797

  Unquoted investments    

  Pakistan Investment Bonds    859,879
  SBP - Treasury Bills    200,000 
         1,059,879 

  Total fair value of plan assets    1,103,676

 35.14 Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation

  Distribution of timing of benefit payments
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)   58,415

  Between 2 and 5 years    236,781
  Between 5 and 10 years    865,717

       1,160,913
 

 35.15 Sensitivity Analysis on significant actuarial assumptions :
   Actuarial Liability
  The Weighted average duration of the PBO is 13.60 years   
 
  Discount Rate + 1%    1,612,985

  Discount Rate - 1%  1,526,994

  Long Term Salary Increases + 1%  1,533,873

  Long Term Salary Increases - 1%    1,155,007
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37. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
 
  Chief Executive Directors* Executives
  2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
    (Rupees in '000)

 Fee ** –00 –00 4,700 3,675 –00 –00
 Managerial remuneration 16,000 14,846 10,400 9,482 1,438,093 1,143,908
 Charge for defined benefit plan 1,333 9,494 867 7,344 174,240 107,366
 Contribution to defined 
  contribution plan 1,600 1,485 1,040 948 106,202 85,213
 Rent and house maintenance 6,400 5,938 4,160 3,793 494,014 396,930
 Utilities 3,488 3,631 1,066 978 123,504 99,232
 Medical 30 2 18 79 40,819 33,082
 Bonus 4,000 2,282 2,600 1,427 300,764 163,074
 Others –00 –00 –00 –00 40,076 28,991

   32,851 37,678 24,851 27,726 2,717,712 2,057,796

 Number of person(s) 1 1 11*** 10 1,212 973

 
 Executives, including the Chief Executive and Executive Director, are provided with Group's maintained 

cars in accordance with the terms of their employment and are entitled to medical and life insurance 
benefits in accordance with the policy of the Group. In addition, the Chief Executive and Executive 
Director are also provided with drivers, club memberships, security arrangements and payment of 
travel bills in accordance with their terms of employment. 

 * Directors include one executive director (2013: 01)

 ** This represents fee paid to non-executive directors for attending Board of Directors and its committees' 
meetings. 

 *** This includes two Directors who resigned during the year as well as two Directors who were 
appointed in their places.

36. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

 The general description of the plan is included in note 5.8.
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38. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 2014 2013
 Book value Fair value  Book value Fair value
   (Rupees in '000)
    
 On-balance sheet financial instruments
 Assets
 Cash and balances with treasury banks 34,201,844 34,201,844 32,199,552  32,199,552
 Balances with other banks 4,352,769 4,352,769 2,664,729  2,664,729
 Lendings to financial institutions –00 –00 –00  –00
 Investments - net 331,737,516 339,431,369 239,986,042  239,839,895
 Advances - net 181,357,100 181,357,100 167,569,070  167,569,070
 Other assets 12,397,193 12,397,193 5,317,174  5,317,174
   564,046,422 571,740,275 447,736,567  447,590,420
 Liabilities
 Bills payable 7,984,808 7,984,808 6,173,102  6,173,102
 Borrowings  78,455,452 78,455,452 29,480,026  29,480,026
 Deposits and other accounts 446,311,464 446,311,464 386,098,828  386,098,828
 Sub-ordinated loans 3,743,700 3,743,700 6,485,900  6,485,900
 Other liabilities 4,521,889 4,521,889 4,358,124  4,358,124
   541,017,313 541,017,313 432,595,980  432,595,980

 Off-balance sheet financial instruments
 Commitment to extend credit 4,582,095 4,582,095 1,130,970  1,130,970

 Forward purchase of foreign exchange contracts 35,574,870 35,135,311 23,468,276  23,245,731

 Forward sale of foreign exchange contracts 33,584,498 34,136,179 20,363,924  20,769,304

 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Fair value of financial instruments is 
based on:

 Federal Government Securities PKRV rates (Reuters page)
 Listed securities Market prices
 Mutual funds Net asset values
 Unlisted equity investments Break - up value as per latest available audited financial 
  statements.

 Fair value of fixed term advances of over one year, staff loans and fixed term deposits of over one 
year cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to non - availability of relevant active market 
for similar assets and liabilities. The provision for impairment of debt securities and loans and advances 
has been calculated in accordance with the Bank's accounting policies as stated in note 5.5 and 5.6.



39. SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
 The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows: 
 
   2014
 Retail Commercial Retail Inter Segment Total  
 Banking Banking Brokerage Elimination
   (Rupees in '000)
 Total income 24,369,362  42,624,539  70,247  (19,107,153 ) 47,956,995 
 Total expenses (20,267,249 ) (36,726,192 ) (67,468 ) 19,107,153  (37,953,756 )
 Net income  4,102,113  5,898,347  2,779  –00  10,003,239

 Segment assets (net of provisions) 427,239,886  554,427,859  427,399  (402,784,704 ) 579,310,440 
 Segment non performing loans 37,439  4,987,339  –00  –00  5,024,778
 Segment provision required  35,835  3,996,982  –00  –00  4,032,817
 Segment liabilities 425,480,100  523,316,837  271,644  (402,784,704 ) 546,283,877
 Segment return on net assets (ROA) (%)* 5.70%  7.69%  16.44%
 Segment cost of funds (%)* 4.76%  7.02%  24.84%
 AL Habib Credit & Finance (Hong Kong) Limited has not commenced operations.
   2013
 Retail Commercial Retail Inter Segment Total  
 Banking Banking Brokerage Elimination
   (Rupees in '000)
 Total income 19,638,527  37,301,590  53,177  (15,748,475 ) 41,244,819 
 Total expenses (16,522,874 ) (32,863,554 ) (54,010 ) 15,748,475  (33,691,963 )
 Net income  3,115,653  4,438,036  (833 ) –00  7,552,856

 Segment assets (net of provisions) 357,232,136  443,928,101  350,956  (340,489,280 ) 461,021,913 
 Segment non performing loans 42,776  3,657,127  –00  –00  3,699,903
 Segment provision required  42,092  3,501,032  –00  –00  3,543,124
 Segment liabilities 355,612,241  420,118,741  198,977  (340,489,280 ) 435,440,679
 Segment return on net assets (ROA) (%)* 5.50%  8.40%  15.15%
 Segment cost of funds (%)* 4.65%  7.82%  27.14%
 *These percentages have been computed based on closing assets / liabilities figures.  

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 Related parties of the Group comprise associates (including entities having directors in common with the Group), retirement 

benefit funds, major share holders, directors and key management personnel and their close family members.
 Transactions with related parties of the Group are carried out on an arm's length basis in terms of the policy as approved by 

the Board of Directors. The transactions with employees of the Group are carried out in accordance with the terms of their 
employment.
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 Transactions with related parties, other than those disclosed in note 12.2.1 and 20.1, are summarised as follows:
 2014
   Non Key
  Associates Executive Management Retirement Total
   Directors Personnel Benefit Funds
    (Rupees in '000) 
 Deposits
 At beginning of the year  1,813,814  142,104  368,941  174,811  2,499,670
 Placements during the year  108,541,729  1,005,151  2,097,406  8,091,171  119,735,457
 Withdrawals during the year  (107,318,266 ) (961,646 )  (2,064,452 )  (8,216,541 ) (118,560,905 )
 At end of the year  3,037,277  185,609  401,895  49,441  3,674,222
 Advances     
 At beginning of the year  1,282,655  126  37,822  –00  1,320,603
 Given during the year  24,168,997  4,636  74,665  –00  24,248,298
 Repaid during the year  (23,934,169 ) (4,468 )  (59,527 )  –00  (23,998,164 )
 At end of the year  1,517,483  294  52,960  –00  1,570,737
 Investments     
 At beginning of the year  1,049,048  –00  –00  –00  1,049,048
 Investment made during the year  109,566  –00  –00  –00  109,566
 Redeemed during the year  –00   –00   –00   –00  –00
 At end of the year  1,158,614  –00  –00  –00  1,158,614

 Contingencies and commitments  730,920  –00  –00  –00  730,920

 Forward purchase contracts 174,758  –00  –00  –00  174,758
 Forward sale contracts –00  –00  –00  –00  –00
 Unrealised loss on forward contracts (2,117 ) –00  –00  –00  (2,117 )
 Purchase of fixed assets –00  –00  –00  –00  –00
 Sale / redemption of securities 49,054  –00  –00  2,969,668  3,018,722
 Purchase of securities –00  –00  –00  –00  –00
 Mark-up earned  128,478  –00  2,631  –00  131,109 
 Mark-up expensed  207,292  11,450  33,514  16,580  268,836
 Bank charges and commission  4,244  26  171  –00  4,441
 Gain / (loss) on sale of securities 80  –00  –00  (2,865 ) (2,785 )
 Salaries and allowances –00  –00  265,968  –00  265,968
 Bonus –00  –00  36,102  –00  36,102
 Contribution to defined contribution plan –00  –00  13,369  –00  13,369
 Contribution to defined benefit plan –00  –00  17,675  –00  17,675
 Staff provident fund –00  –00  –00  222,664  222,664
 Staff gratuity fund –00  –00  –00  167,033  167,033
 Directors' fee –00  4,400  –00  –00  4,400
 Insurance claim received  12,266  –00  –00  –00  12,266
 Insurance premium paid  113,464  –00  –00  –00  113,464
 Dividend income  39,191  –00  –00  –00  39,191
 Rental paid 1,118  –00  –00  –00  1,118
 Brokerage and advisory income  1,515  –00  26  –00  1,541 
 Other expensed  12,221  –00  –00  –00  12,221 
 Other income 180  –00  –00  130  310
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 2013
   Non Key
  Associates Executive Management Retirement Total
   Directors Personnel Benefit Funds
    (Rupees in '000) 
 Deposits
 At beginning of the year  1,691,582  146,594  294,767  151,603  2,284,546
 Placements during the year  76,167,530  767,897  1,186,282  4,538,194  82,659,903
 Withdrawals during the year  (76,045,298 ) (772,387 )  (1,112,108 )  (4,514,986 ) (82,444,779 )
 At end of the year  1,813,814  142,104  368,941  174,811  2,499,670
 Advances     
 At beginning of the year  1,615,380  351  28,605  –00  1,644,336
 Given during the year  20,955,131  3,025  45,862  –00  21,004,018
 Repaid during the year  (21,287,856 ) (3,250 )  (36,645 )  –00  (21,327,751 )
 At end of the year  1,282,655  126  37,822  –00  1,320,603
 Investments     
 At beginning of the year  1,279,273  –00  –00  –00  1,279,273
 Investment made during the year  647,501  –00  –00  –00  647,501
 Redeemed during the year  (877,726 )  –00   –00   –00  (877,726 )
 At end of the year  1,049,048  –00  –00  –00  1,049,048

 Contingencies and commitments  721,649  –00  –00  –00  721,649

 Forward purchase contracts –00  –00  –00  –00  –00
 Forward sale contracts 238,943  –00  –00  –00  238,943
 Unrealised gain on forward contracts 5,548  –00  –00  –00  5,548
 Purchase of fixed assets 1,430  –00  –00  –00  1,430
 Sale / redemption of securities 1,042,566  –00  –00  2,074,617  3,117,183
 Purchase of securities 647,501  –00  –00  –00  647,501
 Mark-up earned  135,635  5  1,910  –00  137,550 
 Mark-up expensed  90,984  8,363  26,751  22,500  148,598
 Bank charges and commission  4,671  13  102  –00  4,786
 Gain on sale of securities 64,706  –00  –00  –00  64,706 
 Salaries and allowances –00  –00  207,578  –00  207,578
 Bonus –00  –00  18,247  –00  18,247
 Contribution to defined contribution plan –00  –00  9,698  –00  9,698
 Contribution to defined benefit plan –00  –00  25,874  –00  25,874
 Staff provident fund –00  –00  –00  185,323  185,323
 Staff gratuity fund –00  –00  –00  120,978  120,978
 Directors' fee –00  3,400  –00  –00  3,400
 Insurance claim received  11,717  –00  –00  –00  11,717
 Insurance premium paid  137,228  –00  –00  –00  137,228
 Dividend income  46,815  –00  –00  –00  46,815
 Brokerage and advisory income 1,142  –00  –00  –00  1,142 
 Other expensed  2,125  –00  –00  –00  2,125 
 Other income –00  –00  –00  –00  –00
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41. CAPITAL ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY
41.1 Capital adequacy
 As per requirements of SBP, the Bank is required to comply with the capital adequacy framework 

which comprises the following capital standards :
 i) Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):
  The MCR standard sets the paid-up amount of capital that the Bank is required to hold at all 

times.
  As of the statement of financial position date, the Bank's paid-up capital stands at Rs.11.114 

billion as against the required MCR of Rs. 10 billion.
 ii) Capital Adequacy Ratio:
  The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) assesses the capital requirement based on the risks faced 

by the banks. The banks are required to comply with the CAR as specified by the State Bank 
of Pakistan on standalone as well as consolidated basis.

  During the year 2013, SBP issued revised instructions on the computation of CAR based on 
Basel III Capital Reform as issued by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision. These 
instructions became effective from 31 December 2013 with full implementation intended by 31 
December 2019. These instructions also specify the transitional arrangements from 2013 to 
2019.

  Accordingly, the Bank has assessed and reported its Capital Adequacy Ratio in the financial 
statements on the basis of Basel III requirements as prescribed by SBP.

  The CAR on the basis of above framework works out to be as follows:   
       
   2014
  Required CAR 10%

  CAR on standalone basis 14.89%

  CAR on consolidated basis 14.97%

 It is the Bank's policy that the level of capital maintained by it should be such that it maximises the 
return to shareholders while providing sufficient buffer to absorb risks, including those from any 
unexpected events. Therefore, the Bank carefully monitors its capital adequacy ratio with a view to 
ensuring that growth in risk assets is accompanied by commensurate growth in capital, and 
endeavours to maintain the capital adequacy ratio at a level sufficiently higher than the minimum 
regulatory requirement. Stress testing of capital adequacy is carried out periodically.

 Based on its experience over the years, the Bank expects to be able to raise the required capital 
internally through its operations as well as in the capital markets.

 The Bank has a risk management framework commensurate with its size and the nature of its 
business. The Board of Directors has approved risk management policies covering key areas of 
activities, including a Risk Tolerance Statement, for the guidance of management and staff of the 
Bank.

 The Bank calculates capital requirement as per Basel III regulatory framework, using the following 
approaches: 

  Credit Risk Standardised Approach
  Market Risk  Standardised Approach
  Operational Risk Basic Indicator Approach



41.2 Scope of application
 The Basel III Framework for capital adequacy is applicable to the Bank both at the consolidated 

level (including subsidiaries) and also on standalone basis. Bank AL Habib Limited is the only bank 
in the Group to which Basel III capital adequacy framework applies. The Bank has ownership in the 
following subsidiaries, where the Bank holds more than 50% of voting shares as at December 31, 
2014:

 Name Type of entity Country of incorporation

 AL Habib Capital Markets (Private) Limited Financial Pakistan
 AL Habib Credit & Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Financial Hong Kong
 The assets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows of above subsidiaries are included in the 

consolidated financial statements and also consolidated for regulatory capital adequacy purposes.
41.3 Capital structure
� 7KH�%DQN·V�7LHU� ,� FDSLWDO� FRPSULVHV� SDLG�XS� FDSLWDO�� VWDWXWRU\� UHVHUYH�� VSHFLDO� UHVHUYH�� JHQHUDO�

reserve, and unappropriated profit and is adjusted for deductions in respect of intangible assets, 
shortfall in provision against classified assets, deficit on revaluation of investments, deferred tax 
asset, direct or indirect investment in own shares and is adjusted for reciprocal cross holdings in 
TIER 1 instruments.

� 7KH�%DQN·V�7LHU�FDSLWDO�LQFOXGHV�VXERUGLQDWHG�ORDQV��JHQHUDO�SURYLVLRQV��UHYDOXDWLRQ�UHVHUYHV��and 
exchange translation reserve and is adjusted for reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments.
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   2014  2013
     (Restated)
    (Rupees in '000) 
41.3.1 Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves

 Fully Paid-up Capital / Capital deposited with SBP   11,114,254  10,103,868 
 Balance in Share Premium Account   –00  –00 
 Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares   –00  –00 
 Discount on Issue of shares   –00  –00 
 General / Statutory Reserves   8,599,150  7,329,362 
 Gains / (Losses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge   –00  –00 
 Unappropriated/unremitted profits / (losses)   7,912,345  5,703,859 
 Minority interests arising from CET1 capital instruments issued to third
  parties by consolidated bank subsidiaries (amount allowed in
     CET1capital of the consolidation group)   7,597  10,799 
 CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments   27,633,346  23,147,888 
 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 (Note 41.3.2)   (513,874)  (432,104)
 Common Equity Tier 1 (a)  27,119,472  22,715,784 
 Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital
 Qualifying Additional Tier-1 capital instruments plus any related share premium  
     of which: Classified as equity   –00  –00 
     of which: Classified as liabilities   –00  –00 
 Additional Tier-1 capital instruments issued to third parties by consolidated    
   subsidiaries (amount allowed in group AT 1)    
     of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out   –00  –00 
 AT1 before regulatory adjustments   –00  –00 
 Total regulatory adjustments applied to AT1 capital (Note 41.3.3)   –00  –00 
 Additional Tier 1 capital after regulatory adjustments   –00  –00 
 Additional Tier 1 capital recognised for capital adequacy (b) –00  –00 
 Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1) (c=a+b)  27,119,472  22,715,784 



   2014  2013
     (Restated)
    (Rupees in '000) 

 Tier 2 Capital    
 Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel III plus any 
  related share premium   –00  –00 
 Tier 2 capital instruments subject to phaseout arrangement issued   
  under pre-Basel 3 rules   2,393,760  3,724,217 
 Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third parties by consolidated subsidiaries 0 
  (amount allowed in group tier 2)   –00  –00 
 General provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to
  maximum of 1.25% of Credit Risk Weighted Assets   2,583,182  2,186,261 
 Revaluation Reserves (net of taxes)   5,125,084  2,094,356 
      of which: Revaluation reserves on fixed assets   2,749,123  1,722,912 
      of which: Unrealised gains/(losses) on AFS   2,375,961  371,444 
 Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves   161,761  240,045 
 Undisclosed / Other Reserves (if any)   –00  –00 
 T2 before regulatory adjustments   10,263,787  8,244,879
 Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital (Note 41.3.4)   (504,342 ) (695,160 )
 Tier 2 capital (T2) after regulatory adjustments   9,759,445  7,549,719
 Tier 2 capital recognised for capital adequacy   –00  –00
 Portion of Additional Tier 1 capital recognised in Tier 2 capital   9,759,445  7,549,719
 Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy (d) 9,759,445  7,549,719
 TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2) (e=c+d) 36,878,917  30,265,503
 Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) (Note 41.6) (f) 246,305,974  208,568,421

 Capital Ratios and buffers (in percentage of risk weighted assets)

 CET1 to total RWA (a/f) 11.01%  10.89%
 Tier-1 capital to total RWA (c/f) 11.01%  10.89%
 Total capital to total RWA (e/f) 14.97%  14.51%

 Bank specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 requirement plus capital      
 conservation buffer plus any other buffer requirement)     

  of which: capital conservation buffer requirement  –00  –00 
      of which: countercyclical buffer requirement  –00  –00 
      of which: D-SIB or G-SIB buffer requirement  –00  –00 
 CET1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage of risk weighted assets)  –00  –0

 National minimum capital requirements prescribed by SBP
 CET1 minimum ratio  5.50%  5.00%
 Tier 1 minimum ratio  7.00%  6.50%
 Total capital minimum ratio  10.00%  10.00%
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   2014  2013
     (Restated)
    (Rupees in '000) 

41.3.2 Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments

 Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability)   –00   –00   
 All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax liability)  (107,626 ) (46,630 )
 Shortfall in provisions against classified assets  –00  –00   
 Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from  
    temporary differences (net of related tax liability)  –00  –00   
 Defined-benefit pension fund net assets  –00  –00   
 Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments of banking, financial 
    and insurance entities  (406,248 ) (385,474 )
 Cash flow hedge reserve  –00  –00   
 Investment in own shares/ CET1 instruments  –00  –00   
 Securitisation gain on sale  –00  –00   
 Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries  –00  –00   
 Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's holdings of fixed assets/ AFS  –00  –00   
 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities  
  that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does 
    not own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)  –00  –00
 Significant investments in the common stocks of banking, financial and insurance entities 
  that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount above 10% threshold)  –00  –00   
 Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold,  
  net of related tax liability)  –00  –00
 Amount exceeding 15% threshold  
     of which: significant investments in the common stocks of financial entities  –00  –00   
     of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences  –00  –00   
 National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 capital  
  investments in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit   –00  –00   
 Any other deduction specified by SBP  –00  –00   
 Adjustment to CET1 due to insufficient AT1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions  –00  –00   
 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1  (513,874 ) (432,104 )

41.3.3 Additional Tier-1 & Tier-1 Capital: regulatory adjustments       
   Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit [SBP specific adjustment]  –00  –00
 Investment in own AT1 capital instruments  –00  –00
 Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments of banking,  
  financial and insurance entities  –00  –00
 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that  
  are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more  
    than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)  –00  –00
 Significant investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance  
  entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation  –00  –00
 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital based on pre-Basel III treatment
  which, during transitional period, remain subject to deduction from additional Tier-1 capital  –00  –00
 Adjustments to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions  –00  –00
 Total regulatory adjustment applied to AT1 capital  –00  –00
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   2014  2013
     (Restated)
    (Rupees in '000) 

41.3.4 Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments

 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital based on pre-Basel III   
    treatment which, during transitional period, remain subject to deduction from tier-2 capital  –00  –00 
 Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities  (504,342 ) (695,160 )
 Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument   –00  –00 
 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that  
    are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more  
      than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)  –00  –00 
 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and  
    insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation  –00  –00 
 Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital  (504,342 ) (695,160 )
41.3.5 Risk Weighted Assets subject to pre-Basel III treatment
 Risk weighted assets in respect of deduction items (which during the transitional period
    will be risk weighted subject to Pre-Basel III Treatment)
  of which: Deferred tax assets  –00  –00 
  of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets  –00  –00 
  of which: Recognised portion of investment in capital of banking, financial and insurance
     entities where holding is less than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity –00   –00 
  of which: Recognised portion of investment in capital of banking, financial and insurance
   entities where holding is more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity  –00   –00 
 Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)  
 Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial entities  –00   –00 
 Significant investments in the common stock of financial entities  –00   –00 
 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability)  –00   –00 
 Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2  
 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to standardised 
     approach (prior to application of cap)  2,583,182   2,540,071 
 Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardised approach  2,583,182   2,186,261 
 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to internal 
    ratings-based approach (prior to application of cap)  –00  –00 
 Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings-based approach  –00  –00 
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   2014 2014
   As per Under
    published regulatory
    financial scope of 
    statements reporting for 
     consolidation
   (Rupees in '000)

41.4 Capital Structure Reconciliation       
  
41.4.1 Reconciliation of accounting and regulatory scope of consolidation

 Assets
 Cash and balances with treasury banks  34,201,844  34,201,844
 Balances with other banks  4,352,769  4,352,769
 Lendings to financial institutions  –00  –00
 Investments   331,737,516  331,737,516   
 Advances   181,357,100  181,357,100   
 Operating fixed assets  13,917,781  13,917,781
 Deferred tax assets   –00  –00
 Other assets  13,743,430  13,743,430
 Total assets  579,310,440  579,310,440

 Liabilities & Equity
 Bills payable  7,984,808  7,984,808
 Borrowings  78,455,452  78,455,452
 Deposits and other accounts  446,311,464  446,311,464
 Sub-ordinated loans  3,743,700  3,743,700
 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  –00  –00
 Deferred tax liabilities   2,769,852  2,769,852
 Other liabilities  7,018,601  7,018,601
 Total liabilities  546,283,877  546,283,877

 Share capital/Head office capital account  11,114,254  11,114,254
 Reserves  8,760,911  8,760,911
 Unappropriated/Unremitted profits/(losses)  7,912,345  7,912,345
 Minority Interest  113,969  113,969
 Surplus on revaluation of assets  5,125,084  5,125,084
 Total equity  33,026,563  33,026,563

 Total liabilities & equity  579,310,440  579,310,440



   2014 2014
    As per Under
    published regulatory
   Reference financial scope of 
    statements reporting for 
    consolidation
   (Rupees in '000)
     
41.4.2 Reconciliation for balance sheet items that require
  capital adjustments
 Assets 
 Cash and balances with treasury banks  34,201,844  34,201,844 
 Balances with other banks  4,352,769  4,352,769 
 Lendings to financial institutions  –00 –00 
 Investments  331,737,516  331,737,516 
  of which: Non-significant capital investments in capital instruments of 
     banking, financial and insurance entities exceeding 10% threshold (a) –00  –00 
  of which: significant investments in the capital instruments issued by
    banking, financial and insurance entities exceeding regulatory threshold (b) –00  –00 
  of which: Mutual Funds exceeding regulatory threshold (c) –00 –00 
  of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument of CET1 (d) 406,248 406,248 
  of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument of T2 (e) 504,342 504,342
 Advances  181,357,100  181,357,100
  Shortfall in provisions/ excess of total EL amount
     over eligible provisions under IRB (f) –00  –00
  General provisions reflected in Tier 2 capital (g) 2,583,182  2,583,182
 Fixed Assets   13,917,781  13,917,781
  of which: Intangibles (h) 107,626  107,626
 Deferred Tax Assets   –00  –00
  of which: DTAs that rely on future profitability excluding those arising   
     from temporary differences (i) –00  –00
    of which: DTAs arising from temporary differences   
     exceeding regulatory threshold (j) –00  –00
 Other assets   13,743,430  13,743,430
  of which: Goodwill (k)  –00  –00
   of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets (l) –00  –00
 Total assets   579,310,440  579,310,440

 Liabilities & Equity 
 Bills payable  7,984,808 7,984,808 
 Borrowings  78,455,452 78,455,452 
 Deposits and other accounts  446,311,464 446,311,464 
 Sub-ordinated loans  3,743,700 3,743,700 
  of which: eligible for inclusion in AT1 (m) –00 –00   
  of which: eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 (n) 2,393,760 2,393,760 
 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  –00 –00   
 Deferred tax liabilities  2,769,851 2,769,851 
  of which: DTLs related to goodwill (o) –00 –00   
  of which: DTLs related to intangible assets (p) –00 –00   
  of which: DTLs related to defined pension fund net assets (q) –00 –00   
  of which: other deferred tax liabilities (r) –00 –00   
 Other liabilities  7,018,602 7,018,602
 Total liabilities  546,283,877 546,283,877
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   2014 2014
    As per Under
    published regulatory
   Reference financial scope of 
    statements reporting for 
     consolidation   
   (Rupees in '000)

 Share capital   11,114,254 11,114,254  
  of which: amount eligible for CET1 (s) 11,114,254 11,114,254
   of which: amount eligible for AT1 (t) –00 –00
 Reserves  8,760,911 8,760,911
  of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET1 (u) 8,599,150 8,599,150
   of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 (v) 161,761 161,761
 Unappropriated profits / (losses) (w)  7,912,345 7,912,345
 Minority Interest  113,969 113,969
  of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET1 (x)  7,597  7,597
  of which: portion eligible for inclusion in AT1 (y)  –00 –00
  of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 (z) –00 –00
 Surplus on revaluation of assets  5,125,084 5,125,084
  of which: Revaluation reserves on Properties (aa) 2,749,123 2,749,123
  of which: Unrealised Gains/(Losses) on AFS  2,375,961 2,375,961
 In case of Deficit on revaluation (deduction from CET1) (ab) –00 –00
 Total Equity  33,026,563 33,026,563
 Total liabilities & equity  579,310,440 579,310,440
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 41.4.3 Reconciliation of computation of capital with balance sheet of the Bank 
     2014
    Source based on Component of
    reference number regulatory capital 
    from Note 41.4.2 reported by bank
    �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves     
   Fully Paid-up Capital / Capital deposited with SBP  11,114,254
Balance in Share Premium Account (s) –00   
Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares  –00   
General / Statutory Reserves (u) 8,599,150
Gains / (Losses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge  –00   
Unappropriated/unremitted profits / (losses) (w) 7,912,345
Minority interests arising from CET1 capital instruments
    issued to third party by consolidated bank subsidiaries  
      (amount allowed in CET1 capital of the consolidation group) (x) 7,597
CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments  27,633,346

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments
Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability) (k)-(o) –00   
All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax liability) (h)-(p) (107,626)
Shortfall of provisions against classified assets (f) –00   
Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those  –00   
    arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability) (i-r) * x % –00   
Defined-benefit pension fund net assets (l-q) * x % –00   
Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments (d) (406,248)
Cash flow hedge reserve  –00   
Investment in own shares/ CET1 instruments  –00   
Securitisation gain on sale  –00   
Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries  –00   
Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's holdings of properties/ AFS (ab) –00   
Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and
    insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
      consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10%
        of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold) (a) - (ac) - (ae) –00
Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by
    banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the
      scope of regulatory consolidation (amount above 10% threshold) (b) - (ad) - (af) –00   
Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount 
    above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability) (i) –00   
Amount exceeding 15% threshold     
 of which: significant investments in the common stocks    
       of financial entities  –00
 of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences  –00   
National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 capital     
 of which: Investment in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit  –00   
 of which: Any other deduction specified by SBP  –00 
Regulatory adjustment applied to CET1 due to insufficient AT1
    and Tier 2 to cover deductions  –00   
Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1  (513,874)
Common Equity Tier 1  27,119,472 
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      2014
    Source based on Component of
    reference number regulatory capital 
    from Note 41.4.2 reported by bank
    �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
 Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital
 
 Qualifying Additional Tier-1 instruments plus any related share premium
  of which: Classified as equity  (t) –00 
    of which: Classified as liabilities (m) –00 
 Additional Tier-1 capital instruments issued by consolidated subsidiaries and
  held by third parties (amount allowed in group AT 1)
  of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out (y) –00
 AT1 before regulatory adjustments
 Additional Tier 1 Capital: regulatory adjustments
 Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit (SBP specific adjustment)  –00
 Investment in own AT1 capital instruments  –00
 Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments  –00
 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities
  that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not
    own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)  (ac) –00
 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and
  insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (ad) –00
 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital
  based on pre-Basel III treatment which, during transitional period, remain
    subject to deduction from tier-1 capital  –00
 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient
 Tier 2 to cover deductions  –00
 Total of Regulatory Adjustment applied to AT1 capital   –00
 Additional Tier 1 capital   –00
 Additional Tier 1 capital recognised for capital adequacy  –00

 Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1)  27,119,472
 
 Tier 2 Capital 
 Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel III plus any related share premium  –00
 Capital instruments subject to phase out arrangement from 
  tier 2 (Pre-Basel III instruments) (n) 2,393,760 
 Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third party by consolidated  
     subsidiaries (amount allowed in group tier 2) (z) –00    
 of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out  –00
 General Provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to
  maximum of 1.25% of Credit Risk Weighted Assets (g) 2,583,182 
 Revaluation Reserves eligible for Tier 2  5,125,084 
      of which: portion pertaining to Property portion of (aa) 2,749,123 
      of which: portion pertaining to AFS securities  2,375,961 
 Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves (v) 161,761 
 Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any)  –00 
 T2 before regulatory adjustments  10,263,787 

{
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     2014
    Source based on Component of
    reference number regulatory capital 
    from Note 41.4.2 reported by bank
    �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments
Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary
   capital based on pre-Basel III treatment which, during transitional 
     period, remain subject to deduction  –00
Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments  (504,342)   
Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument  –00 
Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that
are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more
than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold) (ae) –00
Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by
    banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the
      scope of regulatory consolidation (af) –00
Amount of Regulatory Adjustment applied to T2 capital  (504,342)
Tier 2 capital (T2)  9,759,445 
Tier 2 capital recognised for capital adequacy  9,759,445 
Excess Additional Tier 1 capital recognised in Tier 2 capital   –00   
Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy   9,759,445 
TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2)  36,878,917 



41.5 Main Features of Regulatory Capital Instruments

   Main Features  Common Shares Instrument 1 Instrument 2

 1 Issuer  Bank AL Habib  Bank AL Habib  Bank AL Habib  
    Limited Limited Limited
 2 Unique identifier (e.g. KSE Symbol or Bloomberg identifier etc.)  BAHL BAHL TFC2 BAHL TFC4
 3 Governing law(s) of the instrument (Regulatory Authorities) 
  Regulatory treatment  SBP & SECP SBP & SECP SBP & SECP
 4 Transitional BaseI III rules  CET-1 Tier 2 Tier 2
 5 Post-transitional BaseI III rules  CET-1 Ineligible Ineligible
 6 Eligible at solo/group/group & solo  Group & Group & Group & 
    Standalone  Standalone  Standalone
 7 Instrument type  Ordinary Shares Subordinated  Subordinated
     Debt Debt
 8 Amount recognised in regulatory capital (Currency in PKR thousands, as of reporting date) 11,114,254 –00 2,393,760
 9 Par value of instrument  Rs. 10 Rs. 5,000 Rs. 5,000
� ��� $FFRXQWLQJ�FODVVLILFDWLRQ� � 6KDUHKROGHUV·�(TXLW\� /LDELOLW\��� /LDELOLW\�
     Subordinated Subordinated
     Loans Loans
 11 Original date of issuance  January, 1992 7-Feb-2007 30-Jun-2011
 12 Perpetual or dated  Perpetual Dated Dated
 13 Original maturity date  N/A 7-Feb-2015 30-Jun-2021
 14 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval  No No Yes
 15 Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount  N/A N/A 30-Jun-2016
 16 Subsequent call dates, if applicable  N/A N/A On each coupon
      payment date after
      60 months from
      the date of issue
  Coupons / dividends
 17 Fixed or floating dividend / coupon  N/A Floating Fixed
 18 Coupon rate and any related index / benchmark  N/A 6 Months Kibor 15.00% p.a for years 
      plus 1.95% 1 to 5 and 15.50%
       p.a for years 6 to 10
 19 Existence of a dividend stopper  No No No
 20 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory  Fully discretionary Mandatory Mandatory
 21 Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem  N/A No Yes
 22 Noncumulative or cumulative  Non-Cumulative Shares Non-Cumulative Non-Cumulative
 23 Convertible or non-convertible  Non-Convertible Non-Convertible Non-Convertible
 24 If convertible, conversion trigger (s)  N/A N/A N/A
 25 If convertible, fully or partially  N/A N/A N/A
 26 If convertible, conversion rate  N/A N/A N/A
 27 If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion  N/A N/A N/A
 28 If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into  N/A N/A N/A
 29 If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into   N/A N/A N/A
 30 Write-down feature  N/A No No
 31 If write-down, write-down trigger (s)  N/A N/A N/A
 32 If write-down, full or partial  N/A N/A N/A
 33 If write-down, permanent or temporary  N/A N/A N/A
 34 If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism  N/A N/A N/A
 35 Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation (specify  Subordinated All TFCs are All TFCs are
  instrument type immediately senior to instrument)  Loans subordinate to all subordinate to all
     other debts including other debts including
     deposits deposits
 36 Non-compliant transitioned features  No Yes Yes
 37 If yes, specify non-compliant features  N/A No loss absorbency No loss absorbency
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    Capital Requirements Risk Weighted Assets
 2014 2013  2014 2013

    (Restated) (Restated)
   (Rupees in '000)

41.6 Credit Risk
 On-Balance sheet
 Portfolios subject to standardised approach (Comprehensive)
            
  Sovereign 633,898  271,667   6,338,981   2,716,669
  Public sector enterprises 400,836  50,535   4,008,362   505,352
  Banks  422,679  472,736   4,226,794   4,727,358 
  Corporate 12,415,326  11,353,601   124,153,259   113,536,014
  Retail 796,259  602,249   7,962,592   6,022,485
  Residential mortgages 78,319  68,714  783,194   687,136
  Past due loans 87,167  23,766  871,672  237,664 
  Equity porfolio 584,402  261,314   5,844,017   2,613,140
  Operating fixed assets 1,381,016  1,176,895  13,810,162   11,768,948
  Other assets 221,260  233,351   2,212,601   2,333,507
   17,021,162  14,514,828   170,211,634   145,148,273
 Off-Balance sheet
  Non-market related
   Direct Credit Substitutes / Acceptances / 
     Standby LCs 1,534,465  1,127,434  15,344,650  11,274,340
   Transaction Related Contingent Liabilities 609,832  484,799  6,098,321  4,847,993
   Trade Related Contingent Liabilities 1,108,881  1,181,960  11,088,810  11,819,600
   Other Commitments 498,602  128,528  4,986,018  1,285,279
    3,751,780  2,922,721  37,517,799  29,227,212
 Market related
  Outstanding Foreign Exchange Contracts 69,751  52,539  697,514  525,390
    3,821,531  2,975,260  38,215,313  29,752,602
 Market Risk     

  Capital Requirement for portfolios subject to
      Standardised Approach
  Interest rate risk 
   General market risk 59,305  33,964  741,309  424,548 
   Specific market risk 3,765  3,820  47,058  47,749
   Foreign exchange risk  13,296   13,546   166,203  169,324
    76,366  51,330  954,570  641,621
 Operational Risk

 Capital Requirement for operational risks 2,953,957  2,642,074  36,924,457  33,025,925

    23,873,016  20,183,492  246,305,974  208,568,421

 Capital Adequacy Ratios Required Actual
    2014  2013  2014  2013

 CET1 to total RWA 5.50%  5.00%  11.01%  10.89%
 Tier-1 capital to total RWA 7.00%  6.50%  11.01%  10.89%
 Total capital to total RWA 10.00%  10.00%  14.97%  14.51%
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42. RISK MANAGEMENT
 The Bank has a risk management framework commensurate with its size and the nature of its business. 

The Board of Directors has approved risk management policies covering key areas of activities for 
the guidance of management and committees of the Board, management committees, and Divisions 
/ Departments of the Bank.

� 7KLV�VHFWLRQ�SUHVHQWV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�WKH�%DQN·V�H[SRVXUH�WR�DQG�LWV�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�FRQWURO�RI�
risks, in particular the primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments.

42.1 Credit risk
 Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from failure by a client or counterparty to meet its contractual 

obligation. It emanates from loans and advances, commitments to lend, contingent liabilities such as 
letters of credit and guarantees, and other similar transactions both on and off balance sheet. These 
exclude investments and treasury -related exposures, which are covered under market risk.

 ,W�LV�WKH�%DQN·V�SROLF\�WKDW�DOO�FUHGLW�H[SRVXUHV�VKDOO�EH�DGHTXDWHO\�FROODWHUDOLVHG��H[FHSW�ZKHQ�VSHFLDOO\ 
exempted by SBP as in case of personal loans and credit cards, and those at overseas branch where 
the accepted local banking practice is followed.

 The objective of credit risk management is to keep credit risk exposure within permissible level, 
UHOHYDQW� WR� WKH�%DQN·V� ULVN� FDSLWDO�� WR�PDLQWDLQ� WKH� VRXQGQHVV�RI� DVVHWV� DQG� WR� HQVXUH� UHWXUQV�
commensurate with risk.

 Credit risk of the Bank is managed through the credit policy approved by the Board, a well defined 
credit approval mechanism, prescribed documentation requirement, post disbursement administration, 
review and monitoring of all credit facilities; and continuous assessment of credit worthiness of 
counterparties. Decisions regarding the credit portfolio are taken mainly by the Central Credit Committee. 
Credit Risk Management Committee of the Board provides overall guidance in managing the Bank's 
credit risk.

 Counterparty exposure limits are approved in line with the Prudential Regulations and the Bank's own 
policies, by taking into account both qualitative and quantitative criteria. There is an established system 
for continuous monitoring of credit exposures and follow-up of any past due loans with the respective 
business units. All past due loans, including trade bills, are reviewed on fortnightly basis and pursued 
for recovery. Any non-performing loans are classified and provided for as per Prudential Regulations. 
The Bank has also established a mechanism for independent post-disbursement review of large credit 
risk exposures.

 Credit facilities, both fund based and non-fund based, extended to large customer groups and industrial 
sectors are regularly monitored. The Bank has concentration of credit in textile which is the largest 
sector of Pakistan's economy. Concentration risk is managed by diversification within sub-sectors like 
spinning, weaving and composites, credit worthiness of counterparties, and adequate collateralisation 
of exposures.

 Credit administration function has been placed under a centralised set-up. Its main focus is on 
FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WHUPV�RI�VDQFWLRQ�RI�FUHGLW�IDFLOLWLHV�DQG�WKH�%DQN·V�LQWHUQDO�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHGXUHV��
VFUXWLQ\�RI�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ��PRQLWRULQJ�RI�FROODWHUDO��DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI�ERUURZHUV·�OLPLWV��PDUN���XS�
rates, and security details.

 The Bank has implemented its own internal risk rating system for the credit portfolio, as per guidelines 
of SBP. Credit ratings by external rating agencies, if available, are also considered.

 The Bank lends primarily against the cash flow of the business with recourse to the assets being 
financed as primary security. Collaterals in the form of liquid securities, tangible securities, and other 
acceptable securities are obtained to hedge the risk, as deemed appropriate. Main types of collaterals 
taken by the Bank include charge on stock-in-trade, receivables, machinery, mortgage of properties, 
pledge of goods, shares and other marketable securities, government securities, government guarantees, 
bank guarantees and cash margins and bank deposits.

 Specific provisions on credit portfolio are determined in accordance with the Prudential Regulations. 
General provision on the consumer portfolio is also determined as per Prudential Regulations. The 
Bank maintains additional general provision in line with its prudent policies. Particulars of provisions 
against advances are given in note 11.6.

 The Bank uses the Standardised Approach to calculate capital charge for credit risk as per Basel 
regulatory framework, with comprehensive approach for credit risk mitigation.
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  Stress testing for credit risk is carried out regularly to estimate the impact of increase in non - 
performing loans and downward shift in these categories. 

 42.1.1 Credit risk: Disclosures on portfolio subject to Standardised Approach - Basel Specific
  The Bank uses the ratings issued by The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) and 

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS) for its local currency exposures and ratings 
LVVXHG�E\�0RRG\·V��6	3�� DQG�)LWFK� IRU� LWV� IRUHLJQ� FXUUHQF\�H[SRVXUHV��7KHVH�([WHUQDO�&UHGLW�
Assessments Institutions (ECAIs) have been approved by SBP.

  For foreign currency claims on sovereigns, the Bank also uses risk scores of Export Credit Agencies 
(ECAs).              Moody·s,
 JCR-VIS PACRA S&P, and Fitch ECA Score
 (local (local (foreign (foreign
  currency) currency) currency) currency)
 Types of exposures 
 Corporates ✓ ✓ – –
 Banks ✓ ✓ ✓ –
 Sovereigns – – ✓ ✓
 Small and Medium Enterprises – – – –
 Securitisations – – – –
 Others (public sector enterprises) ✓ ✓ – –

 The Bank has not transferred public issue ratings onto comparable assets in the banking book 
 in its calculations. ECAI ratings and ECA scores are aligned with risk buckets as determined by 
 SBP.
 Credit exposures subject to Standardised Approach

  Amount Credit Risk 
 outstanding/ Mitigation 
 credit equivalent (CRM)
 Risk buckets (rated and unrated) deduction Net amount
  (Rupees in '000)
 0% 379,775,875 18,792,055 360,983,820
 20% 19,947,483 3,394,695 16,552,788
 35% 2,237,698 –00 2,237,698
 50% 44,223,109 26,152,168 18,070,941
 75% 20,287,585 7,272,130 13,015,455
 100% 205,362,788 44,062,254 161,300,534
 115% 17,977,598 2,421,737 15,555,861
 150% 4,093,733 –00 4,093,733
250% 82,304 –00 82,304
  693,988,173 102,095,039 591,893,134

42.1.2 Credit risk: Disclosures on CRM for Standardised Approach – Basel Specific 
 Eligible collaterals used by the Bank for credit risk mitigation are cash margins and cash deposits, 

government securities, financial guarantees, listed shares, and other listed, quoted or rated securities. 
The Bank requires perfection of collaterals by marking lien on cash margins and deposits, pledging 
of shares and other securities and verifying the authenticity of guarantees received. Shares and 
securities including marketable government securities are taken at market value and other government 
securities are taken at encashment value. Appropriate hair - cuts are applied as per Basel regulatory 
framework. Among the mitigants used by the Bank, there is concentration in cash margins, cash 
deposits, and sovereign guarantees.
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42.1.3 Segment by class of business  2014
       Contingencies and
     Gross Advances Deposits Commitments

 (Rupees % (Rupees % (Rupees %
 in '000)  in '000)  in '000)

  Agriculture / agri business 4,069,347  2.16  1,066,899  0.24  1,530,837   1.43
  Automobiles and transportation 
       equipment  967,027  0.51  1,373,112  0.31  6,073,012   5.69
  Cement  466,995  0.25  293,865  0.07  1,114,047   1.04
  Chemicals / pharmaceuticals  3,310,146  1.76  1,436,443  0.32  2,898,134   2.71
  Commerce and trade  12,927,855  6.88  21,986,638  4.93  11,444,779   10.71
  Electronics and electrical appliances  761,377  0.41  698,151  0.16  980,085   0.92 
  Fertilizers  2,542,613  1.35  5,486,411  1.23  753,813   0.71
  Financial  2,200,683  1.17  9,756,339  2.19  9,113,733   8.53 
  Food and allied  30,980,355  16.48  3,716,977  0.83  2,893,386   2.71  

 Ghee and edible oil  9,554,825  5.08  1,067,997  0.24  4,929,807   4.61 
  Individuals  5,931,735  3.16  305,592,704  68.47  8,778   0.01
  Iron and steel  11,196,411  5.96  830,412  0.19  8,164,987   7.64
  Oil refinery / marketing  3,608,421  1.92  21,820,829  4.89  11,738,514   10.99
  Paper and board  2,158,615  1.15  226,931  0.05  662,861   0.62 
  Plastic products  2,404,197  1.28  348,395  0.07  3,108,171   2.91  

  Production and transmission of energy  7,930,767  4.22  4,291,215  0.96  4,252,274   3.98 
  Real estate / construction  1,134,853  0.60  6,179,808  1.39  4,028,983   3.77 
  Services (other than financial) 1,395,975  0.74  11,420,621  2.56  1,366,727   1.28 
  Shoes and leather garments 1,430,703  0.76  1,105,858  0.25  527,256   0.49
  Sugar  6,085,499  3.24  2,514,596  0.56  363,537   0.34
  Surgical equipments and metal products  1,007,046  0.54  1,142,069  0.25  1,019,162   0.95
  Textile         
    Spinning  25,999,120  13.83  1,544,087  0.35  6,127,999   5.74  

   Weaving  11,163,257  5.94  976,726  0.22  5,494,499   5.14
    Composite  21,074,133  11.21  2,218,383  0.49  5,347,167   5.01
    Ready-made garments 6,607,279  3.52  1,384,527  0.31  3,133,534   2.93
     64,843,789  34.50  6,123,723  1.37  20,103,199   18.82
  Others 11,063,865  5.88  37,831,471  8.47  9,759,288   9.14
     187,973,099  100.00  446,311,464  100.00  106,835,370   100.00
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       2013
        Contingencies and
      Gross Advances Deposits Commitments

  (Rupees % (Rupees % (Rupees %
  in '000)  in '000)  in '000)

 Agriculture / agri business 3,369,732 1.94 779,247 0.20  2,159,391  2.22
 Automobiles and transportation 
    equipment  633,370  0.36 1,474,348   0.38  2,511,656 2.58
 Cement   242,437  0.14  68,984  0.02  908,183   0.93
 Chemicals / pharmaceuticals  3,197,661  1.84  2,132,190  0.55 2,595,773  2.67
 Commerce and trade  12,287,970  7.08  17,054,478  4.42  12,083,703   12.43
 Electronics and electrical appliances  893,044 0.51  539,135  0.14  1,169,347   1.20 

Fertilizers   –00 –00  3,177,932  0.82  100,298   0.10
 Financial   3,486,420 2.01  14,069,818 3.66  13,905,286   14.30 

Food and allied  26,046,335 15.00  3,045,928 0.79  2,727,433   2.80 
Ghee and edible oil  5,588,241 3.22  1,035,950  0.27  5,431,248   5.59 
Individuals  4,272,674 2.46  271,728,509 70.37  11,699   0.01 
Iron and steel  8,515,451 4.90  860,449 0.22  3,289,616  3.38

 Oil refinery / marketing  437,547  0.25  16,209,588  4.20  4,856,770  4.99
 Paper and board  2,106,048  1.21  104,635  0.03  838,057  0.86 

Plastic products  3,654,070  2.10  397,213  0.10  3,479,424  3.58  
Production and transmission of energy  8,667,112  4.99  2,402,463  0.62  1,819,731  1.87  
Real estate / construction  1,266,357  0.73  2,974,402  0.77  3,041,855  3.13 
Services (other than financial) 1,518,124  0.87  10,204,001  2.64  1,496,818  1.54 
Shoes and leather garments 1,497,637  0.86  867,611  0.22  312,047  0.32

 Sugar    5,518,898  3.18  1,085,943 0.28  425,998  0.44
 Surgical equipments and metal products  857,007  0.49  538,855  0.14  906,211   0.93 

Textile         
  Spinning  29,237,736  16.84  1,659,050   0.43  10,127,901  10.42  

 Weaving  11,746,000  6.76  776,016   0.20  4,616,472   4.75
  Composite  23,570,275  13.57  1,752,223  0.45  5,183,115  5.33
  Ready-made garments 4,796,906  2.76  1,298,900   0.34  3,216,443  3.31
    69,350,917 39.93 5,486,189 1.42 23,143,931 23.81
 Others   10,245,213 5.93 29,860,960 7.74 10,025,410 10.32
   173,652,265 100.00 386,098,828 100.00 97,239,885 100.00

182



42.1.4 Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by class of business segment 

    2014 2013
   Specific   Specific
 Classified Provision  Classified Provision
 Advances held  Advances held
   (Rupees in '000)

 Agriculture / agri business 95,883 83,677  90,277 74,156
 Automobiles and transportation equipment 7,015 7,015 7,196 7,196
 Commerce and trade 619,660 559,520  492,139 474,421
 Electronics and electrical appliances 4,058 4,058 4,058 4,058
 Financial   101,949 70,957  101,949 70,832
 Ghee and edible oil 3,138 3,138  3,838 2,516 
 Individuals  42,544 40,929  48,370 47,520
 Iron and steel 753,623 222,574  –00 –00
 Oil refinery / marketing 3,983 3,983  11,948 11,948
 Plastic products 61,003 61,003  91,400 91,400
 Real estate / construction 256,504 256,504 263,006 260,867
 Services (other than financial) –00 –00 207 207
 Shoes and leather garments 572 572 1,715 1,715 
 Textile     
   Spinning   795,214 781,646  809,456 792,873
   Weaving   881,829 540,807 267,028 244,037
   Composite  971,108 969,739  992,173 950,564
   Ready - made garments  415,317 415,317 492,462 492,462
     3,063,468 2,707,509 2,561,119 2,479,936
 Others   11,378 11,378 22,681 16,352
     5,024,778 4,032,817 3,699,903 3,543,124

42.1.5 Segment by sector   
      2014
     Gross  Contingencies and
     Advances Deposits Commitments
  (Rupees % (Rupees % (Rupees %
  in '000)  in '000)  in '000)

 Public / Government 34,203,270 18.20 40,763,122 9.13 17,348,123 16.24
 Private 153,769,829 81.80 405,548,342 90.87 89,487,247 83.76

  187,973,099 100.00 446,311,464 100.00 106,835,370 100.00
      
      2013
     Gross  Contingencies and
     Advances Deposits Commitments
  (Rupees % (Rupees % (Rupees %
  in '000)  in '000)  in '000)

 Public / Government 28,422,641 16.37 29,004,153 7.51 10,208,682 10.50
 Private 145,229,624 83.63 357,094,675 92.49 87,031,203 89.50

  173,652,265 100.00 386,098,828 100.00 97,239,885 100.00
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42.2 Market risk

 Market risk is the risk of loss arising from movements in market rates or prices, such as interest rates, 
foreign exchange rates, and equity prices.

 The Bank takes positions in securities for the purpose of investment and not to run a trading book. As 
regards foreign exchange positions, the purpose is to serve the needs of clients. The Bank does not 
engage in trading or market making activities.

42.1.7 Geographical segment analysis
      2014 
    Profit  Total   Contingencies
    before assets  Net assets and
    taxation employed  employed Commitments
      (Rupees in '000)

 Pakistan  9,711,262  561,056,452  30,796,440  104,109,281
 Middle East  364,991  16,416,728  1,605,870  2,726,089
 Asia Pacific  (49,247 ) 1,218,851  448,275  –00
 Africa   (23,767 ) 618,409  175,978  –00

    10,003,239 579,310,440 33,026,563 106,835,370

      2013 
    Profit  Total   Contingencies
    before assets  Net assets and
    taxation employed  employed Commitments
      (Rupees in '000)

 Pakistan  7,165,119  447,999,178  24,153,283  94,802,805
 Middle East  387,737  13,022,735  1,427,951  2,437,080
 Asia Pacific  –00  –00  –00  –00 
 Africa   –00  –00  –00  –00 

    7,552,856 461,021,913 25,581,234 97,239,885

42.1.6 Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by sector
    2014 2013
   Specific   Specific
 Classified Provision  Classified Provision
 Advances held  Advances held
   (Rupees in '000)

 Public / Government –00 –00 –00 –00
 Private  5,024,778 4,032,817 3,699,903 3,543,124

   5,024,778 4,032,817 3,699,903 3,543,124
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 Market risk is managed through the market risk policy approved by the Board, approval of counterparty 
and dealer limits, specific senior management approval for each investment and regular review and 
monitoring of the investment portfolio by the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO). A key 
HOHPHQW�RI�WKH�%DQN·V�PDUNHW�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�LV�WR�EDODQFH�VDIHW\��OLTXLGLW\��DQG�LQFRPH�LQ�WKDW�RUGHU�
of priority. Another key element is separation of functions and reporting lines for the Treasury Division 
which undertakes dealing activities within the limits and parameters set by ALCO, Settlements 
Department which confirms and settles the aforesaid deal and Middle Office which independently 
monitors and analyses the risks inherent in treasury operations. Risk Management Committee of the 
%RDUG�SURYLGHV�RYHUDOO�JXLGDQFH�LQ�PDQDJLQJ�WKH�%DQN·V�PDUNHW�ULVN�

 Dealing activities of the Bank include investment in government securities, term finance certificates, 
sukuks / bonds, shares and mutual funds, money market transactions and foreign exchange transactions 
catering to the needs of its customers. All such activities are carried out within the prescribed limits. 
Any excess over limits noted by the Settlements Department and / or the Middle Office is reported to 
senior management and ALCO. Stress testing is performed as per guidelines of SBP as well as Bank's 
internal policy.

 The Bank uses the Standardised Approach to calculate capital charge for market risk as per Basel  II 
regulatory framework. Details of capital charge for market risk are given in note 41.4.

42.2.1 Interest rate / yield risk

 Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from adverse movements in interest rates. ALCO monitors and 
manages the interest rate risk with the objective of limiting the potential adverse effects on the profitability 
of the Bank arising from fluctuation in the market interest rates and mismatching or gaps in the amount 
of financial assets and financial liabilities in different maturity time bands.

 The Bank's interest rate exposure is calculated by categorising its interest sensitive assets and liabilities 
into various time bands based on the earlier of their contractual repricing or maturity dates.

 Interest rate risk exposures of the Bank are controlled through dealer limits, counter-party exposure 
limits and (when necessary) type-of-instrument limits. Duration and modified duration of various types 
of debt securities as well as their entire portfolio are also calculated, and the impact of adverse change 
in interest rates on the market value of the securities is estimated. Stress testing for interest rate risk 
is carried out regularly to estimate the impact of adverse changes in the interest rates.

 Interest rate / yield risk in the banking book – Basel Specific

 The Bank holds financial assets and financial liabilities with different maturities or repricing dates and 
linked to different benchmark rates, thus creating exposure to unexpected changes in the level of 
interest rates. Interest rate risk in the banking book refers to the risk associated with interest-bearing 
financial instruments that are not held in the trading book of the Bank.

� 5HSULFLQJ�JDS�DQDO\VLV� SUHVHQWV� WKH�%DQN·V� LQWHUHVW� VHQVLWLYH�DVVHWV� �,6$�� DQG� LQWHUHVW� VHQVLWLYH�
liabilities (ISL), categorised into various time bands based on the earlier of their contractual repricing 
or maturity dates (or settlement dates  for off-balance sheet instruments). Deposits with no fixed 
PDWXULW\�GDWHV��IRU�H[DPSOH��VDYLQJ�GHSRVLWV�DQG�WUHDVXUHU·V�FDOO�GHSRVLWV��DUH�LQFOXGHG��LQ�WKH�ORZHVW��
one-month time band, but these are not expected to be payable within a one-month period. The 
difference between ISA and ISL for each time band signifies the gap in that time band, and provides 
a workable framework for determining the impact on net interest income.

 The Bank reviews the repricing gap analysis periodically to monitor and manage interest rate risk in 
the banking book.           
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42.2.3 Foreign exchange risk

 Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in currency exchange rates. The 
%DQN·V�IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�H[SRVXUH�FRPSULVHV�IRUZDUG�FRQWUDFWV��SXUFKDVH�RI�IRUHLJQ�ELOOV��IRUHLJQ�
currency loans and investments, foreign currency cash in hand, balances with banks abroad, foreign 
FXUUHQF\�GHSRVLWV�DQG�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�SODFHPHQWV�ZLWK�6%3�DQG�RWKHU�EDQNV��)RFXV�RI�WKH�%DQN·V�
foreign exchange activities is on catering to the needs of its customers, both in spot and forward 
markets.

 Foreign exchange risk exposures of the Bank are controlled through dealer limits, open foreign 
exchange position limits, counterparty exposure limits, and country limits. The Bank manages its 
foreign exchange exposure by matching foreign currency assets and liabilities within strict limits. 
The net open position in any single currency and the overall foreign exchange exposure are both 
managed within the statutory limits as prescribed by SBP as well as the internal limits set by the 
Bank itself. Stress testing for foreign exchange risk is carried out regularly to estimate the impact of 
adverse changes in foreign exchange rates. 

    2014
      Net
    Off-balance currency
 Assets Liabilities  sheet items exposure
   (Rupees in '000)

 Pakistan Rupee 528,824,213  496,171,431  (1,990,371 ) 30,662,411  
 United States Dollar 47,724,325  39,218,085  (6,516,659 ) 1,989,581
 Great Britain Pound 973,959  6,988,949  6,129,289  114,299  
 Japanese Yen 22,521  6,688  (15,973 ) (140 )
 Euro 1,389,311  3,250,171  1,902,253  41,393 
 Other currencies  376,111  648,553  491,461  219,019
   579,310,440  546,283,877  –00  33,026,563

    2013
      Net
    Off-balance currency
 Assets Liabilities  sheet items exposure
   (Rupees in '000)
 Pakistan Rupee 415,944,007  388,468,565  (3,103,429 ) 24,372,013  
 United States Dollar 42,473,592  37,968,071  (3,270,077 ) 1,235,444
 Great Britain Pound 762,922  5,789,941  5,033,460  6,441  
 Japanese Yen 39,243  4,288  (49,851 ) (14,896 )
 Euro 1,445,134  2,596,707  1,120,142  (31,431 )
 Other currencies  357,015  613,107  269,755  13,663
   461,021,913  435,440,679  –00  25,581,234 
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42.3 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk of loss to a bank arising from its inability to meet obligations as they fall due 
or to fund growth in assets, without incurring unacceptable losses.    
       Liquidity risk is managed through the liquidity risk policy approved by the Board, careful monitoring 
of daily liquidity position by the Treasury Division and the Middle Office and regular review and 
monitoring of the liquidity position by  ALCO. Risk Management Committee of the Board provides 
RYHUDOO�JXLGDQFH�LQ�PDQDJLQJ�WKH�%DQN·V�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�

� .H\�HOHPHQWV�RI�WKH�%DQN·V�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�DUH�DV�IROORZV�

 - To maintain a comfortable margin of excess liquidity in the form of cash and readily marketable  
�DVVHWV�WR�PHHW�WKH�%DQN·V�IXQGLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DW�DQ\�WLPH�� � � � �
     - To keep a strong focus on mobilisation of low-cost core deposits from customers.  
        - To maintain a realistic balance between the behavioural maturity profiles of assets and liabilities. 
         - To maintain excellent credit rating (as borrowing costs and ability to raise funds are directly 
affected by credit rating).         

 - To have a written contingency funding plan to address any hypothetical situations when access 
to normal sources of funding is constrained.

 7KH�%DQN·V�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�DGGUHVVHV�WKH�JRDO�RI�SURWHFWLQJ�VROYHQF\�DQG�WKH�DELOLW\�WR�
withstand stressful events in the market place. Stress testing for liquidity risk is carried out regularly 
to estimate the impact of decline in liquidity on the ratio of liquid assets to deposits plus borrowings.
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51,
921

,85
2  

50,
947

,53
2  

62,
400

,99
3 

 
65,

173
,34

9  
66,

063
,57

4  
67,

446
,94

3  
17,

022
,60

0  
–00

 
 

Sub
-ord

ina
ted

 loa
ns 

3,7
43,

700
  

–00
  

747
,90

0  
600

  
600

  
1,2

00 
 

1,2
00 

 
2,4

00 
 

2,9
89,

800
  

–00
  

 
Lia

bilit
ies

 ag
ain

st a
sse

ts s
ubj

ect
 

   to
 fin

anc
e le

ase
 

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
 

 
De

ferr
ed 

tax
 lia

bilit
ies

 - n
et 

2,7
69,

852
  

(1,0
61 

) 
33,

420
  

89,
670

  
324

,68
3 

 
215

,82
2  

912
,14

8  
246

,97
1  

323
,72

6  
624

,47
3

 
Oth

er l
iab

ilitie
s 

7,0
18,

601
  

5,0
41,

675
  

52,
241

  
52,

509
  

719
,35

5 
 

4,7
29 

 
29,

940
  

460
,42

0  
–00

  
657

,73
2

 
 

 
546

,28
3,8

77 
 

135
,89

0,3
33 

 
65,

167
,07

9  
56,

185
,63

7  
63,

674
,99

7 
 

65,
953

,89
8  

67,
355

,21
4  

69,
547

,79
5  

21,
226

,71
9  

1,2
82,

205
 

 
Ne

t as
set

s 
 

33,
026

,56
3  

(41
,30

5,0
88 

) 
2,4

54,
983

  
74,

628
,91

8  
14,

634
,30

9  
(8,1

65,
695

 ) 
(34

,38
0,8

34 
) 

(3,2
75,

383
 ) 

21,
317

,00
7  

7,1
18,

346

 
Sha

re c
api

tal 
11,

114
,25

4
 

Re
ser

ves
 

 
8,7

60,
911

 
Un

app
rop

riat
ed 

pro
fit 

7,9
12,

345
 

No
n-c

ont
roll

ing
 int

ere
st 

113
,96

9
 

Sur
plu

s o
n re

val
uat

ion
 of 

ass
ets

 – n
et o

f ta
x 

5,1
25,

084
 

 
 

33,
026

,56
3

190



191

 
201

3
 

 
 

Tot
al 

Up
to 1

 
Ov

er 1
 

Ov
er 3

 
Ov

er 6
 

Ov
er 1

 
Ov

er 2
 

Ov
er 3

 
Ov

er 5
 

Ov
er 1

0
 

 
 

 
mo

nth
 

mo
nth

 to 
mo

nth
s to

 
mo

nth
s 

yea
r to

 
yea

rs t
o 

yea
rs t

o 
yea

rs t
o 

yea
rs

 
 

 
 

 
3 m

ont
hs 

6 m
ont

hs 
to 1

 ye
ar 

2 y
ear

s 
3 y

ear
s 

5 y
ear

s 
10 

yea
rs

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
(Ru

pee
s in

 '00
0)

 
Ass

ets
 

Ca
sh 

and
 ba

lan
ces

 wit
h tr

eas
ury

 ba
nks

 
32,

199
,55

2  
32,

199
,55

2  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

 
Bal

anc
es 

with
 oth

er b
ank

s 
2,6

64,
729

  
2,6

64,
729

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

 
Len

din
gs 

to f
ina

nci
al i

nst
itut

ion
s 

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
 

Inv
est

me
nts

  - n
et 

239
,98

6,0
42 

 
48,

378
,08

8  
78,

397
,12

6  
69,

764
,03

5  
6,4

18,
018

  
3,1

25,
059

  
7,9

00,
709

  
7,7

54,
428

  
17,

596
,93

0  
651

,64
9

 
Adv

anc
es 

- ne
t  

167
,56

9,0
70 

 
42,

355
,62

4  
38,

426
,62

8  
36,

242
,61

0  
21,

758
,39

2 
 

8,3
79,

311
  

7,6
10,

177
  

7,5
43,

056
  

3,5
79,

168
  

1,6
74,

104
   

Op
era

ting
 fix

ed 
ass

ets
 

11,
815

,57
7  

278
,39

6  
203

,07
1  

297
,94

6  
449

,83
1 

 
3,0

01,
103

  
575

,77
2  

720
,67

0  
850

,64
2  

5,4
38,

146
  

 
De

ferr
ed 

tax
 as

set
s - 

net
 

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
 

Oth
er a

sse
ts  

6,7
86,

943
  

5,2
07,

742
  

778
,50

9  
190

,66
1  

277
,56

1 
 

112
,48

2  
52,

091
  

44,
217

  
46,

724
  

76,
956

 
 

 
461

,02
1,9

13 
 

131
,08

4,1
31 

 
117

,80
5,3

34 
 

106
,49

5,2
52 

 
28,

903
,80

2 
 

14,
617

,95
5  

16,
138

,74
9  

16,
062

,37
1  

22,
073

,46
4  

7,8
40,

855
  

 
Lia

bilit
ies

 
Bill

s p
aya

ble
 

6,1
73,

102
  

6,1
73,

102
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

 
Bor

row
ing

s  
29,

480
,02

6  
11,

432
,37

8  
9,5

92,
572

  
5,2

01,
136

  
190

,92
2 

 
505

,98
5  

583
,27

9  
667

,03
9  

1,3
06,

715
  

–00
 

 
De

pos
its 

and
 oth

er a
cco

unt
s 

386
,09

8,8
28 

 
53,

294
,94

5  
51,

405
,93

8  
43,

172
,61

2  
50,

753
,86

2 
 

57,
336

,82
1  

56,
515

,66
2  

58,
725

,90
2  

14,
893

,08
6  

–00
 

 
Sub

-ord
ina

ted
 loa

ns 
6,4

85,
900

  
–00

  
700

  
1,0

00 
 

749
,30

0 
 

750
,70

0  
996

,40
0  

996
,80

0  
2,9

91,
000

  
–00

  
 

Lia
bilit

ies
 ag

ain
st a

sse
ts s

ubj
ect

 
   to

 fin
anc

e le
ase

 
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

 
 

De
ferr

ed 
tax

 lia
bilit

ies
 - n

et 
1,6

42,
923

  
(13

,72
9 ) 

21,
881

  
(34

,48
6 ) 

140
,67

5 
 

697
,81

8  
105

,98
9  

92,
144

  
48,

712
  

583
,91

9
 

Oth
er l

iab
ilitie

s 
5,5

59,
900

  
3,7

46,
342

  
97,

460
  

30,
012

  
655

,74
4 

 
28,

758
  

4,7
30 

 
164

,42
9  

–00
  

832
,42

5 
 

 
 

435
,44

0,6
79 

 
74,

633
,03

8  
61,

118
,55

1  
48,

370
,27

4  
52,

490
,50

3 
 

59,
320

,08
2  

58,
206

,06
0  

60,
646

,31
4  

19,
239

,51
3  

1,4
16,

344
 

 
Ne

t as
set

s 
 

25,
581

,23
4  

56,
451

,09
3  

56,
686

,78
3  

58,
124

,97
8  

(23
,58

6,7
01 )

 
(44

,70
2,1

27 
) 

(42
,06

7,3
11 

) 
(44

,58
3,9

43 
) 

2,8
33,

951
  

6,4
24,

511
 

 
 

 
Sha

re c
api

tal 
10,

103
,86

8
 

Re
ser

ves
 

 
7,5

69,
407

 
Un

app
rop

riat
ed 

pro
fit 

5,7
03,

859
 

No
n-c

ont
roll

ing
 int

ere
st 

109
,74

4
 

Sur
plu

s o
n re

val
uat

ion
 of 

ass
ets

 
 

  – 
net

 of 
tax

  
2,0

94,
356

 
 

 
25,

581
,23

4



 
201

4
 

 
 

Tot
al 

Up
to 1

 
Ov

er 1
 

Ov
er 3

 
Ov

er 6
 

Ov
er 1

 
Ov

er 2
 

Ov
er 3

 
Ov

er 5
 

Ov
er 1

0
 

 
 

 
mo

nth
 

mo
nth

 to 
mo

nth
s to

 
mo

nth
s 

yea
r to

 
yea

rs t
o 

yea
rs t

o 
yea

rs t
o 

yea
rs

 
 

 
 

 
3 m

ont
hs 

6 m
ont

hs 
to 1

 ye
ar 

2 y
ear

s 
3 y

ear
s 

5 y
ear

s 
10 

yea
rs

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
(Ru

pee
s in

 '00
0) 

 
Ass

ets
 

Ca
sh 

and
 ba

lan
ces

 wit
h tr

eas
ury

 ba
nks

 
34,

201
,84

4  
34,

201
,84

4  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

 
Bal

anc
es 

with
 oth

er b
ank

s 
4,3

52,
769

  
4,3

52,
769

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

 
Len

din
gs 

to f
ina

nci
al i

nst
itut

ion
s 

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
 

Inv
est

me
nts

 - n
et 

331
,73

7,5
16 

 
8,0

00,
914

  
17,

656
,72

5  
87,

928
,98

6  
57,

050
,34

5 
 

48,
339

,56
2  

21,
575

,81
8  

54,
032

,27
5  

37,
152

,89
1  

–00
 

Adv
anc

es 
- ne

t 
181

,35
7,1

00 
 

44,
638

,79
6  

48,
901

,44
1  

42,
216

,39
4  

14,
062

,09
5 

 
8,1

77,
109

  
7,1

72,
775

  
10,

823
,65

3  
3,3

79,
453

  
1,9

85,
384

   
Op

era
ting

 fix
ed 

ass
ets

 
13,

917
,78

1  
6,8

80,
605

  
177

,38
5  

259
,48

7  
485

,82
4 

 
810

,99
3  

640
,94

7  
794

,95
3  

949
,22

9  
2,9

18,
358

  
 

De
ferr

ed 
tax

 as
set

s - 
net

 
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

 
Oth

er a
sse

ts  
13,

743
,43

0  
12,

530
,83

0  
716

,19
1  

158
,52

8  
128

,99
6 

 
85,

050
  

41,
632

  
35,

958
  

46,
245

  
–00

 
 

 
579

,31
0,4

40 
 

110
,60

5,7
58 

 
67,

451
,74

2  
130

,56
3,3

95 
 

71,
727

,26
0 

 
57,

412
,71

4  
29,

431
,17

2  
65,

686
,83

9  
41,

527
,81

8  
4,9

03,
742

  
 

Lia
bilit

ies
 

Bill
s p

aya
ble

 
7,9

84,
808

  
7,9

84,
808

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
 

Bor
row

ing
s  

78,
455

,45
2  

57,
530

,29
0  

12,
411

,66
6  

5,0
95,

326
  

229
,36

6 
 

558
,79

8  
348

,35
2  

1,3
91,

061
  

890
,59

3  
–00

 
 

De
pos

its 
and

 oth
er a

cco
unt

s 
446

,31
1,4

64 
 

371
,74

1,3
63 

 
17,

876
,65

9  
16,

902
,33

9  
28,

355
,80

1 
 

3,8
92,

001
  

4,7
82,

226
  

2,7
61,

075
  

–00
  

–00
 

 
Sub

-ord
ina

ted
 loa

ns 
3,7

43,
700

  
–00

  
747

,90
0  

600
  

600
  

1,2
00 

 
1,2

00 
 

2,4
00 

 
2,9

89,
800

  
–00

  
 

Lia
bilit

ies
 ag

ain
st a

sse
ts s

ubj
ect

 
   to

 fin
anc

e le
ase

 
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
 

De
ferr

ed 
tax

 lia
bilit

ies
 - n

et 
2,7

69,
852

  
1,8

26,
438

  
24,

995
  

36,
806

  
65,

912
  

102
,27

9  
77,

050
  

42,
020

  
(31

,84
2 ) 

626
,19

4
 

Oth
er l

iab
ilitie

s 
7,0

18,
601

  
6,4

02,
431

  
48,

641
  

12,
351

  
495

,30
0 

 
4,7

29 
 

29,
940

  
25,

209
  

–00
  

–00
 

 
 

 
546

,28
3,8

77 
 

445
,48

5,3
30 

 
31,

109
,86

1  
22,

047
,42

2  
29,

146
,97

9 
 

4,5
59,

007
  

5,2
38,

768
  

4,2
21,

765
  

3,8
48,

551
  

626
,19

4 
 

Ne
t as

set
s 

 
33,

026
,56

3  
(33

4,8
79,

572
 ) 

36,
341

,88
1  

108
,51

5,9
73 

 
42,

580
,28

1  
52,

853
,70

7  
24,

192
,40

4  
61,

465
,07

4  
37,

679
,26

7  
4,2

77,
548

 
 

 
 

Sha
re c

api
tal 

11,
114

,25
4  

 
Re

ser
ves

 
 

8,7
60,

911
 

Un
app

rop
riat

ed 
pro

fit 
7,9

12,
345

 
No

n-c
ont

roll
ing

 int
ere

st 
113

,96
9

 
Sur

plu
s o

n re
val

uat
ion

 of 
ass

ets
 

 
  – 

net
 of 

tax
  

5,1
25,

084
 

 
 

33,
026

,56
3

42
.3.

2 
Ma

tu
rit

ies
 o

f a
ss

et
s a

nd
 lia

bi
lit

ies
 - 

ba
se

d 
on

 co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l m

at
ur

iti
es

 
Th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 m
atu

rity
 pr

ofi
le 

is 
ba

se
d o

n c
on

tra
ctu

al 
ma

tur
itie

s f
or

 as
se

ts 
an

d l
iab

ilit
ies

 th
at 

ha
ve

 a 
co

ntr
ac

tua
l m

atu
rity

. A
ss

ets
 an

d l
iab

ilit
ies

 th
at 

do
 no

t 
ha

ve
 a 

co
ntr

ac
tua

l m
atu

rity
 ha

ve
 be

en
 ca

teg
or

ise
d i

n t
he

 sh
or

tes
t m

atu
rity

 ba
nd

.

192



193

 
201

3
 

 
 

Tot
al 

Up
to 1

 
Ov

er 1
 

Ov
er 3

 
Ov

er 6
 

Ov
er 1

 
Ov

er 2
 

Ov
er 3

 
Ov

er 5
 

Ov
er 1

0
 

 
 

 
mo

nth
 

mo
nth

 to 
mo

nth
s to

 
mo

nth
s 

yea
r to

 
yea

rs t
o 

yea
rs t

o 
yea

rs t
o 

yea
rs

 
 

 
 

 
3 m

ont
hs 

6 m
ont

hs 
to 1

 ye
ar 

2 y
ear

s 
3 y

ear
s 

5 y
ear

s 
10 

yea
rs

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
(Ru

pee
s in

 '00
0)

 
Ass

ets
 

Ca
sh 

and
 ba

lan
ces

 wit
h tr

eas
ury

 ba
nks

 
32,

199
,55

2  
32,

199
,55

2  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

 
Bal

anc
es 

with
 oth

er b
ank

s 
2,6

64,
729

  
2,6

64,
729

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

  
–00

 
Len

din
gs 

to f
ina

nci
al i

nst
itut

ion
s 

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
 

Inv
est

me
nts

 - n
et 

239
,98

6,0
42 

 
54,

103
,81

3  
78,

406
,03

1  
69,

967
,39

0  
1,5

48,
373

  
3,0

92,
970

  
7,8

13,
875

  
7,6

34,
561

  
17,

419
,02

9  
–00

 
Adv

anc
es 

- ne
t 

167
,56

9,0
70 

 
42,

355
,62

4  
38,

426
,62

8  
36,

242
,61

0  
21,

758
,39

2 
 

8,3
79,

311
  

7,6
10,

177
  

7,5
43,

056
  

3,5
79,

168
  

1,6
74,

104
   

Op
era

ting
 fix

ed 
ass

ets
 

11,
815

,57
7  

5,4
93,

461
  

153
,48

4  
225

,17
6  

421
,11

5 
 

739
,66

8  
575

,77
2  

720
,67

0  
850

,64
2  

2,6
35,

589
  

 
De

ferr
ed 

tax
 as

set
s - 

net
 

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
 

Oth
er a

sse
ts  

6,7
86,

943
  

5,4
26,

836
  

752
,66

0  
146

,16
6  

200
,35

9 
 

112
,48

2  
52,

091
  

44,
217

  
46,

724
  

5,4
08

 
 

 
461

,02
1,9

13 
 

142
,24

4,0
15 

 
117

,73
8,8

03 
 

106
,58

1,3
42 

 
23,

928
,23

9 
 

12,
324

,43
1  

16,
051

,91
5  

15,
942

,50
4  

21,
895

,56
3  

4,3
15,

101
  

 
Lia

bilit
ies

 
Bill

s p
aya

ble
 

6,1
73,

102
  

6,1
73,

102
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

–00
  

 
Bor

row
ing

s  
29,

480
,02

6  
11,

432
,37

8  
9,5

92,
572

  
5,2

01,
136

  
190

,92
2 

 
505

,98
5  

583
,27

9  
667

,03
9  

1,3
06,

715
  

–00
 

 
De

pos
its 

and
 oth

er a
cco

unt
s 

386
,09

8,8
28 

 
321

,37
0,5

16 
 

21,
619

,76
3  

13,
386

,43
7  

20,
967

,68
7 

 
3,7

21,
707
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42.4 Equity position risk in the banking book – Basel Specific 

 The Bank's policy is to take equity positions for investment purposes and not to run a trading book 
for buying and selling of equities. Equity holdings include direct investment in shares and in equity 
- based mutual funds, both closed - end and open - end. Policies covering their valuation and 
accounting are disclosed in note 5.5.

 Equity position risk      
       
� (TXLW\�SRVLWLRQ�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�RI�ORVV�IURP�DGYHUVH�PRYHPHQWV�LQ�HTXLW\�SULFHV��7KH�%DQN·V�SROLF\�

is to take equity positions for investment purposes and not to run a trading book for buying and 
selling of shares.

 Equity position risk of the Bank is controlled through equity portfolio limits, sector limits, scrip limits, 
and future contracts limits. Direct investment in equities and mutual funds is managed within the 
statutory limits as prescribed by SBP as well as the internal limits set by the Bank itself. Stress 
testing for equity price risk is carried out regularly to estimate the impact of decline in stock prices.

42.5 Operational risk 

 Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, 
and systems or from external events. This definition includes legal risks but excludes strategic and 
reputational risks.

 Operational risk is managed through the operational risk policy and audit policy approved by the 
Board, along with the policies on prevention of frauds and forgeries and compliance with “Know 
Your Customer” / "Customer Due Diligence"  and “Anti Money Laundering / Combating Financing 
of Terrorism” requirements; operational manuals and procedures issued from time to time; a system 
of internal controls and dual authorisation for important transactions and safe - keeping; a Business 
Continuity Plan, including a Disaster  Recovery Plan for I.T., to prevent interruption of business 
services in the event of a major incident or disaster; an I.T. Security Policy to ensure security and 
integrity of I.T. systems; and regular audit of the branches. Audit Committee of the Board provides 
RYHUDOO�JXLGDQFH�LQ�PDQDJLQJ�WKH�%DQN·V�RSHUDWLRQDO�ULVN��

� 7KH�%DQN·V�RSHUDWLRQDO� ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW� IUDPHZRUN��DV� ODLG�GRZQ� LQ� WKH�RSHUDWLRQDO� ULVN�SROLF\�
permits the overall risk management approach to evolve in the light of organisational learning and 
the future needs of the Bank.

 The Bank places a high priority on conducting all business dealings with integrity and fairness, as 
laid down in the Code of Conduct, which is required to be complied with by all employees. 

 Internal controls are an essential feature of risk reduction in operational risk management and the 
Bank continues to improve its internal controls.

 Operational risk disclosures – Basel Specific

 The Bank uses Basic Indicator Approach to calculate capital charge for operational risk as per Basel 
regulatory framework. This approach is considered to be most suitable in view of the business model 
of the Bank which relies on an extensive network of branches to offer one - stop, full - service banking 
to its clients. The Bank has developed and implemented an Operational Loss Database. Operational 
loss and "near miss" events are reviewed and appropriate corrective actions taken on an ongoing 
basis, including measures to improve security and control procedures.
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43. ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

43.1 The Bank is operating 17 (2013: 17) Islamic banking branches in Pakistan. The statement of financial 
position and profit and loss account of these branches as at 31 December 2014 and for the year are 
as follows:

43.1.1 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

     2014  2013
    Note  (Rupees in '000)
 ASSETS
  Cash and balance with treasury banks   484,073 363,446
  Balances with and due from financial institutions   1,638,371 35,677
  Investments    2,798,926 1,493,818
  Islamic financing and related assets 43.1.1.1 7,974,727 10,647,906
  Operating fixed assets   62,860 62,567
  Other assets   214,790 359,340
     13,173,747 12,962,754
 LIABILITIES
  Bills payable  142,421 112,276
  Due to financial institutions  1,336,648 1,643,761
  Deposits and other accounts  9,859,014 8,617,703
   Current accounts  3,267,028 2,198,218
   Saving accounts  2,085,041 1,420,729
   Term deposits  4,449,048 3,380,965
   Others   40,532 11,348  

  Deposits from financial institutions - remunerative  16,439 1,605,680
   Deposits from financial institutions - non remunerative 926 763

  Due to Head Office  –00 990,000
  Other liabilities  462,701 293,351
     (11,800,784 ) (11,657,091 )

 NET ASSETS   1,372,963  1,305,663

 REPRESENTED BY:
  Islamic banking fund  1,100,000  1,000,000
  Unremitted profit  305,917  301,343

     1,405,917  1,301,343
  (Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of assets  (32,954 ) 4,320

     1,372,963  1,305,663
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43.1.1.1 Islamic financing and related assets
     2014  2013
      (Rupees in '000)
 Murabaha   1,988,650  4,684,555
 Net book value of assets / investment in ijarah under IFAS 2 488,316  202,296
 Diminishing musharika  3,106,668  3,056,660
 Export refinance murabaha  86,274  38,934
 Export refinance istisna  1,257,788  1,517,077
 Istisna    667,453  651,646
 Gross financings  7,595,149  10,151,168
 Less: general provisioning against consumer financing (688 ) (523 )
 Net financing   7,594,461  10,150,645
 Advance against murabaha  360,910  449,831
 Advance against ijarah  19,356  47,430
 Islamic financing and related assets - net off provision 7,974,727  10,647,906

43.1.1.2 Islamic mode of financing

 Financings / inventory / receivables  7,595,149  10,151,168
 Advances   380,266  497,261
 Less: general provision against consumer financing  (688 ) (523 )
     7,974,727  10,647,906 

43.2 PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

 Profit / return on financing and placements earned  1,111,230  1,046,170
 Profit / return on deposits and other dues expensed  (561,964 ) (568,622 )
     549,266  477,548
 Provision against non performing loans and advances (164 ) (292 )

 Net spread earned  549,102  477,256

 OTHER INCOME
  Fee, commission and brokerage income  37,169  27,776
  Income from dealing in foreign currencies  9,232  8,795
  Other income  10,792  8,796

     57,193  45,367

     606,295  522,623
 OTHER EXPENSES
  Administrative expenses  (300,378 ) (221,280 )

 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  305,917  301,343
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     2014  2013
      (Rupees in '000)

43.3 Remuneration to Shariah Advisor / Board  2,250  1,890

43.4 CHARITY FUND

 Opening balance  4,144  9,779
 Additions during the year  2,621  4,144
 Payments / utilisation during the year  
  Health   (2,500 ) (6,804 )
  Social welfare  (1,644 ) (2,975 )
     (4,144 ) (9,779 )
 Closing balance  2,621  4,144

43.5 PROFIT AND LOSS DISTRIBUTION AND POOL MANAGEMENT

43.5.1 The number and nature of pools maintained by the Islamic Banking Branches along with 
their key features and risk & reward characteristics:

 We have a single pool mechanism with the depositors. The pool operates on Mudarba basis. Since 
we are operating in a single pool structure the risk and reward are proportionately shared by the 
depositor.

 Parameters associated with risk and rewards:

 Following are the key considerations attached with risk and reward of the pool: 

 - Period, return, safety, security and liquidity of investment.
 - Maturities of funds obtained from Principal Office, Islamic Banking Institutions and   
    Shariah compliant organisations as regulated in Pakistan.
 - Element of risk attached to various types of investments.
 - SBP rules & Shariah clearance.

43.5.2 Avenues / sectors of economy / business where Mudaraba based deposits have been deployed: 

 The Mudarba based funds have been deployed in the following avenues / sectors / business :

 - Chemical & Pharmaceuticals
 - Agribusiness
 - Textile        
 - Sugar        
 - Shoes & Leather garments
 - Investment in Sukuk
 - Production and transmission of energy
 - Food and allied except Sugar
 - Wheat        
 - Individuals        
 - Others (Domestic wholes sale, plastic product etc.)



43.5.3 Parameters used for allocation of profit, charging expenses and provisions etc. along with 
a brief description of their major components:

� 7KH�%DQN·V�,VODPLF�%DQNLQJ�'LYLVLRQ��,%'��LV�FXUUHQWO\�DFFHSWLQJ�3DN�5XSHHV�7HUP�'HSRVLWV�DQG�
Saving Deposits under Mudaraba arrangements, wherein the Bank is Mudarib and depositors are 
Rab-Ul-Maal. The Bank also commingles its funds with those of depositors.

 The funds so generated are invested by the Bank in Shariah compliant modes of financing such as 
Murabaha, Ijarah, Istisna, Diminishing Musharaka and Ijarah Sukuk.

 The Bank calculates the profit of the pool after every quarter. Profit is distributed at the Net income 
level. Net income is calculated after deducting costs and expenses such as cost of Murabaha, cost 
of Takaful, Depreciation and loss of investments, directly incurred in deriving that Income.

 The Net income / loss is being allocated between the Bank's equity and the depositors' fund in 
proportion to their respective share in pool.

 7KH�%DQN·V�SURILW�VKDULQJ�UDWLR�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZDV�����������������RI�1HW�,QFRPH�DQG�WKH�GHSRVLWRUV· 
profit sharing ratio was 50% (2013: 50%) of Net Income.

 After the allocation of Income between the equity holder and depositors the profit is distributed among 
the account holders on the basis of predetermined weightages, announced by the Bank at the 
beginning of the quarter based on their respective category / tiers. In case of loss, Rab-Ul-Maal  has 
to bear the loss in the ratio of its investment.

 In case of provisioning, the general and specific provisions created against non - performing financing 
and diminution in the value of investments as under prudential regulations and other SBP directives 
shall be borne by the IBIs as Mudarib. However, write-offs of financings and loss on sale of investments 
shall be charged to the pool along with other direct expenses.

43.5.4 Mudarib share (in amount and percentage of Distributable Income) 

  2014 2013
   (Rupees in million)

 Distributable Income 739 698
 Mudarib Share 368 349
 Mudarib Share (%) 50% 50%

43.5.5 Amount and percentage of Mudarib share transferred to the 
   depositors through Hiba

 Mudarib Share 368 349
 Hiba 110 104
 Hiba percentage of Mudarib Share 30% 30%

43.5.6 Profit rate earned vs. profit rate distributed to the depositors
   during the year

  2014 2013

 Profit Rate Earned  10.24% 10.35%
 Profit Rate Distributed 5.29% 5.57%
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44. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

 Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 3 (2013: 
Rs. 2) per share and issue of bonus shares of in the ratio of NIL (2013:10) shares for every 100 
shares held.

45. GENERAL

45.1 Comparative information has been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these 
consolidated financial statements, wherever necessary to facilitate comparative and to conform with 
changes in presentation in the current year.

45.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

46. DATE OF AUTHORISATION

 These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in the Board of Directors' meeting 
held on February 17, 2015.         
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SYED HASAN ALI BUKHARI
Director

ALI RAZA D. HABIB
Chairman

ABBAS D. HABIB
Chief Executive and
Managing Director

SYED MAZHAR ABBAS
Director



200

Annexure-1

Statement showing written-off loans or any other financial relief
of five hundred thousand rupees or above provided

during the year ended 31 December 2014
(Rupees in '000)

 1. Whito International (Pvt) Ltd Mr. Muhammad Faryad Malik Mr. Malik Abdul Majeed – 1,401 – 1,401 – 853 – 853 
  87-Ahmed Block,  (CNIC:  34601-4949170-5)
  New Garden Town, Lahore
   Mrs. Khatoon Faryad Mr. Muhammad Faryad Malik
   (CNIC: 34601-2772028-4)

 2. Muhammad Shafi Mr. Muhammad Shafi Mr. Jamal Ud Din – 1,478 – 1,478 – 1,478 – 1,478
  Room No. 309, (CNIC: 42201-0603648-9)
  Cotton Exchange Building
  I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

 3. Rasheed Y. Chinoy Mr. Rasheed Yousuf Chinoy Mr. Yousuf Noor Muhammad – 918 – 918 – 918 – 918
  Uzma Arcade, 2nd Floor, (CNIC: 42000-9065661-9) Chinoy
  Main Clifton Road, Karachi. 

 4. Inter Continental Furnishing Co. Mr. Rasheed Yousuf Chinoy Mr. Yousuf Noor Muhammad 859 771 – 1,630 – 786 – 786
  KPT Gate No. 11, T.P.X Yard, (CNIC: 42000-9065661-9) Chinoy
  Off Moulvi Tamizuddin Khan 
  Road, Karachi.

 5. Continental Furnishing Co.  Mr. Rasheed Yousuf Chinoy Mr. Yousuf Noor Muhammad – 881 – 881 – 881 – 881
  (Pvt.) Limited (CNIC: 42000-9065661-9) Chinoy 
  KPT Gate No. 11, T.P.X Yard,  
  Off Moulvi Tamizuddin Khan Mr. Saeed Yousuf Chinoy Mr. Yousuf Noor Muhammad
  Road, Karachi. (CNIC: 42301-1127151-7) Chinoy

 6. Switch Securities (Pvt) Ltd Mr. Ali Raza Jaffery Mr. Muhammad Razi Jaffery – 87,633 – 87,633 – 87,633 – 87,633
  179-B, Abu Bakar Block, (CNIC: 35202-2679170-1) 
  New Garden Town, Lahore. 
   Mr. Sami Ullah Butt Mr. Fateh Muhammad
   (CNIC: 35200-1572395-9)

   Mr. Abdul Maalik Khan Mr. Abdul Qadeer Khan
   (CNIC: 35202-2931016-3)

 7. First Pakistan Securities Ltd Mr. Sami Ullah Butt Mr. Fateh Muhammad – 16,435 – 16,435 – 16,435 – 16,435
  179-B, Abu Bakar Block, (CNIC: 35200-1572395-9) 
  New Garden Town, Lahore.

   Mr. Abdul Maalik Khan Mr. Abdul Qadeer Khan
   (CNIC: 35202-2931016-3)

   Mr. Azeem-ul-Hassan Mr. Bakhtiar-ul-Hassan
   (CNIC: 35201-0622729-5)

 8. Salman Impex Mr. Salman Mr. Muhammad Jaffer 2,230 1,639 – 3,869 480 1,639 – 2,119
  Suite # 1007,  (CNIC: 42301-1771152-7) 
  Jilani Tower M.W. Tower, 
  M.A. Jinnah Road, Karachi.

 9. Abdul Rehman Pasha Mr. Abdul Rehman Mr. Habib Ullah 27,481 10,347 – 37,828 – 4,828 – 4,828
  60-P, Block 2, P.E.C.H.S, (CNIC: 42201-3223326-3) 
  Karachi.

    Total 30,570 121,503 – 152,073 480 115,451 – 115,931

Note: 1 The amount of principal written off was against the specific provision held by the Bank.
Note: 2 Interest / mark-up written off was against suspended mark-up.  

Name of
individuals /
partners /

directors (with
CNIC No.)

S.
No.

Name and
address

of the borrowers

Father's /
Husband's

Name

Outstanding Liabilities
at beginning of year

Principal Interest /
Mark-up Others Total

Principal
written-

off

Interest /
Mark-up
written-

off

Other
financial

relief
provided

Total
(9+10+11)

(3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12)(2)(1)
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Report of Shariah Advisor
We have examined, on test check basis, each class of transaction, the relevant documentation and procedures 
adopted by Islamic Banking Branches / Division of Bank AL Habib Limited (IBB-BAHL), and we hereby report, 
for the year ended December 31, 2014, that in our opinion;

 (a) The affairs of IBB-BAHL have been carried out in accordance with rules and principles of Shariah, 
SBP regulations and guidelines related to Shariah compliance and other rules as well as with specific 
fatawa and rulings issued by the Shariah Advisor from time to time; 

 (b) The allocation of funds, weightages, profit sharing ratios, profits and charging of losses, if any, relating 
to PLS accounts conform to the basis vetted by the Shariah Advisor in accordance with Shariah rules 
and principles and;

 (c) Any earnings that have been realised from sources or by means prohibited by Shariah rules and 
principles have been credited to charity account.

 ISMATULLAH
 Shariah Advisor
Karachi: February 17, 2015 Islamic Banking Division
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Branch Network
The Bank has a network of 459 branches including 108 sub-branches, 03 overseas branches and 17 Islamic 
Banking branches. The Bank also has 03 representative offices. The Bank has branches / sub-branches / 
representative offices in the following cities: 

SWIFT CODE : BAHLPKKA       website : www.bankalhabib.com

Registered Office
126-C, Old Bahawalpur Road, Multan. 

Phones: (92-61) 4580314-16, & 111-786-110 
Fax: (92-61) 4582471

Principal Office
Mackinnons Building, I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.
Phones: (92-21) 32412421, 32446916 & 111-786-110

Fax: (92-21) 32419752

� Abbotabad 
� Attock  
� Badin  
� Bahawalpur
� Bhan Saeedabad (Jamshoro)
� Bhiria Road 
�� Burewala 
�� Chaksawari (A.K.) 
�� Chakwal 
�� Chenab Nagar 
�� Dadu 
�� Dadyal (A.K.) 
�� Daharki 
�� Darya Khan Mari
�� Daska
� Deh 75 Nusrat (Daur)
� Deh Gad (Badin) 
�� Dera Ghazi Khan
� Dera Ismail Khan
� Dina
�� Dinga 
�� Faisalabad  
�� Fateh Jang 
�� Fazil Pur 
�� Feroza  
�� Feroze Watoan 
�� Gaggo Mandi 
�� Gambat 
�� Gawadar 
�� Ghakhar 
�� Gharo 
�� Ghotki 
�� Gilgit 
�� Gujar Khan 
�� Gujranwala  
�� Gujrat  
�� Hafizabad 
�� Hala 
�� Haripur 
�� Hingorja  
�� Hub  
�� Hyderabad  
�� Islamabad  
�� Jacobabad 
�� Jehlum 
�� Joharabad
�� Kamalia Sugar Mills (Kamalia)
� Kamoke
�� Kandhkot
�� Karachi 

�� Karkhana Bazar (Vehari) 
�� Kasur 
�� Khairpur 
�� Khanbela 
�� Khanewal 
�� Khanpur 
�� Kharian 
�� Khurrianwala 
�� Khushab 
� Kichiwala (Bahawalnagar)
�� Kotla Arab Ali Khan
� Kotli (A.K.) 
�� Kunri 
�� Lahore  
�� Lala Musa 
�� Larkana  
�� Mandi Bahauddin 
�� Mansehra
�� Mardan  
�� Mathanichangan Swabi 
�� Matli 
�� Mehar 
�� Mehrabpur
� Mianwali 
�� Mian Channu
� Mingora
�� Mirpur (A.K.) 
�� Mirpurkhas  
�� Moro 
�� Multan  
�� Muridke
� Muzaffarabad (A.K.)
�� Muzaffargarh 
�� Narowal
� Nathan Shah (Dist. Dadu)
�� Naukot  
�� Naushahro Feroze 
�� Nawabshah  
�� Nooriabad  
�� Okara
� PanuAqil 
�� Peshawar  
�� Pir Mahal 
�� Pull Kharan
� Qambar Ali Khan  
�� Qasba Gujrat
�� Qazi Ahmed 
�� Quetta 
�� Rahim Yar Khan
� Rajanpur

�� Rawalpindi  
�� Rohaillan Wali 
�� Sadiqabad 
�� Sahiwal
�� Sakrand 
�� Saleh Khana 
�� Sanghar 
�� Sargodha 
�� Shahdadkot 
� Shahdadpur 
�� Shahpur Chakar 
�� Sheikhupura  
�� Shikarpur 
�� Sialkot  
�� Skardu 
�� Sukkur  
�� Tando Adam 
�� Tando Allahyar 
�� Tando Bagho 
�� Tando Muhammad Khan 
� Taranada Muhammad Pannah  
 (Dist. Rahim Yar Khan)
�� Taxila 
�� Thari Mirwah
�� Tharu Shah 
�� Tibba Sultanpur 
�� Toba Tek Singh 
�� Turbat
� Ubauro
�� Uch Sharif
� Ugoki
� Umerkot 
�� Wah Cantt 
�� Wazirabad 
�� Zahir Pir
� Export Processing Zone, 
 Karachi

Overseas Branches
� Manama, Bahrain
� Labuan, Malaysia
� Victoria, Seychelles

Representative Offices
� Beijing, China
� Dubai, U.A.E.
� Istanbul, Turkey



Form of Proxy
The Company Secretary
Bank AL Habib Limited
126-C, Old Bahawalpur Road,
MULTAN.

I/We ________________________________________________________________________________

of __________________________________________________________________________________

a member(s) of Bank AL Habib Limited and holding ___________________________________________

ordinary shares, as per Register Folio No./CDC Account and Participant's I.D. No.___________________

hereby appoint ___________________________________________Folio No. _____________________

of __________________________________________________________________________________

or failing him/her _________________________________________Folio No. _____________________

of __________________________________________________________________________________

another member of the Bank  to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Twenty Fourth Annual General Meeting 

of the Bank to be held on Wednesday, March 18, 2015 and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand this__________________day of_________________2015.

REVENUE
STAMP
RS. 5

 SIGNATURE OF MEMBER (S)

A member entitled to attend  the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 
instead of him/her.  No person shall act as proxy (except for a corporation) unless he/she is entitled to be 
present and vote in his/her own right.
CDC account holder or sub-account holder appointing a proxy should furnish attested copies of his / her own 
as well as the proxy's CNIC / Passport with the proxy form. The proxy shall also produce his / her original
CNIC or passport at the time of the meeting. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / 
power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted alongwith proxy form. 
The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or by his/her attorney duly authorised in 
writing. If the member is a corporation, its common seal (if any) should be affixed to the instrument.
The proxy  forms shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Bank not less than 48 hours before the 
time of the meeting.




